
, ' . ...--~. ~'-

BOARD MINUTES 
JULY - DECEMBER 2010 

:., 

.. 
" 

. '" 
t'. 

,). " 

:;;, 

'--" " ,"; . 
. ;, .~, S~'". .. 

"',1'" 

-'1, 

," 
,r 

, ' 

'. 

" ;';~." /'; 



\ 



(;:) 

p 
p ~l.:---:::.-I~ !\ 1501 Ellinwood Street r.JJ 

• 

• 

TO: Library Board of Trustees 

FROM: Holly Richards Sorensen, Library Director Hf-..7 
SUBJECT: Background on November Agenda Items 

DATE: December 16, 2010 

Des Plaines. Il 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

This is information to help you prepare for the discussion at our meeting on December 21. 

VIII. Unfinished Business 

A. Review and Approve Salary Schedule for 2011. 
At the November 30 Board meeting you voted to direct Director Sorensen to 
prepare a report listing the history of raises and the number of employees who are 
at the top of the salary range for years 2008, 2009 and 2010. This information will 
be distributed to you at the December 21 meeting. On the Wiki is the 
Benchmarking and Compensation Study prepared by the Management Association 
you asked to review. 

B. Use and Layout of Wiki Information. 
Please bring your ideas for changes/improvements to the Wiki site. 

IX. New Business 

A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $85,908.59. [Action Item) 

B. Approve Payment to ProQuest - $15,195.00. [Action Item) 
An explanation is attached. 

C. Approve Payment toCale for Biography Resource Center/Student Resource 
Center - $10,111.96. [Action Item) 

D. 

E. 

An explanation is attached. 

Approve Payment to EBSCO - $11,989.00. [Action Item) 
An explanation is attached. 

Resolutions. [Action Item) 
These are annual resolutions required to comply with the duties of trustees under 
75 ILCS 5/3-5and 5/4-15. 

w~~orgA // 
V~y--=---



• 

• 

• 

F. January and July 2011 Meeting Start Times. [Action Item) 
The library board meets at 4:00 p.m. in January and July to allow time for a board 
dinner following the meeting. At the November 30 meeting you voted to meet no 
earlier than 6:00 p.m. You will discuss the start times for January and July. 

G. Approve Payment to the RTI Group - $16,990.00. [Action Item) 
On December 14, 2010, the library received the Per Capita Grant in the amount of 
$59,948.78 for 2010. You will be asked to approve the purchase of an Optical 
Disc Repair System, which will clean up to 100 discs at one time. This will be paid 
for with Per Capita Grant funds. 



• • • 5888 
1 

Des Plaines Public library 
2008 thru 2010 Employee Merit Increase and Bonus Data 

IT."". 1'- ••• "'. '-.... .;;I'''"'~ Too of Pay R !IA.I .... _"' •• _..::1' 

2008 6.5% 5.5% 3.5% Total Merit 5% 3% Total Bonus Total 
Increases Payments Employees 

No. of 
Emplo)'ees a 70 1. 82 Q .lQ .lQ 98 

2009 6.5% 5.5% 3.5% 5% 3% Total 
Emolovees 

No. of 
Emplo)'ees 1. 72 1. 80 Q .ll .ll 92 

2010 2,75°[0 2.5% 1.5% 2% 1% Total 
Employees 

No. of 
Emplo)'ees 2 55 1 Q1 .1 .1 64 



.. ' 

• 

•• 

• 

ProQuest Databases 2011 

Invoice Total: $15,195.00 

Pro Quest Historical Newspapers - Chicago Tribune: $3,670.00 
Remote Access: $520.00 

Content: 
Newspaper full-text (including-graphics, photos, and advertisements) from 
1849-1987. 

Usage statistics: 
Average of 751 searches per month from January to November 2010. 

Note: 
This database is heavily used by genealogists looking for obituaries and local 
historical information. It is also used by students looking for articles on Chicago 
historical events. 

Benefit to patrons: 
ChicagoTribune.com charges $3.95 for articles older than 30 days or 
$149.95-$359.95 for an annual pass (depending on the number of articles). 

Pro Quest Historical Newspapers - New York Times: $5,365.00 

Content: 
Newspaper full-text (including graphics, photos, and advertisements) from 
1851- 2007. 

Remote Access: 
Remote access is available through the.library's Web site. We are allowed an 
unlimited number of simultaneous users. 

Usage statistics: 
Average of 149 searches per month from January to November 2010. 

Note: 
This database is popular with students who need primary source documents and for 
anyone looking for articles on historic events. 

Benefit to patrons: . 
NYTimes.com charges $3.95 for Premium articles (with photos, charts, etc.) and for 
articles published from 1923-1986. 



.. 
• Wall Street Journal: $5,640.00 

Content: 

• 

• 

Newspaper full-text from 1984 to the present. 

Remote Access: 
Remote access is available through the library's Web site. We are allowed an 
unlimited number of simultaneous users. 

Usage statistics: 
Average of 80 searches per month from January to November 2010. 

Note: 
WSJ is important to the business community and others looking for authoritative 
financial information. 

Benefit to patrons: 
WSJ.com charges $1.99 per week for first 26 weeks, then $2.99 per week for 
online subscriptions ($218 per year). . 



• 

• 

• 

Biography Resource Center (BRC) 2010 Renewal 

Invoice Total $10,222.96 

Price: $4,022.73 

Content: 
This database combines more than 600,000 biographies from Gale print sources on 
not~ble figures in literature, science, history, government, entertainment and more. 

Audience: 
This database is used by adults and students. It is particularly useful in Reference when no 
print biographies are available on a subject. 

Remote Access: 
Remote, unlimited access is available through the library'S Web site. 

Usage statistics: 
323 searches per month, on average, from January - November 2010. 

Student Resource Center (SRC) 2010 Renewal 

Price: $6,200.23 

Content: 

• Primary documents 
• Image Galley 
• Full-text articles from magazines and newspapers 

• Topic overviews 
• Video and audio selections from NBC, NPR and more 

Audience: 
This database is geared toward middle school and high school students. It combines 
different media to create a web-like search experience that results in the discovery of 
reliable, authoritative information. 

Remote Access: 
Remote, unlimited access is available through the library'S Web site. 

Usage statistics: 
89 searches per month, on average, from January - November 2010. 



• 

• 

• 

EBSCO Invoice 2011 

. Invoice Total: $11,989.00 

MasterFile Premier 

Content: 

• Full text for nearly 1,100 periodicals covering general reference, business, 
health, education and science. 

• Links to over 5,000 video files including television shows like the Today 
Show, NBC Nightly News, and Meet the Press 

• Full text from more than 500 reference books 

• Over 107,000 primary source documents 
• Over 510,000 photos, maps & flags 

Business Source Premier 

Content: 

• Full Text for more than 2,200 journals 
• Fu II test back to 1965 
• . Company profiles· 
• Country reports 
• Industry reports 
• Market research reports 

Note: This package replaces Gale's General Reference Center and Business & Co. 
Resource Center. EBSCO now has exclusive rights to several. important publications 
including: Time, People, Sports Illustrated, US News and World Report, 
Entrepreneur, Forbes, Fortune, Harvard Business Review, Kiplinger's Personal 
Finance, Money and Science. 

The following databases are includedat no additional charge: 

• MAS FuliTEXT Ultra School Edition (full text articles from magazines and 
reference works for high school students) 

• Middle Search Plus (full text articles and biographies for middle-school 
students) 

• Primary Search (full text articles, photos and reference works for elementary 
school students) 

• Newspaper Source Plus (full text from hundreds of U.S. and international 
newspapers including the New York Times) 



(;) 

m ~l..---::.-l~c~ ,~ -' 

" (;) 

• 

\ 1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines. tl 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

RESOLUTION 
2011 appropriation and 2010 Levy for Library Purposes 

Des Plaines Public Library, Des Plaines, Illinois 

WHEREAS, The Board of Library Trustees of the Des Plaines Public Library of Des 
Plaines, Illinois, has at an open and public meeting held on September 21, 2010 
considered the financial requirements of the said Public library for the fiscal year 
commencing January 1, 2011; and 

WHEREAS, said Board has determined the financial requirements of the Library for 
the coming fiscal year and caused to be made a statement of those financial 
requirements, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof marked 
Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, said Board has further determined the amount of money of which, in its 
judgment, it will be necessary to levy for library purposes in the 2010 annual tax 
levy ordinance to be enacted by the City Council of the City of Des Plaines. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Library Trustees of the Des 
Plaines Public Library as follows: 

1. THAT the amount of money, which in its judgment it will be 
necessary to levy for library purposes in the 2010 annual tax levy 
ordinance and for collection and deposit in the library fund is 
$6,499,096. 

2, AND THAT the Library will control its expenditures so that the 
expenditures do not exceed actual income during FY2011. 

3, THAT the Secretary of the Board file a certified copy of this resolution 
with the City Clerk of the City of Des Plaines, Illinois. 

-........D, 
www.~~ 

L 



(D 
(D 
,-," 

AM930534 

• 
CITY OF DES PLAINES 
DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 
1501 ELLINWOOD AVENUE 
DES PlAINES IL 60016-4553 

Vendor Number ********* L 

03586 

DANIEL W. HYNES 
COMPTROLLER - STATE OF ILLINOIS 

Agency * 
Warrant Number 
Warrant Amount 
Warrant Date 
Voucher Number 

SECRETARY OF STATE 
AA1930534 
$59,948.78 
12-09-2010 
PV350000021065 

Payment Description: FY2010 ANNUAL PUBLIC LIBRARy PER CAPITA GRANT 
GRANT FOR PUBLIC LIBRARIES PER 75 ILCS 10/8.1 
PA 96-0046 
100% PAYMENT 
NOT FOR EDUCATIONAL PURPOSES 

Invoice Number' Customer 10 

• 

03633 

I I I I 
I 

Net Amount 

59948.78 

u: 
~ 
C 
0: 

U 
___ --.J u 

Payment of interest may be available if the State fails to comply with the lIIinois Prompt Payment Act (30 ILCS 540/1) U. 
* For questions. contact SECRETARY OF STATE 217-782-3127 ., 

..... J 



• The /BTI! Group Quotation 

• 

• 

Ship to: 
Des Plaines Public Library 
1501 Ellinwood Street 
Des Plaines, IL 60016 
Attn: Ms. 10 Bonell 

Reader Services Supervisor 

Quo .. tion Number. SRJ-7455 

Quounion Expires: 30 Days 

Bill to: 
Des Plaines Public Library 
150 I Ellinwood Street 
Des Plaines, lL 60016 
Attn: Ms. 10 Bonell 

Reader Services Supervisor 

F.Q.B. Ex-Factory, Lincolnwood, USA Tem1S: Net 30 Days 

Date of Quote: December 13, 2010 Delivery: 5 to 15 Days ARO 

OU,\~ III \' CA I ALOG # IlESCRIPTIO~ lJ~11" I'I{ICE A,\I()lJ,~ I 

New RTI ECO Master Optical Disc Repair System for 
I 10430s Maintenance through Deep Scratch Repair of all DVDs, CDs, CD- $ 15,995.00 

ROMs, Books-on-Disc, & Game Discs. ,. Full Automatic Operation Handling up to 50 Discs 
Unattended ,. Selectable Repairs of all 50 Discs in the Batch ,. Precision Computer Controlled Flat Polishing Technology ,. 3 Stage Water Recycling System ,. 'Hi-Vision' Color Touch Screen Control Center ,. On-Screen History Reporting of All Discs Repaired ,. Includes Supplies to repair approx. 500 Discs ,. I Year PartslFactory Labor Warranty ,. Scottl1etfwill deliver and set up 

I 10480 Selectable 4 Level Precision Blu-ray Repair $ 995.00 
Total 

Pricing does not include applicable Taxes, Duties, and Fees. 
Delivel)' time is based on CURRENT oroduction load & is subiect to chanlZe. 

Please sign a~d return it to RTI, Attention: Scott 

ACCEPTED: Research Technology International 

Signature: ___________________ _ By 

Authorized Representative 
Name: ____________________ ___ 

Date Accepted: ___ , ___ -', ___ _ APPROVED: December 13. 2010 

4700 Chase. Lincolnwood. Illinois. 60712 
Phone: 800-323-7520 or 847-677-3000. FAX: 800-784-6733 or 847-677-1311 

E-mail: sjahnke@rtico.com. Website: www.rtico.com 

$ 15,995.00 

$ 995.00 
$16,990.00 



(D 
m 
>~ ..1-1:---:::0-
<A) 

• 

• 

NOTICE 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2010 

7:00 PM 

Conference Room - Second Floor 

Agenda: 

Annual Budget Resolutions 
Executive Session - To Discuss 

Semi-Annual Review of Executive Session 
Minutes 

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, Il 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

H47-827-7974 fax 

The Des Plaines Public Library, in compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, requests 
that persons with disabilities who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe andlor 
participate in the meetings or have questions about the accessibility of the meetings or facilities 
contact the Library Director at 847-376-2801 to allow the Library to make reasonable 
accommodations . 

--...!::J. 
www.~ 



• 

• 

I. 

II. 

III. 

IV . 

V. 

Call to Order. 

Roll Call. 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting 
December 21, 2010 

7:00 PM 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Consideration of the Agenda. 

Public Comments and Questions, 

" 

VI. City Council Community Services Committee - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

VII. Consent Agenda. [Action Iteml 
A. Approval of the Minutes of Board Discussion -

November 16, 2010. 
B. Approval of the Minutes of the Rescheduled Board Meeting

November 30, 2010. 
C. Acceptance of Financial Reports for November 2010. 
D. Acceptance of Reports. 

1. Director's Report - Holly Richards Sorensen. 
2. Friends of the Library Report - Myrtle Klebe . 

----D. www.~.~~J..// 
.;.~ 

1501 Ellinwood $treet 

Des Plaines, IL 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

.l 



(D 
(D 
>~ 

", 

• VIII. Unfinished Business. 
A. Review and Approve Salary Schedule for 2011. [Action Item] 
B. Use and Layout of Wiki Information. 

IX. New Business. 
A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $85,908.59. [Action 

Item] 
B. Approve Payment to ProQuest - $15,195.00. [Action Item] 
C. Approve Payment to Gale for Biography Resource Center/Student 

Resource Center - $10,111.96 [Action Item] 

I· 
D. Approve Payment to EBSCO - $11,989.00. [Action Item] 
E. Resolutions. [Action Item] 

1. Appropriation and Levy. 
F. January and July 2011 Meeting Start Times. [Action Item] 
G. Approve Payment to The RTI Group - $16,990.00. [Action Item] 

X. Announcements. 
A. Request for Volunteers for Do the Dewey Committee. 

XI. Correspondence. 

XII. Other 

• XIII. Executive Session. 
A. Semi-Annual Review of Executive Session Minutes. 

XIV. Executive Session Action. 
A. Semi-Annual Review of Executive Session Minutes. (Action Item] 

XV. Adjournment. 

This meeting will be recorded for television broadcast. 

• 



• 

• 
, 

)' 
i 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of Board Discussion 

November 16, 2010 

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, IL 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

The regular meeting of the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees was held in the second 
floor conference room on Tuesday, November 16, 2010. President George Magerl called the 
meeting to order at 7:08 p.m. 

Roll call indicated the following board members were present: Dion Kendrick, Myrtle Klebe, 
George Magerl, Steven Mokry. 

No quorum was present. The meeting was rescheduled to Tuesday, November 30, 2010 at 7:00 
p.m. 

Absent: Eugene Fregetto, Susan Moylan Krey, john Robinson, jeff Rozovics, jennifer 
Tsalapatanis. 

Also present: Holly Richards Sorensen, Carol Kidd, Heather Imhoff, Roberta johnson, Stephanie 
Spetter, Susan Farid, Alderman Dan Wilson, jennifer Delgado, Miriam Pollack, Raul Silvestry, 
Don Sofolo, Dan Klobnak, Bob Vormittag. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 

Bob Vormittag,' a Des Plaines resident, stated that the library is too noisy and patrons should be 
restricted in using their cell phones and talking loudly. Trustee Kendrick asked that the quiet 
policy be reviewed. Library Director Sorensen will review this request. 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

Alderman Wilson was in attendance, but did not give a report. 

DIRECTOR'S REPORT - Holly Richards Sorensen. 

Personnel Highlights 

New Employees for October/November 2010 
Rebecca Harris, Page, 11/0112010 
Wanda johnson, Page 11/15/2010 

---../). 
www.~/ 

... 



• 

• 

• 

Resignations for OctoberlNovember 2010 
Linda Knorr, Readers' Services Assistant, 10/28/2010 

Patron Services Highlights 

Circulation 
As of October 21 we have circulated 1,026,959 items. That's down 3.2"10 from 2009 where we 
saw record increases of 13%. Our circulation is leveling off from those record highs but still very 
strong. 

Patron Attendance: 
50,152 people came through the doors this month, which is up 10% over October 2009. 

Hits on Web site: 
We had 54,141 hits on our web site in October. Total web site hits for 2010 are 588,460. 

Meeting Room Usage: 
In October 80 different groups met at the library using our meeting rooms. Over, 3,000 people 
were in attendance. 

Other: 
241 audiobooks were downloaded by 78 patrons in October, 36 of who are new users. The most 
popular titles are Steig Larsson's Girl with the Dragon Tattoo and Girl who Kicked the Hornet's 
Nest. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

REVIEW AND APPROVE INSURANCE PROPOSALS FROM HARTFORD INSURANCE FOR 
LIBRARY PROPERTY, GENERAL LIABILITY, AUTOMOBILE, WORKERS' COMPENSATION AND 
EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY, UMBRELLA, DIRECTORS' & OFFICERS' LIABILITY WITH HIGHER 
DEDUCTIBLES 

Tru.stee Kendrick asked what the savings was for raising the insurance deductible from $1,000 to 
$5,000 and President Sorensen stated that the insurance premium was reduced by $2,126. 

NEW BUSINESS 

PREPARE FOR BOARD RETREAT - Miriam Pollack. 

Miriam Pollack, from Miriam Pollack & Associates, gave everyone in attendance a draft of the 
agenda for the January 8, 2011 planning retreat meeting at the library. 



• DISCUSS MEETING TIMES FOR BOARD AND COMMITIEE MEETINGS. 

• 

• 

The board discussed meeting no earlier than 6:00 p.m. to accommodate those members who 
work or who cannot attend an earlier meeting. 

DISCUSS BOARD USE OF WIKI. 

President Magerl asked the board to think about how they use the Wiki and ways to improve the 
functionality. 

Alderman Wilson stated that the City Council had approved the bridge loan for the library. 
Alderman Wilson also stated that the Cook County tax bills have bee'n mailed and asked if the 
library would still require a loan. President Magerl responded that the library would be very 
conservative in requesting a loan.' Trustee Kendrick asked Director Sorensen what the costs to 
the library were for requesting a bridge loan from the City of Des Plaines and Director Sorensen 
responded that legal fees were $2,500. 

Discussion adjourned at 7:59 p.m. 

Minutes prepared Carol Kidd. 



I 

(~ 

(~ 
>~ ~,----:; t 

: \ 1501 Ellinwood Street <0 

• 

• 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Rescheduled Regular Meeting 

November 30, 2010 

Des Plaines, Il60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

The regular meeting of the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees was held in the second 
floor conference room on Tuesday, November 30, 2010. President George Mager! called the 
meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Roll call indicated the following board members were present: Eugene Fregetto, Di.on Kendrick, 
Myrtle Klebe, George Mager!, Steven Mokry, john Robinson, jeff Rozovics, jennifer Tsalapatanis. 

Absent: Susan Moylan Krey. 

Also present: Holly Richards Sorensen, Carol Kidd, Roberta johnson, Susan Farid, jo Bonell, 
Alderman Dan Wilson, jennifer Delgado, Wayne Serbin, Dan Klobnak, Don Sofolo, Steve 
Antonoff. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA. 

MOTION by Myrtle Klebe, seconded by john Robinson, to approve the agenda, as written. 
VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS. 

Wayne Serbin, a Des Plaines resident, made a complaint about how noisy the library is because 
there is loud talking, cell phone use and children crying. 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

Alderman Wilson was in attendance, but did not have a report. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by jeff Rozovics, to approve the Consent 
Agenda, as presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

--D. www.~ 



• UNFINISHED BUSINESS. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Steve Mokry, to approve the Insurance Proposal from 
Hartford Insurance for Library Property, General Liability, Automobile, Workers' Compensation 
and Employers' Liability, Umbrella, Directors' & Officers Liability with a deductible of $5,000. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: A YES: Fregetto, Kendrick, Klebe, Mager!, Mokry, Robinson, Rozovics, 
Tsalapatanis. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

NEW BUSINESS 

APPROVE PAYMENT OF VENDOR CHECKS REPORT - $83,287.91. IAction Itemi 

MOTION by Jeff Rozovics, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to approve the payment of vendor 
checks in the amount of $83,287.91, as listed on the vendor checks report of October 2010 and 
authorize the Library Director to have transferred the amount required to the library'S operating 
account. ROLL CALL VOTE: A YES: Kendrick, Klebe, Mager!, Mokry, Robinson, Rozovics, 
Tsalapatanis. NAYS: Fregetto. MOTION CARRIED. 

Eugene Fregetto stated that the vendor check report does not list the contract amount for 
individual contracts. Jeff Rozovics stated that a special report would have to be created. Dion 
Kendrick asked what the cost would be for this additional information. Director Sorensen will 

• contact the library accountants and inquire about the costs for speCialized reports. 

• 

PREPARE FOR BOARD RETREAT 

A draft of the agenda for the January 8, 2011 planning retreat was distributed to board members. 
The retreat will be held in meeting room C from 9:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. Alderman Wilson will 
attend the meeting. 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT - MYRTLE KLEBE 

MOTION by Committee, to approve changes to Section D, Personnel PoliCY, as presented. ROLL 
CALL VOTE: AYES: Fregetto, Kendrick, Klebe, Mager!, Mokry, Robinson, Rozovics, Tsalapatanis. 
NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

REVIEW AND APPROVE SALARY SCHEDULE FOR 2011. 

The board was asked to review and approve the 2011 salary and classification schedule with a 
1 % increase to the ranges only. Sorensen stated that staff would receive no increase to salary in 
2011. The increase is a recommendation from the Management Association of Illinois which 
surveys area businesses for changes to salary schedules. 

- ----------------------



• 

• 

• 

MOTION by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, seconded by Jeff ROlovics, to approve the Salary Schedule for 
2011. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Magerl, Rozovics, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: Fregetto, Kendrick, 
Klebe, Mokry, Robinson. MOTION FAILED. 

MOTION by Steve Mokry, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to direct Director Sorensen to prepare a 
report listing the history of the raises given to employees for the last three years and to report the 
number of employees who are at the top of the salary range in the last three years, and to obtain 
a copy of the study prepared by Management Association for board review at the December 
2010 meeting. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

REVIEW AND APPROVE CONTRACT FOR IT SERVICES. 

The board was asked to review and vote on the IT proposal submitted by Outsource Solutions 
Group for three years at a cost of $32S,000/yr. Don Sofolo, President, Outsource Solutions 
Group, was in attendance to answer board questions about the Request for Proposal that his 
company prepared and submitted to the library. No other bids were received, but Director 
Sorensen stated that the IT proposal was sent by email to' other IT companies. The board 
members discussed the 30 day clause in the proposal that states "The Board reserves the right to 
cancel said IT services with a thirty (30) day written notice." 

MOTION by Steve Mokry, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to' approve the Outsource Solutions 
Group proposal for three years at a cost of $32S,000/yr., as presented. ROLL CALL VOTE: A YES: 
Kendrick, Klebe, Magerl, Mokry, Robinson, Rozovics. NAYS: Fregetto, Tsalapatanis. MOTION 
CARRIED. 

SUBSTITUTE MOTION by Eugene Fregetto, seconded Jennifer Tsalapatanis, to extend the current 
contract with Outsource Solutions Group for six (6) months with the same terms and conditions, 
to allow staff to resolicit proposals for IT services and to schedule a pre-proposal meeting to . 
allow all competitors to be fully informed about the IT proposal. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: 
Fregetto, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: Kendrick, Klebe, Magerl, Mokry, Robinson, Rozovics. MOTION 
FAILED. 

APPROVE PAYMENT TO EBSCO FOR SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES. 

MOTION by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, seconded by John Robinson, to approve the EBSCO 
subscription service invoice in the amount of $32,109.40. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: 
None. MOTION CARRIED. 

DISCUSS MEETING TIMES FOR BOARD AND COMMITIEE MEETINGS. 

The board will not schedule meeting earlier than 6:00 p.m. to allow all board members to attend 
the meetings. 



• 

• 

• 

DISCUSS BOARD USE OF WIKI. 

President Magerl asked the board to think about how they use the Wiki and any changes they 
would like to see implemented on the Wiki. Use of the board Wiki will be discussed at the 
December board meeting. 

AN NOU NCEMENTS 

President Mager! invited the board to the staff Christmas party on December 14 and asked the 
board to make a donation for the party. 

Jennifer Tsalapatanis asked that the Do the Dewey committee begin meeting soon. 

MOTION by Myrtle Klebe, seconded by John Robinson, to adjourn the regular meeting. VOTE: 
AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:51 p.m. 

Minutes prepared Carol Kidd . 



• 

• 

• 

L t bach & A LLP 27W457 Warrenville Road, Warrenville, IL 60555·3902 __ au __ e_r _______ m_e_n~, __________ ~//r------------------------
Certified Public Accountants 

December 14, 2010 

Members of the Board of Trustees 
Des Plaines Public Library 
Des Plaines, IL 60016 

(847) 562-9252 

We have compiled the accompanying balance sheet of the Des Plaines Public Library as of November 
30, 2010 and the related statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the one 
month and the eleven months then ended in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting 
and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. ' 

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements, information that is the 
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements 
and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them. . 

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures required· by generally accepted 
accounting principles. If the omitted disclosures were included in the financial statements, they might 
influence the user's conclusions about the Library's assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and expenses. 
Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed about such 
matters. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

-hcu...::tQ..ar~~L ~~, \.-LP 
, 

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 



• 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 

Treasurer's Report as of November 30, 2010 

Institution 

201-1101000 - Petty Cash 

201-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 
202-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 

201-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 
202-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 
707-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 

201-1102009 - Cash Payroll #8100292278 

201-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 
202-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

201-1102028 - Cash Library Donations 

201-1102073 - Cash IL - Epay #151600222104 

201-1102076 - IL Funds - Library # 151600221288 
202-1102076 - IL Funds - Library # 151600221288 

201-1102078 - Cash IL - Epay Library 

201-1102079 - IL Funds - 151600222591 

201-1104006 - Investments - Certificates of Deposit 

Total Invested 

Invested 

500.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

1,959.67 
0.00 
0.00 

1,959.67 

17,860.96 
17,860.96 

97,483.06 
24,853.23 

122,336.29 

21,624.07 
21,624.07 

3,978.80 

(100,655.08) 
128,386.09 
27,731.01 

1,702.64 

174,801.22 

102,423.77 

474,918,43 



(~ 
(?;) December 14, 2010 

,.." 

", Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of November 30, 2010 

• 
____ Library Fundl ___ _ 

1101000 - retty Cash 

1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 

1102009 - Cash Payroll #8100292278 

1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

1102028 - Cash Library Donations 

1102073 - Cash IL - Epay 151600008073 
1102076 - IL Funds - Library # 15160221288 

1102078 - Cash IL - Epay Library 

1102079 -IL Funds-

1104006 - Investments - Certificates of Deposit 
1118000 - Receivable - Property Taxes 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2401000 - Accounts Payable 
2401001 - Audit Accounts Payable 

• 
2401002 - Payroll Liabilities 
2401010 - Federal W/H Payable 
2401020 - F.lC.A. W/H Payable 
2401030 - State W/H Payable 
2410020 - Escrow Deposits 
2430010 - Due To - Corporate General 
2430080 - Due To - Employee Retirement Trust 
2430099 - Oue To Other Funds 
2430707 - Oue to Library Comp Abs 
2450030 - Accrued liability - Comp Absence 
2450035 - Accrued ST -L T Comp Absence 

2450040 - Accrued Payroll 
2450070 - Accrued FICA Withholding 
2450080 - Accrued IMRF Pension 
2450082 - RHS IMRF 
2470000 - Deferred Revenue· Property Tax 
2470100 - L.ibrary Deferred Revenue 
2471000 - Deferred Revenue - Other 
2490010 - Compensated Absences Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total LiDbilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses • 

Beginning 

Balance 

500.00 

1.959.67 

2.306.55 
176,925.70 

21,621.47 

2,022.42 
(195,658.62) 

1,030.07 
702,738.69 

102,337.37 
6,599,703.00 

7.415,486.32 

79,069.92 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

172,222.44 
0.00 
0.00 

25,438.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

.6,442,163.00 
8,058.00 

0.00 
0.00 

6,726,951.36 

1.484291.17 

8,211,242.53 

M.T.D. 
Changes 

0.00 

0.00 
15,554.41 

(79,442.64) 

2.60 
1,956.38 

95,003.54 

672.57 
(527,937.47) 

86.40 
0.00 

(4~ 104.21) 

5,022.96 
0.00 

15,021.61 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

20,044.57 

0.00 

20,044.57 

(795, 756.21) ==d{g51.:4~, 1~4:l18;,{,. 7J118) 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
1 

Ending 

Balance 

500.00 

1,959.67 

17.860,96 
97,483,06 

21,624.07 

3,978.80 

(100,655.08) 
1,702.64 

174,801.22 

102,423.77 

6,599,703.00 
6,921,382.11 

84,092.88 
0.00 

15,021,61 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0,00 

172,222,44 
0.00 
0.00 

25,438.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

6,442,163.00 
8,058.00 

0.00 
0.00 

6,746,995.93 

1,484291.17 

8,231,287.10 

(1,309,904.99) 



(~ 
(;;l December 14, 2010 
,-' 
(J"> 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of November 30,2010 

• ____ Capital Projects Fundl ___ _ 

1102015. First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

1102076 • IL Funds· library # 15160221288 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2401000· Accounts Payable 
2401001 • Audh Accounts Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000· Fund Balance· UnreselVed 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

(70.146.77) 

223.386.09 
153,239.32 

0.00 
16.531.10 
16,531.10 

206.851.74 

223,382.84 

95.000.00 24,853.23 

(95.000.00) __ ..:.1",28",.3",8",6",.0",9 
0.00 153.239.32 

466.41 
0.00 

466.41 

0.00 

466.41 

466.41 
16.531.10 
16,997.51 

206.851.74 

223.849.25 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses (70, 143.52) ===,f(4~6~6.;;;,41~) ==.l(~70~.6~0;g,9;g.9;!J3) 

• Compensated Absences Fund 

~ 

1120201 • Due From library 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2450035 • Accrued ST·L T Comp Absence 
2490010- Compensated Absences Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000. Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

• 

172,222.11 
172222.11 

124.380.00 
47,842.11 

172222.11 

0.00 

172,222.11 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
2 

0.00 

0.00 172,222.11 

0.00 172.222.11 

0.00 124,380.00 
0.00 47,842.11 
0.00 172,222.11 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 172,222.11 

0.00 0.00 



(D 
(;? December 14, 2010 
,..> 
',J 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of November 30,2010 

• 
____ Fixed Assets Fund ___ _ 

1203000 - Fixed Assets ~ Improvements 
1204201 • Fixed Assets - Library Equipment 

1204300· Fixed Assets - Vehicles 

Beginning 

Balance 

235,874.00 

869,440.00 
161,448.00 

M.T.D. 
Changes 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

Ending 

Balance 

235,874.00 
869,440.00 
161,448.00 

1209900 - Fixed Assets ~ Accumulated Depreciation (372,709.00) 0.00 (372,709.00) 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Net Capital Assets 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

• 

• 

894053.00 0.00 894,053.0g 

___ ---!0,w.08!.0 ___ ---!0,w.08!.0 ___ ---10!,!,.0!!!,0 

894,053.00 ____ ..!!O..!!.O!LO __ -,S",94""",05",3!,!,.0!!!,0 
894,053.00 0.00 894,053.00 

894,053.00 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
3 

0.00 

0.00 894,053.00 

0.00 0.00 



(;:) 
(;:) December 14, 2010 

'-' Des Plaines Public Library 
()~ 

Revenue Report as of November 30, 2010 

Received Received Budgeted Uncollected Percentage • this Month this Vear Receipts Receipts Collected 

Library Fund 

Taxes 

4810019 - Property Taxes 2002 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810020 - Property Taxes 2003 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810021 - Property Taxes 2004 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810022 - Property Taxes 2005 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810023 - Property Taxes 2006 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810024 - Property Taxes 2007 0.00 (61,671.93) 0.00 61,671.93 0.00 
4810025 - Property Taxes 2008 0.00 271,310.84 50,000.00 (221,310.84) 542.62 
4810026 - Property Taxes 2009 0.00 3,581,921.60 6,309,802.00 2,727,880.40 56.77 

0.00 3,791,560.51 6,359,802.00 2,568,241.49 59.62 

Intergovernmental 

4810800 - Personal Property Replacement Tax 0.00 23,247.00 92,988.00 69.741.00 25.00 
4822040 - Stale Granl - Per Capita 0.00 0.00 57,700.00 57,700.00 0.00 
4822095 - Stale Grant - Library 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 23,247.00 150,688.00 127,441.00 15.43 

Fines & Fees 

.850101 - Library Fees 538.22 5,119.72 0.00 (5,119.72) 0.00 
4850102 - Library Fines 5,885.39 94,359.08 125,000.00 30,840.92 75.49 
4850103 - Library Fines I Credit Card 2,634.18 19,477.95 0.00 (19,477.95) 0.00 
4850201 - Copying Fee 3,085.88 26,439.66 30,000.00 3,560.34 88.13 
4850202 - Damaged Materials 131.90 841.65 0.00 (841.65) 0.00 
4850203 - Lost Matorials 522.48 6,689.90 0.00 (6,689.90) 0.00 
4850205 - Bags 71.75 779.69 0.00 (779.69) 0.00 
4850207 - Non-Res Cards 73.46 1,576.46 0.00 p,576.46) 0.00 

12,943.26 155,084.11 155,000.00 (84.11 ) 100.05 

Special Programs & Events 

4850215· Special programs & Events 0.00 684.93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 
0.00 664.93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 

Other Revenue 

4890010 -Interest Income 155.93 3,962.52 5,000.00 1,037.48 79.25 
4890050 - Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 
4899900 - Miscellaneous Revenue 2,372.97 24,621.50 17,500.00 (7,121.50) 140.69 

4899920 - Library Donations 0.00 6,019.59 10,000.00 3,980.41 60.20 
2,528.90 34,603.61 33,500.00 (1,103.61) 103.29 

Total Library Fund 15,472.16 4,005,160.16 6,703,990.00 2,698,829.84 59.74 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 



m 
(!)December 14, 2010 

'" W 

• 
Capital Projects Fund 

Other Reyenue 

4890010 -Interest Income 

Total Capital Projects Fund 

Total of All Funds 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 

Revenue Report as of November 30,2010 

Received 

this Month 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

15,472.16 

Received 

this Year 

3.25 
3.25 

3.25 

4,005,163.41 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 

Budgeted Uncollected Percentage 

Receipts Receipts Collected 

5,000.00 4,996.75 0.07 
5,000.00 4,996.75 0.07 

305,000.00 304,996.75 0.00 

7,008,990.00 3,003,826.59 57.14 



(P 
(:;:)December 14, 2010 

~"') Des Plaines Public Library (:;:) 

Expense Report as of November 30,2010 

• M.T.D. V.T.D Budgeted Budgeted PreL 

Expended Expended Amount Remain. Expend. 

Library Fund 

Salaries 

5910100· Salarios 315,944.56 2,256,878.13 2,318,022.00 61,143.87 97.36 
5910200· Temporary Wages 0.00 284,401.81 789,113.00 504,711.19 36.04 
5910400· Non. Supervisory Overtime 0.00 443.30 0.00 (443.30) 0.00 
5910500· Vacation Pay 3,998.46 102,922.10 0.00 (102,922.10) 0.00 
5910600 • Sick Pay 6,739.48 44,950.25 0.00 (44,950.25) 0.00 
5910700· Holiday Pay 3,962.62 40,759.96 0.00 (40,759.96) 0.00 
5910900· AcUout of Class/Premium 0.00 2,692.30 0.00 (2,692.30) 0.00 
5910950· Excess Sick Hours Pay Out 0.00 2,898.73 3,500.00 601.27 82.82 
5910970· Compensated Absences 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

330,645.12 2.735,946.58 3,110,635.00 374,688.42 87.95 

Benefits 

5918010 - Unemployment Compensation 340.07 7,429.48 4,986.00 (2,443.48) 149.01 
5918020· Employer Contribution· FICA 24,754.68 204,916.84 237,314.00 32,397.16 86.35 
5918021 • Employer Contribution ·IMRF 31,701.99 267,379.66 297,814.00 30,434.34 89.78 
5918030 • EAP Program 0.00 0.00 682.00 682.00 0.00 
5918040 -life Insurance Premiums 0.00 2,607.80 6,576.00 3,968.20 39.66 
5918050 - PPO Insurance Premiums 38,614.43 318,293.71 389,041.00 70,747.29 81.81 
5918051 - HMO Insurance Premiums 12,276.39 97.760.78 111,979.00 14,218.22 87.30 
5918055 - Dental Insurance Premiums 3,282.39 26,710.72 31,505.00 4,794.28 84.78 
5918070 - Workers Compensation 1,871.60 12,887.97 9,500.00 (3,387.97) 135.66 

.18085 • RHS Plan Payout 0.00 5214.22 1Q 000.00 4785.74 52.14 
11284155 943201 22 1 g99 397 DO 15619578 8579 

Contractual S!rvices 
5920100· Legal Fees 1,863.75 6,990.14 15,000.00 8,009.86 46.60 
5920105 - Costs of Litigation 0.00 154.11 3,500.00 3,345.89 4.40 
5920110 - Professional Services 29,119.63 307,405.23 405,000.00 97,594.77 75.90 
5920120 - Communication Services 1,349.30 29,470.94 28.460.00 (1,010.94) 103.55 
5920140 - Data Processing Services 4,246.26 72,026.68 100,600.00 2B,773.32 71.46 
5920202 • Conferences 0.00 1,546.30 0.00 (1,546.30) 0.00 
5920204 • Training 0.00 1,447.00 2,600.00 1,153.00 55.65 
5920205· Tuition Reimbursements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920206 • Seminars 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920210 ·In Service Training 0.00 3,366.56 0.00 (3,366.56) 0.00 
5920220· Membership Dues 0.00 3,469.00 6,500.00 3,031.00 53.37 
5920225 • licensinglTities 0.00 50.00 100.00 50.00 50.00 
5920230 • Publication of Notices 0.00 971.20 1,000.00 28.80 97.12 
5920850· Subsidy ·1994 E.R.P Trans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920900 • Property/liability Contributions 0.00 12,434.50 24,869.00 12,434.50 50.00 
5930010· R&M Equipment 6,678.21 102,628.83 110,062.00 7,433.17 93.25 
5930020· R&M Buildings & Structures 2,012.24 73,974.65 116,235.00 42,260.35 63.64 
5930030· R&M Vehicles 0.00 4,449.12 14,300.00 9,850.88 31.11 
5930195· Book Binding & Repair 0.00 215.10 1,000.00 784.90 21.51 
5930210· Rental of Equipment 154.00 1,640.00 26,500.00 24,860.00 6.19 
5930320· Cleaning/Custodial SelVices 7,423.00 109,266.00 96,700.00 (12,566.00) 112.99 
5930490· Refuso Contract 475.28 6,158.53 5,500.00 (658.53) 111.97 
5960040 • Employee Physicals 0.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 
5960065· Bank fees 39.01 641.96 0.00 (641.96) 0.00 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 



m (D December 14, 2010 
~;\.) 

~":'~ 
Des Plaines Public Library 

Expense Report as of November 30, 2010 

• M.T.D. V.T.D Budgeted Budgeted Prct. 

Expended Expended Amount Remain. Expend. 

5960070 • Travel Expense 0.00 551.93 500.00 (51.93) 110.39 
5960210 - Special Event Programming 1.300.00 20.380.84 31.000.00 10.619.16 65.74 
5960990 - Misc. Contractual Services 9013.46 77,431.06 99,375.00 21,943.94 77.92 

63,694.14 836,669.68 1,089,251.00 252,581.32 76.81 

Commodities 
5970100 - Office Supplies 1.147.61 76.346.83 116.300.00 39.953.17 65.65 
59701 10 - Meals 0.00 855.97 2.800.00 1.944.03 30.57 
59701 15 - Supplies - DepUOther 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5970170 - Janitorial 1.947.08 18.615.27 20.600.00 1.984.73 90.37 
5970260 - Postage & Parcel 693.80 15.244.43 13.300.00 (1.944.43) 114.62 
5970270· Prinitng -Reproduction-Binding 0.00 1.271.50 5.000.00 3.728.50 25.43 
5970330 - Supplies - Vehicles RIM 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 . 0.00 
5970500 - Purchase of Water 0.00 3.788.95 8.000.00 4.211.05 47.36 
5970600 - Books 13.125.69 335.944.80 489.800.00 153.855.20 68.59 
5970610 - Audio Materials 203.04 47.986.27 84.600.00 36,613.73 56.72 
5970620 - Subscriptions & Books 2,376.58 24,459.11 78.800.00 54.340.89 . 31.04 
5970630 - Visual Materials 607.22 77,360.86 96.250.00 18,889.14 80.37 
5970640 - Automated Reference Materials 0.00 97,866.42 141,000.00 43,133.58 69.41 
5970810 - Natural Gas 851.14 15.696.Q7 30,000.00 14.303.93 52.32 
5970820 - Electricity 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 
5970840 - Diesel 467.81 2,201.32 4,000.00 1,798.68 55.03 
5970850 - Gasoline 50.16 434.89 2,000.00 1,565.11 21.74 

.70900 - Equipment < $5,000 0.00 2,688.87 5,500.00 2,811.13 48.89 
21 .470. 1 3 720,761.56 . 1 ,098.450.00 377,688.44 65.62 

Capital Expenditures 
5980300 - Improvements 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 8.000.00 0.00 
5980400 - Equipment 155.00 42.643.54 33.000.00 (9.643.54) 129.22 
5980410 - Computer Hardware 0.00 1.092.69 6.750.00 5.657.31 16.19 
5980420 - Computer Software 200.00 20.069.32 32.000.00 11,930.68 62.72 
5980600 - Furniture & Fixtures 625.00 8,530.81 20,500.00 11,969.19 41.61 

980.00 72,336.36 100,250.00 27,913.64 72.16 

Other Fundina Activities 
5990935 • Trans to DIS - 2OO2A Bond 0.00 6.149.75 24.598.00 18.448.25 25.00 
5990940 - Trans to Library Capital Proj. Fund 0.00 0.00 300,000.00 300.000.00 0.00 
5990955 - Trans to DIS - 2003B Bond 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5993000 - Contingency Reserve 0.00 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00 

0.00 6,149.75 399,598.00 393,448.25 1.54 

Total Library Fund Expenditures 529.620.94 5.315.065.15 6,897.581.00 1,582,515.85 77.06 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 



m 
(;:) December 14, 2010 
c.,...) 
',I Des Plaines Public Library 

Expense Report as of November 30, 2010 

• 
Capital Projects Fund 

Contractual Services 
5920110 - Professional Services 

Capital Expenditures 
5980300 - Imp(ovemenls 
5980400 - Equipment 
5980410 - Computer Hardware 

Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures 

Total of All Funds 

• 

• 

M,T,D, 

Expended 

0,00 
000 

0.00 
0.00 

466.41 
46641 

466.41 

530,087,35 

Y,T,D 

Expended 

0,00 
Q DO 

0.00 
38,047.28 
32,565.9Q 
7061318 

70,613.18 

5,385,678.33 

See Accountant.o:;' Compilation Report 

Budgeted 

Amount 

15,000,00 
1500000 

92,000.00 
24,000.00 
76,100.00 

19210000 

207,100.00 

7,104,681.00 

Budgeted 

Remain, 

15,000,00 
15 000 00 

92,000,00 
<14.047.28) 
43,534.10 

12148682 

136,486.82 

1,719,002.67 

Pret. 

Expend, 

0,00 
000 

0.00 
158.53 
42.79 
36 ze 

34,10 

75.80 



m 
All checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB q 

(,;.) November 2010 Check Register 
<,) 

• Check Number Check Date Payee Amount 

Checks 
10727 12/21/10 ALEXIAN BROTHERS CORP HEALTH SERV 132.00 
10728 12/21/10 BAKER & TAYLOR 1.994.77 
10729 12/21110 BANC OF AMERICA LEASING 2,005.00 
10730 12/21/10 BANKCARD SERVICES 904.10 
10731 12/21110 BEDCO MECHANICAL INC. 142.50 
10732 12121/10 BUSINESS MACHINE AGENTS INC 900.34 
10733 12/21/10 C C H, INCORPORATED 95.50 
10734 12/21110 C D W GOVERNMENT INCORPORATED 128.14 
10735 12/21110 CITY OF DES PLAINES 517.97 
10736 12/21110 COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC 7,423.00 
10737 1212111 0 COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 6,323.94 
10738 12/21110 DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP 68.08 
10739 12/21/10 DES PLAINES PARK DISTRICT 50.00 
10740 12/21/10 DIGGING RECORDS, INC. 750.00 
10741 12/21110 EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SVC 1,519.48 
10742 12/21110 ELSEVIER 720.10 
10743 12/21/10 FEDERAL EXPRESS 18.93 
10744 12/21110 FIRST SECURITY SYSTEMS. INC. 1,600.00 
10745 12/21/10 GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUTS 245.44 
10746 12/2 illO GOVCONNECTION INC 229.19 
10747 12/21/10 IBLR 569.95 
10748 12121/10 INTERIOR TROPICAL GARDENS INC 170.00 
10749 12/21/10 KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, L m. 1,863.75 
10750 12121110 LAPORTINC. 1,947.0& 
10751 12/21110 LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP. 1,350.00 
10752 12/21/10 LIBRARY FURNITURE INTERNTL 625.00 
10753 12/21/10 MARQUIS WHO'S WHO 58&.45 • 10754 12/21/10 MATTHEW BENDER & COMPANY INC 318.89 
10755 12/21/10 MESSAGE MOVERS' 291.71 
10756 12121110 MICHAEL CLOUD 250.00 
10757 12/21/10 MICROSYSTEMS, INC. 7,152.50 
10758 12121/10 MIDWEST TAPE 710.21 
10759 12/21/10 NlCORGAS 851.14 
10760 12/21/10 OFFICE DEPOT 190.75 
10761 12121/10 OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP 27,858.11 
10762 12/21/10 P CNATION 109.08 
10763 12/21110 PADDOCK PUBLICATIONS, INC. 127.00 
10764 12/21/10 PITNEY BOWES 838.87 
10765 12/21/10 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 161.80 
10766 12/21/10 SANDY LUCAS 500.00 
10767 I2I2111O SCHINDLER ELEVATOR CORPORATION 360.27 
10768 12/21/10 SCHMAUS CASH REGISTER COMPANY 230.00 
10769 12/21110 SOMETHING FISHY INC 99.93 
10770 12/21/10 STANDARD & POOR'S 6,776.64 
10771 12/21/10 STANDARD & POOR'S 827.98 
10772 12/21/10 TELEVEND SERVICES INCORPORATED 178.85 
10773 12/21110 THE RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOC. 322.00 
10774 12/21/10 U of ARKANSAS AT LITTLE ROCK 63.20 
10775 12/21110 UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 1,511.73 
10776 12/21110 W S I LIGHTING 51.97 
10777 12/21/10 WAREHOUSE DIRECT 380.47 
10778 12/21/10 WASTE MANAGEMENT 344.69 
10779 12/21/10 WASTE MANAGEMENT 130.59 
10780 12/21/10 WEST GROUP 929.00 
10781 12121110 WT COX SUBSCRIPTIONS 109.20 
50104 11/30110 AT&T 222.33 

• 50105 11/30110 AT&T 98.57 
50106 11/30110 AT&T 43.25 
50107 11/30/10 McLEOD USA 299.03 
50108 11/30/10 VERIZON WIRELESS 126.84 
50109 11/30/10 COM CAST CABLE 441.93 



<., All checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB <., 
November 2010 Check Register ("J 

.::. 

Check Number Check Oate Payee Amount • 50110 1113011 0 SPRINT 18.82 
50111 11/30110 SPRINT 16.04 
50112 11130/10 WOW! lNTERENT CABLE 82.49 

Total checks 64 Total 85,908.59 

• 

• 



q 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB (D ,-) November 2010 Vendor Checks Report 

l!1 

Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

• AT&T 50104 11/30110 222.33 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 222.33 

AT&T 50105 11/30/10 98.57 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 98.57 

AT&T 50106 11/30/10 43.25 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 43.25 

COMCAST CABLE 50109 11/30110 441.93 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 441.93 

McLEOD USA 50107 11/30/10 299.03 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 299.03 

SPRINT 50110 11/30/10 18.82 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 18.82 

SPRINT 50111 11130/10 16.04 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 16.04 

VERIZON WIRELESS 50108 11/30/10 126.84 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 126.84 

WOW! INTERENT CABLE 50112 11/30/10 82.49 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 82.49 

Subtotal 1.349.30 

ALEXIAN BROTHERS CORP HEALTH SER' 10727 12/21/10 132.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 383119 132.00 

BAKER & TAYLOR 10728 12/21/10 1,994.77 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025242501 1.09 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025240525 1.73 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025248758 5.82 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025225103 2.53 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025218239 6.93 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025225050 1.12 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025292714 4.51 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025290717 1.24 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025290627 3.18 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025272137 1.24 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025261409 9.64 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025266189 3.36 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025264261 4.81 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025307613 5.92 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 2025307601 1.24 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025313564 2.92 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025296722 2.48 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025349439 0.47 



(;:) 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB (;) 

(,) November 201 0 Vendor Checks Report 
(7' 

Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 2025355646 2.89 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025327047 3.53 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025310846 7.23 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025328404 1.62 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025330673 1.24 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025330667 0.47 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025248669 2.46 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025252895 1.12 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025242501 38.19 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025240525 107.17 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025248758 91.29 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025225103 100.31 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025218239 14.32 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025225050 12.80 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025292713 190.38 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025290717 14.76 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025290627 50.41 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025272137 1l.35 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025261409 520.54 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025266189 48.25 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025264261 58.45 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025307613 80.70 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025307601 15.34 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025313564 33.70 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025296722 28.95 
201-5970600 Invoice # 0000136140 \\ 1.77 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025349439 34.36 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025355645 86.35 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025327046 198.63 

• 201-5970600 Invoice # 2025310846 13.73 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025328404 14.32 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025330673 14.76 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025330667 4.18 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025248669 4.77 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025252895 14.20 

BANC OF AMERICA LEASING 10729 12/21110 2.005.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # 011709583 2.005.00 

BANKCARD SERVICES 10730 12/21110 904.10 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960065 33.22 
201-5970100 49.98 
201-5970620 Statement Date 11129/10 620.90 
201-5980420 200.00 

BEDCO MECHANICAL INC. 10731 12/21110 142.50 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # 16598 142.50 

BUSINESS MACHINE AGENTS INC 10732 12121110 900.34 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # INI8140 690.51 
201-5930010 Invoice # IN 17468 209.83 

C C H, INCORPORATED 10733 12/21110 95.50 
Account No. Description 

~ 
Amount 

201-5970600 Invoice # 369968 95.50 

• C D W GOVERNMENT INCORPORATED 10734 12/21110 128.14 
Account No. Description Amount 
202-5980410 Invoice # VKR8887 30.85 



m 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPlANSLIB (;l 

t)) November 2010 Vendor Checks Report 
'-,J 

Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

• 202·59804 10 Invoice # VLB9492 97.29 

CITY OF DES PLAINES 10735 12/21110 517.97 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970840 Diesel Fuel 11·10 205.81 
201·5970840 Diesel Fuel 10·10 262.00 
201·5970850 Unleaded Fuel 11·10 50.16 

COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC 10736 12/2 III 0 7,423.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930320 Invoice # 1270458 7.423.00 

COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 10737 12121/10 6.323.94 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920140 Invoice # CCS 11/5/10 4.246.26 
201-5930010 OCLC JED Profile November 2,077.68 

DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP 10738 12/21/10 68.08 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 4028393 68.08 

DES PLAINES PARK DISTRICT 10739 12/21110 50.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960210 Winter Festival 50.00 

DIGGING RECORDS, INC. 10740 12121110 750.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960210 2/20/11 Neverly Brothers 750.00 

• EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SVC 10741 12/21110 1,519.48 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970620 Invoice # 1315041 20.00 
201-5970620 Invoice # 0091652 1.439.78 
201-5970620 Invoice # 1315831 52.00 
201-5970620 Invoice # 0076697 7.70 

ELSEVIER 10742 12/21/10 720.10 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 80072608 720.10 

FEDERAL EXPRESS 10743 12/21/10 18.93 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970260 Invoice # 7-287-40336 18.93 

FIRST SECURITY SYSTEMS. INC. 10744 12/21/10 1.600.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoice # S72513 1,600.00 

GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUTS 10745 12/21110 245.44 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # PINV20425I 78.71 
201-5970100 Invoice # PlNV21 0453 51.23 
201-5970100 Invoice # PINV206248 115.50 

GOVCONNECTION INC 10746 12121110 229.19 
Account No. Description Amount 
202-5980410 Invoice # 47169752 201.24 
202-5980410 Invoice # 47117761 27.95 

e IBLR 10747 12121/10 569.95 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 1-992919 569.95 



<D All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
(;:) 
(;) November 2010 Vendor Checks Report 
0" 

Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

• INTERIOR TROPICAL GARDENS INC 10748 12/21110 170.00 
Account No., Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 46\39 85.00 
201·5960990 Invoice # 45947 85.00 

KLEIJ', THORPE & JENKINS, LTD. 10749 12/21/10 1,863.75 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920100 Statement # 149772 1,863.75 

LAPORTlNC. 10750 12/21110 1,947.08 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970170 Invoice # 128287 555.70 
201·5970170 Credit Memo # 105679 ·37.58 
201·5970170 Invoice # 127707 435.76 
201·5970170 Invoice # 128024 37.58 
201·5970170 Invoice # 127240 361.87 
201·5970170 Invoice # 127726 17.66 . 
201·5970170 Invoice # 126776 118.65 
201·5970170 Invoice # 127725 33.56 
201·5970170 Invoice # 126584 423.88 

LAUTERBACH & AMEN. LLP. 10751 12/21/10 1,350.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920110 Invoice No. 18430 1.350.00 

LIBRARY FURNITURE INTERNTL 10752 12/21/10 625.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5980600 Invoice # 3641 425.00 
201·5980600 Invoice # 3710 200.00 

• MARQUIS WHO'S WHO 10753 12121/10 588.45 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Invoice # 1023966 588.45 

MATIliEW BENDER & COMPANY INC 10754 12/21/10 318.89 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Contract # 09627324 121.37 
201·5970600 Invoice # 10116262 197.52 

MESSAGE MOVERS 10755 12/21110 291.71 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 1011003 291.71 

MICHAEL CLOUD 10756 12/21110 250.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 November Meeting 125.00 
201·5960990 December Meeting 125.00 

MICROSYSTEMS, INC. 10757 12/21110 7,152.50 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 1000062951 7,152.50 

MlDWESTTAPE 10758 12/21110 710.21 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6194716 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6206769 9.00 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6180694 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6180693 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6180692 9.00 • 201·5960990 Invoice # 6180695 6.75 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6177841 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6177842 2.25 

201·5960990 Invoice # 6187274 . 19.00 



m 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library (2) DESPLANSLIB 

~,J.) November 2010 Vendor Checks Report 
<0 

Vendor Name Chk.No. Check Date Amount • 201·5960990 Invoice # 6190852 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6190853 2.25 
201·5970610 Invoice # 6187275 41.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6187273 29.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6194716 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6206769 86.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6180694 23.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6180693 44.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6180692 80.96 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6180695 67.47 
201-5970630 Invoice#6177841 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6177842 18.74 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6187274 179.92 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6190852 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6190853 22.49 

NlCORGAS 10759 12/21/10 851.14 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970810 Bill Date 11111/10 851.14 

OEFICE DEPOT 10760 12/21110 190.75 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 542128804001 120.03 
201-5970100 Invoice # 531199167001 3.29 
201-5970100 Invoice # 531199166001 -3.29 
201-5970100 Invoice # 54135296400 I 2.96 
201-5970100 Invoice # 540581208001 67.76 

OUTSQURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP 10761 1212 III 0 27.858.11 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920110 Invoice # 11066 27.083.33 
201-5960990 Invoice # 11099 280.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 1\000 494.78 

PCNA1l0N 10762 12/21/10 109.08 
Account No. Description Amount 

202-5980410 Invoice # P048355001010 109.08 

PADDOCK PUBLICATIONS. INC. 10763 12/21110 127.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970620 11-24-10 thru 1-18-11 127.00 

PITNEY BOWES 10764 12/21110 838.87 

Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930210 Invoice # 9954034-NV 10 164.00 
201-5970260 8000-9090-0510-7839 674.87 

RECORDED BOOKS. LLC 10765 12/21/10 161.80 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970610 Order # 5070444 161.80 

SANDY LUCAS 10766 12/21110 500.00 

Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960210 1/22111 Event 500.00 

SCHINDLER ELEVATOR CORPORATION 10767 12/21/10 360.27 

Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930020 Invoice # 7151362215 360.27 

• SCHMAUS CASH REGISTER COMPANY 10768 12/21110 230.00 

Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # 4979 230.00 



(1) 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLI!3 (D 

~~. November 2010 Vendor Checks Report 
(!) 

Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

• SOMETHING FISHY INC 10769 12121/10 99.93 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 0124 99.93 

STANDARD & POOR'S 10770 12/21110 6.776.64 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Invoice # 33028428 6.776.64 

STANDARD & POOR'S 10771 12/21110 827.98 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Control # 91573927 827.98 

TELEVEND SERVICES INCORPORATED 10772 12/21110 178.85 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 2445 178.85 

THE RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOC. 10773 12/21110 322.00 
Account No. Description Amount 

201-5970600 Order # 1000489466 322.00 

U of ARKANSAS AT LITTLE ROCK 10774 12/21/10 63.20 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 ILL Number 67175255 63.20 

UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 10775 12/21110 1.511.73 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # 87519A 11.27 

201-5930010 Invoice # 055199 882.65 
201-5930010 Invoice # 055203 15.48 
201-59300 I 0 Invoice # 055198 297.07 • 201-59300 I 0 Invoice # 055196 102.26 
201-59300 I 0 Invoice # 87119A 13.96 
201-5970100 Invoice # 87253A 11.27 
201-5970100 Invoice # 87235A 11.31 

201-5970100 Invoice # 87433A 11.46 

201-5980400 Invoice # 87171A 155.00 

W S I LIGHTING 10776 12/21110 51.97 

Account No. Description Amount 

201-5930020 Invoice # 389645 51.97 

WAREHOUSE DIRECT 10777 12/21/10 380.47 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 931119-0 114.04 
201-5970100 Invoice # 950915-0 92.01 

201-5970 I 00 Invoice # 949445-0 19.28 
201-5970100 Invoice # 944642-0 47.89 

201-5970100 Invoice # 932407-0 10.65 
201-5970100 Invoice # 938181-0 96.60 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 10778 12/21110 344.69 

Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930490 Invoice # 2280454-2008-7 344.69 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 10779 12/21110 130.59 

Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930490 Invoice # 4245398-2008-6 130.59 

WEST GROUP 10780 12/21110 929.00 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 821534949 334.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 821721025 595.00 



• 

• 

• 

All Checkbooks 
November 2010 

Vendor Name 

WT COX SUBSCRIPTIONS 
Account No. 
201-5970620 

Description 
Date 11/10/2010 

Des Plaines Public L.ibrary 
Vendor Checks Report 

Chk. No. 

10781 

Check Date 

12/21110 
Amount 

109.20 

Subtotal 

TOTAL 

DESPlANSLIB 

Amount 

109.20 

84.559.29 

85.908.59 



• • • It''GEl 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

CASH FLOW SUMMARY 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 

January February March April May June July August September October November December 
Balance Sheet 

Cash & Investments $ 1,546,613 1,117.818 1.360.131 $ 3.581.316 $ 3.169,784 $ 2.722,749 $ 2.255.426 $ 1.187.080 $ 1.312.679 $ 969.023 $ 474.918 $ 

Re\'enue (M-T-D) 

Property Taxes 130.787 739.239 2.641.184 51.612 194.449 1.411 32.279 
Other Revenue 15,579 11.914 17.102 52.394 14.286 20.593 12,416 20.995 13.939 18.912 15,472 

146.366 11.914 756.341 2.694.178 65.898 20.593 206,866 20.995 15.350 51.190 15,472 

Expenses (M-T-D) 
Payroll & Benefits 306.233 309.859 312.915 302.514 311.663 303.578 468.072 312.944 305.200 302.683 443.487 
Other Expense 161.788 249.673 162.718 153.112 177.041 205.815 209.132 105.584 96.124 77.045 86.600 
M-T-O chmge in AlP !11.273) !58,485) p.015) 70.813 88,427 15,118 !20.511) 

468.020 559.532 475.633 455.626 477.431 450,908 674.189 489.341 489.751 394.847 509,576 0 

Net IncreaseJ(Decrease) (321.654) !547.618) 280,708 2,238.552 !411.533) !430,315) (467,323) (468,346) !474.401) 043.657) (494.104) 0 



• Director's Report' 
December, 2010 

Patron Services Highlights 

Qrculation 
As of November 30th we have circulated 1,122,503 items. That's down 3.69% from 2009 
where we saw record increases of 13%. Our circulation is leveling off from those record 
highs but still very strong. 

Hits on Web site: 
We had 83,704 hits on our web site in October. Total web site hits for 2010 are 649,654. 

Searches on Online Reference Products 
13,744 searches were performed in November. Year to date searches are 135,511. 

Wireless Usage 
3,709 individual devices connected to our wireless network in November. 

Meeting Room Usage: 
In November 64 different groups met at the library using our meeting rooms. Over, 2,000 

• people were in attendance. 

• 

Qther: 
247 audiobooks were downloaded by 90 patrons in November, 30 of who are new users. 
The most popular titles are Confession by John Grisham and Girl with the Dragon Tattoo 
by Steig Larsson. 372 Gutenberg project (free, public domain) titles were also checked 
out. 

On Saturday, December 4th the Singing Librarians (Francine Gralak, Roberta Johnson, 
Karen McBride and Holly Sorensen) performed at the Park District's Lake Wonderland 
Winter Festival. 



Des Plaines Public Library - November 2010 Board Report 

ICARD REGISTRATION 
ITHISMUNIH IYEARTODA TE 

INew Residellt Cards INov 2010 362 IYTD 2010 3,678 
INov 2009 287 IYTD 2009 4,336 
1% 3% 1% -15% 

~ ; Cards INov 2010 3 IYTD 2010 34 
INov 2009 3 IYTO 2009 33 
1% 0% 1% 3% 

Total Card (' -'lip . YTO 2010 33,131 
IYTD 2009 35,997 
1% D~n, 12010 -57.8% 
I % D~n"l~t:~'1 2009 t;'l nOlA 

. 

'AIKUN All n ....... t:E . 

ITHISMUNIM IYEAR TO DATE 
INov 2010 47,122 IYTD 2010 ,., .... A~n 

•• INov 2009 27,954 IYTD 2009 ** 
1% 69% ~nno IIVALUE! 

IMtt liNG DI"\I· .... ~ USE 
ITHISMUNIM IYEAR TO DATE 

Library IProg 19 1,200 IYTD 16,814 
'"'I, , •• ;~~ Groups 29 784 IYTD 10,89E 
~eetings 16 ill IYfD 2,15~ 

ItOTAL 64 2m IIUIAL 2Q.IIM 

• 



SPECIAL PROJECTS & STATS: 

THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
Voter Registration Nov 2010 o YTD 2010 

Nov 2009 1 YTD 2009 
% Change -100% % Change 

on Website 

Computer Use Adult Services YEAR TO DATE 
Nov 2010 8,818 YTD2010 
Nov 2009 9,366 YTD2009 

% Change -5.85% % Change 
Youth Services 
Nov 2010 1,311 YTD 2010 
Nov 2009 1,489 YTD 2009 

% Change -11.95% % Cha",~e 

, 

Average Online Reference Products 
Searches & Queries Nov 2010 13,744 YTD 2010 

Nov 2009 12,290 YTD 2009 
% Change 

ae main & side door patron counters were out of order January- May 2009 due to the installation 
.-e new RFID system. These figures are based on the monthly changes in circulation rates. 

33 
25 

32% 

98,253 
110,292 
-10.92% 

15,324 
18,745 

-18.25% 

135,511 

145,578 
-6.92% 



0') 

• 

• 

• 

FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY ROUNDTABLE 
November 23,2010 

President Wally Meyer called the meeting to order at 6:59 pm. 

Membership: 48 names were deleted from the 2008 roster. Membership in The Friends 
is now 521. 

The on-going bookshelf sales continue to do well. The Holiday Book Sale will be 
Saturday, December 11,9:30 am-3:30 pm. The set up will be on Friday, December 10th . 

The Staff Christmas Party will be Tuesday, December 14th, 8:00-10:00 am. The library 
will open at 10:00 am. 

The Friends will fund these programs during January, February and March: 
Twist and Shout, Hawaiian Theme music(Jan 23) 
Preschool Fair for parents (Jan. 22) 

The Neverly Brothers (Feb, 20) 
Chess Class & tournament (Feb. 26) 
Weavermania (Mar. 20) 
Great Works Theatre (Mar 27) 
Adult Winter Reading Program 



-.j 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

TO: Library Board of Trustees 

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines. IL 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

FROM: Holly Richards Sorensen, Library Director~ 
SUBJECT: Background on November Agenda Items 

DATE: November 12, 2010 

This is information to help you prepare for the discussion at our meeting on November 16. 

VIII. Unfinished Business 
Review and Approve Insurance Proposals for Library Property, General Liability, 
Automobile, Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability, Umbrella, 
Directors' & Officers' Liability, Volunteer Program - Arthur J. Gallagher Risk 
Management Services, Inc. [Action Item] 
At the October 19 Board meeti ng you asked Lorayne Flodberg, Arthur J. Gallagher 
Risk Management Services, Inc., to update the insurance proposal for the library 
with higher deductibles. Added are $5,000 and $10,000 deductible options for the 
property coverage (pages 10- 12). Also included in the revised proposal are higher 
aggregate limits on the D&O and Employment Practices Liability (page 21). On 
page 25 are the premium totals with Hartford showing the various deductible 
options. Quotes are good for 30 days, so premiums could change slightly. 

IX. New Business 

A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $83,287.91. [Action Item] 

B. Prepare for Board Retreat - Miriam Pollack & Associates. 
Miriam Pollack will attend the meeting to begin a discussion in preparation for the 
Board retreat on January 8, 2011. 

C. Management Committee Report - Myrtle Klebe [Action Item] 

D. 

You will be askea to vote to approve changes to the Personnel Policy, Section D. 

Review and Approve Salary Schedule for 2011. [Action Item] 
The 2011 salary and classification schedule represents a 1.0% increase to the 
ranges only. The change does not represent an increase to individual staff 
members. The increase is the recommendation of the Management Association of 
Illinois which surveys the salaries paid by area employers . 

--0. www.~~t.// 
-: ~ 



<p 
<;:l 
.::' 
w 

• 

• 

• 

E. Review and Approve Contract for IT Services. [Action Item] 
You will be asked to approve a new contract with Outsource Solutions Group. We 
are recommending Outsource Solutions Group for three years at a fixed cost of 
$325,000 per year. This would be for the years 2011, 2012 and 2013. 

F. Approve Payment to Ebsco for Subscription Services - $32,109.40. [Action Item] 
The library orders almost all of its adult and juvenile periodicals through a vendor 
called EBSCO. We subscribe to over 500 titles, ranging from the AARP Bulletin to 
Yoga Journal. Ordering all of these titles through one vendor greatly streamlines our 
ordering process, and further allows us to easily claim credits for issues not 
received due to the cessation of a particular magazine. EBSCO offers us the same 
pricing as a general subscription and permits us to schedule our subscription start 
dates to coincide with the library'S fiscal year. 
This amount is a reduction of $4,647.65 from 2009 ($36,757.05). 

C. Discuss meeting Times for Board and Committee Meetings. [Action Item] 
You will discuss what times you are available to meet for board and committee 
meetings. 

H. Discuss Board Use of Wiki. 
You will discuss how you use the Wiki and how you would like to see information 
presented on the Wi ki. 



• 

• 

• 

Pro~sal of Insurance for: 
r 

Des Plaines Public Library 

Coverage Highlights/Summary of Terms & Conditions of 
Recommended Carrier Quotations 

Coverage: 

Carrier: 

Form Type: 

Effective: 

Package - Property 

Sentinel Insurance Co. (Hartford) 

Per Occurrence 

December 31, 2010 to December 31 , 2011 

Coverage Limit Valuation Type Deductible Premium' 
Business Personal PrQlJerty $13,115,833 Replacement Cost $1,000 $15,185 
Inland Marine $167,000 $1,000 $1,501 
Flood - American Bankers'" $500,000 Replacement Cost $10,000 $3,865 
Crime/Employee Dishonesty $25,000 $1,000 Included 
Crime/Depositors' Forgery $25,000 $1,000 Included 
Terrorism Policy Limit $1,000 Included 

.. Premium includes TRIA premium. A portion ot this additional premium can be removed with acceptance of Terrorism exclusion. 
** Earthquake can be added for additional premium 

I The following Is a general summary of the Insuring Agreement. Actual policy form should be sought for complete terms and condttlons.1 

Coverages include, but are not limited to: 
• Valuation Provision: Replacement Cost (subject to limitations and restrictions as set forth in the policy) applies 

to the types of covered property insured under this policy. 
• Coinsurance Provision: Coinsurance does not apply. 
• Equipment Breakdown coverage protects business equipment such as computers, communication systems, 

heating and air conditioning systems, and fire suppression equipment. It includes jurisdictional inspections 
conducted by Hartford Steam Boiler where required, at no charge to the insured. 

• Electronic vandalism which extends property protection to include direct physical damage to computer 
equipment, media, data, and software caused by viruses, hackers, and other attacks. 

Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
• Exclusions will apply per The Hartford's standard policy form and endorsements and may be contained in the 

additional endorsements set forth below. 
• Mold Exclusion will apply. 

Premium Terms: 
• If canceled - short rate basis 

Conditions of the Quote, Coverages, or Binding: 
• Validation of Buildings and Building Personal Property insured at 100% to value. Receipt of building appraisal 

completed within the last five years. 
• Favorable Loss Control Inspection within 60 days. 
• Possible rate changes aiter 45 days 

(') Flood coverage begins 30 days after payment is received . 

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 

\\lsal\ajg\cLNTDOCS\04\AJGRMS\276998P3.dOC 10125/10 Final3 10 



• 

• 

• 

Pro~sal of Insurance for: Des Plaines Public Library 
C 

Coverage Highlights/Summary of Terms & Conditions of 
Recommended Carrier Quotations 

Coverage: 

Carrier: 

Form Type: 

Effective: 

Package - Property - $5,000 Deductible 

Sentinellrisurance Co. (Hartford) 

Per Occurrence 

December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011 

Coverage Limit Valuation Type Deductible Premium" 
Business Personal Property $13,115,833 Replacement Cost $5,000 $13,059 
Inland Marine $167,000 $1,000 $1,501 
Flood - American Bankers'" $500,000 Replacement Cost $10,000 $3,865 
Crime/Employee Dishonesty $25,000 $5,000 Included 
Crime/Depositors' Forgery $25,000 $5,000 Included 
Terrorism Policy Limit $5,000 Included 

.. Premium includes TRIA premium. A portion 01 this additional premium can be removed with acceptance of Terrorism exclusion. 
*- Earthquake can be added for additional premium 

I The followIng Is S general summary of the Insuring Agreement. Actual policy form should be sought for complete terms and conditions. I 
Coverages include, but are not limited to: 
• Valuation Provision: Replacement Cost (subject to limitations and restrictions as set forth in the policy) applies 

to the types of covered property insured under this policy. 
• Coinsurance Provision: Coinsurance does not apply. 
• Equipment Breakdown coverage protects business equipment such as computers, communication systems, 

heating and air conditioning systems, and fire suppression equipment. It includes jurisdictional inspections 
conducted by Hartford Steam Boiler where required, at no charge to the insured. 

• Electronic vandalism which extends property protection to include direct physical damage to computer 
equipment, media, data, and software caused by viruses, hackers, and other attacks. 

Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
• Exclusions will apply per The Hartford's standard policy form and endorsements and may be contained in the 

additional endorsements set forth below. 
• Mold Exclusion will apply. 

Premium Terms: 
• If canceled - short rate basis 

Conditions of the Quote, Coverages, or Binding: 
• Validation of Buildings and Building Personal Property insured at 100% to value. Receipt of building appraisal 

completed within the last five years. 
• Favorable LOSS Control Inspection within 60 days. 
• Possible rate changes after 45 days 

(1) Flood coverage begins 30 days after payment is received. 

Arthur 1. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 

\\faa 1 \a;g\cLNTDOCS\04IAJGRMSI278998P3.doc 10125110 Final3 11 



• 

• 

• 

Pro~sal of Insurance for: 
C 

Des Plaines PUbl .. ic Library I 
---------------------

Coverage Highlights/Summary of Terms & Conditions of 
Recommended Carrier Quotations 

Coverage: 

Carrier: 

Form Type: 

Effective: 

Package - Property - $10,000 Deductible 

Sentinel Insurance Co. (Hartford) 

Per Occurrence 

December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011 

Coverage Limit Valuation Tvoe Deductible Premium" 
Business Personal Property $13,115,833 Replacement Cost $10,000 $12,090 
Inland Marine $167,000 $1,000 $1,501 
Flood - American Bankers'" $500,000 Replacement Cost $10,000 $3,865 
Crime/Employee Dishonesty $25,000 $10,000 Included 
Crime/Depositors' Forqerv $25,000 $10,000 Included 
Terrorism Policy Limit $10,000 Included 

~ Premium includes TRIA premium. A portion of this additional premium can be removed with acceptance of Terrorism exclusion. 
.. Earthquake can be added for additional premium 

The following Is a general summary of the Insuring Agreement. Actual policy form should be sought tor complete terms and conditions . 

Coverages include, but are not limited to: 
• Valuation Provision: Replacement Cost (subject to limitations and restrictions as set forth in the policy) applies 

to the types of covered property insured under this policy. 
• Coinsurance Provision: Coinsurance does not apply. 
• Equipment Breakdown coverage protects business equipment such as computers, communication systems, 

heating and air conditioning systems, and fire suppression equipment. It includes jurisdictional inspections 
conducted by Hartford Steam Boiler where required, at no charge to the insured. 

• Electronic vandalism which extends property protection to include direct physical damage to computer 
equipment, media, data, and software caused by viruses, hackers, and other attacks. 

Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
• Exclusions will apply per The Hartford's standard policy form and endorsements and may be contained in the 

additional endorsements set forth below. 
• Mold Exclusion will apply. 

Premium Terms: 
• " canceled - short rate baSis 

Conditions of the Quote, Coverages, or Binding: 
• Validation of Buildings and Building Personal Property insured at 100% to value. Receipt of building appraisal 

completed within the last five years. 
• Favorable Loss Control Inspection within 60 days. 
• Possible rate changes after 45 days 

(1) Flood coverage begins 30 days after payment is received . 

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 
iL-----------~------------

\\lsal\aQ\CL.NTOOCS\04\AJGRMS\278998P3.dOC 10125110 Final3 12 



• 

• 

• 

Proe?;sal of Insurance ror: 
c: 

Des Plaines Public Library 

Coverage Highlights/Summary of Terms & Conditions of 
Recommended Carrier Quotations 

Coverage: 

Cllrrier: 

Directors' & Officers' Liability 

Philadelphia Insurance Co. 

Form Type: Claims-Made Inception - Retroactive Date 

Effective: January t, 2011 to January 2012 

Coverage Limit Aggregate 

Directors' & Officers' Liability $1,000,000 $1,000,000 

Employment Practices Liability $1,000,000 Included 

Retention Premium 

$2,500 $1,888 

$5,000 Included 

ThE.t following Is a general summary of the Insuring Agreement. Actual policy form should be sought for complete terms and conditions. 

Coverages include, but are not limited to: 
• Combined Aggregate Limit - $1,000,000 

Statement of Defense Costs: 
• Defense Costs is in addition to and is not part of the limit of liability specified in Item 3 of the Declarations. 

Payment by the underwriter of defense cost incurred on account of any claim shall not serve to reduce the limit of 
liability stated in Item 3 of the Declarations, but the underwriter is not obligated to pay any defense cost after the 

. applicable limit of liability has been exhausted by payment of damages. 

Insuring Agreement: 
• Pay on Behalf 

Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
• Prior Knowledge Exclusion for Increased Limits 
• Professional Services Exclusion 

Endorsements include, but are not limited to: 
• Bell Endorsement 
• Crisis Management Enhancement Endorsement 
• Illinois Amendatory Endorsement 

Premium Terms: 
• Minimum Earned 

Conditions of the Quote, Coverages, or Binding: 
• Nothing required at this time 
• Quote valid for 30 days 

Options: 
• $2,000,000 Aggregate Limit for $2,782 
• $3,000,000 Aggregate Limit for $3,407 

\\I881\8,U\CLNTOOCS\04\AJGRMS\278998P3.doc 10125110 Final3 

Arthur 1. Gallagber Risk Management Services, Inc. 

21 



• 

• 

• 

~~sal of Insurance for: Des Plaines Public Library 

Premiums/Fees Comparison: 

Hrtf dOf a or 'pllon - $1000 D d fbi I ,I e uc I e 
Option Option 

Line of Coveraae Carrier Premium Carrier Name 
1. Commercial Packaoe $15,185 Hartford Underwriters 
2. Flnnd - Ontinnll) 3,865 NFIP 
3. Inland Marine 1 501 Hartford 
4. Auto 3,891 Hartford 
5. Workers' Com pensation 8600 Hartford Insurance Co. of IL 
6. Umbrella Liability Included Hartford Casualtv 
7. Directors' & Officers' 1888 Philadelphia 
8. Volunteer Accident - Option 749 Chartis 
9. Total Premium $35679 

Hartford 0 tion - $5 000 Deductible 
Option Option 

Line of Covera e Carrier Premium Carrier Name 
1. Commercial Packa e 13 059 Hartford Underwriters 
2. . I') 3865 NFIP 
3. Inland Marine 1 501 Hartford 
4. Auto 3891 Hartford 
5. Workers' Com ensation 8600 Hartford Insurance Co. of IL 
6. Umbrella Liabili Included Hartford Casual 
7. Directors' & Officers' 1 888 Philadel hia 
8. Volunteer Accident - 0 tion 749 Chartis 
9. Total Premium 3553 

Hartford Option - $ 0 D d -bl 100 0 e UCtl e 
Option Option 

Line of Coverage Carrier Premium Carrier Name 
1. Commercial Packaoe $12090 Hartford Underwriters 
2. Flnnrl _ ()nlinn(\) 3865 NFIP 
3. Inland Marine 1 501 Hartford 
4. Auto 3891 Hartford 
5. Workers' Compensation 8600 Hartford Insurance Co. of IL 
6. Umbrella Liability Included Hartford Casualtv 
7. Directors' & Officers' 1 888 Philadelohia 
8. Volunteer Accident - Option 749 Chartis 
9. Total Premium $32584 

" . " Note: Surplus Lines Taxes, If applicable, are Included tn the Btndable Quote and Compensation pages. These 
taxes are in addition to the above fees . 

• The premium indicated is an estimate provided by the market. The actual premium and acceptance of the coverage 
requested will be determined by the market after a thorough review of the completed application. 

('I Flood coverage begins 30 days after payment receiVed. 

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 

\\lsa;\ajg\cLNTDOCS\04\AJGAMS\278998P3.doC 10125110 Final3 25 



,.., 
co 
", 
'" 

• 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Salary and Classification Schedule 

(Effective January 1, 2011 - December 31, 2011) 

Croup Title Minimum 
12 Library Director 

11 Assistant Director $63,475 

10 Head of Adult Services $55,195 
Head of Public Information Services 
Head of Youth Services 

9 Head of Ci rcu lation Services $47,996 
Reference Services Librarian" 
School Liaison Librarian 
Technical Services Manager 
Teen Services Librarian 
Web Services Librarian 

8 Administrative Assistant $41,736 
Circulation Services Manager $21.40 
Head of Building & Security Services 
Metadata and Cataloging Specialist 
Manager of Creative Services 
Part-time Youth Services Librarian 
Part-time Reference Librarian 
Reference Librarian 
Staff Training Specialist 
Youth Services Librarian 

7 Full-time Mobile Library Circulation Assistant $36,292 
Graphic Artist $18.61 
Readers' Services Supervisor 

6 Circulation Services Assistant $31,558 
Full-time Administrative Services Clerk $16.18 
Part-time Circulation Services Assistant 
Part-time Mobile Library Circulation Assistant 
Readers' Services Assistant 
References Services Assistant 
Youth Services Assistant 

5 Technical Services Assistant Acquisition & $27,442 
Receiving $14.07 
Technical Services Assistant Copy Cataloger 

4 Building & Security Services Assistant $23,862 
Circulation Services Clerk $12.24 
Monitor, Full-time 
Monitor, Part-time 

3 Processi ng Clerk $10.65 
2 Page" $9.25 
1 Page $8.33 

Hckidd' sdoCuments/: budget20 Il/salaryschedule 

Midpoint Maximum 
Set by Board 

$79,345 $95,213 

$68,995 $82,794 

$59,996 $71,995 

$52,171 $62,604 
$26.75 $32.10 

$45,365 $54,438 
$23.26 $27.92 

$39,448 $47,338 
$20.23 $24.28 

$34,303 $41,164 
$17.59 $21.11 

$29,828 $35,794 
$15.30 $18.36 

$13.30 $15.96 
$11.56 $13.88 
$10.06 $12.07 

Adopted ___ _ 



• 

• 

NOTICE 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2010 

7:00 PM 

Conference Room - Second Floor 

Agenda: 

- Management Committee Report 

" . \ 1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, Il 60016·4553 

847·827·5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

The Des Plaines Public library, in compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, requests 
that persons with disabilities who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe andlor 
participate in the meetings or have questions about the accessibility of the meetings or facilities 
contact the library Director at 847-376-2801 to allow the library to make reasonable 
accommodations . 

w~ 



• 

• 

I. 

II. 

III. 

IV. 

V. 

VI. 

VII. 

Call to Order. 

Roll Call. 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting 
November 16, 2010 

7:00 PM 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Consideration of the Agenda. 
) 

Public Comments and Questions. 

~ 1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, IL 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

City Council Community Services Committee - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

Consent Agenda. [Action Item) 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting

October 19, 2010. 
B. Approval of the Minutes of the SpeCial Board Meeting - October 26, 

2010. 
C. Acceptance of Financial Reports for October 2010. 
D. Approval of the Minutes of the Management Committee Meeting

November 3, 2010. 
E. Directors Report - Holly Richards Sorensen. 
F. Friends of the Library Report - Myrtle Klebe. 

VIII. Unfinished Business. 

A. Review and Approve Insurance Proposals from Hartford Insurance for 
Library Property, General Liability, Automobile, Workers' 
Compensation and Employers' Liability, Umbrella, Directors' & 
Officers' Liability with Higher Deductibles. IAction Item) 



• 

• 

• 

IX. New Business. 
A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $83,287.91. [Action 

Item] 
B. Prepare for Board Retreat - Miriam Pollack & Associations. 
C. Management Committee Report - Myrtle Klebe. [Action Item] 

1. Section D, Personnel Policy. 
D. Review and Approve Salary Schedule for 2011. [Action Item] 
E. Review and Approve Contract for IT Services. [Action Item] 
F. Approve Payment to Ebsco for Subscription Services. [Action Item] 
G. Discuss Meeting Times for Board and Committee Meetings. [Action 

Item] 
H. Discuss Board Use of Wiki. 

X. Announcements. 

XI. Correspondence. 

XII. Adjournment. 

This meeting will be recorded for television broadcast. 



• 

I 

I. 
I 

aines-¥ 
c ...... [il!>rar:y~/ 41'-. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting 

October 19, 2010 

(\ 1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaine!., IL 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

The regular meeting of the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees was held in the second 
floor conference room on Tuesday, October 19, 2010. President George Magerl called the 
meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Roll call indicated the following board members were present: Dion Kendrick, Myrtle Klebe, 
Susan Moylan Krey, George Magerl, Steven Mokry, john Robinson, jennifer Tsalapatanis. 

Absent: jeff Rozovics. 

Also present: Holly Richards Sorensen, Carol Kidd, Heather Imhoff, Alderman Dan Wilson, 
jennifer Delgado, Roberta johnson, Ralph Minnis, Mary Minnis, Wally Meyer, Dick Sayad, Lory 
Flodberg, Kathy Krus, Sue D'Hondt, Steve Vaughn, Stephanie Spetter, jo Bonell, Steve Antonoff, 
Christopher Brinckerhoff, Susan Farid, Susan Casson, Clarence Casson, josh Kurutz. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

OATH OF OFFICE. 

Eugene Fregetto took the Oath of Office. 

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA. 

Susan Moylan Krey asked to change the order of the agenda items for New Business to E. 2011 
Budget, F. Finance Committee Report, and G. Approval of Library CloSings through january 
2011. 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by jennifer Tsalapatanis, to approve the agenda, as 
modified. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 

Wayne Serbin, a Des Plaines resident, stated that there has been some controversy surrounding 
the library budget, but the City Council should not object to the library budget. Mr. Serbin also 

----D, 
www.~ 

" 



• 

• 

• 

stated that Mayor Moylan has asked all city departments, including the library, to reduce their 
budgets because of financial necessity. 

Steven Vaughan, a Des Plaines resident, stated that the library prepares a budget that maintains 
services and meets the library's fiduciary responsibility. Mr. Vaughan thanked the board and staff 
for their hard work on the 2011 budget. 

Josh Kurutz, a Des Plaines resident, stated that he was pleased to read on the library blog and on 
Trib Local that van delivery has been reinstated for the remainder of 2010. Mr. Kurutz stated that 
by applying for the grant for the reinstatement of van delivery, Des Plaines taxpayers were saved 
money. He also stated that he hoped that this meeting would be more civil than the September 
board meeting. 

Dion Kendrick asked if the Des Plaines Public Library won a grant and President Magerl replied 
that the grant received for van delivery service was awarded collectively to area libraries and was 
written by staff from the regional library system. Trustee Kendrick also asked who funded the 
grant and Director Sorensen stated that the grant was funded by the federal government. 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

Alderman Wilson reported that the City Council will meet for final budget meetings on October 
20 and 25. Director Sorensen and President Mager! will attend those meetings. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MOTION by Myrtle Klebe, seconded by John Robinson, to approve the Consent 
Agenda, as presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

NEW BUSINESS 

APPROVE PAYMENT OF VENDOR CHECKS REPORT - $95,105.23. [Action Item[ 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, to approve the payment of 
vendor checks in the amount of $95,105.23, as listed on the vendor checks report of September 
2010 and authorize the Library Director to have transferred the amount required to the library'S 
operating account. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Fregetto, Kendrick, Klebe, Moylan Krey, Magerl, 
Mokry, Robinson, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

REVIEW AND APPROVE INSURANCE PROPOSALS FOR LIBRARY PROPERTY, GENERAL 
LIABILITY, AUTOMOBILE, WORKERS' COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY, 
UMBRELLA, DIRECTORS' & OFFICERS' LIABILITY. 

Lorayne Flodberg, Account Executive, and Mark Noffert, Area Senior Vice President, were in 
attendance from Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. to give an overview of the 
insurance proposal and to answer questions from the board. Ms. Flodberg reported that the 



• 

• 

• 

markets approached were Hartford, Indiana Insurance, Philadelphia Insurance Companies and 
Travelers. Ms. Flodberg stated that Travelers did not provide a quote, because they could not be 
competitive in this market. Hartford quoted a premium for one year at $35,679, Philadelphia 
quoted $63,052 and Indiana quoted $62,087. Trustee Kendrick requested that deductibles be 
increased to up to $10,000 for a possible cost savings to the library. Mr. Noffert responded that 
premium costs would not be reduced substantially by increasing deductibles, but estimated 
savings at about 5%. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, to ask Gallagher representatives 
to provide pricing for insurance with higher deductibles through Hartford for possible cost 
savings to the library. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

This agenda item will be placed on the November agenda under Unfinished Business for a board 
vote with the new pricing and increased deductibles. 

APPROVE RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT WITH THE LIBRARY INSURANCE MANAGEMENT AND RISK CONTROL 
COMBINATION (LiMRiCC) [Action Iteml 

MOTION by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to approve the resolution 
providing for the execution of an intergovernmental agreement with the Library Insurance 
Management and Risk Control Combination (LiMRiCC) ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Fregetto, 
Kendrick, Klebe, Moylan Krey, Mager!, Mokry, Robinson, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: None. MOTION 
CARRIED. 

APPROVE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT PROVIDING FOR RISK MANAGEMENT AND 
AUTHORIZING MEMBERSHIP IN THE LIBRARY INSURANCE MANAGEMENT AND RISK 
CONTROL COMBINATION (LiMRiCC) [Action Iteml 

MOTION by Dion'Kendrick, seconded by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, to approve the 
Intergovernmental Agreement providing for Risk Management and Authorizing Membership in 
the Library Insurance Management and Risk Control Combination (LiMRiCC) ROLL CALL VOTE: 
AYES: Fregetto, Kendrick, Klebe, Moylan Krey, Mager!, Mokry, Robinson, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: 
None. MOTION CARRIED. 

2011 BUDGET. [Action item) 

President Magerl reported that the City Council reviewed the library budget at their October 25 
council meeting and did not ask for any changes. President Magerl also reported that the 
Intergovernmental Loan Agreement between the City of Des Plaines and Des Plaines Public 
Library would be on the agenda for the November 1 City Council Meeting. 



• 

• 

• 

FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT, OCTOBER 13, 2010 -Susan Moylan Krey. [Action Item] 

Vice President Moylan Krey reported that the Finance Committee met on October 13 to discuss 
the late payment of property tax from Cook County which could result in a cash shortfall for the 
library beginning December 2010. Vice President Moylan Krey reported that the Committee 
voted to close the library the month of December, beginning December 5, if the 
Intergovernmental Agreement could not be funded by December 1, 2010. 

The board discussed options for keeping the library open with minimum staffing. 

MOTION by Committee to close the library the month of December, beginning December 5, if 
the Intergovernmental Agreement cannot be funded by December 1, 2010. ROLL CALL VOTE: 
AYES: Kendrick, Klebe, Moylan Krey, Magerl, Mokry. NAYS: Fregetto, Robinson, Tsalapatanis. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

The Board continued discussion on alternative options for staffing the library during the period 
when the library will experience a budget shortfall. 

MOTION by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, seconded Dion Kendrick, to investigate minimum staffing to 
save $300,000 for the months of November and December. 

SUBSTITUTE MOTION by Eugene Fregetto, seconded by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, to operate the 
library with minimum staffing for eight hours a day, five days a week, including Saturday and 
Sunday beginning November 1, 2010 to save $250,000 - $300,000 month and to contact library 
vendors to ask if they would wait for payments until property tax money is received. ROLL CALL 
VOTE: A YES: Fregetto, Kendrick, Klebe, Mager!, Moylan Krey, Robinson, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: 
Mokry. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Myrtle Klebe, to approve the 2011 library closings, 
with the addition of November 25 for a staff furlough day. VOTE: A YES: All. NAYS: None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

AN NOU NCEMENTS 

The Board was asked if they were interested in continuing the library fundraiser Do the Dewey 
and if they were willing to participate in the fundraising. The Board agreed to host the fundraiser 
with the Rotary Club of Des Plaines and participate in the planning and execution of the event. 

President Magerl reported that he attended Trustee Day at the Illinois Library Association annual 
conference. 



• 

• 

• 

The board will hold their board retreat on Saturday, January 8, 2011 from 9:00 a.m. - 3:30 p.m. 

MOTION by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to adjourn the regular meeting. 
VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:58 p.m. 

Minutes prepared Carol Kidd. 



, 
c' 

(P 
(P ~_--::;_ 
(Tl-> :> 1501 Ellinwood Street ;;.. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Special Meeting 

October 26, 2010 

Des Plaines, Il 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fal( 

The special meeting of the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees was held in 
the second floor meeting room on Tuesday, October 26, 2010. President George 
Mager! called the meeting to order at 5:03 p.m. 

ROLL CALL. 

Roll call indicated the following board members were present: Eugene Fregetto, 
Dion Kendrick, Myrtle Klebe, Susan Moylan Krey, George Mager!, john Robinson. 

• Members Absent: Steven Mokry, jeff ROZQvics, jennifer Tsalapatanis. 

• 

Also Present: Holly Sorensen, Carol Kidd, Heather Imhoff, jo Bonell, Brenda 
Murphy, Roberta johnson, Susan Farid, jennifer Delgado, Todd Wessel, Wayne 
Serbin, Kathy Krus, Christopher Brinckerfhoff, Steve Antonoff. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by john Robinson, to accept agenda, as 
presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

jeff Rozovics entered meeting at 5:05 p.m. 

DISCUSS 2010 BUDGET CASH FLOW SUMMARY. IAction Iteml 

At the October 19, 2010 Board meeting, the board directed Library Director 
Sorensen to prepare a plan to operate the library with minimum staffing for eight 
hours a day, five days a week, including Saturday and Sunday for the months of 
November and December or until the property tax money is received. Director 
Sorensen presented two plans to the board. Plan 1 would reduce library hours to 
52 a week and reduce many library services that would allow for the reduction in 

----D, 
www~~ 



• 

• 

staff for a year-end balance of $378,344. Plan 2 would ask staff to take a 25% pay 
cut, but staff would be reimbursed the reduced wages within 90 days of the library 
receiving tax receipts for a year-end balance of $137,043. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by John Robinson, to adopt Plan #1, 
Skeleton Staffing/Essential Services Only, which will reduce library hours to 52 
hours a week and discontinue many library services from November 14-
December 25 if there is no indication from the City of Des Plaines to approve the 
Intergovernmental Loan Agreement. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Fregetto, Kendrick, 
Klebe, Moylan Krey, Mager!, Robinson, Rozovics. NAYS: None. MOTION 
CARRIED. 

President Mager! reported that Gallagher Risk Management prepared a proposal 
with increased deductibles. The deductibles were increased from $1,000, to 
$5,000 to $10,000, which would reduce costs from $35,679 to $33,553, to 
$32,584. The board discussed the different deductibles and will vote for a plan at 
the November 16 meeting. 

President Magerl reported that the Intergovernmental Loan Agreement was revised 
to state that the loan would be repaid in 90 days after the library receives the 
majority of the property tax money. 

Trustee Kendrick asked Director Sorensen to prepare a cost analysis of expenses 
incurred in the process of preparing and executing the Intergovernmental 
Agreement. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS. 

Kathy Krus, a Des Plaines resident and former library employee, asked if we were 
under any contractual obligations to pay for cancelled programs if staff was 
reduced and Director Sorensen stated that some programs would be rescheduled to 
a later date. Ms. Krus stated that the City Council should approve the library'S 
request for a bridge loan. Ms. Krus also asked that new board members be given a 
tour of the library. Ms. Krus thanked Director Sorensen for her hard work. 

Wayne Serbin, a Des Plaines resident, suggested that the City Council tour the 
library building with the Board members. Trustee Robinson replied that in 2009 the 
City Council and Library Board met in a joint meeting and toured the library 
building. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Myrtle Klebe, to adjourn the meeting. 

The meeting adjourned at 6:04p.m. 

• Minutes prepared by Carol Kidd. 



• 

• 

• 

'2.7W.457 Warrenville Road. Warrcl\'ille, IL 60555·3902 Lauterbach & Amen, LLP ________________________________ ~//r------------------------------

Certified Public Accountants 

November 9,2010 

Members of the Pension Board of Trustees 
Des Plaines Public Library 
Des Plaines, IL 60016 

PHONE (630) 393·14831 FAX (630) 393·2516 

We have compiled the accompanying statement of plan net assets of the Des Plaines Public Library as of 
October 31, 20 I 0 and the related statement of changes in plan net assets for the one month and the ten 
months then ended in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services 
issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements, information that is the 
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements 
and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them. 

We have compiled the supplementary information from information that is the representation of 
management, without audit or review. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of 
assurance on the supplementary information. 

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures required by generally accepted 
accounting principles. If the omitted disclosures were included in the financial statements, they might 
influence the user's conclusions about the Pension Fund's assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and 
expenses. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed 
about such matters. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 

I-I 



• 

• 

• 

Institutl2n 

Des Plaines Public Library 

Treasurer's Report as of October 31,2010 

201-1101000 - Petty Cash 

201-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 
202-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 

201-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 
202-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 
707-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 

201-1102009 - Cash Payroll #8100292278 

201-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 
202-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

201-1102028 - Cash Library Donations 

201-1102073 - Cash IL - Epay #151600222104 

201-1102076 - IL Funds - Library # 151600221288 
202-1102076 - IL Funds - Library 

201-1102078 - Cash IL - Epay Library 

201-1102079 -IL Funds - 151600222591 

201-1104006 - Investments - Certificates of Deposit 

Total Invested 

Invested 

500.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

1,959.67 
0.00 
0.00 

1,959.67 

2,306.55 
2,306.55 

176,925.70 
(70,146. 77l 
106,778.93 

21,621.47 
21,621.47 

2,022.42 

(195,658.62) 
223,386.09 

27,727.47 . 

1 ,030.07 

702,738.69 

102,337.37 

969,022,64 



(!) 
(!) 
(» 
00 

• 

• 

• 

November 9, 2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of October 31, 2010 

Library Fund 

Assets 

1101000· Petty Cash 

1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 

1102009 - Cash Payroll #8100292278 

1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

1102028 - Cash Library Donations 

1102073 - Cash IL - Epay 151600008073 

1102076 -IL Funds - Library 

1102078 - Cash IL - Epay Library 

1102079 -IL Funds-

1104006 - Investments - Certificates of Deposit 
1118000 - Receivable - Propetty Taxes 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2401000 - Accounts Payable 
2401001 - Audit Accounts Payable 
2401002 - Payroll Liabilities 
2401010 - Federal WfH Payable 
2401020 - F.IC.A. WfH Payable 
2401030 - State WfH Payable 
2410020-· Escrow Deposits 
2430010 - Due To - Corporate General 
2430080 - Due To - Employee Retirement Trust 
2430099 - Due To Other Funds 
2430707 - Due to Library Camp Abs 
2450030 - Accrued Liability - Camp Absence 
2450035 - Accrued ST-L T Camp Absence 
2450040 - Accrued Payroll 
2450070 - Accrued FICA Withholding 
2450080 - Accrued IMRF Pension 
2450082 - RHS IMRF 
2470000 - Deferred Revenue - Property Tax 
2470100 - Library Deferred Revenue 
2471000 - Deferred Revenue - Other 
2490010 - Compensated Absences Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

Beginning 

Balance 

500.00 

1,959.67 

1,934.78 

157.715.38 

21,238.77 

8,600.53 

104,328.11 

11.201.87 

749.707.01 

102.253.83 

6.599.703.00 

7.759.142.95 

94.188.32 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

172.222.44 

0.00 
0.00 

25,438.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

6,442,163.00 
8.058.00 

0.00 
0.00 

6,742069.76 

1.484,291.17 

8,226.360.93 

(467,217.98l 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
1 

M.T.D. Ending 

Changes Balance 

0.00 500.00 

0.00 1.959.67 

371.77 2,306.55 

19.210.32 176.925.70 

382.70 21,621.47 

(6,578.11) 2,022.42 

(299,986.73) (195,658.62) 

(10.171.80) 1,030.07 

(46.968.32) 702.738.69 

83.54 102.337.37 

0.00 6.599.703.00 

(343,656.63) 7.415.486.32 

(15.118.40) 79.069.92 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 172,222.44 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 25.438.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 6.442.163.00 
0.00 8,058.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

(15118.40) 6,726,951.36 

0.00 1.484,291.17 

(15,118.40) 8,211,242.53 

(328.538.23l (795,756.21 l 



• 
See Accountants' Compilation Report 

2 

. 



m ,., 
~..J November 9. 2010 ,., 

• 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of October 31,2010 

____ Fixed Assets Fund~ __ _ 

1203000· Fixed Assets -Improvements 
1204201 - Fixed Assets - Library Equipment 
1204300 - Fixed Assets - Vehides 
1209900 - Fixed Assets - Accumulated Depreciation 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

Beginning 

Balance 

235.874.00 
869.440.00 
161.448.00 

(372.709.00) 
894.053.00 

M.T.D. 

Changes 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

Ending 

Balance 

235.874.00 
869.440.00 
161.448.00 

(372.709.001 
894,053.00 

____ -"0"'.0"'-0 ____ -"0"'.0"'-0 ____ -"0."'00'" 

Fund Batance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - UnreseOied 

Total liabilities and Net Capital Assets 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

__ -"8",94""",05",3",.0,,,-0 ____ .!i0"'.0"'-0 __ ",89",4""0",53",.0,,,-0 
894,053.00 . ____ .!i0~.0!!!.0 __ ",89",4""0",53",.0,,,-0 

894.053.00 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
3 

0.00 

0.00 894.053.00 

0.00 0.00 



<::> 
<?;) 
'~J November 9, 2010 ,--' Des Plaines Public Library 

Revenue Report as of October 31,2010 

• Received Received Budgeted Uncollected Percentage 

this Month this Year Receipts Receipts Collected 

Library Fund 

Taxes 

4810019, Property Taxes 2002 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810020 - Property Taxes 2003 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810021 - Property Taxes 2004 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810022 - Property Taxes 2005 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810023 - Property Taxes 2006 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810024 - Property Taxes 2007 0.00 . (61,671,93) 0.00 61,671.93 0.00 

4810025 - Property Taxes 2008 0.00 271,310.84 50,000.00 (221,310.84) 542.62 

4810026 - Property Taxes 2009 32,278.55 3,581,921.60 6,309,802.00 2,727,880.40 56.77 

32,278.55 3,791,560.51 6,359,802.00 2,568,241.49 59.62 

Intergovernmental 

4810800 - Personal Property Replacement Tax 0.00 23,247.00 92,988.00 69,741.00 25.00 

4822040 - State Grant - Per Capita 0.00 0.00 57,700.00 57,700.00 0.00 

4822095 - State Grant - Library 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 23,247.00 150,688.00 127,441.00 15.43 

Fines & Fees 

• 4850101 - Library Fees 1,127.12 4,581.50 0.00 (4,581.50) 0.00 

4850102 - Library Fines 4,930.08 88,473.69 125,000.00 36,526.31 70.78 

4850103 - Library Fines I Credit Card 2,781.62 16,843.77 0.00 (16,843.77) 0.00 

4850201 - CoPyin9 Fee 2,688.38 23,353.78 30,000.00 6,646.22 77.85 

4850202 - Damaged Materials 45.94 509.75 0.00 (509.75) 0.00 

4850203 - Lost Materials 508.96 6,167.42 0.00 (6,167.42) 0.00 

4850205 - Bags 47.95 707.94 0.00 (707.94) 0.00 

4850207 - Non-Res Cards 217.00 1,503.00 0.00 (1,503.00) 0.00 

12,347.05 142,140.85 155,000.00 12,859.15 91.70 

Special Programs & Events 

4850215 - Special Programs & Events 0.00 664,93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 

0.00 664.93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 

Other Revenue 

4890010 -Interest Income 209.19 3,806.59 5,000.00 1,193.41 76.13 

4890050 - Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 

4899900 - Miscellaneous Revenue 5,975.30 22,248.53 17,500.00 (4,748.53) 127.13 

4899920 - Library Donations 380.00 6,019.59 10,000.00 3,980.41 60.20 

6,564.49 32,074.71 33,500.00 1,425.29 95.75 

Total Library Fund 51,190.09 3,989,688.00 6,703,990.00 2,714,302.00 59.51 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 



m 
(;) 

'-,J November 9, 2010 
''''> 

• 
Capital Projects Fund 

Other Revenue 

4890010 • Interest Ineome 

Total Capital ProJecta Fund 

Total of All Funds 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Revenue Report as of October 31,2010 

Received 

this Month 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

Received 

this Year 

3.25 

3.25 

3.25 

Budgeted Uncollected Percentage 

Receipts Receipts Collected 

5,000.00 4,996.75 0.07 
5,000.00 4,996.75 0.07 

305,000.00 304,996.75 0.00 

51,190.09 3,989,691.25 7,008,990.00 3,019,298.75 56.92 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 

2 



(;) 
(D 
--,J November 9, 2010 
(,) 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Expense Report as of October 31,2010 • M.T.D. Y.T.D Budgeted Budgeted Prct 

Expended Expended Amount Remain. Expend. 

Library Fund 

Salaries 
5910100· Salaries 212,982.86 1,940,933.57 2,318,022.00 377,088,43 83.73 
5910200 - Temporary Wages 0.00 284,401.81 789,113.00 504,711.19 36.04 
5910400 - Non - Supervisory Overtime 196.73 443.30 0.00 (443.30) 0.00 
5910500 - Vaca1ion Pay 8,475.41 98,923.64 0.00 (98,923.64) 0.00 
5910600 - Sick Pay 2,438.99 38,210.77 0.00 (38,210.77) 0.00 
5910700 - Holiday Pay 73.54 36,797.34 0.00 (36,797.34) 0.00 
5910900 - Ac1IOut of Class/Premium 0.00 2,692.30 0.00 (2,692.30) 0.00 
5910950 - Excess Sick Hours Pay Out 0.00 2,898.73 3,500.00 601.27 82.82 
5910970 - Compensated Absences 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

224,167.53 2,405,301.46 3,110,635.00 705,333.54 77.33 

Benefits 
5918010 - Unemployment Compensation 285.88 7,089.41 4,986.00 (2,103.41) 142.19 
5918020 - Employer Contribution - FICA 16,766.72 180,162.16 237,314.00 57,151.84 75.92 
5918021 - Employer Contribution - IMRF 21,609.27 235,677.67 297,814.00 62,136.33 79.14 
5918030 - EAP Program 0.00 0.00 682.00 682.00 0.00 
5918040 - Life Insurance Premiums 0.00 2,607.80 6,576.00 3,968.20 39.66 
5918050 - PPO Insurance Premiums 28,155.37 279,679.28 389,041.00 109,361.72 71.89 
5918051 - HMO Insurance Premiums 8,184.26 85,484.39 111,979.00 26,494.61 76.34 
5918055 - Dental Insurance Premiums 2,481.15 23,428.33 31,505.00 8,076.67 74.36 

.5918070 - Workers Compensation 1,033.17 11,016.37 9,500.00 (1,516.37) 115.96 
5918085 - RHS Plan Payout 0.00 5,214.26 10,000.00 4,785,74 52.14 

7851582 \ 83035967 1 099397 DO 26903733 7553 

Contractual Services 
5920100 - Le9al Fees 266.00 5,126.39 15,000.00 9,873.61 34.18 
5920105 - Costs of Litigation 0.00 154.11 3,500.00 3,345.89 4.40 
5920110 - Professional Services 30,473.38 278,285.60 405,000.00 126,714.40 68.71 
5920120 - Communication Services 3,879.67 28,121.64 28,460.00 338.36 98.81 
5920140 - Data Processing Services 5,221.46 67,780.42 100,800.00 33,019.58 67.24 
5920202 - Conferences 0.00 1,546.30 0.00 (1,546.30) 0.00 
5920204 - Training 0.00 1,447.00 2,600.00 1,153.00 55.65 
5920205 - Tuition Reimbursements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920206 - Seminars 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920210 -In Service Training 0.00 3,366.56 0.00 (3,366.56) 0.00 
5920220 - Membership Dues 345.00 3,469.00 6,500.00 3,031.00 53.37 
5920225 - licensingmtles 50.00 50.00 100.00 50.00 50.00 
5920230 - Publication of Notices 0.00 971.20 1,000.00 28.80 97.12 
5920850 - SubSidy -1994 E.R.P Trans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 
5920900 - Property/Liability Contributions 0.00 12,434.50 24,869.00 12,434.50 50.00 
5930010 - R&M Equipment 9,790.60 95,950.62 110,062.00 14,111.38 87.18 
5930020 - R&M Buildings & Structure$ 1,390.00 71,962.41 116,235.00 44,272.59 61.91 
5930030 - R&M Vehicles 0.00 4,449.12 14,300.00 9,850.88 31.11 
5930195 - Book Binding & Repair 0.00 215.10 1,000.00 784.90 21.51 
5930210 - Rental of Equipment 164.00 1,476.00 26,500.00 25,024.00 5.57 
5930320 - CreaninglCustodial Services 7,423.00 101,843.00 96,700.00 (5,143.00) 105.32 
5930490 - Refuse Contract 472.91 5,683.25 5,500.00 (183.25) 103.33 
5960040 - Employee Physicals 0.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 
5960065 - Bank Fees 96.38 602.95 0.00 (602.95) 0.00 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 
1 



I 

(V 
(V 
~ .... J November 9, 2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Expense Report as of October 31, 2010 • 

5960070 - Travel Expense 

5960210 - Special Event Programming 
5960990 - Misc. Contractual Services 

Commodities 

5970100 - Office Supplies 

5970110 - Meals 

5970115 - Supplies - DepUOther 
5970170 - Janitorial 
5970260 - Postage & Parcel 

5970270 - Prinitng -Reproduction-Binding 
5970330 - Supplies - Vehides RIM 
5970500 - Purchase of Water 
5970600 - Books 
5970610 - Audio Materials 
5970620 - Subscriptions & Books 

5970630 - Visual Materials 
5970640 - Automated Reference Materials 
5970810 - Natural Gas 
5970820 - Electricity 
5970840 - Diesel 
5970850 - Gasoline 

.5970900 - Equipment < $5,000 

Capital Expenditures 
5980300 - Improvements 
5980400 - Equipment 
5980410 - Computer Hardware 
5980420 - Computer Software 
5980600 - Fumiture & Fixtures 

Other Funding Activities 
5990935 - Trans to DIS - 2002A Bond 
5990840 - Trans to Library Capital Proj. Fund 
5990955 - Trans to DIS - 2003B Bond 
5993000 - Contingency Reserve 

Total Library Fund Expenditures 

• 

M.T.D. 

Expended 

0.00 

0.00 
2,038.58 

61,610.98 

1,905.80 

0.00 
0.00 

1,279.20 
577.65 

0.00 
0.00 

676.62 
13,855.02 
2,095.99 

612.16 
872.16 

0.00 
(6,691.05) 

0.00 

215.23 
35.21 

0.00 
15.433.99 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

379,728.32 

V.T.D 

Expended 

551.93 

19.080.84 
68,417.60 

772,985.54 

75,199.22 

855.97 

0.00 
16,668.19 
14,550.63 

1,271.50 
0.00 

3,788.95 
322,819.11 
47,783.23 
22,082.53 
76,753.64 
97,866.42 
14,844.93 

0.00 
1,733.51 

384.73 
2,688.87 

699,291.43 

0.00 
42,488.54 

1,092.69 
19,869.32 
7,905.81 

71,356.36 

6,149.75 
0.00 
0.00 
0:00 

6,149.75 

4,785,444.21 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
2 

Budgeted' Budgeted 

Amount Remain. 

500.00 (51.93) 
31,000.00 11,919.16 
99,375.00 30,957.40 

1 ,089,251.00 316,265.46 

116,300.00 41,100.78 

2,800.00 1,944.03 
0.00 0.00 

20,600.00 3,931.81 
13,300.00 (1,250.63) 
5,000.00 3,728.50 

0.00 0.00 
8,000.00 4,211.05 

489,800.00 166,980.89 
84,600.00 36,816.77 
78,800.00 56,717.47 

96,250.00 19,496.36 
141,000.00 43,133.58 
30,000.00 15,155.07 

500.00 500.00 
4,000.00 2,266.49 
2,000.00 1,615.27 
5,500.00 2,811.13 

1 ,098,450.00 399,158.57 

8,000.00 8,000.00 
33,000.00 (9,488.54) 

6,750.00 5,657.31 
32,000.00 12,130.68 
20,500.00 12594.19 

100250.00 28,893.64 

24,598.00 18,448.25 
300,000.00 300,000.00 

0.00 0.00 
75,000.00 75,000.00 

.399,598.00 393,448.25 

6,897,581.00 2,112,136.79 

Prct 

Expend. 

110.39 

61.55 
68.85 

70.96 

64.66 

30.57 
0.00 

80.91 
109.40 

25.43 
0.00 

47.36 
65.91 

56.48 
28.02 

79.74 
69.41 
49.48 

0.00 
43.34 
19.24 
48.89 
63.66 

0.00 
128.75 

16.19 
62.09 
38.56 
71.18 

25.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
1.54 

69.38 



(!) 
(!) 
"-,..1 November 9, 2010 
~n 

• 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Expense Report as of October 31, 2010 

Capital Projects Fund 

Contractual Services 
5920110· Professional Services 

Capital Expenditures 
5980300 • Improvements 
5980400 • Equipmenl 
5980410 • Computer Hardware 

Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures 

Total of All Funds 

M.T.D. 

Expended 

0.00 
000 

0.00 . 
0.00 
0.00 
a aa 

0.00 

379,728.32 

V.T.D 

Expended 

0.00 
000 

0.00 
38,047.28 
32,099.49 
za H6ZZ 

70,146.77 

4,855,590.98 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
3 

Budgeted 

Amount 

15,000.00 
1500000 

92,000.00 
24,000.00 
76,100.00 

122 laa aa 

207,100.00 

7,104,681.00 

Budgeted 

Remain. 

. 92,000.00 
(14,047.28) 
44,000.51 

]2] 2~3 23 

136,953.23 

2,249,090.02 

Prcl 
Expend. 

0.00 
OOQ 

0.00 
158.53 
42.18 
J6 :i2 

33.87 

68.34 



(;) 

(~ 

Des Plaines Public Library -" All checkbooks DESPLANSLIB 
<n October 2010 Check Register 'i Page 1 

• Check Number Check Date Pane Amount 

Chec\(S 
10617 11116110 ABRAHAM LINCOLN PRESIDENTIAL LIBRARY 584.16 
10618 11116110 ALARM SECURITY INCORPORATED 553.12 
10619 11116110 ALEXIAN BROTHERS CORP HEALTH SERV 110.00 
10680 11116110 BAKER & TAYLOR 3,652.75 
10681 11116110 BANC OF AMERICA LEASING 2,005.00 
10682 11116110 BANKCARD SERVICES 1,240.94 
10683 11116110 BUSINESS MACHINE AGENTS INC 489.04 
10684 11116110 CERAMICA, INC. 159.40 
10685 11116110 CITY OF DES PLAINES 250.44 
10686 11116110 CITY OF DES PLAINES, PUBLIC WORKS 676.62 
10687 11116110 COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC 8,613.00 
10688 11116110 COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 9,376.77 
10689 11116110 D&B 769.50 
10690 11116110 D & Z HOUSE OF BOOKS INCORPORATED 75.00 
10691 11116110 DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP 317.52 
10692 11116110 DES PLAINES CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 210.00 
10693 11116110 FEDERAL EXPRESS 77.65 
10694 11116110 GLENSIDE PUBLIC LIBRARY DlST. 32.50 
10695 11116110 H.W. WILSON COMPANY 417.00 
10696 11116110 INFO USA MARKETING, INC. 830.00 
10697 11116110 INFORMA nON TODAY, INC. 337.55 
10698 11116110 INVICTA SERVICES LLC 143.85 
10699 11116110 JOURNAL AND TOPICS NEWSPAPERS 112.97 
10700 11116110 KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LTD. 266.00 
10701 11116110 LAPORTINC. 726.08 
10702 11116110 LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP. 2,700.00 
10703 11116110 LEXlSNEXlS ACADEMIC & LIB SOLUTIONS 124.46 • 10704 11116110 MARQUIS WHO'S WHO 784.50 
10705 11116110 MARSHALL CAVENDISH CORPORA nON 140.97 
10706 11116110 MERGENTINCORPORATED 5,780.00 
10707 11116110 MICHAEL CLOUD 375.00 
10708 11116110 MICHAEL V. BROUILLETTE 50.00 
10709 11116110 MIDWEST TAPE 943.79 
10710 11116110 OFFICE DEPOT 28.69 
10711 11116110 OMNIGRAPHICS 168.52 
10712 . 11116110 OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP 27,876.21 
10713 11116110 PARK RIDGE PUBLIC LIBRARY 22.95 
10714 11116110 PITNEY BOWES 664.00 
10715 11116110 RANDOM HOUSE INCORPORATED 60.00 
10716 11116110 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 2,048.67 
10717 11116110 ROTARY CLUB OF DES PLAINES 135.00 
10718 11116110 SCHOLL CORPORATE GUIDES 33.95 
10719 11116110 TELEVEND SERVICES INCORPORATED 243.35 
10720 11116110 THE STATE FIRE MARSHALL 200.00 
10721 11116110 . UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 3,186.59 
10722 11116110 V AHE GHAZARIAN 85.00 
10723 11116110 WASTE MANAGEMENT 129.95 
10724 11116110 WASTE MANAGEMENT 342.96 
10725 11116110 WEST GROUP 890.50 
10726 11116110 WT COX SUBSCRIPTIONS 28.00 
50095 10131110 NEXTEL 1,547.97 
50096 10131110 CALL ONE 958.84 
50097 10131110 AT&T 363.35 
50098 10131110 McLEOD USA 298.76 
50099 10131110 VERIZON WIRELESS 126.89 
50100 10131110 LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS, LLC. 466.29 

. 50101 10/31/10 NICORGAS 338.32 

• 50102 10/31/10 SPRINT 35.08 
50103 10/31/10 WOW! INTERENT CABLE 82.49 

Total chec~ 59 Total 83.287.91 



(!) 

(0 
--,.I All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public library DESPLANSLIB 
-,J 

October 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 1 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

AT&T 50097 10/3 III 0 363.35 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 221.85 
201·5920120 ACH 98.35 
201·5920120 ACH 43.15 

CALL ONE 50096 10/31110 958.84 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 479.33 
201·5920120 ACH 479.51 

LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS. LLC. 50100 10/31110 466.29 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 466.29 

McLEOD USA 50098 10/31/10 298.76 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 298.76 

NEXTEL 50095 10/31/10 1.547.97 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 1.547.97 

NICORGAS 50101 10/31/10 338.32 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970810 ACHNICOR 338.32 

SPRINT 50102 10/3 III 0 35.08 
Account No. Description Amount • 201·5920120 ACH 18.96 
201·5920120 ACH 16.12 

VERIZON WIRELESS 50099 10/31110 126.89 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 126.89 

WOW! INTERENT CABLE 50103 10/31/10 82.49 
Account ~·o. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 82.49 

Subtotal 4,217.99 

ABRAHAM LINCOLN PRESIDENTIAL L1BI 10677 11/16/10 584.16 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970620 Invoice # 08335 584.16 

ALARM SECURITY INCORPORATED 10678 11/16/10 553.12 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970170 Invoice # S 105889 553.12 

ALEXIAN BROTHERS CORP HEALTH SER 10679 11/16/10 110.00 
Account No. Description Amount , 
201·5960990 Invoice # 379457 110.00 

BAKER & TAYLOR 10680 11/16/10 3.652.75 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024643237 0.96 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025169588 12.22 

• 201·5960990 Invoice # 2025156958 27.46 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025157032 13.44 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025174242 13.44 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025192668 4.12 



(;;l 
q 
'.,j All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
0;) October 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 2 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201·5960990 Invoice # 2025192620 8.47 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025192622 2.58 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025212950 1.59 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025203836 2.46 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025212951 1.85 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025215905 1.24 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025212967 1.94 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025162353 4.62 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025167416 1.44 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025167421 6.20 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025157032 13.44 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025156958 27.46 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025149549 2.48 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025152957 8.96 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025128918 3.00 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025132644 13.22 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025136793 3.42 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025142970 1.24 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025142960 5.89 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025145657 8.38 
201·5960990 Invoeie # 2025140999 1.94 
201·5960990 Invocie # 2025142949 0.47 
201·5960990 Invocie # 2025142916 2.31 
201·5960990 Im'oeie # 2025150820 11.62 
201·5960990 Invocie # 2024484519 1.88 
201·5960990 Invocie # 0000135815 11.44 
201·5960990 Invocie # 0000135610 11.44 
201·5960990 Invocie # 2025000366 2.33 
201·5960990 Invocie # 2024800739 28.62 . • 201·5960990 Invoeie # 2024738337 8.54 
201·5960990 Invoeie # 2024576339 21.21 
201·5960990 Invoeie # 2024821188 5.47 
201·5960990 Invoeie # 2025228496 11.93 
201·5960990 Invocie # 2025193018 14.51 
201·5970600 Invoice # 0000135989 111.77 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025169587 369.53 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025156958 339.95 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025157032 159.12 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025174242 185.47 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025192668 90.23 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025192620 104.07 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025192622 40.30 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025212950 43.44 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025203836 3.58 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025212951 23.15 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025215905 14.17 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025212967 19.30 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025162353 18.33 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025167416 15.60 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025167421 73.23 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025157032 159.12 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025156958 339.95 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025149549 25.54 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025152957 124.05 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025128918 94.02 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025132643 417.69 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025136793 44.21 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025142970 17.00 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2025142960 151.34 

• 201·5970600 Invoice # 2025145656 249.53 
201·5970600 Invoeie # 2025140999 25.61 
201·5970600 Invocie # 2025142949 5.97 
201·5970600 Invocie # 2025142916 12.36 



(2) 

m 
All Checkbooks <J Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 

(0 October 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 3 

• Vendor Name Chk.l"o. Che<k Date Amount 

201·5970600 Invoci. # 2025 I 508 I 9 229.40 
201·5970600 Invocie # 2024484519 20.31 
201·5970600 Invocie # 0000135815 100.33 
201·5970600 Invocie # 0000135610 100.33 
201·5970600 Invocie # 2025000366 28.36 
201·5970600 Invocie # 2024800739 67.41 
201·5970600 Invocie # 2024738337 147.62 
201·5970600 lnvocie # 2024576339 490.76 
201-5970600 Invocie # 2025228495 327.53 
201-5970600 Invocie # 2025193017 406.39 
201-5970600 Invoice # COA 1004 19738 -29.60 
201-5970600 Invoice # COA I 00449637 -276.82 
201-5970600 Invoice # COA I 004 19736 -640.79 
201-5970600 Invoice # COAI00419737 -814.11 
201-5970600 Invoice # COAI00419735 -49.82 
201-5970600 Invoice # COAI00419734 -26.14 
201-5970600 Invoice # COAI00399292 2.17 
201-5970600 Invoice # COAI00399291 -4.62 
201-5970600 Invoice # COA 100365887 -28.82 

BANC OF AMERICA LEASING 10681 11116/10 2.005.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # 01 1682260-00 2.005.00 

BANKCARD SERVICES 10682 11116/10 1.240.94 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 28.00 
201-5970100 I,ll 1.50 
201-5970600 60.10 • 201-5970610 41.34 

'BUSINESS MACHINE AGENTS INC 10683 11116/10 489.04 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # IN15577 222.80 
201-5930010 Invoice # IN15578 266.24 

CERAMICA, INC. 10684 11/16/10 159.40 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # IN-10-34602 159.40 

CITY OF DES PLAINES 10685 11/16/10 250.44 
Account No. Description Amount 

201-5970840 Diesel 215.23 
201-5970850 Unleaded Fuel 35.21 

CITY OF DES PLAINES, PUBLIC WORKS 10686 11/16/10 676.62 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970500 Account # 71-080-763-01 676.62 

COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC 10687 11/16/10 8,613.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoice # 1269239 1,190.00 
201-5930320 Invoice # 1269556 7.423.00 

COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 10688 11/16/10 9,376.77 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920140 Invoice # CCS 10/8/10, 5,221.46 
201-5930010 OCLC JED September 2010 2,077.63 
201-5930010 OCLC JED October 2010 2,077.68 

• D&B 10689 11/16/10 769.50 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 10091789-01 769.50 



(;l 
C;l 

Des Plaines Public Library ():> All Checkbooks DESPLANSLIB 
(;;:> October 2010 VendoliChecks Report Page 4 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

D & Z HOUSE OF BOOKS INCORPORATED 10690 11/16/10 75.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Order # 09072010 75.00 

DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP 10691 11/16/10 317.52 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 4011209 317.52 

DES PLAINES CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 10692 11116/10 210.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920220 Invoice # 6251A 210.00 

FEDERAL EXPRESS 10693 11116/10 77.65 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970260 Invoice # 7-271-79513 25.38 
201-5970260 Invoice # 7-255-70534 52.27 

GLENSIDE PUBLIC LIBRARYDIST. 10694 11/16/10 32.50 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 32.50 

H.W. WILSON COMPANY 10695 11/16/10 417.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 58489096 192.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 58448209 225.00 

INFO USA MARKETING. INC. 10696 11/16/10 830.00 
Account No. Description Amount • 201-5970600 Invoice # 10-24-055126 830.00 

INFORMATION TODA Y.INC. 10697 11/16/10 337.55 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 1332083-B I 337.55 

INVICTA SERVICES LLC 10698 11/16/10 143.85 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 1514 143.85 

JOURNAL AND TOPICS NEWSPAPERS 10699 11116110 112.97 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 138328 112.97 

KLEIN. THORPE & JENKINS. LTD. 10700 11116/10 266.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920100 Statement # 149643 266.00 

LAPORTINC. 10701 11/16/10 726.08 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970170 Im'oeie # 123778 360.54 
201-5970170 Im'oeie # 125840 365.54 

LAUTERBACH & AMEN. LLP. 10702 11116/10 2,700.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920110 Invoice No. 17841 1,350.00 
201-5920110 Invoice No. 17447 1,350.00 

LEXISNEXIS ACADEMIC & LIB SOLUTlm 10703 11/16/10 124.46 
Account No. Description Amount 

• 201-5970600 Invoice # 08689245 124.46 

MARQUIS WHO'S WHO 10704 11/16/10 784.50 
Account No. Description Amount 



(~ 

(~ 
Q) All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
~ ... ~ 

October 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 5 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201·5970600 Invoice # 1020235 784.50 

MARSHALL CAVENDISH CORPORA nON 10705 11/16/10 140.97 
Account No. Description Amount 
2.01·597.06.0.0 Invoice # 857519 14.0.97 

MERGENTINCORPORATED 107.06 11/16/10 5,78.0 . .0.0 
Account No. Description Amount 
2.0 1·597.06.0.0 Invoice # 63967 5,78.0 . .0.0 

MICHAEL CLOUD 107.07 1111611.0 375 . .0.0 
Account No. Description Amount 
2.01·596.099.0 Invoice # 020 125 . .0.0 
2.0 1·596.099.0 Invoice # 021 125 . .0.0 
2.0 1·596.099.0 Invoice # .022 125 . .0.0 

MICHAEL V. BROUILLETTE 107.08 11116/10 5.0 . .0.0 
. Account No. Description Amount 
2.0 1·592.0225 COL Reimbursement 5.0 . .0.0 

MIDWEST TAPE 1.07.09 11116/10 943.79 
Account No. Description Amount 
2.0 1·596099.0 Invoice # 6168438 4.5.0 
2.0 1·596.099.0 Invoice # 6174348 4.5.0 
2.0 1·596.099.0 Invoice # 61543.03 4.5.0 
2.01·596.099.0 Invoice # 6154682 4.5.0 
2.0 1·596099.0 Invoice # 6 I 54679 2.25 
2.0 1·596.099.0 Invoice # 615468.0 6.95 
2.01·596.099.0 Invoice # 6149440 2.25 • 2.01·596.099.0 Invoice # 6154681 2.25 
2.01·596.099.0 Invoice # 6168437 2.25 
2.01·596099.0 Invoice # 6160476 2.45 
2.0 1·596.099.0 Invoice # 616.0895 2.25 
2.01·596.099.0 Invoice # 616.0896 2.25 
2.0 1·596.099.0 Invoice # 6154299 2.25 
2.0 1·596099.0 Invoice # 61543.0.0 2.25 
2.01·596099.0 Invoice # 616.0894 4.5.0 
2.01·596.099.0 Invoice # 61543.01 9 . .0.0 
2.01·596.099.0 Invoice # 61543.02 2.25 
2.0 1·596.099.0 Invoice # 6165532 2.25 
2.01·596099.0 Invoice # 617193.0 2.25 
2.01·597.0610 Invoice # 2318463 39.99 
2.01·597.0610 Invoice # 2333.048 29.99 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 6171931 44.99 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 6168436 119.98 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 233973.0 29.99 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 6168438 44.98 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 6174348 44.98 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 61543.03 43.48 
201·597.063.0 Invoice # 6154682 46.48 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 6154679 22.49 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 615468.0 65.22 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 614944.0 22.49 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 6154681 59.98 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 6168437 14.99 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 6160476 9.74 
2.0 1·5970630 Invoice # 616.0895 14.99 
2.0 1·597.063.0 Invoice # 6160896 22.49 
201·597.0630 Invoice # 6154299 11.24 

• 2.0 1·597.063.0 Invoice # 6154300 14.99 
2.0 1·597.063.0 Invoice # 6160894 40.48 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6154301 86.96 
2.01·597.063.0 Invoice # 61543.02 22.49 



(!l 
(!l 
(» All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 

'" October 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 6 

• Vendor Name Chk.No. Check Date Amount 

201-5970630 Invoice # 6165532 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6171930 14.99 

OFFICE DEPOT 10710 11116/10 28.69 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 537221912001 28.69 

OMNIGRAPHICS 10711 11116/10 168.52 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 104066-0412 168.52 

OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP 10712 11/16/10 27,876.21 
- Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920110 Invoice # 10924 27,083.33 
201-5960990 Invoice # 10945 280.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 10832 512.88 

PARK RIQGE PUBLIC LIBRARY 10713 11/16/10 22.95 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 22.95 

PITNEY BOWES 10714 11/16/10 664.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930210 Invoice # 9954034-OTIO 164.00 
201-5970260 ACCl #8000-9090-0510-7839 500.00 

RANDOM HOUSE INCORPORATED 10715 11/16/10 60.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 1080087026 60.00 

, • I 
RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 10716 11/16110 2,048.67 

Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970610 Order # 5025488 78.97 
201-5970610 Order # 4725632 326.22 
201-5970610 Order # 4804490 554.00 
201-5970610 Order # 4806286 714.56 
201-5970610 Order # 4804148 310.92 
201-5970630 Order # 4511953 31.00 
201-5970630 Order # 5027954 33.00 

ROTARY CLUB OF DES PLAINES 10717 11/16/10 135.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920220 Invoice # IO 121 0-0 I 135.00 

SCHOLL CORPORATE GUIDES 10718 11116/10 33.95 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 34018 33.95 

TELEVEND SERVICES INCORPORATED 10719 11/16/10 243.35 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 2376 243.35 

THE STATE FIRE MARSHALL 10720 11/16/10 200.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoice # 9442519 200.00 

UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 1072l 11/16/10 3,186.59 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # 054663 I 99.79 

• 201-5930010 Invoice # 054670 I 598.60 
201-5930010 Invoice # 054680 I 0.69 
201-5930010 Invoice # 054669 I 269.50 
201-5930010 Invoice # 054681 1 10.55 



(;l 
(;l 

All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSUB (~, 

(,) October 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 7 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201·5930010 Invoice # 86667A I 11.31 
201·5930010 Invoice # 054172 I 1.066.68 
201·5930010 Invoice # 054182 I 7.24 
201·5930010 Invoice # 054187 2 578.00 
201·5930010 Invoice # 054180 I 7.01 
201·5930010 Invoice # 054169 I 130.98 
201·5930010 Invoice # 054171 I 360.90 
201·5970100 Invoice # 86777A I 11.31 
201·5970100 Invoice # 86681A I 11.26 
201·5970100 Invoice # 86561A I 11.31 
201·5970100 Invoice # 86944A I 11.46 

VA HE GHA2ARlAN 10722 11/16/10 85.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Tuned Yamaha Console 85.00 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 10723 11/16/10 129.95 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930490 Invoice# 4214178·2008·9 129.95 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 10724 11/16/10 342.96 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930490 Invoice # 2272942·2008·1 342.96 

WEST GROUP 10725 11/16/10 . 89050 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Invoice # 821534949 334.00 
201·5970600 Invode # 821349427 55650 

• WT COX SUBSCRIPTIONS 10726 11116/10 28.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970620 Invoice # 2901922 28.00 

Subtotal 79.069.92 

TOTAL 83.287.91 

• 



------ ------

• • • vg88 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

CASII FLOW SUMMARY ,> 
For tht Ytar Endtd Dtctmbtr 31, 2010 

January February March April May June July August September October November December 
Balanet Sbcd 

Cash & Investments $. 1,546,613 1,117,818 1,360,131 $ 3.581,31U 3,169,784 $ 2,722,749 $ 2,255,426 $ 1,787,080 $ 1,312,679 $ 969,023 $ $ 

RCl'Cnuc (M-T-O) 
Property Taxes 130,787 739,239 2,641,784 51,612 194,449 1,411 32,279 
Other Revenue 15,579 11,914 17,102 52,394 14,286 20,593 12,416 20,995 13,939 18,912 

146,366 11,914 756,341 2,694,178 65,898 20,593 206,866 20,995 15,350 51.190 

EXPCDStS (1\1-'1'-0) 
Payroll & Benefits 306,233 309,859 312,915 302,514 311,663 303,578 468,072 312,944 305,200 302,683 
Other Expense 161,788 249,673 162,718 153,112 177,041 205,815 209,132 105,584 96,124 77,045 
M-T-D change in AlP ( 11,273) (58,485) (3,015) 70.813 88,427 - 15,118 

468.020 559,532 475,633 455,626 477,43 I 450,908 674,189 489,341 489,751 394,847 0 0 

Net Increase/(Decreasc) -.Jl2I,654) (547,618) 280,708 2,238,552_ (411,5))) (430,315) (467,323) (468,346) (474,401) (343,657) 0 0 



• 

• 

• 

Director's Report 
November, 2010 

Personnel Highlights 

New Employees for October/November 2010 
Rebecca Harris, Page, 11/01/2010 
Wanda Johnson, Page 11/15/2010 

Resignations for October/November 2010 
Linda Knorr, Readers' Services Assistant, 10/28/2010 

Patron Services High lights 

Circulation 
As of October 21 we have circulated 1,026,959 items. That's down 3.2% from 2009 
where we saw record increases of 13%. Our circulation is leveling off from those record 
highs but still very strong. 

Patron Attendance: 
50,152 people came through the doors this month, which is up 10% over October 2009. 

Hits on Web site: 
We had 54,141 hits on our web site in October. Total web site hits for 2010 are 588,460. 

Meeting Room Usage: 
In October 80 different groups met at the library using our meeting rooms. Over, 3,000 
people were in attendance. 

Other: 
241 audiobooks were downloaded by 78 patrons in October, 36 of who are new users. 
The most popular titles are Steig Larsson's Girl with the Dragon Tattoo and Girl who 
Kicked the Hornet's Nest. 



(<l 
(<l 

;~ Des Plaines Public Library - October 2010 Board Report 

-':ULATION , 
THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
Oct 201O VTD 2010 
Youth Services 37,018 Youth Services 
Adult Services 61,616 Adult Services 

TOTAL 98,634 TOTAL 
Oct 2009 VTD 2009 
Youth Services 39,735 Youth Services 
Adult Services 68,035 Adult Services 

TOTAL 107,770 TOTAL 
% Change -8.48% % Change 

SELF CHECK 
THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
Oct 201O 65,703 VTD 2010 
Oct 2009 71,911 VTD 2009 

% Change -8.63% % Change 

~REGISTRATION 
ITHISMONTH YEAR TO DATE 

[New ~ 10ct 2010 . 354 VTD 2010 
10ct 2009 . 340 IYIU 2009 
1% 3% 1% Lhange 

. Business Cards 10ct 201O 3 IVTD 2010 
10ct 2009 4 IYTD 2009 
1% -25% 1% 

ITotal Card Ownership VTD 2010 
IVTD 2009 

1% 12010 

1% I 200~ 

. . 

[PXJRUN~ 
. ITHtsMoNfH I YEAR TO DATE 

10ct 201O 50,152 IVTD 2010 
•• 10ct 2009 45,471 IVTD 2009 

I~ 10% 1% Change . 

IMEETING Dnn", USE 
ITHIS MUNfH I YEAR TO DATE 

ITI1:JraiY medprog 34 1,520 IYTD 
IOutside rm"n< -:30 1 ,462 IVTD 

l'Il"''''dl 16 150 IVTD 
[TOTAL . 80 3,132 I JUTAl 

374,778 
652,181 

1,026,959 

377,514 
683,412 

1,060,926 
-3.20% 

692,086 
650,353 

6.42% 

3,316 
,1 0,1 

-18% 
31 
30 

. 3% 

33,030 
35,954 
57.8% 
63.0% 

487,72€ 
•• . 

#VALUE! 

15,6H 
1 ( ,112 

2,031 
27,757 



SPECIAL PROJECTS & SlATS: 

THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
Voter Registration Oct 2010 7 YTD 2010 33 

Oct 2009 1 YTD 2009 24 
% Change 600% % Change 38% 

on Website 

I 

I 

,-om pUler use Adult Services YEAR TO DATE 
Oct 2010 8,882 YTD2010 89,435 
Oct 2009 10,022 YTD2009 100,926 

% Change -11.37% % Change -11.39% 
Youth Services 
Oct 2010 1,280 YTD 2010 14,013 
Oct 2009 1,651 YTD 2009 17,256 

% Change -22.47% % Change -18.79% 

Average Online Reference Products 
Searches & Queries Oct 2010 16,131 YTD 2010 121,767 

Oct 2009 14,433 YTD 2009 133,288 
% Change ·8.64% 

patron counters were out January- May 2009 
These are based on the monthl in circulation rates. 



(., 
(., 
Co -"-'_-::o-&'! 

1501 Ellinwood Street (l' 

• 

• 

Chair: 
Present: 

D Progress Report 

Des Plaines, IL 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

B47-827-7974 fax 

D Response Requested by _____ _ 

o Board Action Required 10/19/2010 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting 

October 13, 2010 

Jeffery Rozovics. 
Jeffery ROZQvics, Dion Kendrick, Susan Moylan Krey, George Mager!, Myrtle 
Klebe, John Robinson, Steven Mokry, Jennifer Tsalapatanis, Carol Kidd, 
Holly Richards Sorensen, Roberta Johnson, Heather Imhoff, Susan Farid, 
Brenda Murphy, Madhu Krishnamurthy. 

Call to Order: 4:04 p.m. by Jeffery Rozovics 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to approve the agenda, as 
presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Jennifer Tsalapatanis arrived at 4:05 p.m. and left the meeting at 4:10p.m., due to a family 
emergency. 

The Committee discussed library expenses and revenue for the remainder of 2010 
according to the Cash Flow Summary prepared by library accountants Lauterbach and 
Amen. Finance Chair Rozovics reported that a late property tax payment from Cook 
County will result in the library not having funds to operate after the first week in 
December. The Committee discussed how much money the library would need to operate 
in December, until the property tax money is received, and it was decided that between 
$500,000 and $600,000 would be needed for library operations. The Committee 
suggested explaining to the Mayor and Alderman at the October 18 budget meeting, that 
the library would not need $1.5 million, but $600,000, until property tax receipts are 
received in late December. The review of the Intergovernmental Agreement by the City of 
Des Plaines is on the City of Des Plaines Council agenda for the November 1, 2010. 

The Committee discussed options for a late property tax payment. It was decided that if 
the Intergovernmental Agreement is not approved by the City Council, the library will 
close on December 5 and remain closed until property tax money is received, probably in 
late December. Director Sorensen explained that three local banks have been contacted 



• 

• 

• 

for rates for a bridge loan, so the library is ready to proceed with a request for a loan, if the 
City of Des Plaines approves the Intergovernmental Agreement. 

Director Sorensen was asked to prepare the following cash summary reports for 2010: 

Plan A - Prepare the cash flow summary for 2010 with receipt of $500,000 in property 
taxes in December 2010. The remainder of the property taxes will be included in the 2011 
cash flow summary. 
Plan B - Prepare the cash flow summary for 2010 with no property tax payments received 
in 2010 and all property tax received in January 2011. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Susan Moylan Krey, to recommend to the 
Board at the October 19, 2010, that the library be closed the month of December, 
beginning December 5, if the Intergovernmental Agreement cannot be funded by 
December 1, 2010. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Kendrick, Moylan Krey, Rozovics. NAYS: 
None. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to adjourn the meeting. 

The meeting adjourned at 5:43 p.m. 

Minutes prepared by Carol Kidd 



(;;l 
(;;l 
<0 ~;,--::;;

\ 1501 Ellinwood Street (;;l 

• 

• 

D Progress Report 

D Response Requested 

Des Plaines, IL 60016·4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

~ Board Action Required 11/16/10 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Management Committee Meeting 

November3, 2010 

Present: Myrtle Klebe, Eugene Fregetto, John Robinson, George Mager!, Holly 
Sorensen, Carol Kidd, Roberta Johnson. 

Call to Order: 5:02 p.m. by Myrtle Klebe. 

Roll call indicated the following committee members were present: Myrtle Klebe, 
John Robinson, Eugene Fregetto, George Mager!, Holly Richards Sorensen, Carol 
Kidd, Roberta Johnson . 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA. 

MOTION by Eugene Fregetto, seconded by John Robinson, to approve the agenda, 
as presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

LIBRARY POLICY REVIEW 

MOTION by Eugene Fregetto, seconded by John Robinson, to approve the changes 
to the Personnel PoliCY, Section D, D-5, as presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: 
None. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by John RiJbinson, seconded by Eugene Fregeeto, to approve changes to 
the Personnel Policy, Section D, D-8, as presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

The Committee discussed the board use of the Wiki and asked that a discussion for 
improvements to the Wiki be placed on the November agenda. 
MOTION by John Robinson, seconded by Eugene Fregetto, to adjourn the meeting . 

The meeting adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 
~D. www .. a.r.>pl.org / .. 

MI.r:ltJtei.~pj!red by Carol Kidd . 
." 



• 

• 

• 

FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY ROUNDTABLE 
October 26, 2010 

President Wally Meyer called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 

George Mager!, chairman of the Library Board of Trustees, explained that due to 
the lack of funds, the library would reduce their staff to 30 people and would 
reduce the hours open from 72 to 52. Some services would be discontinued during 
this period. 

The Intergovernmental Agreement will be addressed at the next City Council 
meeting. 

The membership gained 29 new members. The 2008 non-paying members were 
dropped from the Membership List. 

The Christmas Book Sale will be Saturday December 11 and it will be advertised. 
The Historical Society will have a table. Book sellers will be allowed to scan only 
in the sale room. 

The Friends approved funding for the following programs: 
Dawn of the Cold War; Fighting the Soviets in WWI 
Career and job Finders Service 
jewish Council 
job Seekers 
Career Counseling 



(Z) 

m 
<9 
'''> 

• 
©'J~" \y1 

NOV 1- 2010 

DES PLAINES 
PUBLIC LIBRARY 

October 28, 2010 

6421 N. Drake Avenue 
Lincolnwood, IL 60712 
847-679-4929 
Lapp35@aol.com 

Des Plaines Public Library 
---- ---I-50 I-Ellinwood-Street ---

Des Plaines, IL 60016 

• 

• 

RE: Comments 

I recently read the article "Artful anchor in downtown Des Plaines" in the Chicago 
Tribune and since I have been trying to discover (or rediscover) my own city and 
outlying areas - I decided to visit your library. What a beautiful building and the atrium 
~xhibit <'Sky Word" was really very special: It was just so much fun to walk through the 
library starting on the 4th floor and discovering the computer lab and reference services 
available, the readers' and youth services.and my own personal favorite - . Pablo 
Picasso's,quote - "All children are artists - the problem is how to remain an artist once 
we grow up." as well as the "Young Lincoln Learning" by 
Rebecchini. 

You have an amazing staff - I started on the 4th floor and I was looking down at the 
Tribune article - and one of your staff asked me immediately if there was anything that 
she could help me find. She explained how the magazines and newspapers (back issues) 
could be referenced in the library and how I could access them on line. The computers 
were well occupied and would be a valuable access -- especially in this economy. I got 
the same response on all the other floors. Because I have two grandsons (age 5 and 9) - I 
was especially interested in the Youth Services Department - the reading boat, Poet Tree, 
and SO-foot mural interpreting classic folktale elements. I understand they have classes 
that visit these areas from the public schools. 

You are such a valuable asset to your community. The Des Plaines Library is a must visit 
for my family. 

~s~:cer;~y,: .~. ". . ... .'.1. 
. . 

, ...: . . ... ~ 

. S~s~n Lapp. ,-.. .' . 

,". ,. ~ f", , -'~,! ; C]. ' .. 

.... 'v: 

'- . 
< • ; : ' 

./ 



• 

• 

Roberta Johnson, Assistant Director 
Des Plaines Public Library 
150 I Ellillwood Street 
Des Plaines, IL 60016 

10 November 20 I 0 

Dear Roberta, 

On behalf of JCRRT and The Des Plaines Police Department, I want to thank you for giving us 
space in tile library to host our event in honor of Choice Taylor. JCRRT needed to create a space 
for people to gather so that they could share their condolences with the family and talk to 
counselor, about their concerns. You immediately rose to the task of finding us a space in the 
building that Choice so loved. Knowing that Choice grew up in the library, it seemed only 
fitting that we would offer this event to the community in the space where Choice chose to spent 
his free time. Additionally, the library staff was extremely gracious and accommodating to us. 
The room was set up perfectly for our needs. On such short notice, you and the library personnel 
were able to give us what we needed in order to make this event a success. That is the spirit of 
community that Des Plaines embodies; people caring about people. 

There were many attendees who didn't know Choice or his family. They felt so saddened by his 
death that they wanted to write a note to the family expressing their thoughts. Children came and 
made pictures for him. Adults talked to us about traveling up an down Algonquin Road all the 
time, never imagining that same road would be the site of such tragedy. One gentleman told us 
that he didn't even live in Des Plaines, but he heard about how much Choice loved the library 
and because he, too, so enjoys his own library, he wanted to come and express his condolences to 
the family of his kindred spirit. All in all, we had about forty people of all different ages sitting 
at the art tables creating memories for Choice's family. 

Choice's brother and sister came to this event and were amazed that the community would create 
a whole event around their brother. His sister talked about how much Choice loved the library, 
how he loved to read. She looked at some of the artwork that was made just for her family and 
remarked that the family has met many nice, genuine people in the aftermath of Choice's death. 
Being in the space Choice considered to be his home away from home, watching strangers 
create artwork for her family, touched her deeply. 

Choice's untimely death has tugged on many people's hearts. The warm, welcoming, and 
inviting spaces of the library will hopefully beckon more and more people of all ages, just as it 
did for Choice. Thank you and all library employees for joining with us in our efforts to reach 
out to the community as we all cope with the loss of such a bright and jovial young man. 

Sincerely, 

• Vickie Poklop, Police Counselor 



• 
\ 

• 

• 



"' (P 
i (P 
" <0 ~"J ',n 

• 

• 

• 

Proposal of Insurance for: 

Premiums/Fees Comparison: 

Hartford Option - $1,000 Deductible 

i, Line of Coverag,e ____ -iII-_==°C!Pt~io~n=~~ I Option _ Carrier Premium carrier Name 
[1, (f0mmercial Pa~ge _-" $15, 185fartiOrd Underwri1ers. __ --l 
12, tlood - Ootion(l) I 3,865

1
NFIP 

p,-lrliandMarine -- I 1,501 I Hartford j' 
i4, Auto ___ ~ 3,8911 Hartford 
i5, WQ!~~.£I!!pens~tion 8,600i Hartford Insu~ Co, of IL --1 

~
' Umbrella Liability Included Hartford Casualty_==J 

7, Directors' & Officers' 1,888'Philadelp"'h"'ia=--__ =-.:::J 
R _ Volunteer Accid~ption 749 ~~artis --------1 

19, Total Premium $35,679 _____ ----1 

Hartford 0lltion - $5,000 Deductible 1'--' - ~----. -. -_. Option ----Clptlon-----I 

Line of COverag~e ____ _+~--ca=r:.:rI~er~Pre.!::::m::.:l:::u::.;m:.,..,.=~77_:;'_:'C;a=n7!fe~r~N;a:::m.;::e:"-'_-il 
1, Commercial Packag,~e _______ ._l_---------'$"'1~3"',0"'5"+'91 Hartford Underwriters I 
2 FI rl ° t' (11 3,!j6=5:NFIP ___ ,,_. ___ ,:I 
r-ln~OntMa~i~Oen---_--- 1 ""5",01!j.!.!H",artf=or,,,d "c-' __ "_ ,.,_. __ -_-J-

4, Auto 3,891 Hartford 

~
5, Workers' Comp"'e"'n~sa~t~io~n_____ ._1__ 8,600iHartfOrd Insurance Co, of IL 
6, ~_lJ,f!.1Qrell~, Liab!l!!v ~.___ _ __ lnC<lu~~ Hartford Casualty ___ .----l 
7, Directors' & Officers' I . 1 ,888, Philadeillhia I 
~ Volunteer Accident - Option ~artis, 
19, Total Premium I $33,~ _::oJ 

. Hartford Olltion - $1 0,000 .• D::!e~d:!:u:!'.ct!.'Cib~l:e:;:. __ ......... o-:o r---, ,-- Optlon~--Optlon------l 

I ______ ~.!.~ Cove'!ge' Carrlerpreml~:~_. '-do;-' .. Carrier Name ! r' Commercial Package $12,090 Hartford Underwrilers -I 
,2, F.loorl-,-Ootion(11 3,8651 NFIP .J 
3, Inland Marine 1 501 i Hartford -.-.J 
~, Auto ._ .. 3,8911 Hartford I 

15, Workers' GOmRensatlOn 8,GOO
I
,Hartford Insurancecil.OiiL"J 

16, Umbrella Liability__ Included Hartford Casualty ! 
17, Directors' & Officers' 1 ,~88:PhiladeIPhia - , J 
'8, Volunleer A~ident.:.QPtion ~&hartis . ___ . I 
tL Total Premium $32,584: l 
Note: Surplus Lines Taxes, if applicable, are included in the "Bindable Quote and Compensation" pages, These 

taxes are in addition to the above fees, 

• The premium indicated is an estimate provided by the market The actual premium and acceptance of the coverage 
requested will be determined by the market after a thorough review of the completed application, 

('I Flood coverage begins 30 days after payment received, 

Arthur], Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc, 

\llsa 1 \ajg\CLNTOOCS\04\AJGRMS~78998P3.doc , 0/2511 0 Rnal3 25 



" (D 
(~ 

~ (0 
.(1) 

• 

• 

• 

Proposal of [nsurance for: 

I 

Coverage Highlights/Summary of Terms & Conditions of 
Recommended Carrier Quotations 

Coverage: 

Carrier: 

Form Type: 

Effective: 

Package - Property 

Sentinel Insurance Co. (Hartford) 

Per Occurrence 

December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011 

Coverage limit Valuation Type Deductible PremiUm' 
Business Personal Property $13,115,833 Replacement Cost $1,000 $15,185 
Inland Marine $167,000 $1,000 $1,501 
Flood - American Bankers'" $500,000 Replacement Cost $10,000 $3,865 
Crime/Employee Dishonesty $25,000 $1,000 Included 
Crime/Depositors' Forqery $25,000 $1,000 Included 
Terrorism Policy Limit $1,000 Included 

• Premium lnchJdes TRIA premium. A portion of this additional premium can be removed with acceptance of Terrorism exclusion. 
.. Earthquake can be added for additional premium 

I The following I, • general summary of the Insuring Agreement. Actual policy form should be sought for complete terms and conditions. I 
Coverages include, but are not limited to: 
• Valuation Provision: Replacement Cost (subject to limitations and restrictions as set forth in the policy) applies 

to the types of covered property insured under this policy. 
• Coinsurance Provision: Coinsurance does not apply. 
• Equipment Breakdown coverage protects business equipment such as computers, communication systems, 

heating and air conditioning systems, and fire suppression equipment. It includes jurisdictional inspections 
conducted by Hart10rd Steam Boiler where required, at no charge to the insured. 

• Electronic vandalism which extends property protection to Include direct physical damage to computer 
equipment, media, data, and software caused by viruses, hackers, and other attacks. 

Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
• Exclusions will apply per The Hart1ord's standard policy form and endorsements and may be contained in the 

additional endorsements set forth below. 
• Mold Exclusion will apply. 

Premium Terms: 
• If canceled - short rate basis 

Conditions of the Quote, Coverages, or Binding: 
• Validation of Buildings and Building Personal Property insured at 100% to value. Receipt of building appraisal 

completed within the last five years. 
• Favorable Loss Control Inspection within 60 days. 
• Possible rate changes after 45 days 

(I) Flood cov~rage begins 30 days after payment is received. 

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 

\\lsa 1 \ajg\CLNTDOCS\04IA,JGRMS\27899BP3.doc , 012511 0 Anal3 10 



" 

• 

• 

• 

Proposal of Insur~ce for: 

Coverage Highlights/Summary of Terms & Conditions of 
Recommended Carrier Quotations 

Coverage: 

Carrier: 

Form Type: 

Effective: 

Package - Property - $5,000 Deductible 

Sentinel Insurance Co. (Hartford) 

Per Occurrence 

December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011 

Coverage Limit Valuation Type Deductible . Premium" 

Business Personal Property $13,115,833 Replacement Cost $5,000 $13,059 
Inland Marine $167,000 $1,000 $1,501 
Flood - American Bankers\" $500,000 Replacement Cost $10,000 $3,865 
Crime/Employee Dishonesty $25,000 $5,000 Included 
Crime/Depositors' Forgery $25,000 $5,000 Included 
Terrorism Policy Limit $5,000 Included 

* Premium includes TRIA premium. A portion of this additional premium can be removed with acceptance of Terrorism exclusion. 
.. Earthquake can be added for additional premium 

'The following Is a general summary of the Insuring Agreement. Actual policy form should be sought for complete terms and condilions.' 

Coverages include, but are not limited to: 
• Valuation Provision: Replacement Cost (subject to limitations and restrictions as set forth in the policy) applies 

to the types of covered property insured under this policy. 
• Coinsurance Provision: Coinsurance does not apply. 
• Equipment Breakdown coverage protects business equipment such as computers, communication systems, 

heating and air conditioning systems, and fire suppression equipment. It includes jurisdictional inspections 
conducted by Hart10rd Steam Boiler where required, at no charge to the insured. 

• Electronic vandalism which extends property protection to include direct physical damage to computer 
equipment, media, data, and software caused by viruses, hackers, and other attacks. 

Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
• Exclusions will apply per The Hart1ord's standard policy form and endorsements and may be contained in the 

additional endorsements set forth below. 
• Mold Exclusion will apply. 

Premium Terms: 
• If canceled - short rate basis 

Conditions of the Quote, Coverages, or Binding: 
• Validation of Buildings and Building Personal Property insured at 100% to value. Receipt of building appraisal 

completed within the last five years. 
• Favorable Loss Control Inspection within 60 days. 
• Possible rate changes after 45 days 

(\) Flood coverage begins 30 days aiter payment is received. 

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 

\\fsal\a,ig\CLNTOOCS\04\AJGRMS\278998P3.doc 10125110 Final3 11 



II 

Proposal of Insurance for: Des Piaim's Puhlic Lih?.; 

• Coverage Highlights/Summary of Terms & Conditions of 
Recommended Carrier Quotations 

• 

• 

Coverage: 

Carrier: 

Form Type; 

Effective: 

Package - Property - $10,000 Deductible 

Sentinel Insurance Co. (Hartford) 

Per Occurrence 

December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011 

Coverage Limit Valuation Type Deductible Premium' 
Business Personal Property $13,115,833 Replacement Cost $10,000 $12,090 
Inland Marine $167,000 $1,000 $1,501 
Flood - American Bankers'" $500,000 Replacement Cost $10,000 $3,865 
Crime/Employee Dishonesty $25,000 $10,000 Included 
Crime/Depositors' Forgery $25,000 $10,000 Included 
Terrorism Policy Limit $10,000 Included 

• Premium includes TRIA premium. A portion of this additional premium can be removed with acceptance of Terrorism exclusion. 
•• Earthquake can be added for additional premium 

I The following Is a general summary of Ihelnsurlng Agreement. Actual policy fono should be soughl for complele leno. and condition .. I 
Coverages include, but are not limited to: 
• Valuation Provision: Replacement Cost (subject to limitations and restrictions as set forth in the policy) applies 

to the types of covered property insured under this policy. 
• Coinsurance Provision: Coinsurance does not apply. 
• Equipment Breakdown coverage protects business equipment such as computers, communication systems, 

heating and air conditioning systems, and fire suppression equipment. It includes jurisdictional inspections 
conducted by Hartford Steam Boiler where required, at no charge to the insured. 

• Electronic vandalism which extends property protection to Include direct physical damage to computer 
equipment, media, data, and software caused by viruses, hackers, and other attacks. 

Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
• Exclusions will apply per The Hartford's standard policy form and endorsements and may be contained in the 

additional endorsements set forth below. 
• Mold Exclusion will apply. 

Premium Terms: 
• If canceled - short rate basis 

Conditions of the Quote, Coverages, or.Binding: 
• Validation of Buildings and Building Personal Property insured at 100% to value. Receipt of building appraisal 

completed within the last five years. 
• Favorable Loss Control Inspection within 60 days. 
• Possible rate changes after 45 days 

1'1 Flood coverage begins 30 days after payment is received. 

.. 
Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 

\\fsal\aJG\ClNTDQCS\04\AJGRMS\278998P3.dOC 10125/10 Anal3 12 



Proposal of Insurance for: 

• Coverage Highlights/Summary of Terms & Conditions of 
Recommended Carrier Quotations 

• 

• 

Coverage: 

Carrier: 

Directors' & Officers' Liability 

Philadelphia Insurance Co. 

Form Type: Claims-Made Inception - Retroactive Date 

Effective: January 1, 20t 1 to January 2012 

. Coverage Limit Aggregate 

Directors' & Officers' Liability $1,000,000 $1,000,000 
Employment Practices Liability $1,000,000 Included 

. Retention Premium 

$2.500 $1,888 

$5,000 Included 

1 The following Is a general summary of the Insuring Agreement. ktual policy form should be sought for complete terms and condltlon"l 

Coverages include, but are not limited to: 
• Combined Aggregate Limit- $1 ,000,000 

Statement of Defense Costs: 
• Defense Costs is in addition to and is not part of the limit of liability specified in Item 3 of the Declarations. 

. Payment by the underwriter of defense cost incurred on account of any claim shall not serve to reduce the limit of 
liability stated in Item 3 of the Declarations, but the underwriter is not obligated to pay any defense cost after the 
applicable limit of liability has been exhausted by payment of damages. 

Insuring Agreement: 
• Pay on Behalf 

Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
• Prior Knowledge Exclusion for Increased Limits 
• Professional Services Exclusion 

Endorsements include, but are not limited to: 
• Bell Endorsement 
• Crisis Management Enhancement Endorsement 
• Illinois Amendatory Endorsement 

Premium Terms: 
• Minimum Earned 

Conditions of the Quote, Coverages, or Binding: 
• Nothing required at this time 
• Quote valid for 30 days 

Options: 
• $2,000,000 Aggregate Limit for $2,782 
• $3,000,000 Aggregate Limit for $3,407 

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 

21 



(~ 

\ 
>~ 
C;) 
(~ Proposal of Insurance for: 

• 

• 

• 

Claims-Made - Claim Definition and Claim Reporting Provisions: 
• Claim means for the purposes of Parts 1, 2, 3, and 5: 

1. any written demand for monetary or non-monetary relief; or 
2. any judicial, civil, administrative, regulatory, or arbitration proceeding (including any appeal therefrom), which 

subjects and insured to a binding adjudication of liability for monetary or non-monetary relief for a wrongful 
act; or . 

3. any written request to toll or waive any statute of limitations applicable to any actual or potential suit or cause 
of action against an insured. 

However, claim shall not include a labor or grievance proceeding pursuant to a collective bargaining 
agreement. 

Extended Reporting Period Criteria: 
• Continuity date or specific date/limits applicable to the Claims-Made conditions: Inception 
VIII. Extension Period 

A. If the underwriter refuses to renew this Policy the following will apply: 
For no additional premium, the underwriter will provide a 60-day eX1ension of the coverage granted under 
Parts 1, 2, 3, and 5 of this policy for any claim first made against the insured during the 60 days after the non
renewal date, but only with respect to any wrongful act committed before such non-renewal date and 
otherwise covered by this policy (the "Automatic Extension"). This Automatic Extension shall not apply if the 
insured has purchased similar insurance from the underwriter or any other insurer covering such Claim. 
Upon expiration of the Automatic Extension, the parent organization shall have the right, upon payment of an 
additional 50%, 75%, 100% of this policy's annual premium to an extension of the coverage granted by this 
policy for any claim first made against the Insured during the twelve (12) months, twenty-four (24) months, or 
thirty-six (36) months, respectively, after the expiration of the Automatic Extension, but only with respect to 
wrongful acts committed before the non-renewal date and otherwise covered by this policy (the "EX1ension 
Period"); provided however, that the request for this Extension Period must be made to the underwriter in 
writing and payment of the additional premium must be made prior to the expiration of the Automatic 
Extension. In the event similar insurance is in force covering any claims first made during this Extension 
Period, coverage provided by this policy shall be excess over any such other insurance. 

B. If the parent organization cancels or does not renew this policy or the underwriter cancels for nonpayment of 
premium, the following will apply: 
The parent organization shall have the right, upon payment of an additional 50%, 75%, or 100% of this 
policy's annual premium, to an extension of the cover granted under Parts 1, 2, 3 and 5 of this policy for any 
claim first made against the Insured during the twelve (12) months, twenty-four (24) months, or thirty-six (36) 
months, respectively, after the date of such cancellation or non-renewal, but only with respect to any wrongful 
acts committed before the date of such cancellation or non-renewal and otherwise covered by this policy (the 
"Extension Period"); provided however, that the request for this Extension Period must be made to the 
underwriter in writing and payment of the additional premium must be made within 60 days following the date 
of such cancellation or non-renewal. In the event similar insurance is in force covering any claims first made 
during this Extension Period, coverage provided by this policy shall be excess over any such other insurance. 
II the underwriter cancels for the non-payment of premium, the parent organization may purchase the 
Extension Period only after any earned premium due to the underwriter is paid within 10 days after the date of 
cancellation or policy expiration, whichever comes first. 

C. All premium paid with respect to an Extension Period shall be deemed fully earned as of the first day of the 
Extension Period. For the purpose of this Section VIII, any change in premium or terms on renewal shall not 
constitute a refusal to renew. 

Arthur I. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 

\\Isal\ojg\CLNTD0CS\04IAJGRMS\27B9S8P3.doc 10~10 Ana13 22 



--foitS/201O • 2010 R. Staff PI," • . '-<t.-" 
11,53 i'~ T-~ 

"I.t! I-t! 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Plan #1: Skeleton Staffing / Essential Services Only 

Deliverables: 

Delivers Cash on Hand as of 12-31-10 of $254,851 
Reduces Staff from 100 to 30, leaving only staff essential to running library on minimum capacity 

Cuts Salaries & Benefits by $233,099 
Preserves the following essential services: check ou~ check in; reshelving; bookdrop; compuler access; internet and website access; one person at desk on 2, 3 and 4 all hours 
open; distribution of daily newspapers and magazines. 

Plan runs November 14 - December 25 (3 pay periods) 

Impacllo Library: 

Reduces hours from 72 a week to 52 a week: Monday 10- 6; Tues 12 - 8; Wed 10 - 6; Thurs 12-8; Fri 10 -6; Sat 9 - 5; Sun 1 - 5 

The following services will be discontinued from November 14 - December 25: interlibrary loans; holds; mobile library; usage of public meeting rooms; computer classes; 
processing of new materials; library and community programs; switchboard; homebound delivery; deposit collections placed in assisted-living centers; school visits; 
story times, book discussions. 

CASH FLOW SUMMARY 

,-' 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 
January 

Balai'lce Sheet 
Cash & Investments $ 1,546,613 $ 
Restricted cash donations 

REVENUE & EXPENSE FLOW SUMMARY 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 

Revenue (M-T-D) 
Property Taxes 
Other Revenue 

Expenses (M-T-D) 
Payroll & Benefits 
Cash disbursements 

lanutlrr 

130,787 
15,579 

146,366 

306,233 
161,?B8 
468,020 

February March April May June July AUKust September October November December 

1,117,818 $ 1,36°1131 $ 3,501,316 $ 3,169,784 $ 2,722,749 $ 2,255,426 $ 1,787,080 $ 1,312,679 $ 916,679 $ 697,745 $ 378,344 
123,493 123,493 123,493 
793,186 574,252 254,851 

February March April May June July AURusl September October November December 

739,239 2,641,784 51,612 194,449 1,411 22,000 
11 ,914 17,192 52,~ 14,206 20,593 12..141& 20/995 13,939 12,000 12,OQO 12,000 
11,914 756,341 2,694,176 65,696 20,593 206,866 20,995 15,350 12,000 34,000 12,000 

309,859 312,915 302,514 311,663 303,578 460,072 312,944 305,200 312,000 156,934 235,401 
249,6;-3 16~_ 153,~_ 177,04_1 __ 205,815 ___ 2Jl9"132 ___ 1_05,584 __ 96,124 96,000 96,000 96,000 
559,532 475,633 455,626 488,704 509,393 677,204 410,528 401,324 408,000 252,934 331,401 

DIFFERENCE (321,654) (547,618) 280,708 2,238,552 (422,006) (488,000) (470,338) (397,533) (385,974) (396,000) (218,934) (319,401) 



:, 
.. :J .. 

10/26/2010. 

Deliverables: 

Des Plaines _liC Library 
Plan #2: 25% Staff Paycut 

12:35 PM" tJ t 'tJ' • ~~~~ 

Delivers Cash on Hand as of 12-31-10 of $13,550 
Cuts SaJaries & Benefits by $169,000 
Preserves all essential services and hours 

Impacllo library: 

- Library 10 payback reduced wages wilhin 90 days of receiving lax receipts. 

the Year Ended December 31, 2010 
January February March April May June July AURUSI September October November 

loalance Sheet 
Cash & Investments $ 1,546,613 $ 1,117,818 $ 1,360,131 $ 3,581,316 $ 3,169,784 $ 2,722,749 $ 2,255,426 $ 1,787,080 $ 1,312,679 $ 916,679 $ 578,820 $ 137,043 
Restricted cash donations 

REVENUE & EXPENSE FLOW SUMMARY 

For the Year Ended December 31,2010 

January 

Revenue (M-T-D) 
Property Taxes 
Other Revenue 

Expenses (M-T-D) 
Payroll & Benefits 
Cash disbursements 

130,787 
15,579 

146,366 

306,233 
161,788 
4GB/020 

February March April May June July August September October November December 

739,239 2,641,784 51,612 194,449 1,411 22,000 
11,914 ___ 17,102 52,39"t_ 14,286 ___ 20,593 12,41~ 20,995 13,939 12,OQP__ lLQOO __ [2,000 
11,914 756,341 2,694,170 65,898 20,593 206,866 20,995 15,350 12,000 34,000 12,000 

309,059 
249,673 
559,532 

312,915 302,514 311,663 303,578 468,072 312,944. 305,200 312,000 275,859 357,777 
162,718 _J53,112_ 1llt9~1_ ~2!!L _209,13_2 __ 105,584 96,124 96,OQQ__ ~OO __ ~6,000 
475,633 455,626 466,704 509,393 677,204 418,528 401,324 408,000 371,859 453,777 

Difference (321,654) (547,618) 280,708 2,238,552 (422,806) (488,800) (470,338) (397,533) (385,974) (396,000) (337,859) (441,777) 



" (;:> 
~~~ 

" (D ,~ (..y 

• 

• 

• 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL LOAN AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF DES PLAINES, ILLINOIS 

AND THE DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

THIS LOAN AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is entered into this __ day of 
::-:-;---;--;-__ -,-' 2010, by and between the City of Des Plaines, Illinois (the "City"), an 
lllinois home rule municipal corporation, and the Des Plaines Public Library (the "Library"), an 
Illinois municipal library. 

WIT N E SSE T H: 

WHEREAS, the Library desires to borrow the sum of up to $1,500,000.00 (the "Loan 
Amount") from the Bank in order to fund certain expenditures for the Library's operating and 
other expenses; and 

WHEREAS, the Library has requested the City to assist the Library by securing and 
loaning the Loan Amount to the Library; and 

WHEREAS, the Library has agreed to repay the Loan Amount from those disbursements 
of real estate tax proceeds first received by the City on the Library's behalf from the Cook 
County Treasurer subsequent to the Library's receipt of the Loan Amount from the City, as set 
forth in Paragraph 4 below; and 

WHEREAS, the Library has also agreed to repay to the City all of the City's costs, 
expenses and fees incurred in securing the monies needed for loaning the Loan Amount to the 
Library; and 

WHEREAS, the Library anticipates that the Library will receive from the Cook County 
Treasurer in December 2010 and/or in January 2011 the aforementioned real estate tax proceeds; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City has the statutory authority, pursuant to Section 8-1-3.1 of the 
Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-1-3.1), to borrow money from any bank or other financial 
institution, provided such money is repaid within ten (10) years from the time it is borrowed; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Aldermen of the City have determined that borrowing such 
monies and loaning the Loan Amount to the Library in the manner set forth in this Agreement 
are proper public purposes as authorized by 65 ILCS 5/8-1-3.1 and will not negatively impact the 
City'S ability to operate or borrow additional funds in the future; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Library desire to enter into this Agreement in order to 
memorialize the terms and conditions of the loan by the City, the repayment obligations of the 
Library, and the Parties' respective duties and responsibilities concerning the same; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Library are authorized, under the intergovernmental 
cooperation powers set forth in Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution and in 

Library Loan Agretment 256S84_Clean I 



the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 22011 et seq.), to approve and enter into 
this Agreement; and • 

WHEREAS, the City and the Library find that this Agreement is necessary and in the 
best interests of the City and the Library, and that the Agreement serves the public health, safety, 
welfare and convenience by providing for the loan to the Library of the Loan Amount, and by 
further providing for payment by the Library to the City of all of the costs, expenses and fees 
incurred to the City in securing the monies needed for loaning the Loan Amount to the Library; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Aldermen of the City have reviewed and approved this 
Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation. Each of the "Whereas" paragraphs is incorporated by reference 
into Section I of this Agreement. 

2. Loan Amount. The City agrees to loan to Library the sum of up to but not to 
exceed $1,500,000.00. The Library will give not less than three (3) business days prior written· 
notice to the City to request disbursement of the Loan Amount. The Library intends to request 
the City to disburse the Loan Amount on or about December I, 2010. 

3. Interest. The outstanding principal amount of the Loan Amount shall bear 
interest from time to time from the later ofthe Library's receipt ofthe Loan Amount, or from the • 
most recent date for which interest has been paid or duly provided for, until the full principal 
amount of such Loan Amount is fully repaid or duly provided for, such interest (computed upon 
the basis of a 365 or 366 day year based on actual days elapsed) being payable on the "First 
Payment Date" or the "Final Payment Date," as applicable, as defined in Paragraph 4 below, at 
an annual interest rate equal to the actual rate obtained from the lending institution. 

4. Repayment Obligation of Library. The Library agrees to pay back the Loan 
Amount plus interest and any and all applicable fees and costs as follows: the Library shall 
repay the outstanding balance of the Loan Amount plus interest in a single lump-sum payment 
not later than ninety (90) days after the Library's actual receipt of the real estate tax proceeds 
that are anticipated to be received by the City on the Library's behalf from the Cook County 
Treasurer in December 2010, subsequent to the Library's receipt of the Loan Amount from the 
City (the "First Payment Date"). If the amount of such December 2010 real estate tax proceeds 
received by the Library from the Cook County Treasurer is inadequate to pay the outstanding 
balance of the Loan Amount plus interest in a single lump-sum payment, then the Library shall 
pay the outstanding balance of the Loan Amount plus interest in a single lump-sum payment not 
later than ninety (90) days after the Library's actual receipt of the real estate tax proceeds that are 
anticipated to be received by the Library from the Cook County Treasurer in March 2011 (the 
"Final Payment Date") ; and, in any event, the Library shall pay the outstanding balance of the 
Loan Amount plus interest on or before the Final Payment Date. The Library agrees to execute a 
Promissory Note, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney in the amount of the Loan. The 
Promissory Note shall not be negotiable. • 

Library Loan Agreement 256584_Clean 2 

, 
/ 



t, 

• 

• 

• 

'i 

5. Non-Payment by Library. In the event that the interest payment and/or the Loan 
Amount is not paid by the Library to the City in a timely manner as hereinabove provided, the 
Library agrees, upon written demand by the City, to make such payments from its Library 
Operating Fund, and further agrees to pay any penalties, fines, costs and fees of any kind, 
including but not limited to costs, fees, legal fees and expenses reasonably incurred by the City 
or imposed on the City by the lender or any other third party as a consequence of the Library's 
non· payment or late payment. In the event of a non-payment of an interest payment or the Loan 
Amount in a timely manner as hereinabove set forth, the Library further agrees that the City may 
deduct the amount of such non-payment or late payment from the. City'S general property tax 
levy for the Library, or any other available funds then being held by the City for the benefit of 
the Library. In a nonpayment situation, the Library agrees to waive all legal objections of any 
kind to any legal action brought by the City to compel payment of the delinquent payment. 

6. Annual Budget and Appropriation. Each year that there is an outstanding 
balance of the Loan Amount, the Library shall approve as part of its annual budget process the 
interest and principal payments on the Loan Amount to be paid to the City. 

7. Additional Provisions. 

A. Notice. Any notice, request, demand or other communication provided 
for by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly received upon: 

(i) actual receipt if personally delivered and the sender received 
written confirmation of personal delivery; 

(ii) receipt as indicated by the written or electronic verification of 
delivery when delivered by overnight courier; 

(iii) receipt as indicated by the electronic transmission confirmation 
when sent via telecopy, electronic or facsimile transmission; or 

(iv) three (3) calendar days after the sender deposits the notice with the 
U.S. Post Office when sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested. 

Notice shall be sent to the addresses set forth below, or to such other address as either 
Party may specify in writing. 

Library Loan Agreement 256584_ Clean 

To the CITY: 

City Manager 
1420 Miner Street 
Des Plaines, Illinois 60016 
(p) (847) 391-5300 
(f) (847) 391-5451 

3 



To the LIBRARY: 

Holly Richards-Sorensen 
Library Director 
Des Plaines Public Library 
1501 Ellinwood Street 
Des Plaines, Illinois 60016 

(p) (847) 827-5551 
(f)(847)_-__ 

B. Term. Unless tenninated by the Parties in writing as a consequence of a 
mutually agreed upon decision, this Agreement will remain in effect until the Loan Amount is 
paid in full. Notwithstanding any expiration or tennination of this Loan Agreement, the Library 
remains obligated to pay to the City the Loan Amount plus, interest andlor other costs due to the 
City under this Agreement. 

C. Termination; Breach. This Agreement may be tenninated upon written 
notice by mutual written agreement of the Parties, or by the Library in the event that it decides 
not to borrow any or any all of the Loan Amount. This Agreement may also be tenninated by 
either Party upon thirty (30) days' written notice if the other Party should fail substantially to 
perfonn in accordance with the tenns of this Agreement and then fails to cure such non
perfonnance within the thirty (30) day notice period. In the ·event of any breach of this 

• 

Agreement, the Library waives any claim it may have against the City with respect to litigation • 
costs and expenses incurred by the Library. Each Party shall be entitled to any and all remedies 
at law and in equity under this Agreement. 

D. Mutual Indemnification. To the fullest extent pennitted by law, the 
Library shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless the City and the City's past and 
present appointed and elected officials, directors, agents, officers, representatives, attorneys, 
volunteers, successors or predecessors, and the City's interest in any property, from and against 
any and all claims, obligations, liens, encumbrances, demands, liabilities, penalties, causes of 
action, and costs and expenses of any kind, including, without limitation, orders, damages, 
judgments, fines, forfeitures, amounts paid in settlement, and reasonable attorneys' fees and 
litigation costs relating to, arising out of or alleged to have occurred in whole or in part in 
connection with any matters covered by this Agreement or sought by or brought by persons or 
other third parties against the City relative to any matters covered by this Agreement. 

E. Waiver. As a material inducement for the City to enter into this 
Agreement, the Library waives any claims or causes of action of any kind, including but not 
limited to breach of contract or breach of warranty, that could be brought against the City and its 
representatives, officers, appointed and elected officials, Mayor and Aldennen, agents, attorneys, 
volunteers and employees (the "City Affiliates") for any acts conducted or perfonned by the City 
or the City Affiliates under this Agreemerit. Failure of any Party to this Agreement to insist upon 
the strict and prompt perfonnance of the tenns, covenants, agreements andlor conditions set forth 
herein, or any of them, by the other Party, shall not constitute or otherwise be construed as a 

Library Loall Agreement 2S6584_Clean 4 

• 

/ 



'/ 
" ~p " ~.,,, 

I (D 
\n 

• 

• 

• 

waiver or relinquishment of the Party'S right thereafter to enforce any such term, covenant, 
agreement and/or condition, but the same shall continue in full force and effect. 

F. Authority to Approve Agreement. The respective City and Library 
officers who have executed this Agreement warrant that they have been lawfully authorized by 
the governing Boards of the City and the Library to execute this Agreement on behalf of the City 
and the Library, respectively. The City and the Library shall, upon request, deliver to each other 
copies of any and all documents reasonably required to legally evidence the authority to so 
execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective Parties. 

G. Entire Agreement; Severance. Except for the Promissory Note specified 
in Paragraph 4 hereof and any Loan documents required to be executed, this Agreement contains 
the entire agreement and understanding by and between the Parties. No representations, 
promises, agreements or understandings, written or oral, not herein contained shall be of any 
force or effect. No change or modification hereof shall be valid or binding unless the same is in 
writing and signed by authorized representatives of each Party. If any provision of this 
Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or in the event such a court shall 

. determine that the City or Library does not have the power to perform any such provision, such 
provision shall be deemed to be excised herefrom and the invalidity thereof shall not affect any 
of the other provisions contained herein, and such judgment or decree shall relieve the City or 
Library from performance under such invalid provision of this Agreement. 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

Library Loan Agreement 256584_Clean 5 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Loan Agreement shall be effective as of the date and • 
year that the last signatory signs and dates the Agreement below. 

CITY OF DES PLAINES 

By: 
------~----------Mayor 

Date: _________________ , 2010 

ATTEST: 

By: ______ -=:---::-:: _____ __ 

City Clerk 

Date: _______________ , 2010 

Library Loan Agreement 256584_Clean 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

By: ______________________ ___ 

President of the Board of Library Trustees 

Date: ____________ , 2010 

ATTEST: 

By: ____ ---:-:--___ --,--_---:=--__ 
Secretary ofthe Board of Library Trustees 

• Date: __________ , 2010 

• 
6 

\ 

I , 



• 

• 

TO: 

FROM: 

'. esY'ca ... , 
r:y~ 

Library Board ofTrustees 

Holly Richards Sorensen, Library Director 

'\ 1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, Il 60016·4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

SUBJECT: Background on October Agenda Items 

DATE: October 15, 2010 

This is information to help you prepare for the discussion at our meeting on October 19. 

X. New Business 

A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $95,105.23. [Action Item) 

B. Review !Ind Approve Insurance Proposals for Library Property, General Liability, 
Automobile, Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability, Umbrella; 
Directors' & Officers' Liability, Volunteer Program - Arthur J. Gallagher Risk 
Management Services, Inc. - Lorayne Flodberg. [Action Item) 
On the Wiki is a Proposal of Insurance prepared by Lorayne Flodberg, Account 
Executive, Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services. Lorayne will attend the 
board meeting to answer your questions about the proposals and the insurance 
coverages needed for the library as of January 1, 2011, when the library will no 
longer be covered by the City of Des Plaines insurance policy. 

C. Approve Resolution Providing for the Execution of an Intergovernmental 
Agreement with the Library Insurance Management and Risk Control 
Combination (LlMRiCC). [Action Item) 
On the Wiki is the Resolution for the Intergovernmental Agreement with L1MRiCC. 
You will be asked to vote to approve the resolution. 

D. Approve Intergovernmental Agreement Providing for Risk Management and 
Authorizing Membership in the Library Insurance Management and Risk Control 
Combination (LlMRiCC). [Action Item) 

E. 

On the Wiki is the Intergovernmental Agreement for risk management and 
authorizing membership in L1MRiCC. You will be asked to vote to approve the 
agreement. 

Approval of Library Closings through January 2012. [Action Item] 
Attached is the schedule for the library closings from January 1, 2011 through 
January 1, 2012. . 

w~ 



(Z) ,,, 
(Z) 

'-,J 

• 

• 

• 

F. Finance Committee Report. [Action Item] 
The Finance Committee met on October 13 to discuss the 2010 Budget and the 
Intergovernmental Agreement. Vice President Moylan Krey will report on any 
action taken at the meeting. 

G. 2011 Budget. [Action Item] 
President Mager!, Treasurer Rozovics and I will attend the October 18 City Council 
meeting to present the 2011 library budget. President Mager! will give a report on 
the City Council's response to the library budget. 

2 



" 

m 
>~ 

m ~!,--::o-
\ 1501 Ellinwood Street 0) 

• 

• 

• 

NOTICE 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2010 

7:00 PM 

Conference Room - Second Floor 

Agenda: 

- Finance Committee Report 

Des Plaines, Il 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

The Des Plaines Public Library, in compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, requests 
that persons with disabilities who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in the meetings or have questions about the accessibility of the meetings or facilities 
contact the Library Director at 847-376-2801 to allow the Library to make reasonable 
accommodations . 

------/~ 
www.~ 



(;l , ... 
';l _\.."':---: ..... 
'P 

• 

• 

I. 

II. 

III. 

IV . 

V. 

VI. 

VII. 

VIII. 

Call to Order. 

Roll Call. 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting 
October 19, 2010 

7:00 PM 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Oath of Office. (Eugene Fregetto) 

Consideration of the Agenda. 

Public Comments and Questions. 

r\ 1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, IlW016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fa)( 

City Council Community Services Committee - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

Consent Agenda. [Action Item] 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting _ 

September 21, 2010. 
B. Acceptance of Financial Reports for September 2010. 

IX. Unfinished Business . 

w~ 



(~) 

>~ 

~..,. .. 
(:P 

r. 

• 

• 
IL 

X. 

XI. 

New Business. 
A. " Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $95,105.23. [Action 

Item] 
B. Review and Approve Insurance Proposals for Library Property, 

General Liability, Aut6mobile, Workers' Compensation and 
Employers' Liability, Umbrella, Directors' & Officers' Liability, 
Volunteer Program - Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, 
·Inc. - Lorayne Flodberg. [Action Item] 

C. Approve Resolution Providing for the Execution of an 
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Library Insurance 
Management and Risk Control Combination (LiMRiCC). [Action Item] 

D. Approve Intergovernmental Agreement Providing for Risk 
Management and Authorizing Membership in the Library Insurance 
Management and Risk Control Combination (LiMRiCC). [Action Item] 

E. Approval of Library Closings through January 2012. [Action Item] 
F. Finance Committee Report, October 13, 2010 - Susan Moylan Krey. 

[Action Item] 
1. 2010 Budget. 
2. Intergovernmental Agreement. 

G. 2011 Budget. [Action Item] 

Announcements. 
A. 2011 Do the Dewey Fundraiser . 
B. 2010 ILA Conference Report - George Mager!. 

XII. Correspondence. 

XIII. Adjournment. 

This meeting will be recorded for television broadcast. 

""_"f 

. -, ," 



• 

• 

• 

1\ 
Des Plaines -
Public ~ibrary ::::.. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting 

September 21, 2010 

, 501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, rl 600t 6-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

The regular meeting of the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees was held in the second 
floor conference room on Tuesday, September 21, 2010. Vice President Susan Moylan Krey 
called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Roll call indicated the following board members were present: Myrtle Klebe, Susan Moylan Krey, 
Steven Mokry, John Robinson, Jeffery Rozovics, Elaine Tejcek, Jennifer Tsalapatanis. 

Absent: Dion Kendrick, George Mager!. 

Also present: Holly Richards Sorensen, Carol Kidd, Heather Imhoff, Alderman Dan Wilson, 
Jennifer Delgado, Roberta Johnson, Cheryl Gladfelter, Stephanie Spetter, Susan Farid, Jo Bonell, 
Francine Gralak, Patricia Nelson, Linda Knorr, Ken Knorr, Josh Kurtz, Nora Paisley, Steve 
Vaughan .. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA. 

MOTION by Myrtle Klebe, seconded by Jeff Rozovics, to approve the agenda, as presented. 
VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 

Steve Vaughan, Des Plaines resident, stated that the Des Plaines Public Library .is a beautiful 
library and a crown jewel in the community. Mr. Vaughan said that people visiting the library 
consider it a family event. He also stated that compared to other libraries, the Des Plaines Public 
Library services more people. 

Elaine Tejcek asked new board members to introduce themselves and give the viewing audience 
some information on their background and how they plan to contribute to the board. New board 
members Susan Moylan Krey, John Robinson, Jennifer Tsalapatanis and Steve Mokry introduced 
themselves to the board. 

www.app!.org 

-\i 



• 

•• 

'. 
I 
,-'-

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

Alderman Wilson thanked the board for their hard work on the budget. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MOTION by John Robinson, seconded by Jeff Rozovics, to approve the Consent 
Agenda, as presented. VOTE: A YES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

LIBRARY DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

PERSONNEL 

New Employees for July/August 2010: Stephanie Spetter, Head of Youth Services, 08/16/10 

Resignations for July/August 2010: Sandra K. Norlin, Library Director, 08/31/10 

PATRON SERVICES 

Circulation is down 2% year to date. This can be attributed to the demise of NSLS and the 
reduction in van del ivery service. The donated money for the current reduced van del ivery 
service will run out October 1. The State Library has reported they have grant money that will be 
available to public libraries to continue van delivery service from October through the end of 
2010. A Task Force of North Suburban Library directors will meet with the State Library to 
discuss when and if this continued van delivery servic~ will happen. 

This year 2,203 children enrolled in our Green Days of Summer (Birth-6th grade) and 
Greenapalooza (7th_12th grade) Summer Reading Clubs 1,048 of those enrolled completed the 
program. The Adult Summer Reading Club had 863 readers enrolled. 

Weha~ a Librarian for a Day Guest of Honor this.rnonth at the LibrarY.1he library donated to. 
District 62 Foundation's Fundraiser event last winte·r the opportunity for a: student to come be . 
Librarian for a Day. The lucky winner was 4th grader Karissa Paulsen who spent time in all the 
areas of the library to experience firsthand what it's like to work at the library. 

The door count increased by 10% so far this year. 396,956 people have come through our doors 
since January, 52,150 in August alone. Our meeting rooms have been used by more than 22,000 
people to attend meetings and programs. Library staff have presented programs and offered 
service to 6,493 people outside of the building and out in the community. In August we had over 
45,000 virtual visits from patrons using computers'from external locations. 

NEW BUSINESS 



• 

• 

• 

APPROVE PAYMENT OF VENDOR CHECKS REPORT - $128,026.29. [Action Item) 

MOTION by "jeffery Rozovics, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to approve the payment of vendor 
checks in the amount of $128,026.29, as listed on the vendor checks report of August 2010 and 
authorize the Library Director to have transferred the amount required to the library's operating 
account. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Klebe, Moylan Krey, Mokry, Robinson, Rozovics, Tejcek, 
Tsalapatanis. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT. [Action Item) 

2011 BUDGET 

Jeff Rozovics reported that the Finance Committee met Oil August 23 and August 31, 2010. At the 
August 31 meeting, the Committee voted and approved the alternative budget 2.2, which was 
prepared by staff and included an Acting Assistant Director position for 2011. Jeff Rozovics stated 
that the library budget will reduce expenditures by $625,000 from 2010, increase the fund 
balance to $2,525,666, eliminate 10 positions, not provide staff salary increases for 2011, require 
all staff to take one furlough day in 2011 and increase employee's contributions for medical 
payments. 

Library Director Sorensen and Vice President Moylan Krey read a memo prepared by Trustee 
Kendrick regarding budgetary financial controls for 2011. Trustee Kendrick was unable to attend 

. the meeting. 

Steven Mokry asked if the library would reduce operating expenses for 2010 if property taxes are 
not received before library funds are depleted and Library Director Sorensen explained that the 
library has been cutting expenses and will continue to do so until the property tax revenue is 
received from Cook County. 

The board discussed the budget. 

MOTION ·by Elaine Tejcek,·seconded by Jeff Rozovics, to call for the question. ROLL CALL .. 
VOTE: AYES: Klebe, Moylan Krey, Mokry, Rozovics, Tejcek. NAYS: Robinson, Tsalapatanis. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

Jennifer Tsalapatanis asked for more discussion on the proposed 2011 budget. 

Steven Mokry asked to change his vote. 

MOTION by Steven Mokry, seconded by John Robinson, for Steven Mokry to leave the body to 
reconsider his vote. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Moylan Krey, Mokry, Robinson, Rozovics, Tejcek, 
Tsalapatanis. NAYS: Klebe. MOTION CARRIED. 

, 
Steven Mokry changed his vote to NAY for the vote to "Call for the question." 



• 

• 
", 

• 

MOTION by Committee, to approve the FY2011 budget (Alternative 2.2), as presented. ROLL 
CALL VOTE: AYES: Klebe, Moylan Krey, Mokry, Rozovics, Tejcek. NAYS: Robinson, 
Tsalapatanis. 

HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN FOR 2011 

Jeff Rozovics reported that the Finance Committee met and was provided information on three 
health insurance plans for library employees for 2011. Library Director Sorensen explained that 
the LlMRiCC plan was closest to the current plan, so employees could stay with Blue Cross/Blue 
Shield. Richards Sorensen reported that costs to library employees would increase in 2011 
budget. 

MOTION by Committee, to approve LlMRiCC as the library employee health insurance plan for 
2011. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Klebe, Moylan Krey, Mokry, Robinson, Rozovics, Tejcek, 
Tsalapatanis. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

Jeff Rozovics reported that the proposed Intergovernmental Agreement was discussed and 
approved by the Finance Committee at their August 31, 2010 meeting. The Committee voted to 
accept the Intergovernmental Agreement with the following changes: 
1) "Whereas the library desires to borrow up to but not to exceed the sum of $1,5000,000." 
2) The Library Board of Trustees will give three business days prior notice to the City of Des 

Plaines for request of the loan amount 
3) The Library Board of Trustees will request the loan by December 1, 2010. 

MOTION by Committee, to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement, as presented. ROLL CALL 
VOTE: AYES: Klebe, Moylan Krey, Mokry, Robinson, ROZQvics, Tejcek, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: 
None. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Jeff Rozovics, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to direct Library Director Sorensen to 
deliver the Intergovernmental Agreement to the City Manager and City Attorney for their review 
and to request that the review of the agreement by the City Council be added to the October 4, 
2010 City Council agenda. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT. [Action Item] 

POSTING FINANCIAL REPORTS ON LIBRARY WEBSITE 

Myrtle Klebe reported that the Management Committee met on September 1, 2010 to discuss 
posting library financial reports on the library website. The Committee recommends posting the 
audited financial reports and approved budgets on the library'S website. The Committee also was 
asked to approve the Reference Librarian II position with the addition of "May be responsible for 
development and coordination of teen programs and services." 



• MOTION by Committee, to post the audited financial reports and approved library budgets on 
the library website. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Klebe, Moylan Krey, Mokry, Robinson, ROlovics, 
Tejcek, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

• 

• 

JOB DESCRIPTION - APPROVE CHANGE TO REFERENCE LIBRARIAN II POSITION 

MOTION by Committee, to approve to approve the Reference Librarian II position with the 
addition of "May be responsible for development and coordination of teen programs and 
services." ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Klebe, Moylan Krey, Mokry, Robinson, ROlovics, Tejcek, 
Tsalapatanis. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

TRUSTEE TRAINING 

The board reviewed Serving Our Public 2.0 Standards for Illinois Public Libraries. This is a Per 
Capita Grant requirement. 

MOTION by Jeff ROlovics, second Elaine Tejcek, to allow public participation. All: Yes. NAYS: 
None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Doctor Josh Kurtz, Des plaines resident, asked if the library lends more books or borrows more 
books and Roberta Johnson, Head of Adult Services, answered that the Des Plaines Public Library 
is the largest lender in the North Suburban Library System. 

Nora Paisley, Des Plaines resident, stated that the library is a jewel in the community. 

Francine Gralak, Des Plaines resident and library employee, suggested that library reserve funds 
be built up over 5 - 10 years and to build the reserve in one year is unrealistic. 

APPROVE PER CAPITA GRANT APPLICATION [Action Item)', 

MOTION by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, seconded by John Robinson, to approve the Per Capita Grant 
application, as presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

AN NOU NCEMENTS 

Library Director Sorensen stated that the City Council will discuss the library budget on 
September 30,2010 at 7:00 p.m. and that she and President Mager! would present the library'S 
budget at that meeting. Jeff ROlovics will be out of town on September 30. 

Jennifer Tsalapatanis congratulated Holly Richards Sorensen on being appointed Library Director 
and on presiding at her first meeting as the director. 



• 

• 

• 

Jennifer Tsalapatanis asked Elaine Tejcek and Myrtle Klebe why they voted on the succession 
plan in 2008 and why they' voted not to disclose this information to the public at the time of the 
vote. Elaine Tejcek stated that this information is in the meeting minutes and Myrtle Klebe stated 
that she voted to have a replacement in place for the director position. 

John Robinson asked if library employees in attendance at the meeting were attending on their 
own time or if they were being paid to attend the meetin"g. Director Sorensen stated that 
employees were not being paid to attend the meeting. 

Vice President Moylan Krey read two letters written to the trustees from Des Plaines residents 
asking that library services not be cut and that the budget not be reduced. 

Pat Nelson, Des Plaines resident and library employee, asked what the process was to becoming 
a library trustee. Steven Mokry responded that candidates can send a letter to the Mayor and John 
Robinson responded that candidates should send their resume to the Mayor. 

MOTION by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by Myrtle Klebe, to close public comments. VOTE: AYES: 
All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Steve Mokry, seconded by Jeff Rozovics, to adjourn the regular meeting. VOTE: 
AYES: AII."NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:05 p.m . 

Minutes prepared Carol Kidd . 



CD 

:: Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 27W457 Warrenville Road, Warrenville. IL 60555·3902 
/ /r----------------~----~-----

• 
Certified Public A~countants 

October 12,2010 

Members oftbe Board of Trustees 
Des Plaines Public Library 
Des Plaines, IL 60016 

(847) 562-9252 

We have compiled tbe accompanying balance sheet of the Des Plaines Public Library as of September 
30, 2010 and tbe related statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the one 
month and tbe nine montbs then ended in accordance witb Statements on Standards for Accounting and 
Review Services issued by tbe American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

, A compilation is limited to presenting in tbe form of financial statements, information that is the 
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements 
and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any otber form of assurance on tbem. 

Management has elected to omit substantially aU of tbe disclosures required by generaUy accepted 
accounting principles. If tbe omitted disclosures, were included in the financial statements, tbey might 
influence'tbe user's conclusions about tbe Library's assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and expenses . 

• 
Accordingly" th~se financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed about such. 
matters. - . 

RespectfuUy Submitted, 

LAUTERBACH ,& AMEN, LLP 

• 



• 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 

Treasurer's Report as of September 30, 2010 

Institution 

201-1101000 - Petty Cash 

201-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 
202-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 

201-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 
202-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 
707-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 

201-1102009 - Cash Payroll #8100292278 

201-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 
202-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

201-1102028 - Cash Library Donations 

201-1102073 - Cash IL - Epay #151600222104 

201-1102076 - IL Funds - Library # 151600221288 
202-1102076 - IL Funds - Library 

201-1102078 - Cash IL - Epay Library 

201-1102079 - IL Funds -151600222591 

201-1104006 - Investments - Certificates of Deposit 

Total Invested 

Invested 

500.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

1,959.67 
0.00 
0.00 

1,959.67 

1,934.78 
1,934.78 

157,715.38 
(70,146. 77) 
87,568.61 

21,238.77 
21,238.77 

8,600.53 

104,328.11 
223,386.09 
327,714.20 

11 ,201.87 

749,707.01 

102,253.83 

1,312,679.27 



~~ October 12, 2010 

<'" 
Des Plaines Public Library 

Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2010 

• 
____ ,Llbrary Fundl ___ -

1101000 • Petty Cash 

1102008· Cash Deposit #1944650243 

1102009 • Cash Payroll #8100292278 

1102015· First Midwest Operatin9 #8100292260 

1102028 • Cash Library Donations 

1102073· Cash IL - Epay 151600008073 

1102076 -IL Funds - Library 

1102078 - Cash IL - Epay Library 

1102079 - IL Funds-

1104006 - Investments - Certificates of Deposit 

1118000 - Receivable - Property Taxes 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2401000 - Accounts Payable 
2401001 - Audit Accounts Payable 

•

2401002 - Payroll liabilities 
2401010 - Federal W/H Payable 

2401020 - F.lC.A. W/H Payable 
2401030 - State W/H Payable 
2410020 - Escrow Oeposits . 

2430010 - Due To.- Corporate General 
2430080 - Due To - Employee Retirement Trust 
2430099 - Due To Other Funds 

2430707 - Due to Library Comp Abs 
2450030 - Accrued Liability - Comp Absence 
2450035 - Accrued ST -L T Comp Absence 

2450040 - Accrued Payroll 
2450070 - Accrued FICA Withholding 
2450080 - Accrued IMRF Pension 
2450082 - RHS IMRF 
2470000 - Deferred Revenue - Propsrty Tax 

2470100 -library Deferred Revenue 
2471000 - Deferred Revenue - Other 
2490010 - Compensated Absences Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000· Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Exper1Ses 

• 

Beginning 

Balance 

500.00 

1.959.67 

(2.256.00) 

146,534.33 

21,235.28 

6,163.55 

102,869.24 

10,737.48 

1,222,031.36 

102,167.58 

6,599,703.00 

8211.645.49 

126,603.26 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
206,336.33 

0.00 

0.00 
25,438.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
6,442,163.00 

8,058.00 
0.00 
0.00 

6808598.59 

1.484,291.17 

8,292,889.76 

M.T.D. 
Changes 

0.00 

0.00 

4.190.78 

11,181.05 

3.49 

2,436.98 

1,458.87 

464.39 

(472,324.35) 

86.25 

0.00 

(452,502.54) 

(32,414.94) 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

(34,113.89) 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

(66528.83) 

0.00 

Ending 

Balance 

500.00 

1.959.67 

1,934.78 

157,715.38 

21,238.77 

8,600.53 

104,328.11 

11,201.87 

749,707.01 

102,253.83 

6,599,703.00 

7,759,142.95 

94,188.32 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

172,222.44 

0.00 
0.00 

25,438.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
6,442,163.00 

8,058.00 
0.00 
0.00 

6,742,069.76 

1.464,291.17 

(66,528.83) =~8,",22~6:.,3~6:::.0.~93~ 

(81 ,244.27) ==,l;(3~8~5",9~7~3.,:,7,!,,/1) ==,!;(4~6,:,7,~2,:;17 ... 9g:8~) 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
1 



(:;') 
,:. October t2, 2010 

~.,) 

(?) 
Des Plaines Public Library 

Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2010 

• ____ caPital Projects Fund, ___ _ 

1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

1102076 -IL Funds - Library 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2401000 - Accounts Payable 
2401001 - Audit Accounts Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - UnreselVed 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

Compensated Absences Fund , 

Lm 
1120201 - Due From Library 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2450035 - Accrued ST -L T Comp Absence 
2490010 - Compensated Absences Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

• 

(48,248.24) (21,898.53) (70,146.77) 

__ ...!2=2~3,3~8~6~.09~ __ --:-:-:-::-'O",.O~O __ ~22o:!3~,38~6~.0~9 
175,137.85 121,898.53) __ ...l1",53"".2 .. 3",9.",32~ 

21,898.53 
16.531.10 
38.429.63 

206,851.74 

245,281.37 

(21,898.53) 0.00 
0.00 16,531.10 

(21 .898.53) __ -L!16!.;,52:l3Cl1.~10i!-

0.00 206.851.74 

(21 ,898.53) ==~2~2,;;3~,3~82~.8~4;. 

(70,143.52) ====~O.~OO~ ==d(7~0~,1:;4g;3.,g;52~) 

206,336.00 
206.336.00 

124,380.00 
81,956.00 

206,336.00 

'0.00 

206,336.00 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
2 

0.00 

[34,1B:89) 
(34.113.89) 

0.00 
(34,113.89) 
(34,113.89) 

0.00 

[34,113.89) 

0.00 

172,222.11 
172,222.11 

124,380.00 
47,842.11 

'172.222.11 

0.00 

172,222.11 

0.00 



(;:) October 12, 2010 ,.,. 
~ .. ) ,.,. Des Plaines Public Library 

Balance Sheet as of September 30,2010 

M.T.D. • Beginning 

Balance Changes 

____ Fixed Assets Fund, ___ _ 

1203000 - Fixed Assets - Improvements 

1204201- Fll<ed Assets - Ubrat'j Equi9ment 

1204300 - Fixed Assets - Vehicles' 

1209900· Fixed Assets· Accumulated Depreciation 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

235,874.00 0.00 

869,440.00 0.00 

161,448.00 0.00 

(372,709.00) 0.00 

894053.00 0.00 

Ending 

Balance 

235,874.00 

869,440.00 

161,448.00 

!372,709.001 

894,053.00 

____ -'0"'.0""-0 ____ ..!!O"'.O,,-O ____ -"0"'.0"-0 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Net Capital Assets 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

• 

• 

894,053.00 
894,053.00 

894,053.00 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
3 

0.00 

'. 

0.00 894,053.00 
0.00 894.053.00 

0.00 894,053.00 

0.00 0.00' 

• I 



(~6 
,~ ctobor 12,2010 

',) Des Plaines Public Library 
,,) 

Revenue Report as of September 3D, 2010 

Received Received Budgeted Uncollected Percentage • this Month this Vear Receipts Receipts Collected 

Library Fund 

Taxes 

4810019 • Property Taxes 2002 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810020 • Property Taxes 2003 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810021 • Property Taxes 2004 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810022 • Property Taxes 2005 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810023 • Property Taxes 2006 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810024 • Property Taxes 2007 0.00 (61,671.93) '0.00 61,671.93 0.00 
4810025 • Property Taxes 2008 0.00 271,310.84 50,000.00 (221,310.84) 542.62 
4810026 • Property Taxes 2009 1,410.90 3,549,643.05 6,309,802.00 2,760,158.95 56.26 

1,410.90 3,759,281.96 6,359,802.00 2,600,520.04 59.11 

Intergovernmental 

. 4810800 - Personal Property Replacement Tax 0.00 23,247.00 92,988.00 69,741.00 25.00 
4822040 • State Grant· Per Capita 0.00 0.00 57,700.00 57,700.00 0.00' 

4822095 • State Grant· Library 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 23,247.00 150,688.00 127,441.00 15.43 

Fines & Fees 

.50101. Library Fees 329.00 3,454.38 0.00 (3,454.38) 0.00 
4850102 • Library Fines 6.421.06 83,543.61 125,000.00 41,456.39 66.83 
4850103 - Library Fines I Credit Card 2,940.53 14,062.15 0.00 (14,062.15) 0.00 
4850201 • Copying Fee 1,614.45 20,665.40 30,000.00 9,334.60 68.88 
4850202 - Damaged Materials 53.12 463.81 0.00 (463.81 ) 0.00 
4850203 • Lost Materials 857.74 5,658.46 0.00 (5,658.46) 0.00 
4850205 • Bags 59.99 659.99 0.00 (659.99) 0.00 
4850207 - Non-Res Cards 72.50 1,286.00 0.00 (1,286.00) 0.00 

12,348.39 . 129,793.80 155,000.00 25,206.20 83.74 

Special Programs & Events 

4850215 - Special Programs & Events 0.00 664.93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 
0.00 664.93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 

Other Revenue 

4890010- Interest Income 294.20 3,597.40 5,000.00 1,402.60 71.95 

4890050 - Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 

4899900 - Miscellaneous Revenue 1,296.69 16,273.23 17,500.00 1,226.77 92.99 

4899920 • Library Donations 0.00 5,639.59 10,000.00 4,360.41 56.40 
1,590.89 25,510.22 33,500.00 7,989.78 76.15 

Total Library Fund 15,350.18 3,938,497.91 6,703,990.00 2,765,492.09 58.75 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 



(;October 12, 2010 
>-
I'-.. ) 
(,~) 

• 
Capital Projects Fund 

Other Revenue 

4890010 - Interest Income 

Total Capital ProJects Fund 

Total of All Funds 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 

Revenue Report as of September 30, 2010 

Received Received 

this Month this Ve.r 

0.00 3.25 

0.00 3.25 

0.00 3.25 

15.350.18 3,938.501.16 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 

2 

Budgeted 

Receipts 

5,000.00 

5,000.00 

305,000.00 

7,008,990.00 

Uncollected Percentage 

Receipts Collected 

4.996.75 0.07 

4,996.75 0.07 

304,996.75 0.00 

3,070,488.84 56.19 



mOctober 12, 2010 , ... 
Des Plaines Public Library t,) 

-" Expense Report as of September 30, 2010 

• M.T.D. Y.T.D Budgeted Budgeted Pre!. 

Expended Expended Amount Remain; Expend. 

Library Fund 

Salaries 
5910100 - Salaries 207,780.61 1,727,950.71 2,318,022.00 590,071.29 74.54 
5910200 - Temporary Wages 0.00 284,401.81 789,113.00 504,711.19 36.04 
5910400 - Non - Supervisory Overtime 0.00 246.57 0.00 (246.57) 0.00 
5910500 - Vacation Pay 9,630.28 90,448.23 0.00 (90,448.23) 0.00 
5910600 - Sick Pay 3,416.75 35,771.78 0.00 (35,771.78) 0.00 
5910700 - Holiday Pay 3,302.79 36,723.80 0.00 (36,723.80) 0.00 
5910900 - AcUOut of Class/Premium 0.00 2,692.30 0.00 (2,692.30) 0.00 
5910950 - Excess Sic.~Hours Pay Out 0.00 2,898.73 3,500.00 601.27 82.82 
5910970 - Compensated Absences 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

224,130.43 2.181.133.93· 3,110,635.00 929,501.07 70.12 

Benefits 
5918010 - Unemployment Compensation 384.69 6,803.53 4,986.00 (1,817.53) 136.45 
5918020 - Employer Contribution - FICA 16,798.94 163,395.44 237,314.00 73,918.56 68.85 
5918021 - Employer Contribution -IMRF '25,801.96 214,068.40 .297,814.00 83,745.60 71.88 
5918030 - EAP Program 0.00 0.00 682.00 682.00 0.00 
5918040 - Life Insurance Premj~ms 0.00 2,607.80 6,576.00 3,968.20 39.66 
5918050 - PPO tnsurance Premiums 26,701.62 251,523.91 389,041.00 137,517.09 84.65 
5918051 ~ HMO Insurance Premiums 8,184.26 77,300.13 111,979.00 34,678.87 69.03 
5918055 - Dental Insurance Premiums 2,175.14 20,947.18 31,505.00 10,557.82 66.49 
5918070 - Workers Compensation 1,043.07 9,983.20 9,500.00 (483.20) 105.09 

.18085 - RHS Plan Payout 0.00 5214.26 10,000.00 52.14 
81 96968 751 84385 1 099397 DO 3 6839 

Contractual Services 
5920100 - Legal Fees 2,846.50 4,860.39 15,000.00 10,139.61 32.40 
5920105 - Costs of Liti9ation 154.11 154,11 3,500.00 3,345.89 4.40 
5920110 - Professional Services 27,771.88 247,812.22 405,000.00 157,187.78 61.19 
5920120 - Communication Services 1,021.66 24,241.97 28,460.00 4,218.03 85.18 
5920140 - Data Processing Services 17,529.35 62,558.96 100,800.00 38,241.04 62.06 
5920202 - Conferences 870.00 1,546.30 0.00 (1,546.30) 0.00 
5920204 - Training 0.00 1,447.00 2,600.00 1,153.00 55.65 
5920205· Tuition Reimbursements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920206 - Seminars 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920210 - In Service Training 158.25 3,366.56 0.00 (3,366.56) 0.00 
5920220 - Membership Dues 110.00 3,124.00 6,500.00 3,376.00 48.06 
5920225 - LicensingfTitJes 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 
5920230 • Publication of Notices 0.00 971.20 1,000.00 . 28.80 97.12 
5920850 - Subsidy - 1994 E.R.P Trans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920900 - Property/Liability Contributions 0.00 12,434.50 24,869.00 12,434.50 50.00 
5930010 - R&M Equipment 4,010.00 86,160.02 110,062.00 23,901.98 78.28 
5930020 - R&M Buildin9s & Structures 4,281.01 70,572.41 116,235.00 45,662.59 60.72 
5930030 - R&M Vehicles 0.00 4,449.12 14,300.00 9,850.88 31.11 
5930195 - Book Binding & Repair 0.00 215.10 1,000.00 784.90 21.51 
5930210 - Rental of Equipment 0.00 1,312.00 26,500.00 25,188.00 4.95 
5930320 - Cleaning/Custodial Services 11,763.00 94,420.00 96,700.00 2,280.00 97.84 
5930490 • Refuse Contract 470.44 5,210.34 5;500.00 289.66 94.73 
5960040 - Employee Physicals 0.00 . 0.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 
5960065 - Bank Fees 41.83 506.57 0.00 (506.57) 0.00 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 
1 



'. 

<DOclober 12, 2010 
>~ ,,' 
<n 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Expense Report as of September 30, 2010 

• 
5960070 - Travel Expense 
5960210· Special Event Programming 
5960990 - Misc. Contractual Services 

Commodities 
5970100 - Office Supplies 
5970110 - Meals 
5970115 - Supplies - DepUOther 
5970170 - Janitorial 
5970260 - Postage & Parcel 
5970270 • Prinitng -Reproduction-Binding 
5970330 - Supplies - Vehicles RIM 
5970500 - Purchase of Water 
5970600 - Books 
5970610 - Audio Materials 
5970620 - Subscriptions & Books 
5970630 - Visual Materials 
5970640 - Automated Reference Materials 
5970810 - Natural Gas 
5970820 - Electricity 
5970840 - Diesel 
5970850 - Gasoline 

.70900 - Equipment < $5,000 

Capital Expenditures 
5980300 - Improvements 
5980400 - Equipment 
5980410 - Computer Hardware 
5980420 - Computer Software 
5980600 - Furniture & Fixtures 

Other Funding Activities 
5990935 - Trans.to DIS - 2002A Bond 
5990940 - Trans to Library Capital Proj. Fund 
5990955 - Trans to DIS - 20038 Bond 
5993000 - Contingency Reserve 

Total Library Fund EXp':en.dltures 

• 

M.T.D. V.T.D Budgeted Budgeted Prc!. 

Expended Expended Amount Remain. Expend. 

0.00 551.93 500.00 (51.93) 110.39 
509.98 19,080.84 31,000.00 11,919.16 61.55 

2,607.88 66379.02 99,375.00 32,995.98 66.80 
73,945.89 711,374.56 1,089,251.00 377,876.44 65.31 

2,607.47 73,293.42 116,300.00 43,006.58 63.02 
36.63 855.97 2,800.00 1.944.03 30.57 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

800.90 15,388.99 20,600.00 5,211.01 74.70 
673.85 13,972.98 13,300.00 (672.98) 105.06 

0.00 1,271.50 5,000.00 3,728.50 25.43 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 3,112.33 8,000.00 4,887.67 38.90 

7,014.23 308,984.09 489,800.00 180,835.91 63.08 
900.38 45,687.24 84,600.00 38,912.76 54.00 
917.00 21,470.37 78,800.00 57,329.63 27.25 

3,412.54 75,881.48 96,250.00 20,368.52 78.84 
0.00 97,866.42 141,000.00 . 43,133.58 69.41 
0.00 21,535.98 30,000.00 8,464.02 71.79 
0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 

324.07 1,518.28 4,000.00 2,481.72 37.96 
107.16 349.52 2,000.00 1,650.48 17.48 

0.00 2,688.87 5,500.00 2,811.13 48.89 
16,794.23 683,857.44 1 ,098.450.00 414,592.56 62.26 

0.00 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 0.00 
898.00 42,488.54 33,000.00 (9,488.54) 128.75 

0.00 1,092.69 6,750.00 5,657.31 16.19 
3,388.61 19,869.32 32,000.00 12,130.68 62.09 
1,097.05 7,905.81 20,500.00 12,594.19 38.56 
5,383.66 71,356.36 100,250.00 28,893.64 71.18 

0.00 .6,149.75 24,598.00 18,448.25 25.00 
0.00 0.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 75,000.00 75000.00 0.00 
0.00 6,149.75 399,598.00 393,448.25 1.54 . 

401,323.89 4,405,715.89 6,897,581.00 2,491,865.11 63.87 

See Accou'ntants' Compilation Report 
·2 

, 



(!)October 12, 2010 
jo..,o. 

Des Plaines Public Library ~ .. ) 
(Y) Expense Report as of September 30, 2010 

• 
Capital Projects Fund 

Contractual Services 
5920110 ~ Professional Services 

Capital ~xpendltures 
5980300 ~ Improvements 
5980400 - Equipment 
598041 0 ~ Computer Hardware 

Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures 

Total of All Funds 

• 

• 

M.T.D. V.T.D 

Expended. Expended 

0.00 O.og 
OOQ 000 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 38,047.28 
0.00 32,099.49 
000 ZQ 146 Z7 

0.00 70,146.77 

401,323.89 4,475,862.66 

See Accountants', Compilation Report 
3 

Budgeted 

Amount 

15 000.00 
15000 DO 

92,000.00 
24,000.00 
76,100.00 

1921000Q 

207,100.00 

7,104,681.00 

Budgeted Pre!. 

Remain. Expend. 

15 000.00 0.00 
15QQQOQ 000 

92,000.00 0.00 
(14,047.28) 158.53 
44000.51 42.18 

12195323 3652 

136,953.23 33.87 

2,628,818.34 63.00 



(.) First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB ,.,. 
',) September 2010 Check Register Page 1 
'-,.I 

Check Number Cbeck Date Pa:ree Amount 

• Checks 
10603 10/1911 0 MARSHALL CAVENDISH CORPORATION -104.75 
10631 10/19/10 ACE DES PLAINES INCORPORATED 109.78 
10632 10/19/10 ASI SIGNAGE INNOVATIONS 1,017.05 
10633 10/19/10 AUTOMATED LOGIC 2,441.25 
10634 10/19110 BAKER & TAYLOR 6,919.81 
10635 10/19/10 BANC OF AMERICA LEASING 4,010.00 
10636 10119/10 BANKCARD SERVICES 2,877.54 
10637 10/19/10 BISHOP PLUMBING, INC. 684.85 
10638 10/19/10 CD W GOVERNMENT INCORPORATED 280.00 
10639 10/19110 CHICAGO TRIBUNE 598.00 
10640 10119110 CITY OF DES PLAINES 431.23 
10641 10119/10 COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC 10,788.00 
10642 10119/10 COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 17,529.35 
10643 10/19/10 CYBOR FIRE PROTECTION CO. 300.00 
10644 10/19/10 DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP 395.05 
10645 10/19/10 ELK GROVE HIGH SCHOOL 45.00 
10646 10/19/10 EV ANCED SOLUTIONS, INC. 680.00 
10647 10/19/10 FIRST MIDWEST BANK 504 20.00 
10648 10/19/10 GALE 213.82 
10649 10/19/10 GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUTS 17.Q4 
10650 10/19/10 GRAINGER 197.76 
10651 10119/10 HARRIS INFOSOURCE 208.00 
10652 10119/10 INTERACT BUSINESS PRODUCTS 898.00 
10653 10119/10 INTERIOR TROPICAL GARDENS INC 170.00 
10654 10119/10 KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LTD. 2,168.11 
10655 . 10/1911 0 LACON! ADMINISTRATORS SECTION 155.00 
10656 10/19/10 LAPORTINC. 398.70 
10657 10119110 LAW OFFICES OF ANCEL, GLINK 632.50 • 10658 10/19110 MENARDS 94.66 
10659 10/19/10 MIDWEST TAPE 4,017.22 
10660 10/19/10 OFFICE DEPOT 1,313.20 
10661 10/19/10 OUTSOURCESOLUTIONSGROUP' 27,872.34 
10662 10/19110 PCNATION 2,428.61 
10663 10/19/10 PITNEY BOWES 164.00 
10664 10/19110 PITNEY BOWES 500.00 
10665 10119/10 PROGRAM ONE PROF BUILDING SERVICES 735.00 
10666 10/19/10 R & J UPHOLSTERY 640.00 
10667 1011911 0 RANDOM HOUSE INCORPORATED 623.75 
10668 10/19/10 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 33.00 
10669 10/19110 REDHA WK SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC. 72.00 
10670 10/19/10 SPEED-E-KLEEN 240.00. 
10671 10/19/10 SUZANNE L. EPSTEIN 500.00 
10672 10/19/10 TEEN INK 189.00 
10673 10/19/10 UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 45.33 
10674 10/19/10 WAREHOUSE DIRECT 63.93 
10675 10/19/10 WASTE MANAGEMENT 341.15 
10676 10119110 WASTE MANAGEMENT 129.29 
50089 09/30/10 McLEOD USA 298.76 
50090 09/30/10 VERIZON WIRELESS i26.89 
50091 09/30/10 LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS, LLC. 478.44 
50092 09/30/10 SPRINT 18.96 
50093 09/30/10 . SPRINT ~ 16.12 
50094 09/30/10 WOW! INTERENTCABLE 82.49 

Total checks 53 Total 95,105.23 

• 



(" First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB ,+ 
September 2010 Vendor Checks Report 

'" Page 1 
C~) 

Vendor Name Chk.No. CbeckDate Amount 

• LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS, LLC. 50091 09/30/10 478.44 
Account No. Description Amount 

.201·5920120 ACH 478.44 

McLEOD USA 50089 09/30110 298.76 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 298.76 

SPRINT 50092 09/30110 18.96 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 18.96 

SPRINT 50093 09/30/10 16.12 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 16.12 

VERIZON WIRELESS 50090 09/30/10 126.89 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 126.89 

WOW! INfERENT CABLE 50094 09/30/10 82.49 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 82.49 

Subtotal 1,021.66 

ACEDES PLAINES INCORPORATED 10631 lOll 9/10 109.78 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970170 Doc# 219210 63.35 • 201-5970170 Doc# 219424 46.43 

ASI SIGNAGE lNNOV ATIONS· 10632 lOll 9/10 1,017.05 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5980600 Invoice # CmC·170429 1,017.05 

AUTOMATED LOGIC 10633 I Oil 91l 0 2,441.25 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoice # 009648 2,441.25 

BAKER & TAYLOR 10634 lOll 91l 0 6,919.81 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025072464 1.24 
201·5960990 Invoice # i025076186 1.18 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025072479 2.06 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025076242 1.41 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025063774 23.64 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025065910 2.24 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025061933 17.68 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025097821 1.12 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025089252 2.35 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025089245 9.62 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025091103 3.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025090046 13.85 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025102414 8.68 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025117448 1.03 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025115399 4.95 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025115402 0.94 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025111900 8.74 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 2025089258 9.54 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025051176 2.24 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025040315 19.00 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2025072508 0.64 



,(~ First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
h' Vendor Checks Report 
'''; September 201 0 Page 2 
<,) 

Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 2025027342 3.36 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025032274 1.59 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025022285 1.41 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025022268 6.14 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025027355 0.44 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024995712 0.79 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025021795 20.86 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025012623 2.48 
201-5960990 Invoice # i024922953 5.31 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025014629 25.71 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025008741 9.47 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025042340 4.16 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025051145 0.79 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025046328 1.92 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025044361 21.93 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025111450 12.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025115453 12.15 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025124233 1.24 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025072464 14.20 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025076186 26.73 
201-5970600 Invoicc # 2025072479 40.18 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025076242 94.49 
201-5970600 Invoi~c # 2025063774 1,193.72 
201-5970600 Invoicc # 2025065910 21.70 
201-5970600 Invoicc # 2025061932 745.63 
201-5970600 Invoice # 0000135910 111.77 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025097821 9.65 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025089252 34.28 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025089245 110.20 

• 201 -5970600 Invoice # 2025091103 88.87 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025090045 386.59 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025102414 96.43 
201-5970600 Credit Memo # 1377675CM -2.00 
201'-5970600. Credit Memo # 0002043098 -4.28 
20 I -5970600 Credit Memo # 0002042589 -21.94 
201-5970600 Credit Memo # 0002035619 -14.58 
201-5970600 Credit Memo # 0002034521 -14.43 
201-5970600 Invoi« # 2025117448 8.36 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025115399 56.81 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025115402 10.21 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025111900 296.44 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025089258 22.69 
201-5970600 ' Invoice # 2025051176 25.61 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025040315 493.97 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025072508 30.\3 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025027342 35.27 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025032274 15.62 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025022285 87.81 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025022268 95.84 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025027355 12.79 
20 I -5970600 Invoice # 2024995712 11.98 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025021794 953.31 
201-5970600 Invoice # 20250 I 2623 29.53 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024922953 17.14 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025014629 56.68 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025008741 409.63 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025042340 52.64 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025051145 23.32 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025046328 31.60 

• 201-5970600 Invoice # 2025044360 490.78 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025111449 420.23 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025115453 32.25 
201-5910600 Invoice # 2025124233 14.31 



(,) First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
~~ September 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 3 
',y 
(~ 

Vendor Name Chk.No. Check Date Amount 

• BANC OF AMERICA LEASING 10635 10/19/10 4.010.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # 0 I 1650368 4,010.00 

BANKCARD SERVICES 10636 10119110 2,877.54 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920202 Account# 4876225945162468 870.00 
201-5920210 158.25 
201-5920220 10.00 
201-5930020 854.91 
201-5960210 9.98 
201-5970100 772.92 
201-5970110 36.63 
201-5970260 9.85 
201-5970620 75.00 
201-5980600 80.00 

BISHOP PLUMBING, INC. 10637 . 10119/10 684.85 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoice # 68312 -337.95 
201-5930020 Invoice # 68314 346.90 

C D W GOVERNMENT INCORPORATED 10638 10/19/10 280.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5980420 Invoice # TTJ5051 . 280.00 

CHICAGO TRIBUNE 10639 10119110 598.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970620 Account # 30147947 598.00 

• CITY OF DES PLAINES 10640 10/19110 431.23 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970840 Invoice Fuel # 10-08 DSL 128.21 
201-5970840 Invoice Fuel # 10-09 DSL 195.86 
201-5970850 Invoice Fuel # 10-08 GAS 28.07 
201-5970850 Invoice Fuel # 10-09 GAS 79.09 

COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC 10641 10/19/10 10,788.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930)20 Invoice # 1269075 630.00 
201-5930)20 Invoice # 1268396 630.00 
201-5930320. Invoice # 1266672 2,105.00 . 
201-5930320 Invoice # 1268589 7,423.00 

COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 10642 10119/10 17,529.35 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920140 Invoice # CCS 9/17/10 17,529.35 

C¥BOR FIRE PROTECTION CO. 10643 10/19/10 300.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoice # 49056 300.00 

DEMCO EDUCATIONAl- CORP 10644 10/19110 395.05 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 3984681 126.00 
201-5970100 Invoice # 3981355 269.05 

ELK GROVE HIGH SCHOOL 10645 10119110 45.00 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Yearbook 45.00 

EV ANCED SOLUTIONS, INC. 10646 10/19/10 680.00 



(<l 
First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public library DESPlANSLIB ,~ 

(,) September 2010 
,~ 

Vendor Checks Report Page 4 

Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201-5980420 Invoice # 6583 680.00 

FffiST MmDWEST BANK 504· 10647 10/19110 20.00 
Account No~ Description Amount 
201-5960990 Safe Deposit Box Rental 20.00 

GALE 10648 10/19/10 213.82 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16713420 213.82 

GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUTS 10649 . 10/19/10 17.04 
Actount No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # PINVI75757 17.04 

GRAINGER 10650 10/19/10 197.76 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970170 Invoice # 197.76 '197.76 

HARRIS INFOSOURCE 10651 10/19/10 208.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 10130450 208.00 

INTERACT BUSINESS PRODUCTS 10652 10/19/10 898.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5980400 Invoice # INV53989 898.00 

INTERIOR TROPICAL GARDENS INC 10653 10/19/10 170.00 
Account No. Description Amount 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 45513 85.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 45713 85.00 

KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, L m. 10654 10/19/10 2,168.11 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920100 Statement # 149037 2,014.00 
201-5920105 Statement # 149037 154.11 

LACON! ADMINISTRATORS SECTION 10655 10/19/10 155.00 
Account No. DeSCription Amount 
201-5920220 LACON! Membership 100.00 
201-5970620 LACON! Salary Survey 55.00 

LAPORTINC. 10656. 10/19/10 , 398.70 
Account No. Description' Amount 
201-5970170 Invoice # 123492 398.70 

LAW OFFICES OF ANCEL, GUNK 10657 10/19/10 632.50 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920100 Statement # 22163 632.50 

MARSHALL CAVENDISH CORPORATION 10603 10/19110 -104.75 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 VOID CHECK # 10603 -104.75 

MENARDS 10658 10/19/10 94.66 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970170 Invoice # 50778 94.66 

MIDWEST TAPE 10659 10/19110 4,017.22 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice#6121710 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6124212 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice#6121711 8.55 



(~ 
First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB , ... 

(oJ September 2010 Vendor Checks Report PageS 
,,) 

Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

• 201·5960990 Invoice # 6129559 2.85 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136442 2.85 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6129232 2.85 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6148360 4.50 
20 [·5960990 [nvoice # 6148361 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6148362 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6148363 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6148364 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6148365 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6148366 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6133914 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6142595 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6139490 2.25 
io 1·5960990 [nvoice # 6142599 2.25 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6142594 4.90 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6142597 4.50 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6142598 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6139493 2.25 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6139492 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 9136428 2.25 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6129228 4.70 
201·5960990 [nvoice# 6129229 4.50 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6129230 6.75 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6129231 5.00 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136425 4.90 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6129227 2.25 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6129226 5.00 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136441 2.45 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136440 9.00 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136439 2.25 • 201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136438 6.95 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136437 2.25 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136436 2.25 
201·5960990 . [nvoice # 6136435 2.25 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136434 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6136433 6.75 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136432 24.75 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136430 4.50 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6136429 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6129547 13.50 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6129548 2.25 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6129550 4.50 
201·5960990 .. [nvoice # 6129549 4.50 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6129558 2.45 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6129542 2.25 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6129556 2.25 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6129557 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6129551 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6129553 2.25 
201·5960990 Invocie # 6129555 4.70 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6129541 6.75 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6129545 6.75 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6124201 6.75 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6124200 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6124191 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6121705 2.25 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6124192 0.00 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6124195 13.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6129544 2.25 

• 201·5960990 Invoice # 6129546 9.00 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6124194 2.25 
201·5960990 [nvoice # 6121706 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6121707 2.25 

_ . ~_ •••• '_~ __ • -.i. 



.'<rI-' " 

m 
First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPlANSLIB ,~ 

(,) September 201 0 
(0) 

Vendor Checks Report PageS 

Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

• 201·5960990 Invoice # 6121709 4.70 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6121708 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6124208 6.75 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6124209 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6124210 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6124211 6.75 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6124202 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6124203 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6124204 18.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6124205 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6124206 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6124207 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6124196 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6124197 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6124198 0.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6124199 4.50 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2292355 69.98 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2293080 34.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2311732 59.99 
201-5970610 Invoice#6121710 9.74 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6124212 11.24 
201-5970610 Invoice#6121711 43.47 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6129559 11.24 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6136442 10.49 
201'5970610 Invoice # 6129232 25.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124193 89.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129554 29.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129552 59.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129543 89.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6136431 84.73 • 201-5970630 Invoice # 6136426 44.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6136424 68.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 9139491 44.99 

·201-5970630 Invoice # 6142596 34.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6148360 22.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6148361 22.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6148362 5.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6148363 40.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6148364 40.48 
20 I -5970630 Invoice # 6148365 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6148366 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6133914 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6142595 .. 29.98 '. 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6139490 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6142599 , 11.24 

201·5970630 Invoice # 6142594 44.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6142597 43.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6142598 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6139493 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6139492 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 9136428 12.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129228 37.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129229 22.48 
201-5970630 fnvoice # 6129230 34.47 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129231 59.97 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6136425 59.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129227 24.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129226 18.73 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6136441 18.74 

• 201-5970630 Invoice # 6136440 80.21 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6136439 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6136438 63.72 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6136437 5.24 



~. 

(E:) 
First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library ,~ DESPLANSLIB 

<A) September 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 7 .:. ..... 

VendorNJlme Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

e 

201·;970630 lilYoice # 6136436 22.49 
201·;970630 Invoice # 6136435 14.99 
201·;970630 Invoice # 6136434 . 22.49 
201·;970630 Invoice # 6136433 48.72 
201-;970630 Invoice # 6136432 248.14 
201-;970630 Invoice # 6136430 37.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6136429 29.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129547 134.94 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129548 20.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129550 44.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129549 44.97 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129558 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129542 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129556 21.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129557 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129551 17.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129553 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoeie # 6129555 108.71 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129541 67.47 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129545 67.47 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129544 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 612420 I 39.72 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124200 22.49 
201-,970630 Invoice # 6124191 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6121705 11.24 
201-,970630 Invoice # 6124192 29.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124195 77.94 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6129546 55.46 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124194 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6121706 7.49 • 201-5970630 Invoice # 6121707 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6121709 29.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6121708 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124208 104.21 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124209 20.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124210 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124211 44.97 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124202 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124203 37.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124204 170.92 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124205 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124206 22.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124207 46.72 ". 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124196 19'.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124197 44.97 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124198 44.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6124199 35.98 

OFFICE DEPOT 10660 iOl19/1O 1.313.20 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 533767039001 1,055.37 
201-5970100 Invoice # 533767039002 12.29 
201-5970100 Invoice # 534201721001 245.54 

OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP 10661 10/19/10 27,872.34 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920110 Invoice # 10809 27,083.33 
201-5960990 Invoice # 10820 280.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 10677 509.01 

epCNATION 10662 10/19/10 2,428.61 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5980420 Invoice # P04805430I018 2,428.61 



(:::) 
First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library >-, DESPLANSLIB 

c.') September 2010 Vendor Checks Report PageS 
<I, 

Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

• PITNEY BOWES 10663 10/19/10 164.00 . 

Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970260 Invoice # 9954034·SP 10 164.00 

PITNEY BOWES 10664 ,10119/10 500.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970260 PPA # 8000·9090·0510·7839 500.00 

PROGRAM ONE PROF BUILDING SERVICI 10665 10/19110 735.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930320 Invoice # 27675 735.00 

R & J UPHOLSTERY 10666 10/19110 640.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 13895 640.00 

RANDOM HOUSE INCORPORATED 10667 10/19110 623.75 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1089391766 57.60 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1089391763 30.00 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1089225487 263.00 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1089261569 35.00 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1089299102 75.00 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1089297157 111.95 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1089297164 29.60 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1189297164 21.60, 

RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 10668 10119110 33.00 
, Account No. Description Amount • 201·5970630 Order # 4996177 33.00 

REDHA WK SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC. 10669 10/19110 72.00 

Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 14268 RX 72.00 

SPEED·E·KLEEN 10670 10/1911 0 240.00 

Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930320 Invoice # 3591 240.00 

SUZANNE L. EPSTEIN 10671 10/19110 500.00 

Account No. Description Amount 
" 201·~96021O Presentation on 10/20/10 500.00 '. 

TEEN INK 10672 10/19110 189.00 

Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970620 Invoice # 14227·1011 189.00 

UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 10673 10/19/10 45.33 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970100 Invoice # 86071A 1 11.29 
201·5970100 Invoice # 86340A 1 11.46 
201·5970100 Invoice # 86397 A 1 11.31 
201·5970100 Invoice # 86483A 1 11.27 

WAREHOUSE DIRECT 10674 10/19110 63.93 

Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970100 Invoice # 859080·0 35.83 
201·5970100 Invoice # 847087-0 28.10 

• WASTE MANAGEMENT 10675 10/19110 341.15 

Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930490 Invoice # 2267574·2008·9 341.15 

_____ __ .-l..:.... ' 



(~ First Midwest Bank 
h' 

(,,! September 2010 
(7) 

Vendor Name 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Vendor Checks Report 

Cbk.No. CbeckDate 

• WASTE MANAGEMENT 10676 
Account No. Description 

10/19110 
Amount 

129.29 201.;930490 Invoice # 4196960·2008·2 

Subtotal 

TOTAL 

• 

• 

Amount 

129.29 

94.083.57 

95,105.23 

DESPLANSLIB 
Page 9 



'. •• ' . .£f!H 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

CM)H FLOW SUMMARY 
For the Year Ended December 3., 2010 

January February March April May June July August September October November December 
Balance Shed 

Cash & Investments $ 1,546,613 1,117,818 1,360,131 $ 3,581,316 $ 3,169,784 $ 2,722,749 $ 2,255,426 $ 1,787,080 $ 1,312,679 $ $ $ 

Revenue (M-T-D) 
Property Taxes 130,787 739,239 2,641,784 51,612 194,449 1,411 
Other Revcnue 15,579 11,914 17,102 52,394 14,286 20,593 12,416 20,995 13,939 

146,366 11,914 756,341 2,694,178 65,898 20,593 206,866 20,995 15,350 

Expenses (M-T-D) 
Payroll & Benefits 306,233 309,859 312,915 302,514 311,663 303,578 468,072 312,944 305,200 
Other Expense 161,788 249,673 162,718 153,112 177,041 205,815 209,132 105,584 96,124 

468,020 559,532 475,633 455,626 488,704 509,393 677,204 418,528 401,324 0 0 0 

Net Increase/(Decrease) _. (321,654) (547,618) 280,708 2,238,552 (422,8~{488,1!00) (470,338) (397,532) .J385,974) 0 0 0 



Des Plaines Public Library - September 201 0 Board Report 

· ... Dn REGISTRATIUN 1 

:;b ":";:, : ;,.... , IYEAR TO DATE 
1 New Resident Cards 

.. <; .",:,~r I~ '~' • ~5IYTD 2009 

"Y';T ","-,," L% 1 % 
"Businesscaras 

I-------------I"~~, [7'" ':; ." ',.'''' ,~IY I U 2009 
L% '.' "r ,', ,- '}3) 0;.; 1 % rl..nno 

iTotal Card Ownership 

. 

PATRON AI I ... >Uri: 
-:-

IMITIIN(j~ 

.. , '" ,', "I ". • "" 

. " ",: '. 

,:,~,' ,', -.:; . 1::.7. 
'!'~ ., " ' .. ,'" ';' ,t., .;,' 

. ' . . 

"IYTD 2010 
IYTD 2009 

,1% On 

'.1% ru 

120lU 
12009 

. 

ITMI NH ~':':::, "'0 IYEAR TO DATE 
0'- .:-':' -::;-,~ ,y;tiJI lyTD 2010 

2,962 
3,709 
·20% 

28 
26 

8% 

32,903 
35,924 
57.8% 
63.0% 

437,57E 
407,38E 

7% 



SPECIAlPROjECJS & STAJS: 

THIS'MON:r~" " ::;,~ ' .. YEARJO DATE '-- ", " 
, 
."'- , 

Voter Registration Se "2.01.0': " ," ' ' 

.~ YJO 2.01.0 . 26 " , p" .. ,.' " 'h , .. <' 

~€p)DQL " " " 

~ YTD 2.0.09 23 , , ' .. 
.. : :"" '.~i:~ , " ' :, ~ ,o/<rfhange ,:'209°~ % Change 13% 

on, Website 

. ~, 

11..ompUler use AdUlt Servii:es, ' , . ' , . -,' ' 
. " YEAR TO DATE --, -' ._. 

Sep,2D1 D' , 
" , 

' ,1,l,731 YT02D1D 8.0,553 
Sep '2DD~' · 9,4'45 YTD2DD9 9.0,9.04 , , " 

, .. 
, " 

. 
,% ,C,hange :-7,56W. %, Change -11.39% 

" " " . 
Youth Seryices · ' .' '. , 

S~p 2.01.0 
.. , . e 1,.089 YJO 2.01.0 12,733 , 

Sep,2D.o9 " 

~ . ,: J,433 YTD 2.0.09 15,6.05 ,,' .. '- .' 
, . 

%:Change 
',' 

~24i01% % Change ·18.40% , , 

-. ,-" ; .. /. ,", ""-: , , ... ~ ,- . , -. t-- - ,- ~. . . 
" , ' , ., . . , , 

, ' " 
. -- ... - : 

, 
,~'.: . .. , 

Average Online Reference Products , ' " · 
Searches & Queries 5,ep 2.01 b . -.' 

., ~ ~'14;684 YTO 2.01.0 1.05,636 

S'ep :20.0,(:: 
.' ,. 

.' 1.o,2l~ YTO 2.0.09 118,855 .. , 
.. . , , 

, .. - ... 
% Change -11.12% -' .. ' . .. , 

-' .. 0 

patron counters were out May 2.0.09 
"",'pm. These are based on the month in circulation rates. 



,0 

q \:--,-, - , 1\ 
-,. .' ,l\ 
CD ' I 0';"",'. \ / 

~ J -.' I ,. : ~'~ 

• -j o ;~[~le---s~J~taule-s- '.- ,,~ ~ : '61 (- - b l. ......... --... 1 ' -' , 

~\9 lC'-~1 :~_Tary? -'-~: f 

.... , ... 

lanuary. 2011 lanuary. 2012 LIBRARY CLOSING 

Saturday, January 1, 2011 New Year's Day 

Wednesday, March 9, 2011 Late Opening for All Staff Meeting 

Sunday, April 24, 2011 Easter 

Thursday, May 12, 2011 Late Opening for All Staff Meeting 

Sunday, May 29, 2011 Memorial Day Holiday. 

Monday, May 30, 2011 Memorial Day 

Monday, July 4, 2011 Independence Day 

• Sunday, September 4, 2011 . Labor Day holiday 

Monday, September 5,2011 Labor Day 

Tuesday, September 13, 2011 Late Opening for All Staff Meeting 

Thursday, November 24, 2011 Thanksgiving 

Friday, December 16, 2011 Late Opening for All Staff Meeting 

Saturday, December 24, 2011 Christmas Eve 

Sunday, December 25, 2011 Christmas Day 

Saturday, December 31, 2011 New Year's Eve 

Sunday, January 1, 2012 New Year's Day 

Holly Richards Sorensen 
Library Director 

• Approved 

, 

~. 



• 

• 

• 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT PROVIDING FOR RISK 
MANAGEMENT AND AUTHORIZING MEMBERSHIP IN THE 

LIBRARY INSURANCE MANAGEMENT AND RISK CONTROL 
COMBINATION (LIMRiCC) 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

• PAGE 

ARTICLE I. THE UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION CLAIM PROGRAM 1 

A. Findinqs and Authority 1 

B. Definitions. 2 

C. Aqreements of Members. 4 

D. Powers and Duties of LIMRiCC 6 

E. Period of Coveraqe, Withdrawal and Termination. 8 

F. Prior Coveraqe . . . . . . . . 9 

ARTICLE II. THE SELF INSURANCE PROGRAM 9 

A. Purpose .. 9 

B. Authority. 10 

• C. Definitions. 10 

D. Insurinq Aqreement 11 

E. Exclusions .... 12 

F. Payments by Members - Assessments. 14 

G. Powers and Duties of LIMRiCC 15 

H. Conditions 16 

1. Warranty Clause 16 

2. Discovery Period. 16 

3. Limits of Payments for Losses 16 

4. Loss Provision ..... 16 

5. Defense and Settlement. 17 

• 6. Action Aqainst LIMRiCC. 18 



(~) 
,~ 

." 
tJ) 

• 7. Subrogation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 

8. Changes .. 19 

9. Assignment 19 

10. Authorization Clause and Notices . . .. 19 

11. Acceptance .. 20 

12. Other Insurance. 20 

I. Cancellation .... 20 

J. Non-Renewal . 21 

K. Participation of Unexpended Funds. 21 

1. Cancellation .... 21 

2. Membership for Five or More Years. 21 

• 3. On Termination of the Program ... 22 

L. Disputes . . . 22 

M. Prior Coverage 22 

ARTICLE III. JOINT PURCHASE OF HEALTH 
INSURANCE 23 

A. Purpose 23 

B. Authority 23 

C. Assessments of Members .............. 24 

D. Renewal Meeting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 

E. Powers and Duties of LIMRiCC .24 

F. Powers and Duties of Members .25 

G. Term of the Program . . . 26 

• H. Rights and Obligations of Members 26 



• 

• 

e· 

I. Liability of LIMRiCC, Its Officers 
and Directors 

J. By-Laws 

K. Notices 

ARTICLE IV. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF MEMBERS 

A. O~liqations of Members . . . . . . . . . 

B. Riqhts of Members . 

ARTICLE V. LIABILITY TO LIMRiCC, ITS OFFICERS 
AND DIRECTORS . . . 

28 

29 

30 

30 

30 

31 

32 

ARTICLE VI. BY-LAWS. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 

ARTICLE VII. NOTICES.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 

ARTICLE VIII. FORMER PARTICIPATION OF METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
SYSTEM (FORMERLY SUBURBAN LIBRARY SYSTEM) .. . . 33 

ARTICLE IlL AMENDMENTS . ... 33 

...... H'\A"f\ , 



<D 

.'" ", 

• 

• 

• 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT PROVIDING FOR RISK MANAGEMENT 
AND AUTHORIZING MEMBERSHIP IN THE LIBRARY INSURANCE 

MANAGEMENT AND RISK CONTROL (LIMRiCC) 

In consideration of the agreements hereinafter 

provided, the Board of Trustees of the Des Plaines Public 

Library, hereinafter referred to as "Library" or "Member" 

and the Library Insurance Management and Risk Control 

Combination, hereinafter referred to as "LIMRiCC" (an 

intergovernmental entity voluntarily established by 

contracting Library Systems, Boards of Library Trustees and 

Library Districts), agree as follows: 

The Des Plaines Public Library agrees to participate 

in the following Programs (the Programs) with LIMRiCC: 

D 
D 
~ 

(PHIP) . 

ARTICLE l-

A. 

The Unemployment Compensation Program (UCGA); 

The Joint Self-Insurance Program (JSIP); 

The Joint Purchase of Health Insurance Program 

THE UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION CLAIM PROGRAM. 

Findings and Authority 

1. Unemployment claims against Library 

2. 

Districts, Boards of Library Trustees and 
Library Systems can be handled more 
economically and efficiently if claims are 
processed on a volume basis. 

The centralization of administration of 
these claims is consistent with the goals of 
the Intergovernmental Cooperation Clause of 

1 



• 

• 

• 

3. 

the Constitution of the State of Illinois 
(Article VII, Section 10) and the 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 
220/1 et ~.) and is further authorized by 
820 ILCS 405/1405. 
The members and LIMRiCC, therefore, agree to 
the Provisions hereinafter set forth for the 
centralized management of unempl~yment 

compensation claims. 

B. Definitions - (Article I) 

Unless otherwise indicated, terms used herein are 
defined as provided in "An Act in Relation to Unemployment 
insurance" approved June 30, 1937, as amended 

"Claims" - The Unemployment Compensation Claims 
made against the Members. 

"final Rate" is defined as fifteen percent of the 
Rate. In other words, "Final Rate" = Rate/(1-.15). 

"Investment Dividend" is defined as Investment 
Income, if greater than zero. 

"Investment Income" is defined as the Total 
Dividend minus the Underwriting Dividend. 

Where the term "LIMRiCC" is used, it shall 
include LIMRiCC and any private or public corporation 
it shall retain to assist in the administration and 
payment of claims unless the context indicates 
otherwise. 

When the 
any entity 
Compensation 

term "Member" is 
participating 

Program. 

used, it shall refer to 
in the Unemployment 

"Member employee" shall include each employee of 
the Member covered by the Unemployment Compensation 
Act. 

"Member Experience" is defined as the sum of 
three years of claims divided by the sum of three 
years of taxable payroll for each Member. In other 
words, "Member Experience" = Sum ("3 years of claims") 
/ Sum ("3 years of taxable payroll"). 

2 



'-J 

• 

• 

• 

~'Member Investment Dividend" is defined as the 
Investment Dividend multiplied by the Premium divided 
by the total premium. In other words, "Member 
Di vidend" = Investment Dividend * Premium/Total 
Premium. 

"Member Profit" is defined as premium minus 
claims,where premiums exceed claims. 

"Pooled Account" - All assets of LIMRiCC devoted 
to the Unemployment Compensation Program. 

"Pool Experience" is defined as the total of 
three years of claims divided by the total of three 
years of taxable payroll for the pool. In other 
words, "Pool Experience" = Total 3 years of claims / 
Total 3 years of taxable payroll. 

"Pool Profit" is defined as the sum of "Member 
Profit." 

"The Previous Agreement: - The Unemployment 
Compensation Agreement between the Member and 
Metropoli tan Library System (formerly Suburban Library 
System) . 

"Profitable Members" - means those Members whose 
premiums exceed claims made. 

"Program" 
Program pursuant 

The Unemployment 
to this Agreement. 

Compensation 

"Rate" is defined as fifty percent of the Member 
Experience plus fifty percent of the Pool Experience. 
In other words, "Rate" = >:; x Member Experience + >:; x 
Pool Experience. 

"Reserve Account" - An account to be maintained 
at $1,000,000 subject to temporary reductions for 
payment of mandated claims, and not available for 
refunding except on the termination of the 
Unemployment Compensation Program. 

"Underwriting Dividend" is defined as the 
Underwriting Income, if greater than zero. 

3 



• 

• 

• 

~Underwriting Income" is defined as the total 
premiums subtracting the total claims. 

c. AGREEMENTS OF MEMBERS 

1. To designate LIMRiCC to process the claims 
of the Member. 

2. That LIMRiCC may contract with private or 
public corporations for assistance in the 
processing of claims and the member will 
share in the cost of administering and 
paying the claims as provided in this 
contract. 

3. That each year this Agreement is in effect, 
each Member shall pay to LIMRiCC: 

(a) The Rate multiplied by the wage base 
set by the State of Illinois; and 

(b) The Final Rate, as defined herein. 

The Member shall make these payments in 
equal quarterly installments due on the 15 th 

day of April, July, October and January of 
each year. 

At such time as merit rating is established 
for the Member, as hereinafter provided, the 
above payments shall be adjusted 
accordingly. 

To elect to be a reimbursing employer during 
the term of this Agreement. 

That appropriate personnel of the Member 
will attend meetings conducted by LIMRiCC 
regarding procedures to reduce claims and 
that the Member will utilize these 
procedures. 

7. To cooperate in all respects with LIMRiCC so 
that it can exercise the rights, duties and 
obligations of the Member as an employer 
concerning claims. 

4 



q 
h' 

.'" ,') 

• 

• 

• 

8 . To provide LIMRiCC with information 
regarding the facts and circumstances of the 
termination of any of the Member employees 
within one working day from termination. 

9. To furnish LIMRiCC with copies of all 
reports of Member employees required by the 
State pursuant to the Unemployment 
Compensation Act. 

10. To permit inspection and audit of Member 
payroll records by LIMRiCC at such times as 
the inspection or audit does not interfere 
with the conduct of business. The Member 
will provide LIMRiCC with a copy of the 
quarterly report of Member employees. 

11. To comply with such other reasonable rules 
and regulations as may be established by 
LIMRiCC for the administration of the 
Agreement. 

12. To permit LIMRiCC to elect not to protest or 
object to claims or file appeals for allowed 
claims, provided that the Member shall have 
the option to defend the claims itself if 
LIMRiCC elects not to defend. The Member 
must notify LIMRiCC wi thin two (2) working 
days of the receipt of the claims, but not 
later than the due date of any protests, 
objections or appeals to such claims, if the 
Member wishes to exercise its option to 
defend the claims. If the Member has timely 
notified LIMRiCC of the Member's exercise of 
this option, LIMRiCC will advise the Member 
wi thin two (2) working days of the receipt 
of the claim by LIMRiCC, but not later than 
the due date of protests, objections, or 
appeals to such claims, if LIMRiCC elects 
not to defend. 

13. To furnish LIMRiCC, or its designee, notice 
of claims within two working days of the 
receipt of the claims by the Member, but not 
later than the due date of any protests, 
objections or appeals to such claims. In 
addition, the Member will furnish LIMRiCC 

5 



• 

• 

• 

such information regarding the claims as 
LIMRiCC may require. 

14. To furnish a power of attorney or similar 
authority to the agent processing claims on 
behalf of LIMRiCC. 

D. Powers and Duties of LIMRiCC 

The powers and duties of LIMRiCC are as follows: 

1. To act as the designated agent of the Member in 
the processing and defending of claims subject to 
the right of LIMRiCC to delegate these 
responsibili ties as provided herein, and to 
deposit all payments received pursuant to this 
Agreement in a separate and distinct bank account 
to be held, administered and ,Paid over as herein 
provided. Where funds are available for 
investment they will be deposited in interest 
bearing accounts or otherwise lawfully invested. 

2. To pay allowed claims against Member employers. 

3. To file in the name of and in behalf of Member, 
protests, objections or appeals to claims that, 
in the judgment of LIMRiCC, are filed by 
claimants who are not eligible or who are 
disqualified pursuant to the Unemployment 
Compensation Act. LIMRiCC, in its determination, 
shall exercise that judgment usually exercised by 
responsible private employers under similar 
circumstances. 

4. To cause an evaluation to be conducted for 
appropriate Member personnel. 

5. To cause training programs concerning the 
Unemployment Compensation Act to be conducted for 
appropriate Member personnel. 

6. To prepare and file claims for refund where 

7. 

appropriate. 

To maintain 
contributions 

a separate 
made and 

record of 
the claims 

the 
paid 

6 



\I' 

• 

• 

• 

attributable to each Member, that 
deducted from the credit balance. 

shall be 

8. To pay the reasonable charges attributable to the 
services rendered pursuant to this Program from 
first, the· interest earned, and if this is 
insufficient, from the principal of the fund. 
These charges shall include, but not be limited 
to, contract payments for the services for audit 
expenses, attorneys fees, equipment, supplies, 
reimbursement to LIMRiCC for its services and use 
of its facilities as provided in the BY-Laws of 
LIMRiCC. 

9. 

LIMRiCC may designate Metropolitan Library System 
(formerly Suburban Library System) to manage this 
Program, provided the annual compensation for 
these services shall not exceed the Final Rate 
without the consent of fifty percent (50%) of the 
Members. 

To set the Rate for each Member as based on the 
experience of the Pool ("Pool Experience") and 
the experience of the individual Member ("Member 
Experience"). The Rate is calculated by adding ~ 
multiplied by the Member Experience to ~ 

mul tiplied by the Pool Experience. For new 
members, defined as those with less than three 
years experience in the Program, the Rate is 
calculated using the Pool Experience only. 

10. To set forth as in the same manner as in 
Paragraph 9, if the evaluation establishes that 
the Member has a deficit balance, a merit rating 
may be established in excess of 2% but no more 
than 5%. 

11. To authorize 
insurance 
claims. 

from 
LIMRiCC 

the 
at its option 

Pooled Account 
purchase 

to cover 

12. To pay for Members who have participated in the 
Unemployment Compensation Program for ten (10) or 
more years [including the Program of Metropolitan 
Library system (formerly Suburban Library 
System)], LIMRiCC shall make refunds of funds on 

7 



• 

• 

• 

hand in the Pooled Account 
$1,000,000 as follows: 

in excess of 

a. Underwriting Dividends and Member Investment 
Di vidends shall be calculated based on 
audited, fiscal year-end figures. 

b. Annually by the end of the second quarter of 
the fiscal year, Underwriting Dividends 
shall be paid to those Profitable Members 
based on the amount of underwriting profit 
generated by Profitable Members as long as 
the Pooled Account has funds in excess of 
$1,000,000. Underwriting Dividends shall be 
calculated based on the Underwriting Income 
for Profitable Members. Each Profitable 
Member's underwriting is calculated by 
mUltiplying the .Underwriting Dividend by the 
Member Profit divided by the Pool Profit. 
This dividend will count towards the 
Member's account balance. 

c. Annually by the end of the second quarter of 
the fiscal year, Member Investment Dividends 
shall be paid to all Members as long as the 
Pooled Account has funds in excess of 
$1,000,000. Each Member's Investment 
Di vidend shall be calculated by multiplying 
the Investment Dividend by the premium 
divided by total premium. This dividend 
will not count towards the Member's account 
balance. 

E. Period of Coverage, Withdrawal and Termination 

1. The initial coverage provided by LIMRiCC 
shall include all claims by members for 
persons whose employment is terminated by 
such Member during the period from July 1, 
1993, through December 31, 1993. Coverage 
shall be continued from year to year 
thereafter, on a calendar year basis, unless 
terminated as provided herein. In the event 
of termination by a Member, assets remaining 
in the Member's account and reserve account 
shall not be refunded. Members terminating 
wi th a deficit balance shall reimburse 

8 



• 

• 

LIMRiCC for the deficit. Either party may 
terminate its participation in the Pooled 
Account pursuant to this Agreement by giving 
written notice at least ninety (90) days 
prior to December 31 of any year this 
Agreement is in effect and the withdrawal 
will then be effective as of December 31 of 
the year of withdrawal. 

2. LIMRiCC shall continue to cover all claims 
of the Member's employees whose employment 
was terminated by the Member during the 
period this Agreement is in effect, provided 
the member is not in default; and provided 
further the Member shall pay any deficit in 
its account in the Pooled Account. A default 
in payment by the Member shall be deemed 
termination by the Member and LIMRiCC shall 
not cover claims made after the default. 

F. Prior Coverage - The Previous Agreement' 

Members account balances and merit ratings in the 
previous agreement with Metropolitan Library System 
(formerly Suburban Library System), shall be transferred to 
LIMRiCC and credited to the member's account balance in 
this LIMRiCC program. There will be no interruption of 
coverage in the transition from the Previous Agreement. 

The coverage for Members with account balances and 
merit ratings pursuant to the previous Agreement with 
Metropolitan (formerly Suburban Library System) shall 
include all claims of such Members for persons whose 
employment with such Member or with any other employer is 
terminated prior to June 1, 1993. 

ARTICLE II. THE SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM. 

A. Purpose. 

It is the purpose of this Self-Insurance Program to 
create an intergovernmental jOint self-insurance program 
(the "Program") with LIMRiCC, Library Districts, Boards of 
Library Trustees and other Library Systems (the "Members") 
under the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, with 
LIMRiCC as the administrative entity to operate the 

• Program. It is the purpose of the Member to contract with 

9 



• 

• 

• 

LIMRiCC and to assume joint liability under a joint self
insurance program as a Member. 

B. Authority. 

The agreements between LIMRiCC, and the Members are 
authorized by the intergovernmental cooperation clause as 
set forth in Article VII, Section 10 of the Constitution 
Act; 5 ILCS 220/1; and by the provisions of the Local 
Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act. 
(745 ILCS 10/1-101 et ~.) 

c. Definitions (Article II) 

1. "Member" shall mean any Library District or 
Board of Library Trustees or Library System 
which has executed an agreement· which is 
accepted by LIMRiCC for joint self-Insurance 
on substantially the same terms as this 
Agreement. 

2. 

3. 

"Insured" shall mean a Member and all 
persons who were, now are, or shall be 
elected or appointed officials of such 
Member. The term "Insured" shall include the 
personnel of any commissions, boards or 
other units operating by and under the 
jurisdiction of such Member. The term 
"Insured" shall not include independent 
contractors. 

The term 
estates, 
assigns of 
defined as 

"insured" shall also include the 
heirs, legal representatives or 

deceased persons who are already 
an Insured. 

4. "Wrongful Act" shall mean any actual or 
alleged error or misstatement, or misleading 
statement, or act or omission or neglect or 
breach of duty, including misfeasance, 
malfeasance and nonfeasance, by an Insured, 
as a public official, employee or volunteer 
of the Member. 

5. "Loss" shall mean any amount which an 
Insured is legally obligated to payor which 
the Member shall be required by law to pay 

10 



(;l 
,~ 

til 

'" 

• 

• 

• 

6. 

as indemnity for any claim or claims made 
against an Insured for Wrongful Act and 
shall include but not be limited to damages, 
judgments, settlements, costs of 
investigation and defense of legal actions 
(excluding from such costs the salaries of 
officials or employees of the Member of any 
governmental body), claims or proceedings 
and appeals therefrom, costs of attachment 
or similar bonds; provided always, however, 
such amount of Loss shall not include fines 
or penal ties imposed by law or the cost of 
investigation or defense in connection 
therewith or matters which may be deemed 
uninsurable under the law pursuant to which 
this Agreement shall be construed. 

Subject to Article II, E, 
to the extent permitted 
insured as a Loss. 

puni ti ve damages, 
by law, shall be 

The "Term of the Agreement" shall mean the 
term of coverage provided in the Prior Self
Insurance Agreement. If there is no Prior 
Self-Insurance Agreement, then the Term of 
Agreement shall be the period of one (1) 
year following effective date of this 
Agreement. The Term of the Agreement shall 
be extended for additional 12 month periods 
unless terminated by 60 days notice prior to 
the expiration date by either party provided 
payment has been made by the member prior to 
the commencement of the extended term. 

7. The "Prior Self-Insurance Agreement" shall 
mean the previous self insurance agreement 
with the Metropolitan Library System 
(formerly Suburban Library System) and the 
Pool. There shall be no interruption of 
coverage in the transition from the Prior 
Self-Insurance Agreement. 

D. Insuring Agreement 

1. LIMRiCC will pay (solely from the proceeds 
of payments from the members) on behalf of 
the Member all Loss which the Insured shall 

11 



• 

• 

• 

2. 

3. 

be legally obligated to pay for any civil 
claim or claims first made against the 
Insured because of a Wrongful Act, provided 
that the claim is first made during the Term 
of the Agreement and written notice of said 
claim is received by LIMRiCC during the Term 
of the Agreement or within thirty (30) days 
thereafter. 

LIMRiCC (solely from the proceeds of 
payments from the Members) will pay the 
Insured's defense costs arising out of 
claims, demands or actions seeking relief or 
redress. from Wrongful Acts in any form other 
than money damages. The maximum amount of 
recovery under this extension is One Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for any such 
claim, less the One Thousand Dollar 
deductible, provided that the claim is first 
made during the Term of the Agreement and 
written notice of said claim is received by 
LIMRiCC during the Term of the Agreement or 
within thirty (30) days thereafter. 

Extensions. This 
arising from any 
against the 
representatives 
persons who were 
Wrongful Act upon 
claims are based. 

Agreement shall cover Loss 
civil claim or claims made 
estates, heirs. legal 
or assigns of deceased 
Insured at the time of the 

which such civil claim or 

E. Exclusions 

Subject to Article II-H.S 

LIMRiCC shall not make 
connection with 
allegedly based 
following: 

any claims made 
upon or arising out 

payment for Loss in 
against the Insured 

of one or more of the 

1. Gaining any personal profit or advantage to 
which the Insured was not legally entitled; 

2. The return by an Insured of any remuneration 
in fact paid to the Insured if payment of 

12 



• 

• 

• 

3. 

4. 

5. 

such remuneration shall be held by the court 
to be in violation of law; 

Brought about or contributed to by the 
dishonest acts of the Insured, which were 
committed by the Insured with actual 
dishonest purpose and intent and were 
material to the cause of action. 

(a) Any damages, whether direct, 
or consequential, arising from, or 
bodily injury, sickness, disease or 

indirect 
caused by 
death; 

(b) loss or criminal abstraction of, damage 
to or destruction of any tangible property 
or the loss of use of such property by 
reason of the foregoing; 

(a) 

(b) 

false arrest, assault, battery, 
detention or imprisonment, or malicious 
prosecution; 

defamation, including, but not limited 
to, libel or slander; 

(c) a publication or utterance in the 
course of or related to advertising, 
broadcasting or telecasting acti vi ties 
by or on behalf of the Member; 

( d) wrongful 
invasion 
occupancy; 

entry or 
of the 

eviction 
right of 

or other 
private 

6. uWillful and wanton conduct," meaning a 
course of action which shows an actual or 
deliberate intention to cause harm or that, 
if not intentional, shows an utter 
indifference to or conscious disregard for 
the rights of others; 

7. The discharge, dispersal, release or escape 
or saturation of smoke, vapors, soot, fumes, 
acids, alkalis, toxic chemicals, liquids or 
gases, waste materials, asbestos or other 
irritants, contaminants or pollutants into 
or upon land, the atmosphere or any 

13 



• 

• 

• 

watercourse or body of water, or any object, 
whether sudden or not; 

S. (a) asbestos or any asbestos-related injury 
or damage; or 

(b) any alleged act, error, omission or 
duty involving asbestos, its use, 
exposure, presence, existence, 
detection, removal, elimination or 
avoidance; or 

(c) the use, exposure, presence, existence, 
detection, removal, elimination or 
avoidance of asbestos in any 
environment, building or structure; 

9. Based upon, arising out of, directly or 
indirectly resulting from or in consequence 
of, or in any way involving actual, alleged 
or threatened nuclear reaction, radiation, 
contamination, materials or waste, 
regardless of the cause; 

10. Prior to pending litigation as of the 
effective date of this Agreement and 
excluding as well, all future claims or 
suits based upon, arising out of or 
attributable to said prior or pending 

11. 

litigation; 

A violation of 
Disabilities Act of 
time to time. 

the 
1990 

Americans 
as amended 

With 
from 

The Wrongful Act of any Insured shall not be imputed 
to any other insured for the purpose of determining the 
applicability of the foregoing exclusions. 

F. Payments by Members - Assessments. 

Each Member shall pay LIMRiCC One Thousand Two Hundred 
Dollars ($1,200) for the first year of coverage and One 
Thousand Dollars ($1,000) for each year of coverage 
thereafter. Payments are made prior to the term of 
coverage. Each Member shall receive credit for payments 
made and coverage pursuant to the Prior Self-Insurance 
Agreement. 

14 



• 

• 

• 

If funds of the Program are insufficient in the 
judgment of LIMRiCC, then LIMRiCC may assess the Members 
for additional payments. Each Member shall be assessed an 
equal amount. 

If a l2-month discovery period is elected by the 
Member pursuant to paragraph H-2, such Member shall pay 
LIMRiCC Eight Hundred Dollars ($800.00). 

The Members shall pay the first One Thousand Dollars 
($1,000.00) of each Loss. 

G. Powers and Duties of LIMRiCC. 

LIMRiCC shall have the following powers and duties in 
the administration of the Program: 

(1) To employ agents, employees and independent 
contractors including legal counsel; 

(2) To purchase or lease equipment, machinery, 
or personal property necessary for the 
carrying out of the purpose of the Program; 

(3) To carry out educational and other programs 
relating to risk reductions; 

(4) To collect the funds and administer the 
Program; 

(5) To provide risk management services; 

(6) To carry out such other activities as are 
necessarily implied or required to carry out 
the purposes of the Program; and 

(7) To contract with Metropolitan Library System 
(formerly Suburban Library System) to manage 
the Program as provided in the By-Laws, 
provided the annual compensation for these 
services shall not exceed TWELVE THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($12,000.00) 

15 



• 

• 

• 

H. Conditions. 

1. Warranty Clause. 

It is represented and warranted that the particulars 
and statements contained in application of the Member 
included in the prior Self-Insurance Agreement, a copy of 
which is attached hereto, is reaffirmed as of the inception 
date of this Agreement and is the basis of this Agreement 
and is considered as incorporated in and constituting part 
of this Agreement. 

A new application shall be made in the form attached 
hereto and is subject to review and approval by LIMRiCC. 

2. Discovery Period. 

If LIMRiCC shall cancel or refuse to renew this 
Agreement, the Member shall have the right to an automatic 
extended discovery period upon payment of the additional premium 
set forth in paragraph F in respect of any claim or claims which 
may be made against the Insured during the period of twelve (12) 
months after the date of such cancellation or non-renewal, but 
only in respect of any Wrongful Act committed during the Term of 
the Agreement and before the date of such cancellation or non
renewal, provided, however, that written application to LIMRiCC 
for such extension and payment of the premium therefore must be 
made within thirty (30) days following such cancellation or non
renewal. 

3. Limits of Payment for Losses. 

Payment for Losses under Article II, D.1 shall be limited 
to One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence. Pursuant 
to Article II, F, the One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) to be 
paid by the Member shall be deducted by LIMRiCC for each loss 
occurring from separate claim. 

4. Loss Provision 

If during the 'Term of the Agreement or extended 
discovery period: 

(a) the Member or the Insured shall receive 
written or oral notice from any person 
that it is the intention of such person 
to hold the Insured responsible for the 

16 



• 

• 

• 

(b) 

results of any specified Wrongful Act 
done or alleged to have been done by 
the Insured while acting in the 
capacity aforementioned; or 

the Member or the Insured shall become 
aware of any occurrence which may 
subsequently give rise to a claim being 
made against the Insured in respect of 
any such alleged Wrongful Act; 

then Member or the Insured shall, as soon as practicable, 
give written notice to LIMRiCC of the receipt of such 
written or oral notice under Clause 4(a) or of such 
occurrence under Clause 4(b). Upon LIMRiCC's receipt of 
such notice, any claim which may subsequently be made 
against the Insured arising out of such alleged Wrongful 
Act shall, for the purposes of this Agreement, be treated 
as a claim made during the Term of the Agreement in which 
such notice was given, or if given during the extended 
discovery period as a claim made during such discovery 
period. 

The Member or the Insured shall, as further condition 
precedent to the Insured's right to be indemnified under 
this Agreement, give LIMRiCC any information and all such 
cooperation as LIMRiCC may reasonably require and as shall 
be in the Insured's power. 

5. Defense, Sett1ement and Se1ection of Counse1 

In the event of a claim, the Insured shall take 
reasonable measure to protect their interests and shall 
promptly advise LIMRiCC in the event of a claim. If defense 
of a suit shall be required, LIMRiCC shall consult with the 
Insured regarding the appointment of counsel. I f there is 
no agreement on the selection, then LIMRiCC shall appoint 
counsel. 

In the event a claim shall be made that is 
insured under this Agreement and the claim is combined with 
another claim arising out of the same occurrence that is 
excluded under Article II-E, then the insured may select 
independent counsel for the insured's defense for the 
excluded claim and LIMRiCC will reimburse the insured for 
the reasonable expenses of independent counsel. 

17 



(;:) ,., 
m 
'.J 

• 

• 

• 

Subject to the foregoing, 
shall be incurred on behalf of 
circumstances without its consent. In 

no cost of expenses 
LIMRiCC under any 

the event the Insured 
and LIMRiCC cannot agree on the allocation or apportionment 
of counsel's fees and expenses, then under such 
circumstances the Insured's right of indemnity for such 
expenses and fees shall not mature until the claim giving 
rise thereto has been finally and completely adj udicated 
and-or settled. 

LIMRiCC shall not commit the Member to any 
settlement without the Member's consent. However, if the 
Insured shall refuse to consent to any settlement 
recommended by LIMRiCC and shall elect to contest the claim 
or continue any legal proceedings in connection with such 
claim, then subj ect to the provisions of connection with 
such claim, then subject to the provisions of Article II, 
H.3, LIMRiCC's liability for the claim shall not exceed the 
amount for which the claim could have been settled 
including costs, charges and expenses incurred with its 
consent up to date of such refusal. 

6. Action Against LIMRiCC. 

No action shall lie against LIMRiCC unless as a 
condition precedent thereto, there shall have been full 
compliance with all of the terms of this Agreement, and 
until the amount of the Insured's obligation to pay shall 
have been finally determined either by judgment against the 
Insured after actual trial or by written agreement of the 
Insured, the claimant and LIMRiCC. 

Any person or organization or the legal representative 
thereof who has secured such judgment or written agreement 
shall thereafter be entitled to recover under this 
Agreement to the extent of the insurance afforded by this 
Agreement. No person or organization shall have any right 
under this Agreement to join LIMRiCC as a party to any 
action against the Insured, to determine the Insured's 
liabili ty, nor shall the Pool be impleaded by the Insured 
or the legal representative of the Insured. 

The bankruptcy or insolvency of the Insured or the 
Insured's estate shall not relieve LIMRiCC of any of its 
obligations hereunder. 

18 



• 

• 

• 

The liability of LIMRiCC shall be limited to the 
proceeds of payments and assessments of the Members made 
pursuant to this Article II - Self Insurance pursuant to 
prior self-insurance Agreement. 

7. Subroqation. 

In the event of any payment under the Agreement, 
LIMRiCC shall be subrogated to all the Insured's rights of 
recovery therefore against any person or organization, and 
the Insured shall execute and deliver such instruments and 
papers and do whatever else is necessary to secure such 
rights. The Insured shall do nothing after Loss to 
prejudice such rights. 

8. Chanqes. 

The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived or 
changed except by written endorsement issued to for a part 
of this Agreement. 

9. Assignment. 

There shall be no assignment of interest under this 
Agreement. 

10. Authorization Clause and Notices. 

By acceptance of this Agreement, all Insured agree 
that the Member shall act on behalf of all Insured, 
officers and employees of the Member with respect to the 
giving and receiving of notice of claim or cancellation or 
non-renewal, the payment of premiums and the receiving of 
any return premiums that may become due under this 
Agreement. Notice to that individual named in the 
Application at the address of the member shall also 
constitute notice to all Insured. 

All notices of claims or any 
be given to LIMRiCC under this 
writing and shall be addressed to: 

LIMRiCC 
PO Box 1016 

other notice required to 
Agreement shall be in 

Orland Park, Illinois 60462 
Attn: Executive Director 

19 



• 

• 

• 

11. Acceptance. 

By acceptance of this Agreement, the Member and the 
Insured agree that this Agreement embodies all agreements 
existing between themselves and LIMRiCC relating to joint 
self-insurance. 

12. Other Insurance. 

If the Member or any Insured has other valid and 
collectible insurance insuring against 
this Agreement, the insurance provided 
shall be secondary to and shall apply 
other insurance. 

I. Cancellation. 

a Loss covered by 
by this Agreement 
in excess of such 

This Agreement may be canceled by the Member. for 
itself and its Insured by mailing to LIMRiCC written notice 
stating when thereafter the cancellation shall be 
effective. 

Subj ect to Article II, H. 2, LIMRiCC may cancel this 
Agreement and shall thereupon mail to the Member notice 
stating when not less than sixty (60) days thereafter such 
cancellation shall be effective. Prior to the effective 
date of such cancellation, the member shall be given an 
opportunity to be heard by LIMRiCC. After the hearing, 
LIMRiCC shall determine whether to affi"rm or rescind the 
cancellation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement 
may also be canceled by LIMRiCC upon not less than ten (10) 
days notice when the cancellation is being effected by 
reason of the Member's non-payment of premium. 

The mailing of notice as aforesaid shall be sufficient 
proof of notice. 

The time of surrender or the effective date and hour 
of cancellation stated in the notice shall become the end 
of the Agreement period. 

Cancellation shall be subject to the liability of the 
Member for assessments pursuant to paragraph F, where the 
assessment results from a claim made prior to the effective 
date of cancellation. Cancellation by LIMRiCC shall be 
subject to LIMRiCC's liability, if any, for claims made 
prior to the effective date of cancellation. 

20 



• 

• 

• 

J. Non-Renewal 

If LIMRiCC refuses to renew the Agreement for any 
additional one-year period, it shall so notify the Member 
at least sixty (60) days prior to the termination date of 
the current Agreement. In the absence of such notice, the 
Member may renew the Agreement each year for an additional 
one-year period by paying the annual premium prior to the 
termination date of the current Agreement. 

K. Participation In Unexpended Funds. 

1. Cancellation. 

In the event LIMRiCC cancels the Agreement with a 
Member, the Member shall receive a pro-rata refund of the 
amount it has paid for coverage for the period of time that 
it does not receive coverage. The Member shall also 
participate in the first five-year distribution after its 
cancellation of coverage under the Agreement, to the extent 
of ten percent (10%) of a five-year Member's distribution 
for each full year of coverage. 

2. Membership for Five or More Years. 

Members who have participated for five (5) years shall 
receive a distribution of unexpended funds within four (4) 
months after the end of the fifth (5 th ) year as follows: 

Member's Payment to the Fund 
Total Payments to the fund 

(Less Refunds) 
X Unexpended 

Balance x 40% 

After each additional five years of membership, 
Members who have participated for additional five years of 
Membership shall receive a distribution of unexpended funds 
within four (4) months after the end of each fifth year 
period as follows: 

Member's payment to the Fund X 
Total payments to the fund 

(Less Refunds) 

Unexpended Balance in 
excess of $2,000,000 

X 40% 

The Member shall be credited for the time of its 
participation in the Prior Self-Insurance Agreement. 

21 



• 

• 

• 

3. On Termination of the Program. 

On termination of the Program, all Members 
participating at that time shall receive a distribution of 
unexpended funds based on the following formula: 

Payments to the Fund (Less Refunds) X 
Payments to all participating Members 

(at that time) (less refunds) 

Unexpended 
Funds 

Provided, however, distribution will be deferred until all 
contingent liabilities have been resolved by LIMRiCC. 

LIMRiCC reserves the right to establish reserves 
necessary in its judgment for specific outstanding claims. 
These reserves shall be deducted from unexpended funds 
prior to any distribution thereof pursuant to this 
paragraph K. 

L. Disputes. 

Any dispute not resolved by the efforts of the parties 
shall be adj udicated by filing of a declaratory judgment 
action in the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois. All 
parties hereto agree that, should such a need arise, every 
effort will be made to proceed as expeditiously as possible 
and, further, all parties hereto will submit to 
jurisdiction and venue in said forum. 

M. Prior Coverage. 

There shall be no interruption of coverage as a result 
of the transition from the Prior Self-Insurance Agreement. 

The Member's share of unexpended funds in the prior 
self-insurance agreement as of May 31, 1993, will be 
transferred by Metropolitan Library System (formerly 
suburban Library System) to the Member's share under this 
LIMRiCC agreement. 

The· period of time of the member's participation in 
the prior Self-Insurance Agreement shall be credited to the 
Member under this LIMRiCC agreement. (Article II- k. 2) 

22 



• 

• 

• 

ARTICLE III. JOINT PURCHASE OF HEALTH INSURANCE. 

A. PURPOSE 

It is the purpose of this Agreement to create a new 
Program of LIMRiCC, namely, the Purchase of Health Insurance 
Program, providing for the purchase, on behalf of its 
Members, of health insurance coverage for employees, spouses 
and dependents ("Insured Participants") of Members, under the 
terms and conditions set forth herein and in the By-Laws of 
LIMRiCC as in effect from time to time. The Purchase of 
Heal th Insurance Program will arrange for the purchase on 
behalf of Members of group health insurance (hereinafter, 
referred to collectively as "health insurance"), which may 
include, but is not limited to, the following: 

Comprehensive Health Insurance, 
Life Insurance Benefits, 
Accidental Death and Dismemberment Benefits, 
Dental Insurance, 
Vision Insurance, 
Prescription Drug Coverage. 

The health insurance will be purchased by LIMRiCC on 
behalf of the Members. 

By arranging for the purchase of health insurance on 
behalf of all Members, LIMRiCC can achieve savings in 
premiums. 

It is the purpose of the Members to purchase health 
insurance through LIMRiCC under this Program. Each member 
must submit a written Application to LIMRiCC for 
participation in this Program. 

B. AUTHORITY 

This agreement is authorized by the intergovernmental 
cooperation clause as set forth in Article VII, Section 10 of 
the Constitution of the State of Illinois; by 5 ILCS 220/6 et 
~.; and by the provisions of the Local Governmental and 
Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act (745 ILCS 10/1-101 
et ~.) 

23 



• 

• 

• 

C. ASSESSMENTS OF MEMBERS 

Each Member shall pay LIMRiCC $5.00 per month for each 
Insured Participant, for the administrative services provided 
by LIMRiCC under the Purchase of Health Insurance Program, 
together with the premium cost of the health insurance 
purchased by the Member. Each Member shall remit its payment 
to LIMRiCC with 30 days after the receipt of LIMRiCC's 
invoice. The fee for administrative services provided by 
LIMRiCC may be increased at the annual renewal meeting, if at 
least fifty percent (50%) of the Members in attendance 
consent to the increase. 

D. RENEWAL MEETING 

On or before May 31st of each year, a Renewal Meeting 
will be held to evaluate operation of the Purchase of Health 
Insurance Program and to determine the plan/policy that will 
be purchased by LIMRiCC on behalf of the Members for the next 
policy period. Representatives from each Member (Library 
Director /Administrator, other administrators, or his/her 
designees) may attend the Renewal Meeting. The Executive 
Director or his/her designee shall attend the Renewal 
Meeting. At the Renewal Meeting, a final decision shall be 
made regarding the purchase of a plan/policy by LIMRiCC by a 
majority vote of those Members in attendance. Each Member 
may have more than one representative attend. Each Member, 
however, may only vote once regarding the approval of the 
plan/policy. Also at the Renewal Meeting, the annual fee may 
by increased by a majority vote of the Members. 

E . POWERS AND DUTIES OF LIMlliCC 

The powers of LIMRiCC to perform and accomplish the 
purposes set forth in this Agreement shall be the following 
and shall be exercised through the Board of Directors: 

1. To purchase health insurance on behalf of the 
Members; 

2. To employ agents, employees and 
contractors, including legal counsel; 

independent 

3. To collect from the Members the actual cost of the 
health insurance purchased on the Members' behalf, 
together with such additional sums as may be 

24 



• 

• 

• 

necessary to cover the cost 
administration of this Program; 

of LIMRiCC's 

4. LIMRiCC may designate Metropolitan Library System 
(formerly Suburban Library System) to manage this 
Program; provided the annual fee for these services 
shall not exceed $5.00 per month for each Insured 
Participant without the consent of fifty percent 
(50%) of the Members; and 

5. LIMRiCC shall not be responsible for the validity 
of any health insurance policy issued hereunder, 
nor for the failure of the insurance company to 
make the payments provided for under any health 
insurance policy, or for the action of any person 
which may delay, or render null and void or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, any health 
insurance policy issued under this Program. 

F. POWERS AND DUTIES OF MEMBERS 

It is the responsibility of the Member to select 
suitable health insurance coverage for its employees and 
their respective spouses and dependents from the coverages 
available under the Purchase of Health Insurance Program. The 
rights and conditions with respect to coverage and benefits 
under such health insurance shall be determined by the 
respective insurance policies, which policies shall be 
incorporated herein by reference; and LIMRiCC shall have no 
liability for health insurance benefits under this Program. 
Any claim for benefits under a health insurance policy shall 
be made to the insurance company; and if this claim is 
denied, any appeal therefrom shall follow the insurance 
company's claims review policy. 

In the event of a conflict between the terms of this 
Program and in the terms of a health insurance policy which 
is then being used in conj unction with this Program, the 
terms of said insurance policy shall control as to those 
Members whose employees, and their respective spouses and 
dependents are receiving health insurance coverage and 
benefits under such insurance policy. For this purpose, the 
insurance policy shall control in defining: 

1. The persons eligible for insurance coverage; 

2. The dates of their eligibility; 

25 



• 

• 

• 

3. The conditions which must be satisfied to become 
insured, if any; 

4. The benefits to be provided; and 

5. The circumstances under which such health insurance 
terminates. 

G. TERM OF THE PROGRAM 

1. This Program shall become effective on the 1st day 
of April, 1994, provided that by such date there are 
no less than 20 members of LIMRiCC who have elected 
in writing to participate in this Program, and shall 
continue in effect thereafter until terminated. 

2. Each Member shall have the right to cancel its 
participation in the Program by March 31, which 
shall be effective on June 30. LIMRiCC shall have 
the right to cancel the participation of any 
Member, except in the event of non-payment of 
premiums by the Member. In the event of non-payment 
of premiums by the Member, LIMRiCC shall have the 
right to cancel the participation of such Member on 
thirty (30) days' written notice, unless the non
payment is remedied during the thirty-day period. 

H. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF MEMBERS 

1. The rights 6f each Member of LIMRiCC shall include 
the following: 

(a) To enforce the obligations of LIMRiCC as set 
forth herein as a contractual obligation. This 
contract may be enforced in a court of law either 
by LIMRiCC itself or by any of its Members. The 
consideration for the Obligations imposed herewith 
shall be based upon the mutual promises and 
agreements of the Members set forth herein. 

(b) No member agrees or contracts herein to be 
held responsible for any claims in tort or contract 
or otherwise made against any other Member. Members 
intend in the creation of LIMRiCC to establish an 
organization for the purchase of health insurance 
within the scope herein set forth, and have not 

26 



(~ 

• 

• 

• 

created as between Members any relationship of 
surety, indemnification or responsibility for the 
debts of or claims against any Member. 

2. (a) The initial Members of this Program, that 
is, those Members who )Oln this program 
effective April 1, 1994, shall deposit with LIMRiCC 
a Special Reserve Fund which shall be held by 
LIMRiCC without the payment of interest, and shall 
be used by LIMRiCC as a cash reserve for the 
payment of premiums for the health insurance 
coverages selected by the initial Members. 

(b) Any of the initial Members which cancels its 
participation in this Program (as set forth in 
Paragraph No. 7 (B) above) shall have the right to 
request a withdrawal of that percentage of the 
Special Reserve Fund, valued as of April 1, 1994, 
determined as follows: 

The percentage of the April 1, 1994 value of 
the Special Reserve Fund to which an initial Member 
is entitled upon cancellation of participation in 
this Program shall be equal to the April 1, 1994 
value of the Special Reserve Fund, multiplied by a 
fraction, the numerator of which is the total 
number of Insured Participants enrolled by the 
canceling initial Member on April 1, 1994, and the 
denominator of which is the total number of Insured 
Participants enrolled by a~~ initial Members on 
April 1, 1994. 

(c) On termination of this Program by LIMRiCC (as 
set forth in Paragraph No. 7 (B) above), LIMRiCC 
shall pay to each initial Member that has not 
previously canceled its participation in the 
Program, and has not previously been canceled by 
LIMRiCC, such initial Member's respective 
percentage of the Special Reserve Fund, 
determined as set forth in Subparagraph (b) above. 

(d) Each payment by LIMRiCC under this Paragraph 
shall be due within 90 days after the cancellation 
of participation or, as appropriate, the 
termination of the Program, and shall be made by 
LIMRiCC without interest. 

27 



• 

• 

• 

3. The obligations of each Member of LIMRiCC shall 
include the following: 

(al To allow LIMRiCC reasonable access to all 
facili ties of the Member and all records relating 
to claims and the financial obligations of the 
Member to LIMRiCC. 

(bl To furnish full cooperation with LIMRiCC's 
attorneys, Executive Director and any agent, 
employee, officer or independent contractor of 
LIMRiCC relating to the purposes and powers of 
LIMRiCC. 

(cl To follow in the operations of the Member all 
procedures established by LIMRiCC within its 
purposes and powers, including, but not limited 
to, the use of release forms, posting of notices, 
participation in e~ucational and record-keeping 
programs, limitations on activities offered, and 
the use of loss prevention techniques and devices. 

(dl In the event that LIMRiCC shall be required 
to expend funds for administrative, legal or other 
operating costs, or to take other actions required 
under this Agreement or its By-Laws, the Member 
shall pay its share of the amounts so expended as 
provided in the By-Laws. 

el To make other payments 
established in its By-Laws. 

to LIMRiCC as 

(fl To appropriate or budget annually its 
liabilities under the LIMRiCC Program or Programs 
in which the Member participates. 

I. LIABILITY OF LIMRiCC, ITS OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS 

The members of the Board of Directors and the officers 
and employees of LIMRiCC shall use ordinary care and 
reasonable diligence in the exercise of their powers and in 
the performance of their duties hereunder. They shall not be 
liable for any mistake of judgment or other action made, 
taken or omitted by them in good faith; nor for any action 
taken or omitted by any agent, employee or independent 
contractor; nor for any loss incurred through investment of 

28 



• 

• 

• 

LIMRiCC funds or failure to invest. They may participate in 
indemnification and self insurance programs. No Director, 
officer or employee shall be liable for any action taken or 
omitted by any other Director or officer. 

The liability of LIMRiCC, its officers and Directors is 
limited solely to the proceeds of payments of Members. The 
funds of each insurance program, i.e. those established under 
Articles I, II and III and the Purchase of Health Insurance 
Program are kept separate and accounted for separately. 
Claims in each such separate insurance program are limited to 
the funds of that separate program. 

If any claim or action not covered by insurance is 
instituted against a Director, officer or employee of LIMRiCC 
allegedly arising out of an act or omission occurring within 
the scope of his or her duties, LIMRiCC shall at the request 
of them: 

l. appear and defend against the claim or 
action; and 

2. payor indemnify the Director, officer or 
employee for a judgment and court costs based on such claim 
or action, provided there shall be no indemnification for any 
portion of a judgment representing an award of punitive or 
exemplary damages; and 

3. payor indemnify the Director, officer or 
employee for a compromise or settlement of such claim or 
action providing the settlement is approved by the Board of 
Directors of LIMRiCC. 

The term "Director, officer or employee" shall include 
former Directors, officers and employees. This 
indemnification resolution shall not apply if the Board of 
Directors finds that the claim or action is based on 
malicious, 
malicious, 
action to 
determined 

J. 

willful or criminal claim or action is based on 
willful or criminal misconduct. In such case the 
be taken by the Board of Directors will be 

after an investigation of the facts. 

BY-LAWS 

This Agreement is subject 
LIMRiCC. A certified copy of the 
has been furnished to the Member. 

to the current By-Laws of 
current By-Laws of LIMRiCC 

29 



• 

• 

• 

K. NOTICES 

All notices of claims or any other notice required to be 
given pursuant to this Agreement, shall be sent by certified 
mail and shall be addressed to: 

ARTICLE IV. 

and to: 

LIMRiCC 
125 Tower Drive 
Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527 
Attention: Executive Director 

Des Plaines Public Library 
1501 Ellinwood Street 
Des Plaines, IL 60016 
Attention: Head Librarian 

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF MEMBERS. 

A. The obligations of each Member of LIMRiCC shall 
include the following: 

1. To allow LIMRiCC reasonable access to all 
facilities of the Member and all records 
relating to claims and the financial 
obligations of the Member to LIMRiCC. 

2. To furnish full cooperation with LIMRiCC's 
attorneys, claims administrator with any 
agent, employee, officer or independent 
contractor LIMRiCC relating to the purposes 
and powers of LIMRiCC. 

3. To follow in the operations of the Member 
all loss reduction and prevention procedures 
established by LIMRiCC wi thin its purposes 
and powers, including, but not limited to, 
the use of release forms, posting of 
notices, participation in educational and 
record-keeping programs, limitations on 
activities offered, and the use of loss 
prevention techniques and devices. 

4 . In the event that LIMRiCC shall be required 
to expend funds for administrative, legal or 

30 



,.~ 

'" 

• 

• 

• 

5. 

6. 

other operating costs, or to take other 
actions required under this Agreement or its 
BY-Laws, the Member shall pay its share of 
the amounts so expended as provided in the 
By-Laws. 

To make other payments to 
established in the By-Laws. 

LIMRiCC 

To appropriate or budget annually 
liabilities under the LIMRiCC Programs. 

as 

its 

B. Rights of Members 

Rights of each Member of LIMRiCC shall include the 
following: 

1. To enforce the obligations of LIMRiCC as set 
forth herein as a contractual obligation. 
This contract may be enforced in a court of 
law either by LIMRiCC itself or by any of 
its Members. The consideration for the 
obligations imposed herewith shall be based 
upon the mutual promises and agreements of 
the members set forth herein. 

2. Except as provided in Article II-F, no 
Member agrees or contracts herein to be held 
responsible for any claims in tort or 
contract or otherwise made against any other 
Member. Members intend in the creation of 
LIMRiCC to' establish an organization for 
joint risk management only within the scope 
herein set forth and have not created as 
between Members any relationship of surety, 
indemnification or responsibility for the 
debts of or claims against any Member. 

3. Where rights of Members to participate in 
benefits are dependent on the length of time 
of participation, the Member shall be 
credited for its participation in the 
predecessor programs of the Metropolitan 
Library System (formerly Suburban Library 
System) . 

31 



• 

• 

• 

ARTICLE V. LIABILITY OF LIMRICC, ITS OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS 

The members of the Board of Directors and the officers 
and employees of LIMRiCC shall use ordinary care and 
reasonable diligence in the exercise of their powers and in 
the performance of their duties hereunder. The shall not be 
liable for any mistake of judgment or other action made, 
taken or omitted by them in good faith; nor for any action 
taken or omitted by any agent, employee or independent 
contractor; nor for any loss incurred through investment of 
LIMRiCC funds or failure to invest. They may participate in 
indemnification and self-insurance programs. No Director, 
officer or employee shall be liable for any action taken or 
omitted by any other Director or officer. 

The liability of LIMRiCC, its officers and Directors 
is limited solely to the proceeds of payments of Members 
and proceeds of any insurance provided by LIMRiCC. The 
funds of each insurance program, i.e. those established 
under Articles I, II, and III are to be kept separate and 
accounted for separately. Claims in each such separate 
insurance program are limited to the funds of that separate 
program . 

If any claim or action not covered by insurance is 
instituted against a Director, officer or employee of 
LIMRiCC allegedly arising out of an act or omission 
occurring wi thin the scope of his or her duties, LIMRiCC 
shall at the request of the Director, officer or employee: 

(a) appear and defend against the claim or action; 
and 

(b) Payor indemnify the Director, officer or 
employee for a judgment and court costs based on 
such claim or action, provided there shall be no 
indemnification for any portion of·a judgment 
representing an award of puni ti ve or exemplary 
damages; and 

(c) payor indemnify the Director, officer or 
employee for a compromise or settlement of such 
claim or action providing the. settlement is 
approved by the Board of Directors of LIMRiCC. 

The 
former 

term Director, officer 
Directors, officers 

or employee shall 
and employees. 

include 
This 

32 



• 

• 

• 

indemnification resolution shall not apply if the Board of 
Directors finds that the claim or action is based on 
malicious, willful or criminal misconduct. In such case, 
the action to be taken by the Board of Directors will be 
determined after an investigation of the facts. 

ARTICLE VI. BY-LAWS. 

A certified copy of the By-Laws of LIMRiCC has been 
furnished to the Member. 

ARTICLE VII. NOTICES. 

All notices of claims or any other 
be given pursuant to this agreement, 
certified mail and shall be addressed to: 

LIMRiCC 
125 Tower Drive 

notice required to 
shall be sent by 

Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527 
Attention: Executive Director 

And to: Head Librarian 
Des Plaines Public Library 
1501 Ellinwood Street 
Des Plaines, IL 60016 

ARTICLE VIII. FORMER PARTICIPATION OF METROPOLITAN LIBRARY 
SYSTEM (FORMERLY SUBURBAN LIBRARY SYSTEM) 

LIMRiCC is the successor in interest to Metropolitan 
Library system (formerly Suburban Library System) as the 
contracting party under the Unemployment Compensation 
Program and the Joint Self-Insurance Program. Rights and 
liabili ties of Metropolitan Library System (formerly 
Suburban Library System) is not a contractual participant 
under the programs. 

ARTICLE IX. AMENDMENTS 

The Board of Directors may, in the following manner, amend 
the "By-Laws of the Library Insurance Management And Risk 
Control Combination (LIMRiCC)" at any time and from time to 
time to add a new provision or change or remove an existing 
provision~ 

33 

--------- -----------~ 



• 

• 

• 

(a) The Board of Directors shall adopt a Resolution 
setting forth the proposed amendment and the date on which 
the amendment is to become effective, and directing that 
the proposed amendment be submitted to each LIMRiCC Member 
that will be affected by the proposed amendment. 

(b) LIMRiCC shall give to each LIMRiCC Member that will be 
affected by the proposed amendment written notice of the 
proposed amendment, including the text of the proposed 
amendment and the date on which the amendment is to become 
effective, together with a ballot for voting to approve or 
disapprove the proposed amendment. Such notice shall be 
given not less than 60 days and not more than 90 days 
before the proposed effective date of the amendment, either 
via electronic mail or U. S. mail. If mailed, such notice 
shall be deemed to have been delivered on the second day 
after the day on which it is deposited in the United States 
mail, addressed to the Member at its address on the records 
of LIMRiCC, with postage prepaid. 

(c) Each LIMRiCC Member must return its ballot to LIMRiCC 
on or before 5:00 PM on the proposed effective date of the 
amendment. 

(d) The proposed amendment,shall be adopted upon receiving 
the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the LIMRiCC 
Members entitled to vote on such amendment. 

(e) Any number of amendments may be submitted to the 
LIMRiCC Members and voted upon by them at one time. 

(f) A LIMRiCC Member that has timely voted against the 
adoption of a proposed amendment may, within 60 days after 
the effective date of the proposed amendment, elect to 
wi thdraw from the LIMRiCC Program (s) affected by the new 
amendment, but only if the amendment materially and 
adversely affects the Member. 

(g) Any LIMRiCC Member that is entitled to elect to 
wi thdraw from the LIMRiCC Program (s) in question is 
precluded from challenging the new amendment that creates 
the right of withdrawal, unless the adoption of the 
amendment is fraudulent with respect to the Member or with 
respect to LIMRiCC, or constitutes a breach of a fiduciary 
duty owed to the Member. 

34 



• 

• 

• 

(h) A LIMRiCC Member that is entitled to elect to 
withdraw may do so only if the Member deliver its written 
election to LIMRiCC within the said 60-day period. 

(i) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in .this 
Article, the withdrawal of· a Member shall not affect any 
existing claim (s) in favor of LIMRiCC against the 
wi thdrawing Member, or in favor of the withdrawing Member 
and against LIMRiCC. 

#239400 

35 



• 

• 

• 

Dated this day of 

By: 

President 

(to be signed by the LIMRiCC Board President) 

LIBRARY INSURANCE MANAGEMENT AND RISK CONTROL COMBINATION 
(LIMRiCC) 

Dated this day of 
------

By: 
President 

36 



(,! 

()o 

( 

• 

. -
, 



(Z) 
f~ 

':<l ,.,., 

• 

• 

• 

~t: 1,1 /\ 

Des Plaines-
1501 Ellinwood Street 

Public ~ibrary 
,,---

Des Plaines, Il 600164553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

TO: Library Board of Trustees 

FROM: Holly Richards Sorensen, Library Directo,* 

Background on September Agenda Items SUBJECT: 

DATE: September 16, 2010 

To help you prepare for the discussion at our meeting on September 21, please refer to 
information provided below. If you would like more information or explanation, please 
contact me (847-376-2801) or Carol Kidd (2803) before September 21. . 

IX. New Business 

A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $128,026.29. [Action Item] 

B. Finance Committee Report. [Action Item] 
Attached are the minutes from the Finance Committee meetings held on August 23 
and 31. You will be asked to approve the minutes, the library budget Alternative 
2.2, the LlMRiCC health insurance plan for library employees for 2011 and the 
revised Intergovernmental Agreement. I have attached the budget document, 
Alternative 2.2, the health insurance informational sheet and the revised 
Intergovernmental Agreement. 

. C. Management Committee Report. [Action Item] 
Attached are the minutes from the Management Committee meeting held on 
September 1. You will be asked to vote to approve the minutes and to approve 
posting on the library website the audited financial reports and approved library 
budgets. You will also be asked to approve the revised job description for the 
Reference Librarian II position. A copy of the job description, with changes, is 
attached. 

D. Trustee Training. 
For the 2011 Per Capita Grant the library board and staff are required to review 
several documents. This month we will review Serving Our Public 2.0 Standards for 
Illinois Public Libraries. Please bring your copy of Serving Our Public 2.0 Standards 
for Illinois Public Libraries to the meeting. 

E. Approve Per Capita Grant Application. [Action Item] 
The Per Capita Grant application will be available for you to review at Tuesday's 
meeting. You will be asked to vote to approve the FY2011 Illinois Public Library . 

www.dp"~~apita and Equalization Aid Grants Application. 
'- .. -
\: 

P1 



• 

• 

• 

Alternative 2.2 DRAFT 

Alternative Budget 2.2 includes the following budget changes proposed at the August 
10,2010 Special Board of Trustees meeting. 

1) Restored Mobile Library service with three part-time positions for operation and 
added back in expenditures in contractual services for vehicle maintenance. 
($6,750) and diesel ($2,000). To offset these costs we reduced membership dues by 
$5,500 and telephone repair service by $1,000. 

2) Cut Capital Projects by $60,500. 
3) Reduced Capital Expenditures by $15,120. 
4) Eliminate raises for staff $40,028. 
5) Increase employee contribution for medical premiums $54,624. 

In addition, this budget presents an alternate set of reductions to the personnel budget. 

1) Freeze Readers' Services Supervisor. $51,000. 
2) Eliminate FuJi-time Reference Librarian II. $73,000. 
3) Eliminate Full-time Youth Services Assistant. $79,000. 
4) Eliminate 2 Full-time Monitors. $125,000. 
5) One furlough day on Friday, November 25,2011. $11,000. 
6) Acting Assistant Director for 2011. ($4,000) . 
7) Acting Head of Adult Services for 2011. ($5,000). 
8) Add Part-time Reference Librarian. ($33,000) 
9) Add 2 Part-time Youth Services Assistants. ($50,000) 
1 O)Add 3 Part-time Monitors. ($52,000) 

L'b I rill)' Fun d 
2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 

Projected 
Beginning 1,044,509 1,296,756 1,533,655 
Balance 
Revenues 6,965,236 6,703,990 6,892,108 
Expenditures (6,276,090) (6,657,885) (6,376,819) 
Transfers (200,000) (300,000) (300,000) 
Ending 1,533,655 1,042,861 1,748,944 
Balance 

8/31/201 ° 1:45:14 PM 

2011 
Proposed 
1,748,944 

7,099,834 
(6,133,112) 
(200,000) 
:2,515,666 
'- --~----

P2 



Alternative 2.2 DRAFT 

• 
rb C"t I P " ts F d I rary apl a ro)ec un 

2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 2011 Proposed 
Projected 

Beginning 162,659 132,802 223,383 429,783 
Balance 
Revenues 3,606 5,000 1,500 2,500 
Expenditures (142,882) (207,100) (95,100) (48,200) 
Transfers 200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
Ending Balance 223,383 230,702 429,783 584,083 

L"b Staff I rary 
2008 2009 2010 2011 

Full Time 46 46 46 37 
Part Time 86(FTE 33.2) 76(FTE 29.8) 65(fTE 26.4) 71 (FTE 29.5) 
TOTAL FTEs 79.2 75.8 72.4 66.5 

• 

• 
8/31/201 0 1:45:14 PM 

P3 



"'tI 
~ 

•• Alternative 2.2 
FUND 201 

Redu~\i.on in Budget 
'A'O'i'I'ftionSltoltlUi'I'ge 

Account 

TAXES 
810019 Property Taxes 2002 
810020 Property Taxes 2003 
810021 Property Taxes 2004 
810022 Property Taxes 2005 
810023 Property Taxes 2006 
810024 Property Taxes 2007 
810025 Property Taxes 2008 
810026 Property Taxes 2009 

810027 Property Taxes 2010 

TOTAL TAXES 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 
810800 Personal Prop Repl Tax 
822040 State Grant: Per Capita 
822095 State Grant: Library 

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 

FINES & FEES 
850101 Library Fees 
850102 Library Fines 
850103 Library Fines Credit Card 
850201 Copying Fees 
850202 Damaged Materials 
850203 Lost Materials 

850205 Bags 

850207 Non-Resident Cards 
TOTAL FINES 

TOTAL TAXES 

SPECIAL PROGRAMS & EVENTS 
850215 SpeCial Programs & Events 

TOTAL SPECIAL PROGRAMS & EVENTS 

-

I 

2009 Actual 

(66,433) 
(57,055) 
101,622 

6,640,190 

6,618,325 

92,988 
68,892 

161,880 

114,466 

114,466 

4,550 

4,550 

• 8/30/2010 DR_T 
,. "- T '" 
~-~ ,t·~ 

- .. -

Des Plaines Public Ubrary 
REVENUE - FUND 2110 & 2130 

2010 Bud~et 2010 Prolected 2011 ProDosed 

(27,290) 
50,000 250,368 

6,309,802 6,309,802 250,000 

6499096 

6,359,802 6,532,880 6,749,096 

92,988 92,988 92,988 
57,700 57,700 56,000 

150,688 150,688 148,988 

125,000 4,304 4,300 
128,431 128,000 

13,641 15,000 
29,033 25,000 

464 450 
7,469 7,000 

928 1,000 
2,135 2,000 

125,000 186405 182,750 

5,000 1,330 1,000 

5,000 1,330 1,000 

, DRAFT 



-0 
(J'1 

Alte~ative 2.2-
I Account 

I 
OTHER REVENUE 

890010 Interest Income 
890050 Sale of Fixed Assets 

899900 Miscellaneous Revenue 

899920 library Donations 

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 

FUND TOTAL 

.. 

2009 Actual 

6,204 
a 

24,978 

6,144 

37,326 

6,936,547 

• 8/30/2010 

2010 Bud2et 2010 Proiected 

- 5,000 3,500 
1,000 a! 

17,500 16,5551 

10,000 750 

33,500 10,805 

6,673,990 6,892,108 

DRAFT 

2011 Proposed 

3,500 
a Sale of Mobile library 

14,000 Mobile library Service to 
____ • _______ Rosemont _______ . _ 

500 

18,000 

7,099,834 

-DR!T 

---

" ,..,. .... ,-.. 
'-'J -~ -.I "'J 
..... OJ ......... 



Alternate 2.2 
IFUND 201 

,In Budget 

ITDTAL 

ijatitltetJ 

910100 
910200 
910400 
910500 
910600 
910700 
910900 
910950 
910970 

918010 
918020 
918021 
918030 
918040 
918050 
918051 
918055 
918070 

1 ____ --=9::18085 
ITOTAL BENEFIT5 

" Ol 

920100 
920105 
920110 

920120 

920140 

-

~ Salaries 

I 1 Pay 
Sick Pay 

IHoliday Pay 

I Excess Sick Hrs Payout 

lEAP 
life Ins 
PPO 
HMOI 
Dental 

r Contr - FICA 
r Contr -IMRF 

IRHS Plan Payout 

Legal Fees 
I Costs of I 

IData 

2009 Actual 

62,381 
79,435 

724 
1,748 

ilO.7391 

1,40~ 

267,499 
662 

6,545 
338,038 
105,472 

24,643 
13,793 
18,418 

589 

354,478 

31,803 

57,304 

• 8/30/2010 

Des plaines Public Ubl'"ry 
) - FUND 2110 & 2130 

~Z010 Budget- I 20io Prolected I 2011 

2,318, 
789,113 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

3,500 
o 

4,986 
237,314 I. 

297, 
682 

~,576 

31,505 
9,500 

_ lPlOOO 

15,000 
3,500 

28,460 

DRAFT 

500 

3,500 
o 

26,304 
237,314 

o 
6,576 

256,039 
80,942 
21,710 

9,500 
10,QOO 

10,000 
1,000 

31,157 

71/537 

883,343 
500 

o 
o 
o 
o 

3,5~ 

-.!L 
2,911,776 

31,000 

o 
~ 3,996 
269,057 
99,504 
23,478 
9,500 

10,000 

977,660 

10,000 Legal Fees 
1,000 Costs of 

Staff I 

IAudit 

Details 

-

t Service 

g Service 

Pa roll Service 
33,800 Paetec 

PCN/AT&T 
ICall One 

13 

78,000 I Data g OCLC/CCS 

__ '_T~ 

IJ'ft"A FTl:\\:J 

10,000 
1,000 
5,000 

20,000 
5,000 

10,000 
3,500 
4,400 
5,400 
5,600 

12,400 
00 2,5 

78.000 



"'\J 
-../ 

• 
920202 
920204 

920205 
920206 
920210 

920220 

920225 
920230 
920900 

Account 

Conferences 

Training 

Tuition Reimbursements 
Seminars 
In-Service Training 

Membership Dues 

Ucensing/Titles 
Publication of Notices 
Property/Uab Insurance 

• 
2009 Actual 2010 Bud.~t 

4,144 0 
6,084 2,600 

4,229 0 
0 

877 0 

7,816 6,500 

50 100 
1,101 1,000 

25,773 24,869 

.' ..... " ........ 
t: -~ -!."tj 

2010 Pml~cleJl 2011 Prooo'ed Details Amount 

1,000 1,000 
1,500 0 

0 0 
0 0 

3,208 500 

1000 !ALA Dues for Board, Director, 
--~ .-.- -

6,500 
, !Asst Dir ($3,0001 

liLA Dues for Board&·Prof. Staff 
($3,000'-- ____ ____ _ __ .. _____ •. _ __ _ _ . 

Other Membership Dues ~OOO 
a 

2,OO~ Publishing Bid Notices 2,000 2,000 
24,869 25,000 25,000 



Altern_ve 2.2 

., 
00 

930010 
Account 2009 Actual 

R & M Equipment 100,398 

• 8/30/2010 

2010 Bud.et Z010 Prolected 2011 ProDosed 
110,062 110,062 125,757 

DRAFT 

Details 
BMA Printer 5uPP9rt 
UBS Copier Support 
Wireline (repair telephone 
Service) 
TBS Annual Agreement 
Evanced Annual Agreement 
AWE Annual Agreement 

SARA Workstation Agreement 

Media/Website Workstation 
Lyngsoe 
APe UPS Annual Agreemnt 

Cooperative Computer Services 

IDS Annual ARreement 
Reader/Printers Maintenance 

laminator Maintenance Contract 

Appliance Repair 

Network Maintenance -

Nomadic/Cisco Smartnet/Juniper 

3M Equipment -
(security/checkout/workstations) 

Backflow Device Testing 

• _~T~ 

~AFfli\t! 

Amount 
6,900 

17,000 

4,000 

5,600 
850 

2,350 
250 
200 

23,500 I 

2,750 

17,000 

11,307 
1,500 

300 

1,000 

8,850 

20,900 

1500 



-u 
CD 

• 
930020 

930030 

930195 

930210 

930320 

930490 
960040 
960065 
960070 

Account 
R & M Bldgs & Structures 

R & M Vehicles 

800k Binding & Repair 

Rental of Equipment 

Cleaning: Custodial Services 

Refuse Contract 
Employee Physicals 
Epay Fees 
Travel Expenses 

2009 Actual 
102,375 

7,873 

538 

1,660 

112,179 

5,496 
69 
55 

1972 

• 
2010 Dud.et ZlII0-"r!!lected 

116,235 116,235 

14,300 8,300 

1,000 1,000 

26,500 26,500 

96,700 96,700 

5,500 7,500 
250 250 

500 
500 500 

• ",... 'T r.. 
"t,l'C t.. tJ 

2011 Pr!!I!.Psed Details 8!ru!\Int 
124,080 McQu~ 30,630 

Furniture/carpet/Drapery 
30,000 

Cleanl!!&. 
Painting 8,500 
Woodwork R"I"'ir/ca~n!!'L 4,000 
Fire Protection Equipment 

8,000 
TestinR 
UghtlngfElectrical 9,100 
HVAC Controls 11,750 
Elevator Maintenanc.e 7,500 
Car~eting 3,500 

HVAC Chilled Water Treatment 1,000 

Door Maintenance 5,500 
Plumbing Repairs & RPZ Valve 

4,000 
TestinR 
Meeting Room Partition 

600 
Maintenance 

8~2,s0 ~an Maintenance 

~ ._OJ liD - 6'750 

1,000 
Binding Soft Cover and Hard 1,000 
Cover Books & Periodicals 

27,000 Post~ Machine 2,000 
Copier Lease - United Business 

25,000 
Solution 

92,500 Contract for CleanlnR Ubrary 85,500 
Additional Housekeeping 1,800 
WindOW/Glass Cleanlng~ 5,200 

6,000 Waste Hauling 6,000 
250 250 
500 
500 AutQfl!avel 500 



AlternAe 2.2 

960210 

960990 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 

COMMODITIES 

-0 
~ 

o 

970100 

970110 

Account 
Special Evenl Programming 

Misc. Contractual SVCS 

-

Office Supplies 

Meals (PRSNRS/WRKRS/VOLS) 

• 8/30/2010 

2009 Aclual 2010 BudEe! 2010 Prolected 
28,007 31,000 31,000 

89,189 99,375 99,375 

944,059 1,089,251 1,040,693 

85,172 116,300 116,300 

2,987 2,800 2,800 

DRAFT 

~~-----------------------------

~AFtCl0 
2011 ProDosed DetaIls Amount 

31,000 Youth Services Programming 12,500 
Adult Services Programming 12,500 
Refreshments 1,500 ' 

Community Outreach Activities 4,500 I 

95,600 Baker & Tavlor TIlle Source 5,250 

Aquarium Service 4,000 
Midwest Tape 10,000 
Temoorary Personnel 5,000 
Baker & Tavlor Processing 20,000 
Crimson Multimedia 1,000 
Van Delive~ Service . 25,000 
Plant Service 1,000 

Constant Contact (eNewsletter) 1,200 

Invlcta Services . 750 
ePav Fees 1,000 
8ack-up Disaster Recovery Off-

6,000 
site StoraRe 
Server Monitorinp.: 4,200 
Collecllon ARencv Fees 5,200 
Furniture Recovering 5,000 
Building System Monitoring 1,000 

1,029,737 

107,800 Matefials Processing 70,000 
HardwarelNetwork Sueelles 2,300 
Debit Cards 1,000 
Toner 2,500 

Mice/Keyboards 2,500 
Headphones 2,500 
Library Cards 4,000 
Backup Tapes 3,000 
Supplies 20,000 

2,100 
Library Hosted Meellngs & Public 

1,600 
Pro_rams All Staff 
Volunteer Party --- ----

sao 



• 
970115 
970170 

970260 

970270 
970500 
970600 
970610 
970620 
970630 
970640 
970810 
970820 
970840 
970850 
970900 

TOTAL COMMODITIES 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

-0 
~ 

~ 

980300 

980400 

980410 

Account 
Supplies: Dept./Other 
Janitorial 

Postage and Parcel 

Printlng-Reprod-Blnding 
Purchase of Water 
Books 
Audio Materials 
Subscriptions and Books 
Visual Materials· 
Automated Reference Mat') 

Natural Gas 
Electricity 
Diesel 

Gasoline 

Equipment < $5,000 

Improvements 

Equipment 

Computer Hardware 

-

• 
Z009Actuai Z010 Budeet 

12 ° 22,633 23,800 

10,459 13000 

10,606 5000 
8000 

463,933 489800 
71,126 84600 
63,532 78800 
91,670 96250 

127,900 141000 
23,464 30000 

0 500 
0 4000 
9 2000 

14,257 5500 

987,759 1,101,350 

0 8,000 

0 33,000 

2,444 6,750 

c 

• t:t;18 

Z010 Prolected 2011 PrODosed DetaUs Amount 

° ° 25,000 30,900 Housekeeping Supplies 19,200 
lighting 7,200 
Restroom Replacement Parts 2,500 
Filters 2,000 

18500 25,000 
Post Interlibrary IDan, Outgoing 

25,000 
Mail FedEx Notices 

2500 6,000 Printing 6,000 
6000 6,000 Purchase of Water 6,000 

489800 401,805 Books 401,805 
84600 90,200 Music and Audio Books 90,200 
78800 69,500 Periodicals . 69,500 
96250 111,000 OVDs 111,000 

141000 128,900 Electronic Databases 128,900 
20000 18000 

500 500 
2000 2 00 0 

SOO SOO 
5500 2,000 Book Carts 2,000 

1,090,050 1,002,205 

0 0 

41,000 I 
----~--------- - ~---- -

o Security System OVR ($12,000) 
I 

4,000 I ______ (;,~O'9_ (ll[!.e.!'eipJe!l,!!e!-,J$J,~OQ) ________ --- --
Barcode Scanner 200 
Mac for Graphics 2,000 
Medium Pen Tablet 300 
External Harddrive 700 
Dell Replacement Parts 2,000 
Monitor Replacement 1,000 
Photocolor Scanner 300 

!PUblicsimP"le -Scan Station 
"-- ._-.- -" --

($1.920) 



Alternat,e 2.2 • 8/30/2010 rI ~~·T~ 

AFrO l!:J 

8ccount 2009 Actual 2010 Budoet 2010 Prolected 2011 Pro Dosed Details Amount 
980420 Computer Software 13,875 32,000 32,000 33,465 Graphics Software 4,500 

E2Audit 550 
Public Adobe Suite 1,800 
Short Keys Upgra.e 250 
Web Classification 575 
Trend anti-virus 3,300 
Public Web Browser 125 
Web Dewey 575 
Cataloger Desk 750 
Microsoft Annual Licenses 12,000 
Jaws & Magic 800 
Novelist Select 1,000 
Fortes/Cleanslate 490 
Website Software 4,000 
Microsoft Services 2,750 

980600 Furniture & Fixtures 7,257 20,500 20,500 17,300 Zig Zag Shelving 1,600 
Y5 CD Unit 700 
Y5 Display Furniture 6,000 
Public Seating Re~lacement 3,000 
Signage 6,000 

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 23,576 100,250 97,500 57,265 

Other Funding Activities . 

990935 Trans to 0/50: 200ZA Bond 14,852 24,598 24,598 23,469 End with 2011 BudRet 23,469 
990940 Trans to Ub cap Proj FNO 400,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
990955 Trans to 0/50: 2003B Bond 10,995 0 a 0 End with 2008 Budget 
993000 Contingency Reserve a 75000 75000 75 000 

TOTAL OTHER FUNDING ACTIVITIES 425,847 399,598 399,598 298,469 

LIBRARY TOTALS 6,439,970 6,900,lBS 6,619,119 6,277,112 
- - . 

""C 
~ 

N 

DRAFT 



• • • , ..... ..-r.. 
V"O {.!j 

Account 2009 Actual I 2010 !Jude.t I 2010 ~rolect.d I 2011 ProDo,.d Details Amount 
PER CAPITA EXPENDITURES - FUND 2130 

Contractual Service, 

gZaZaZ Conferences 7,704 1,= 1,= 5,= 
920204 Training 4,500 3,000 3,000 ° 920210 In-Service Training 1,567 4,000 4,000 
960070 Travel Exp_enses 234 1,000 1,000 5,000 
960210 Special Event Prog 9,246 3,200 3,200 
960990 Mise Contractual Svcs 15,260 20,000 20,000 30,000 local History Digitlzation 30,000 
TOTAL CONTRACTUAL 38,511 32,200 32,200 40,000 

Commodities 
970260 Postage and Parcel 2,000 7,500 7,500 0 
970270 Printing-Reprod-Blnding 15,686 ° 0 0 
TOTAL COMMODITIES 17,686 7,500 7,500 0 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

980400 Equipment 12,703 18,000 18,000 16,000 Audlo/Visual Disk Cleaning Sy.!er 16,000 
TOTAL CAPITAL 12,703 18,000 18,000 16,000 

PER CAPITA TOTALS DIVISION TOTALS 68,900 57,700 57,700 56,000 

TOTAL 2110 & 2130 6,508,870 6,957,885 6676,819 6,333,112 

-c 
~ 

c..> 



Alte~ative 2.2 • 8/30/2010 DRtT 
r"" T ...... 

~t} -t,-tj 

FUND 202 Des Plaines Public Ubrary 
REVENUE - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

8cco~nl 20119 8ctu~1 
2010 2010 2011 

BudKet Prolected ProDDsed 

OTHER REVENUE 

890010 Interest Income 628 5,000 1,500 2,500 
899900 Miscellaneous Revenue 2,978 
899920 Library Donations 

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 3,606 5,000 1,500 2,500 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

898902 Transfer from Lib Fund 200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 

FUND TOTAL I 203,606 I 305,000 I 301,500 I 202,500 

-0 
~ 

.j:> DRAFT 



Alte~ative 2.2 • 8/30/2010 DRIT 
9-618 

FUNDZOZ Des Plaines Pu6lic U6rary ._---
Reduction in Budget EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

;tXi:li:litions \k!) Iil!l!lmfr "." .. <: 
Account 

2009 2010 2010 2011 
Details Amount 

Actual Bud et Pro ected Pro osed 
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 

920110 Professional Services $843 15,000 0 
960990 Misc Contractual SVC5 $560 0 0 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES $1,403 15,000 0 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

980300 Improvements 43,008 92,000 0 o reen Lounge Computer 
Proiect ($23,000) 

IPublic Restroom 

Ilmprovements.($20,OOO) I 
980400 Equipment 12,088 24,000 24,000 01 

"Teenlounge-Project ((4) , 
I 

980410 Computer Hardware 81,913 76,100 71,100 48,200 Computers, (1 ) Printer, (1) I 
Printer Release Station) 
158.8001 ______ .' 
7 Hard Drives .4,200 

(44) Computers 44,000 
1(2)EarlY literacy Statio-;:' -' 

($7,000) 
ITeen Lounge Project (PC 

980420 Computer Software 4,470 0 0 o Reservation & Pcounter) 
IS1.7001 .. __ .. ______ • _ 

980600 Furniture & Fixtures 0 0 
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 141,479 192,100 95,100 48,200 

DIVISION TOTALS 142,882 207,100 95,100 48,200 

"'C 
~ 

(11 

DRAFT 



(~) 

• 

• 

• 

I am recommending that the library select the LlMRiCC (Library Insurance Management 
and Risk Control Combination) Health Insurance Program. 

LlMRiCC offers the lowest cost, the choice of two PPO's and an HMO as our current plan 
does and allows us to stay within the Blue Cross Blue Shield of Illinois network. 

Cost of the three plans we considered: 

LlMRiCC 
NSLS 
CBIZ 

$369,000 
$376,000 
$434,000 

Attached are coverage details of each plan. 

Note: 
In the 2011 proposed budget the employee paid portion of the health insurance premium 
is increased to 10% for employees and 25% for family members. This change results in a 
$54,624 decrease in health insurance expenses absorbed by the library. 

P16 



m 
~..". 

• lIMRiCC I 
PPO Low PPO High HMO 

Individual Deductible I 
In Network $ 250 I $ 1,500 0 

Out of Network $ 250 $ 3,000 0 

Family Deductible 

In Network $ 750 $ 4,500 0 
Out of Network $ 750 $ 9,000 0 

Out of Pocket Individual 

In Network $ 1,000 $ ·1,000 0 

Out of Network $ 3,000 $ 3,000 0 
Family Out of Pocket 

In Network 1$ 3,000 $ 3,000 0 

Out of Network $ 7,500 $ 7,500 0 

Lifetime Maximum $ 5,000,000 $ 5,000,000 Unlimited 

Rx Co Pay I 
Generic I $ 10 $ 10 $ 10 

Formulary $ 40 $ 40 $ 40 

Non Formulary . $ 60 $ 60 $ 60 

Rx Co Pay Mail Order (90 day) 

Generic $ 20 $ 20 $ 20 

Formulary $ 80 $ 80 $ 80 

• Non Formulary $ 120 $ 120 $ 120 

I 
NSLS 

Gold Silver Bronze 

Individual Deductible 

In Network $ 200 $ 500 750 

Out of Network NA NA NA 

Family Deductible 

In Network I NA I NA NA 

Out of Network NA NA I NA 

Out of Pocket Individual 

In Network $ 1,000 I $ . 2,500 5000 

Out of Network NA NA NA 
Family Out of Pocket 

In Network NA I NA NA 

Out of Network NA "NA NA 

Lifetime Maximum $ 5,000,000 $ 5,000,000 $ 5,000,000 

Rx Co Pay 

Generic $ 10 $ 10 $ 10 

Formulary $ 20 $ 20 $ 25 

Non Formulary $ 40 $ 40 $ 50 

• Rx Co Pay Mail Order (90 day) I 
Generic NA NA NA 

Formulary NA NA NA 

Non Formulary NA NA " NA 

P17 



(~ 
~.,." 

<0 
<0 

• 

• 

• 

I 
I 

Individual Deductible 

In Network 

Out of Network 

~amily Deductible 

In Network 

Out of Network 

Out of Pocket Individual 

In Network 

Out of Network 

~amily Out of Pocket 

In Network 

Out of Network 

lifetime Maximum 

Rx Co Pay 

Generic 

. I Formulary 

Non Formulary 

Rx Co Pay Mail Order (90 day) 

Generic 

Formulary 

Non Formulary 

CBIZ 
PPD 43423 

$ 
$ 250 $ 

Is 500 

$ 
$ 750 $ 
$ 1,500 

$ 
$ 2,250 $ 

1$ 4,500 

$ 
$ 6,750 $ 
$ 13,500 $ 

1$ 5,000,000 

$ 
$ 15 1$ 
$ 30 $ 

1$ 50 

NA 

NA 

NA 

PPO 43433 HMO 

250 0 

1,000 0 

750 0 

3,000 0 

2,250 1500 

9,000 

6,750 3000 

27,000 

5,000,000 Unlimited 

15 $ 15 

30 $ 30 

50 $ 50 

NA NA 

NA NA 

NA. NA 

P18 



• 

• 

• 

LOAN AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF DES PLAINES, ILLINOIS 

AND THE DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

TIDS LOAN AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is entered into this __ day of 
_____ -', 2010, by and between the City of Des Plaines, Illinois (the "City"), an 
Illinois home rule municipal corporation, and the Des Plaines Public Library (the "Library"), an 
Illinoismunicipallibrary. 

WIT N E SSE T H: 

WHEREAS, the Library desires to borrow the sum of up to $1,500,000.00 (the "Loan 
Amount") from the City in order to fund certain expenditures for the Library's operating and 

. other expenses; and . 

WHEREAS, the Library has requested the City to assist the Library by securing and 
loaning the Loan Amount to the Library; and 

WHEREAS, the Library has agreed to repay the Loan Amount from those disbursements 
of real estate tax proceeds first received by the Library from the Cook County Treasurer 
subsequent to the Library's receipt of the Loan Amount from the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Library has also agreed to repay to the City all of the City's costs, 
expenses and fees incurred in securing the monies needed for paying out the Loan Amount to the 
Library; and 

WHEREAS, the Library anticipates that the Library will receive from the Cook County 
Treasurer in December 2010 or January 2011 the aforementioned real estate tax proceeds; and 

WHEREAS, the City has the statutory authority, pursuant to Section 8-1-3.1 of the 
Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-1-3.1), to borrow money from any bank or other financial . 
institution, provided such money is repaid within ten (10) years from the time it is borrowed; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Aldermen of the City have determined that the borrowing of 
such monies and paying out the Loan Amount to the Library in the manner set forth in this 
Agreement are proper. public purposes as authorized by 65 ILCS 5/8-1-3.1 and will not 
negatively impact the City'S ability to operate or bOlTOW additional funds in the future; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Library desire to enter into tllls Agreement in order to 
memorialize the conditions of the loan, the repayment obligations of the Library, and the Parties' 
respective duties and responsibilities concerning the same; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Library are authorized, under the intergovernmental 
cooperation powers set forth at Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution and the 
Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.), to approve and enter into this 
Agreement; and 

1 P19 



("l ,.,., 
(p. ,.,. 

• 

• 

• 

WHEREAS, the City and the Library find that this Agreement is necessary and in the 
best interests of the City and the Library, andthat the Agreement serves the public health, safety, 
welfare Illld convenience by providing for the payout to the Library of the Loan AmOWlt, and by 
further providing for payment to the City of all of the costs, expenses and fees incurred to the 
City in securing the monies needed for paying out the Loan ArnOWlt to the Library; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Aldennen of the City have reviewed and approved this 
Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation. Each of the "Whereas" paragraphs is incorporated by reference 
into Section 1 oHhis Agreement. 

2. Loan Amount. The City agrees to loan to Library the sum of up to but not to 
exceed $1,500,000.00. The Library will give not less than three (3) business days prior written 
notice to the City to request disbursement of the Loan Amount. The Library will request the City 
to disperse the Loan Amount on or about December 1,2010. 

3. Interest. The outstanding principal amount of the Loan Amount shall bear 
interest from time to time from the later of the Library's receipt of the Loan AmOWlt, or from the 
most recent date for which interest has been paid or duly provided for, until the full principal 
amount of such Loan Amount is fully repaid or duly provided for, such interest (computed upon 
the basis of a 365 or 366 day year based on actual days elapsed) being payable on the last day of 
each month next following the date that disbursements of real estate tax proceeds are received by 
the Library from the Cook County Treasurer, subsequent to the Library's receipt of the Loan 
Amount from the City, at an annual interest rate to be determined by agreement of the Parties at 
the time of the City's payout of the Loan Amount to the Library, but not to exceed 9% per 
annum, or this Agreement may then be terminated by the Library, subject to reimbursement of 
all reasonable costs, fees and expenses incurred by the City related to this transaction, including 
but not limited to the preparation of this Agreement. 

4. Repayment Obligation of Library. The Library agrees to pay back the Loan 
Amount as follows: the Library shall repay the Loan Amount from those disbursements of real 
estate tax proceeds first received by the Library from the Cook COUllty Treasurer subsequent to 
the Library's receipt of the Loan ArnOUllt from the City. . 

5. Non-Payment bv Library. In the event that an interest payment and/or principal 
payment is not paid by the Library to the City in a timely manner as hereinabove provided, the 
Library agrees, upon written demand by the City, to make such payments from its Library 
Operating FUlld, and further agrees to pay. any penalties, fines, costs and fees of any kind, 
including but not limited to costs, fees, legal'fees and expenses incurred by the City or imposed 
on the City by the lender or any other third party as. a consequence of a non-payment or late 
payment. In the event of a non-payment of an interest payment or principal payment where the 
Library refuses or fails to or is unable to make such payment in a timely maimer, the Library 
further agrees that the City may deduct the amount of the payment from the general property tax 
levy or any other available funds received by the City for the benefit of the Library. In a non 

2 P20 



• 

• 

• 

payment situation, the Library agrees to waive all legal objections of any kind to any legal action 
brought by the City to compel payment of a delinquent semi-annual interest and annual principal 
payments. 

6. Annual Budget and Appropriation. Each year that there is an outstanding 
balance of the Loan Amount, the Library shall approve the interest and principal payments on the 
Loan Amount to be paid to the City as part of its annual budget process. 

·7. Additional Provisions. 

A. Notice. Any notice, request, demand or other communication provided 
for by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly received upon: 

(i) actual receipt if personally delivered and the sender received 
written confirmation of personal delivery; 

(ii) receipt as indicated by the written or electronic verification of 
delivery when delivered by ovemight courier; 

(iii) receipt as indicated by the electronic transmission confumation 
when sent via telecopy, electronic or facsimile transmission; or 

(iv) three (3) calendar days after the sender deposits the notice with the 
U.S. Post Office when sent by certifted or registered mail, return receipt requested. 

Notice shall be sent to the addresses set forth below, or to such other address as either 
Party may specify in writing. 

To the CITY: 

City Manager 
1420 Miner Street 
Des Plaines, Illinois 60016 

(P) (847) 391-5300 
(f) (847) _--__ 

To the LffiRARY: 

Holly Richards-Sorensen 
Library Director 
Des Plaines Public Library 
1501 Ellinwood Street 
Des Plaines, Illinois 60016 

(P) (847) 827~5551 
(f) (847) _-__ 

3 P21 



• 

• 

• 

) B. Term. Unless terminated by the Parties as a consequence of a mutually 
agreed upon decision, this Agreement will remain in effect until the Loan Amount is paid in full. 
Notwithstanding any expiration or termination of this Loan Agreement, each Party remains 
obligated to pay any principal, interest and/or other costs due to the other Party under this 
Agreement. 

C. Termination; Breach. TIlls Agreement may be ternlinated upon written 
notice by mutual agreement of the Parties or by the Library in the event that it decides not to 
borrow any or any all of the Loan Amount. This Agreement may also be tenninated by either 
Party upon thirty' (3 0) days' written notice if the other Party should fail substantially to perform 
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and then fails to cure such non-performance 
within the thirty (30) day notice period. ill the event that either Party breaches this Agreement 
and the breach is litigated before a court of law or an administrative agency, the non-prevailing 
Party shall be liable to the prevailing Party for the prevailing Party's reasonable attorneys' fees 
and costs of suit incurred by the prevailing Party. Each Party shall be entitled to any and all 
remedies at Jaw and in equity under this Agreement. 

D. Mutual Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
the Parties shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless each other and the indemnified 
Party's past and present appointed and elected officials, directors, agents, officers, 
representatives, attorneys, volunteers, successors or predecessors, and the .indemnified Party's 
respective interest in any property,· from and against any and all claims, obligations, liens, 
encumbrances, demands, liabilities, penalties, causes, of action, and costs and expenses of any 
kind, including, without limitation, orders, damages, judgments, fines, forfeitures, amounts paid 
in settlement, and attorneys' fees and litigation costs relating to, arising out of or alleged to have 
occurred in whole or in part in connection with any matters covered by this Agreement or sought 
by or brought by persons or other third parties against the indemnified Party relative to any 
matters covered by this Agreement. . 

E. Waiver.· As a material inducement for the City to' enter into this 
Agreement, the Library agrees to waive any claims or causes of action of any kind, including but 
not linllted to breach of contract or breach of warranty, that could be brought against the City and 
its representatives, officers, appointed and elected officials, Mayor and Aldermen, agents, 
attorneys, volunteers and employees (the "City Affiliates") for any acts conducted or performed 
by the City or the City Affiliates under this Agreement. Failure of any Party to this Agreement 
to insist upon the strict and prompt performance of the terms, covenants, agreements and/or 

. conditions set forth herein, or any of them, by the other Party, shall not constitute or otherwise be 
construed as a waiver or relinquishment of the Party's right thereafter to enforce any such term, 
covenant, agreement and/or condition, but the same shall continue in full force and effect. 

F. Authority to Approve Agreement. The respective City and Library 
officers who have executed this Agreement warrant that they have been hiwfully authorized by 
the governing Boards of the City and the Library to execute this Agreement on behalf of the City 
and the Library, respectively. The City and the Library shall, upon request, deliver to each other 
copies of any and all documents reasonably required to legally evidence the authority to so 
execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective Parties. 

4 P22 



• 

• 

• 

G. . Entire Agreement; Severance. This Agreement contains the entire 
agreement and understanding by and between the Parties. No representations, promises, 
agreements or understandings, ,witten or oral, not herein contained shall be of any force or 
effect. No change or modification hereof shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing 
and signed by authorized representatives of each Party. If any provision of this Agreement is 
held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or in the event such a court shall detennine that 
the City or Library does not have the power to perform any such provision, such provision shall 
be deemed to be excised herefrom and the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the other 
provisions contained herein, and such judgment or decree shall relieve the City or Library from . 
performance under such invalid provision of this Agreement. 

THE REMAINDER OF TIDS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

5 P23 



L ... 

(R) 
~..,) 

. (p. 
<11 

• 

• 

• 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Loan Agreement shall be effective as of the date and 
year that the last signatory signs and dates the Agreement below. 

CITY OF DES PLAINES DES PLAINES PUBLIC LffiRARY 

By: _________ _ By: __________________ _ 

Mayor President of the Board of Library Trustees 

Date: _________ ~, 2010 Date: _________ -', 2010 

ATTEST: ATTEST: 

By: ________ _ By: __________ ----~---
Secretary of the Board of Library Trustees City Clerk. 

Date: _________ --', 2010 Date: _____ --'-___ ~, 2010 

6 P24 



• 

• 

• 

JOB TITLE: Reference Services librarian" 

DEPARTMENT: Adult Services 

CLASSIFICATION: Group 9 

STATUS: Exempt 

GENERAL STATEMENT: 

Under the general supervision of the Head of Adult Services, the Reference 
Services librarian /I performs professional library work such as advising and 
training professional staff, managing budgets and collections, negotiating contracts 
with vendors, and extensive outreach with community organizations. The work 
also involves planning and implementing library programs, selecting materials and 
maintaining the collection, providing reference and readers' advisory services and 
library instruction to patrons. This person deals responsibly with patron problems 
or emergencies to maintain a safe and pleasant environment This person serves as 
librarian in Charge as aSSigned. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

1. Understands and practices the Vision and Key Beliefs of the Des Plaines 
Public library. 

2. Provides uniformly gracious and friendly service to all users. 
3. Understands and enforces the library'S policies and procedures, while 

safeguarding confidential and restricted information. 
4. Answers reference questions in person, by telephone, via email, and online. 
5. Provides readers' advisory services. 
6. Instructs and assists patrons in the use of electronic and print resources. . 
7. Selects material for the collection and participates in collection evaluation 

and maintenance. 
8. Creates and maintains book and other displays. 
9. Creates and annotates bibliographies and prepares other written material. for 

patron use. 
1 O.Arranges or creates and presents library programs and classes both in house 

and in the community. . 
11. Maintains memberships in professional associations and participates in their 

activities. 
12.Attends appropriate meetings, workshops, and conferences. 
13. Prepares weekly desk schedules as assigned. 
14. Oversees the work of the pages, technology pages, and volunteers. 
15. Keeps informed of current trends and developments affecting libraries. 
16. May assist in the collection budget process. 

P25 



• 

• 

• 

17. May be responsible for establishing new and maintaining current online 
resources. 

18. May be responsible for training staff in the use of online reSOUrces. 
19.May develop special services and programs for the business community. 
20. May coordinate programs and maintain the yearly program calendar for 

Adult Services 
21. May negotiate with vendors for contracts for library services and programs. 
;!-1-,22. May be responsible for development and coordination of teen - ..... ·1 Formatted: Bullets and Numbering 

programs and services. 
~2.l..-May develop special services, including assistive technology, and 

programs for persons with disabilities. 
~~May assist at other public service desks: 
~~May write reports, and compile statistics. 
~~May write and manage grants. 
~~May represent the library at community organizations. 

PERIPHERAL DUTIES: 

1. Resolves equipment malfunctions. . 
2. Maintains neatness of public areas including floors, desks, counters, shelves, . 

tables, and personal space visible to the public. 
3. Performs other duties as assigned. 

TOOLSIEQUIPMENT USED: 

A variety of office machines, computers and library equipment. 

PHYSICAL DEMANDSIWORK ENVIRONMENT: 

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met 
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities 
to perform the essential functions. 

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently reqUired to sit 
and talk or hear. The employee is occaSionally reqUired to walk; use hands to 
.finger; handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. 

The employee must occaSionally lift up to 25 pounds. The employee must 
transport/move up to 100 pounds of library materials from one library location to 
another. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision and the 
ability to adjust focus. 

Reference Services Librarian II 2 

P26 



MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

1. Masters Degree in library Science from an ALA accredited program. 
2. Minimum three years professional library experience. 
3. Customer service work experience preferred. 
4. Available to work evenings and weekends. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABIlITIES 

1. Ability to perform excellent customer service and'to communicate general 
library policies and procedures to the public. 

2. Ability to establish and maintain effective work relationships with staff and 
patrons. 

3. Ability to work as a member of a team. 
4. Considerable ability to.work independently. 
S. Ability to conduct a patron interview and to provide an accurate response in 

a timely manner. 
6. Considerable ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks. 
7. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations. 
8. Considerable skill in written and oral communication. 
9. Extensive knowledge of literature, popular materials, nonfiction, and 

reference materials in a variety of formats. 
10. Extensive knowledge and skill in the use of online databases and internet 

resources. 
11. Knowledge and skill in the use of PCs and appropriate software applications. 
12. Knowledge of the professional practices, procedures and techniques of 

library science. 
13. Willingness to learn new skills. 

This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee. It is intended to identify the 
essential functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the 
needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. Incumbents may be 
required to perform job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated in 
this specification. Any essential functions of this position will be evaluated as 
necessary should an incumbent'applicant be unable to perform the function or 
requirement due to a disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). Reasonable accommodation for the specific disability will be made for the 
inclJmbent'applicant when possible. 

·Reference Services librarian II 3 

Revised and Approved 11/21/06 
Revised and Approved 08/21/07 

Reviewed and Approved 08/18/09 

P27 



• C):' . . J 

--~-----------------, 

FOR 

o 

. 0 

o 

D RD 

o 
o 

o 

~ 
.-

I . 

I 

I 
I 
I I 

I 

I . 

--------------------~ 

__ -" __ ----I..Ioo..loo.!..!.J!!~~~.~RY ASSOCIATION 2009 P28 



• Table of Contents 
Serving Our Public 2. 0: Stanr.l4rds for Illinois Public Libraries 

Acknowledgmonu v 

Introduction iv 

How to Usc ServinK Or<r Public 2. 0 vii 

Chapter 1 Core Standards I 

Chapter 2 Governance and Administration 5 

Chapter 3 Personud 7 

Chapter 4 Facilities II 

Chapter 5 Technology 19 

Chapter 6 A=ss 27 

Chapter 7 Collection Managemenr and Resource Sharing 31 • Chapter 8 PubUc Services: Merence and Reader's Advisory Services 35 
--.. 

~. ," 
Chapter 9 Programming '41 

Chapter 10 Marketing, Promotion, and Collaboration 43 

Chapter 11 System and ILLINET Membership Responsibilities 47 

Appendices 49 

Glossary n 
Index 83 

• . 
\ ......... 



q) 
'''> 
h" 

1-""" -\ 

• 

.' 

• 

/\, 

Des Plaines -
Public ~ibrary -:.-

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, Il6DOl64553 

847·827-5551 phone 

847·827·7974 fax 

NOTICE 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 

7:00 PM 

Conference Room - Second Floor 

Agenda: 

- Finance Committee Report 
- Management Committee Report 
- Per Capita Grant Application 

The Des Plaines Public library, in compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, requests 
that persons with disabilities who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in the meetings or have questions about the accessibility of the meetings or facilities 
contact the library Director at 847-376-2800 to allow the library to make reasonable 
accommodations, 

ww~.dpp.Lorg 
t
v 

P30 



• 

• 

• 

I. 

II. 

III. 

IV.· 

V. 

VI. 

VII. 

1\ 
Des P.laines / 
Public ~iJ:>rary c.. 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting 
September 21, 2010 

7:00 PM 

Call to Order. (7:00 PM) 

Roll Call. 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Consideration of the Agenda. 

Public Comments and Questions. 

City Council Community Services Committee - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

Consent Agenda. [Action Item] (6:30 PM) 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting

August 17, 2010. 

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, Il &0016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

B. Approval of the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting - August 10, 
2010. 

C. Acceptance of Financial Reports for August 2010. 
D. Acceptance of Reports. 

1'. Director's Report - Holly Richards Sorensen. 
2. Finance Committee Report, August 23,2010 - Jeffery 

Rozovics. 
3. Finance Committee Report, August 31, 2010 - Jeffery 

Rozovics. 
4. Management Committee Report, September 1, 2010 - Myrtle 

Klebe. 
5. Friends of the Library - Myrtle Klebe. 

VIII. Unfinished Business. 

www:dpp,l.org 

\7' P31 



• 

I 

• 

• 

IX. New Business. (8:00 PM) 
A. 

B. 

c. 

D. 

E. 

Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $128,026'.29. [Action 
Iteni] , 

Finance Committee Report. [Action Item] 
1. 2011 Budget. 
2. Health Insurance Plan for 2011. 
3. Intergovernmental Agreement. 
Management Committee Report, [Action Item] 
1. Posting Financial Reports on Library Website. 
2. Job Description. 

a. Approve Change to Reference Librarian II position. 
Trustee Training. 
1. Review Serving Our Public 2.0 Standards for Illinois Public 

Libraries [Per Capita Grant Requirement] 
Approve Per Capita Grant Application. [Action Item] 

X. Announcements. 

XI. Correspondence. 

XII. Adjournment. (9:15 PM) 

This meeting will be recorded for television broadcast. 

P32 



• 

• 

• 

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP . ~ ____ 27W_4_l7_W_arr_en_v_i1_le_R_oad._W_mren_v_iJ--,le,_1L_6_0l_l_l-_390_2 ______________________________ -J/ ,r 
Certified Public Accountants 

September 8, 20 I 0 

Members of the Board of Trustees 
Des Plaines Public Library 
Des Plaines, IL 60016 

(847) 562-9252 

We have compiled the accompanying balance sheet of the Des Plaines Public Library as of August 31, 
20 I 0 and the related statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the one month 
and the eight months then ended in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review 
Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements, information that is the 
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements 
and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them. 

Management has elected to omii substantially all of the disclosures required by generally accepted 
accounting principles. If the omitted disclosures were included in the financial statements, they might 
influence the user's cOnclusions about the Library's assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and expenses. 
Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed about such 
matters. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 

P43 



• 

• 

.' 

Institution 

Des Plaines Public Library 

Treasurer's Report as of August 31, 2010 

201-1101000 - Petty Cash 

201-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 
202-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 

201-110200B - Cash Deposit #1944650243 
202-110200B -' Cash Deposit #1944650243 
707-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 

201-1102009 - Cash Payroll #8100292278 

201-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 
202-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

201-1102028 - Cash Library Donations 

201-1102073 - Cash IL - Epay #151600222104 

201-1102076 - IL Funds - Library # 151600221288 
202-1102076 - IL Funds - Library 

201-1102078 - Cash IL - Epay Library 

201-1102079 - IL Funds - 151600222591 

201-1104006 - Investments - Certificates of Deposit 

Total Invested 

Invested 

500,00 

0,00 
0,00 
0,00 

1,959,67 
0,00 
0,00 

1,959,67 

(2,256,00) 
(2,256,00) 

146,534,33 
(48,248,24) 
98,286,09 

21,235.28 
21,235,28 

6,163,55 

102,869.24 
223,386,09 
326,255,33 

10.737.48 

1,222,031.36 

102,167.58 

1,787,080,34 

P44 



m 
'.,l , ... 
m 

• 

• 
I 
I 

• 

Soptel11bor 8, 2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of August 31,2010 

Library Fund 

Assem 

1101000 - Petty Cash 

1102008 - Cash Deposil #1944650243 

1102009 - Cash Payroll #5100292278 

1102015 - First Midwest Operating #5100292260 

1102028 - Cash libraI)' Donations 

1102073 - Cash IL - Epay 151600008073 

1102076 -IL Funds -libraI)' 

1102078 - Cash IL - Epay libraI)' 

1102079 - IL Funds -

1104006 - Investments - Certificates of Deposit 

1118000 - Receivable - Property Taxes 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2401000 - Accounts Payable 

2401001 - Audit Accounts Payable 
2401002 - Payroll Liabilities 
2401010 - Federal WIH Payable 
2401020 - F.ICA WIH Payable 
2401030 - State WIH Payable 
2410020 - Escrow DepOSits 
2430010 - Due To - Corporate General 
2430080 - Due To - Employee Retirement Trust 
2430099 - Oue To Other Funds 
2430707 - Due to libraI)' Camp Abs 
2450030 - A=ued Liability - Camp Absence 
2450035 - A=ued ST-L T Camp Absence 

2450040 - A=ued Payroll 
2450070 - A=ued FICA Withholding 
2450080 - Acciued IMRF Pension 
2450082 - RHS IMRF 
2470000 - Defemed Revenue - Property Tax 
2470100 -libraI)' Deferred Revenue 
2471000 - Deferred Revenue - Other 
2490010 - Compensated Absences Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - UnreseNed 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

Beginning 

Balaoce 

500.00 

1.959.67 

1,560.19 

109,100.98 

15,774.26 

4,115.03 

102.815.69 

10.077.22 

1,732,303.83 

102,081.40 

6,599,703.00 

8.679,991.27 

197,416.68 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 . 

206,336.33 
0.00 
0.00 

25,438.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

6,442,163.00 
8,058.00 

0.00 
0.00 

6,879.412.01 

1,464,291.17 

8,363,703.18 

316,288.09 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
1 

M.T.D. Ending 

Changes Balance 

0.00 500.00 

0.00 1.959.67 

(3,816.19) (2,256.00) 

37,433.35 146,534.33 

5,461.02 21,235.28 

2,048.52 6,163.55 

53.55 102.869.24 

660.26 10,737.48 

(510,272.47) 1,222,031.36 

86.18 102,167.58 

0.00 6,599,703.00 

(468,345,78) 8.211 645,49 

(70,813.42) 126.603,26 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 206,336.33 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 '25,438.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 6,442,163.00 
0.00 8,058.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

(70,813.42) 6,808,598.59 

0.00 1.484,291.17 

(70,813.42) 8,292,889.76 

(397,532.36) (81,244.27) 

P45 



• 
See Accountants' Compilation Report 

2 

P46 



• 

• 

• 

September S, 2010 

Des Plaines Public library 
Balance Sheet as of August 31,2010 

____ Fixed Assets Fund ___ _ 

1203000 - Fixed Assets - tmprovements 
1204201 - Fixed Assets -libraI)' Equipment 
1204300 - Fixed Assets - Vehides 
1209900 - Fixed Assets - Accumutated Depreciation 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Beginning 

Balance 

235.874.00 
869,440.00 
161,448.00 

(372,709.00) 
894,053.00 

0.00 

894,053.00 
894 053.00 

M.T.D. 
Changes 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

Ending 

Balance 

235,874.00 
869,440.00 
161,448.00 

(372,709.00) 
894,053.00 

0.00 

894,053.00 
894,053.00 

Total Liabilities and Net Capital Assets . 894,053.00 ====,O~.O~O ==g;894~,05;;;3~.0~0 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses ===~O~.O~O ====,O~.O~O ====,O~.O~O 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
3 

P47 



q) ,.,., .. , 
,0 September 8, 20t 0 

Des Plaines Public Library 

• Revenue Report as of August 31, 2010 

Received Received Budgeted Uncollected Percentage 

this Month this Yea, Receipts· Receipts Collected 

Library Fund 

Taxes 

4810019 - Property Taxes 2002 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810020 - Property Taxes 2003 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810021 - Property Taxes 2004 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810022 - Property Taxes 2005 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810023 - Property Taxes 2006 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810024 - Property Taxes 2007 0.00 (61,671.93) 0.00 61,671.93 0.00 

4810025 - Property Taxes 2008 0.00 271,310.84 50,000.00 (221,310.84) 542.62 

4810026 - Property Taxes 2009 0.00 3,548,232.15 6,309,802.00 2,761,569.85 56.23 

0.00 3,757,871.06 6,359,802.00 2,601,930.94 59.09 

Intergovernmental 

4810800 - Personal Property Replacement Tax 0.00 23,247.00 92,988.00 69,741.00 . 25.00 

4822040 - State Grant - Per Capita 0.00 0.00 57,700.00 57,700.00 0.00 

4822095 - State Grant - Library 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 23,247.00 150,688.00 127,441.00 15.43 

.Fines & Fees 

4850101 - Library Fees 242.50 3,125.38 0.00 (3,125.38) 0.00 

4850102 - Library Fines 6,836.47 77,122.55 125,000.00 47,877.45 61.70 

4850103 - Library Fines I Credit Carn 2,838.60 11,121.62 0.00 (11,121.62) 0.00 

4850201 - Copying Fee 2,493.15 19,050.95 30,000.00 10,949.05 63.50 

4850202 - Damaged Materials 114.94 410.89 0.00 (410.69) 0.00 

4850203 - Lost Materials 563.00 4,800.72 0.00 (4,800.72) 0.00 

4850205 - Bags 62.00 600.00 0.00 (600.00) 0.00 

4850207 - Non-Res Carns 73.50 1,213.50 0.00 (1,213.50) 0.00 
13,224.16 117,445.41 155,000.00 37,554.59 75.77 

Special Programs & Events 

4850215 - Special Programs & Events 0.00 684.93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 

0.00 664.93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 

Other Revenue 

4890010 -Interest Income 398.89 3,303.20 5,000.00 1,696.80 66.06 

4890050 - Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 

4899900 - Miscellaneous Revenue 1,915.29 14,976.54 17,500.00 2,523.46 85.58 

4899920 - Library Donations 5,457.00 5,639.59 10,000.00 4,360.41 56.40 

7,771.18 23,919.33 33,500.00 9,580.67 71.40 

Total Library Fund 20,995.34 3,923,147.73 6,703,990.00 2,780,842.27 58.52 

• See 'Accountants' Compilation Report 

P48 



q 
,-' 
~~ 

(<) September 8, 2010 

• 
Capital Projects f'und 

Other Revenue 

4890010 -Interest Income 

Total Capital Projects Fund 

Total of All Funds 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Revenue Report as of August 31,2010 

Received 

this Month 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

Received 

this Vear 

3.25 

3.25 

3.25 

Budgeted 

Receipts 

5,000.00 

5,000.00 

305,000.00 

20,995.34 3,923,150.98 7,008,990.00 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 

2 

Uncollected Percentage 

Receipts Collected 

4,996.75 0.07 
4,996.75 0.07 

304,996.75 0.00 

3,085,839.02 55.97 

P49 



(!) 

''''> 
,..) 

"..,." Sltptember 8, 2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 

• Expense Report as of August 31,2010 

M.T.D. V.T.D Budgeted Budgeted Prcl 

Expended Expended Amount Remain. Expend. 

Library Fund 

Sj!laries 

5910100 - Salaries 94,082.80 1,520,170.10 2,318,022.00 797,851.90 65.58 
5910200 - Temporary Wages 0.00 284,401.81 789,113.00 504,711.19 36.04 
5910400 - Non - Supervisory Overtime 30.22 246.57 0.00 (246.57) 0.00 
5910500 - Vacation Pay 21,970.49 80,817.95 0.00 (80,817.95) 0.00 
5910600 - Sick Pay 8,263.53 32,355.03 0.00 (32,355.03) 0.00 
5910700 - Holiday Pay 12,117.62 33,421.01 0.00 (33,421.01) 0.00 
5910900 - ActiOut of Class/Premium 0.00 2,692.30 0.00. (2,692.30) 0.00 
5910950 - Excess Sick Hours Pay Out 0.00 2,898.73 3,500.00 601.27 82.82 
5910970 - Compensated Absences 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

136,464.66 1.957,003.50 3.110,635.00 1,153,631.50 62.91 

Benefils 

5918010 - Unemployment Compensation 3,945.84 6,438.84 4,986.00 (1,452.84) 129.14 
59t8020 - Employer Contribution - FICA 13,861.81 146,596.50 237,314.00 90,717.50 61.77 
5918021 - Employer Contribution -IMRF 21,934.93 188,266.44 297,814.00 109,547.56 63.22 
5918030 - EAP Program '0.00 0.00 682.00 682.00 0.00 
5~18040 - Ufe Insurance Premiums 0.00 2,607.80 6,576.00 3,968.20 39.66 
5~18050 - PPO Insurance Premiums 96,802.86 224,822.29 . 389,041.00 184,218.71 57.79 
5918051 - HMO Insurance Premiums 28,644.91 69,115.87 111,979.00 . 42,863.13 61.72 

• 5918055 - Dental Insurance Premiums 7,612.99 18,772.04 31,505.00 12,732.96 59.58 
5918070 - Workers Compensation 3,675.81 8,940.13 9,500.00 559.87 94.11 
5918085 - RHS Plan Payout 0.00 5,214.26 10,000.00 4,785.74 52.14 

17647915 67077417 1 09939700 42862283 61 01 

Contractual Services 
5920100 - Legal Fees 0.00 2,213.89 15,000.00 12,786.11 14.76 
5920105 - Costs of Litigation 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 
5920110 - Professional Services 29,223.37 220,040.34 405,000.00 184,959.66 54.33 
5920120 - Communication Services 4,389.50 23,220.31 28,460.00 5,239.69 81.59 
5920140 - Data Processing Services 4,926.36 45,029.61 100,800.00 55,770.39 44.67 
5920202 - Conferences 97.05 676.30 0.00 (676.30) 0.00 
5920204 - Training 60.00 1,447.00 2,600.00 1,153.00 55.65 
5920205 - Tuition Reimbursements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920206 - Seminars 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920210 -In Service Training 0.00 3,208.31 0.00 (3,208.31) 0.00 
5920220 - Membership Dues 130.00 3,014.00 6,500.00 3,486.00 46.37 
5920225 - Ucensingmtles 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 
5920230 - Publication of Notices 0.00 971.20 1,000.00 28.80 97.12 
5920850 - Subsidy - 1994 E.R.P Trans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

.5920900 - Property/Liability Contributions 0.00 12,434.50 24,869.00 12,434.50 50.00 
5930010 - R&M Equipment 7,706.22 82,150.02 110,062.00 27,911.98 74.64 
5930020 - R&M Buildings & Structures 27,389.08 66,291.40 116,235.00 49,943.60 57.03 
5930030 - R&M Vehicles 666.42 4,449.12 14,300.00 9,850.88 31.11 
5930195 - Book Binding & Repair 0.00 215.10 1,000.00 784.90 21.51 
5930210 - Rental of Equipment 164.00 1,312.00 26,500.00 25,188.00 4.95 
5930320 - Cleaning/Custodial Services 8,468.00 82,657.00 96,700.00 14,043.00 85.48 
5930490 - Refuse Contract 466.18 4,739.90 5,500.00 760.10 86.18 
5960040 - Employee Physicals 0.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 
5960065 - Bank Fees 167.38 464.74 0.00 (464.74) 0.00 • See Accountants' Compilation Report 

1 

P50 



(,:l 
,.) 
',) 
~..,) September 8, 2010 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Expense Report as of August 31,2010 

M.T.D. 

Expended 

5960070 - Travel Expense 0.00 
5960210 - Special Event Programming 883.97 
5960990 - Misc. Contractual Services 4,131.55 

88,869.08 

Commodities 
5970100 - Office Supplies 3,202.62 
5970110 - Meals 0.00 
5970115 - Supplies - DepVOther 0.00 
5970170 - Janitorial 893.30 
5970260 - Postage & Parcel 1,592.07 
5970270· Prinitng -Reproduction-Binding 0.00 
5970330 - Supplies - Vehicles RIM 0.00 
5970500 - Purchase of Water 350.64 
5970600 - Books 22,716.73 
5970610 - Audio Materials 2,399.12 
5970620 - Subscriptions & Books 596.00 
5970630 - Visual Materials 6,457.55 
5970640 - Automated Reference Materials 2,088.33 
5970810 - Natural Gas 0.00 
5970820 - EledIicity 0.00 
5970840 - Diesel 0.00 
5970850 - Gasoline 0.00 
5970900 - Equipment < $5,000 0.00 

40,298.56 

Capital Expenditures 
5980300 - Improvements 0.00 
5960400 - Equipment (24,775.10) 
5980410 - Computer Hardware 0.00 
5980420 - Computer Software 0.00 
5980600 - Fumiture & Fixtures 1,191.35 

(23,563.75) 

Other Funding Activities 
5990935 - Trans to DIS - 2002A Bond 0.00 
5990940 - Trans to Ubrary Capital Proj. Fund 0.00 
5990955 - Trans to DIS - 2003B Bond 0.00 
5993000 - Contingency Reserve 0.00 

0.00 

Y.T.D 

Expended 

551.93 
18,570.86 
63,771.14 

637,428.67 

70,685.95 
619.34 

0.00 
14,568.09 
13,299.13 
1,271.50 

0.00 
3,112.33 

301,949.66 
44,766.66 
20,553.37 
72,468.94 
97,866.42 
21,535.96 

0.00 
1,194.21 

242.36 
2668.67 

667,063.21 

0.00 
41,590.54 

1,092.69 
16,480.71 
6,808.76 

65,972.70 

6,149.75 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

6,149.75 

Budgeted 

Amount 

500.00 
31,000.00 
99,375.00 

1 ,069.251.00 

116,300.00 
2,800.00 

0.00 
20,600.00 
13,300.00 
5,000.00 

0.00 
8,000.00 

489,800.00 
84,600.00 
76,800.00 
96,250.00 

141,000.00 
30,000.00 

500.00 
4,000.00 
2,000.00 
5,500.00 

1 ,096,450.00 

8,000.00 
33,000.00 
6,750.00 

32,000.00 
20,500.00 

100.250.00 

24,598.00 
300,000.00 

0.00 
75,000.00 

399,596.00 

Budgeted 

Remain. 

(51.93) 
12,429.14 
35,603.86 

451,822.33 

45,614.05 
1,980.66 

0.00 
6,011.91 

0.67 
3,726.50 

0.00 
4,887.67 

167,650.14 
39,613.14 
56,246.63 
23,781.06 
43,133.58 

8,464.02 
500.00 

2,805.79 
1,757.64 
2,611.13 

431 386.79 

8,000.00 
(8,590.54) 
5,657.31 

15,519.29 
13,691.24 
34,277.30 

16,448.25 
300,000.00 

0.00 
75.000.00 

393,448.25 

Total Ubrary Fund Expenditures 418,527.70 4,004,392.00 6,897,561.00 2,893,169.00 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 
2 

Prct 

Expend. 

110.39 
59.91 
64.17 
58.52 

60.78 
29.26 
0.00 

70.62 
99.99 
25,43 
0.00 

36.90 
61.65 
52.94 
26.08 
75.29 
69.41 
71.79 
0.00 

29.66 
12.12 
48.89 
60.73 

0.00 
126.03 

16.19 
51.50 
33.21 
65.61 

25.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
1.54 

56.06 

P51 



(~ 
>." 
r-",) 

(,~) September 8, 2010 

• 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Expense Report as of August 31,2010 

M.T.D. 

Expended 

V.T.D 

Expended 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
3 

Budgeted 

Amount 

--------------------------- ----------

Budgeted 

Remain. 

Prct 

Expend. 

P52 



(:P 
t",) 
t"l') 
.::;~ First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 

August 2010 Check Register Page 1 

• Check Number Check Date Payee Amount 

Checks 
10557 09/21110 TODA Y'S BUSINESS SOLUTIONS INC ·24,865.00 
10574 09/21110 I BAG AT A TIME 1,598.68 
10575 09/21110 ADULT READING ROUND TABLE 45.00 
10576 09/21/10 ANDERSON LOCK CO LTD 896.78 
10577 09/21/10 AudioGo 67.46 
10578 09/21110 BAKER & TAYLOR 23,133.39 
10579 09/21110 BANC OF AMERlCA LEASING 2,005.00 
10580 09/21110 BANKCARD SERVICES 1,726.04 
10581 09/21110 BUSINESS MACHINE AGENTS INC 205.56 
10582 09/21/10 CHlCAGOTRlBUNE 598.00 
10583 09/21/10 CITY OF DES PLAINES, PUBLIC WORKS 350.84 
10584 09/21110 COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC 8,053.00 
10585 09/21/10 CONSUMERS CHECKBOOK 150.00 
10586 09/21110 COOK MEMORlAL PUBLIC LIBRARY 7.99 
10587 09/21110 COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 9,081.62 
10588 09/21110 DES PLAINES OFFICE EQUIPMENT 105.00 
10589 09/21110 FlNDAWAY WORLD LLC 899.82 
10590 09/21110 FROSTLINE 21,328.03 
10591 09/21110 INTERlOR TROPICAL GARDENS INC 85.00 
10592 09/21110 JNVlCTA SERVICES LLC 143.85 
10593 09/21110 JACK WADDICK 250.00 
10594 09/21110 kdREPAIR 666.42 
10595 09121110 KIWANIS CLUB OF DES PLAINES 100.00 
10596 09/21110 KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LTD. 943.48 
10597 09/21110 LACONI TECHNOLOGY SECTION 15.00 
10598 09/21110 LACONI·RASS 30.00 

• 10599 09/21/10 LAPORTINC. 760.29 
10600 09121110 LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP. 2,700.00 
10601 09121110 LIBRARY FURNITIJRE INTERNTL 591.35 
10602 09121110 LINCOLN STORY LEAGUE 30.00 
10603 09/21110 MARSHALL CAVENDISH CORPORATION 104.75 
10604 09/21110 MATTHEW BENDER & COMPANY INC 77.31 
10605 09/21110 MCQUAY SERVICE 23,911.00 
10606 09/21110 MENARDS 35.53 
10607 09/21110 MICHAEL CLOUD 125.00 
10608 09/21110 MlDWESTTAPE 4,794.80 
10609 09121110 MIDWEST TAPE 4,126.48 
10610 09/21110 MUNTERS MOISTIJRE CONTROL SERVo 1,475.15 
10611 09/21110 MUSIC BOX FILMS 200.00 
10612 09/21110 OCLC,INC. 1,129.00 
10613 09/21110 OFFICE DEPOT 270.22 
10614 . 09/21/10 OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP 27,871.14 
10615 09/21110 PCNATI0N 570.50 
10616 09/21110 PITNEY BOWES 1,856.55 
10617 09/21110 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 771.87 
10618 09/21110 RUNGE PAPER COMPANY, INC. 97.48 
10619 09/21/10 SAGE PUBLICATIONS, INC. 542.00 
10620 09/21110 SOMETHING FISHY INC 100.94 
10621 09/21110 SPEED·E·KLEEN 415.00 
10622 09/21110 TELEVEND SERVICES INCORPORATED 51.10 
10623 09121110 TUMBLEWEED PRESS INC. 267.33 
10624 09/21110 TWO J'S lNDUSTRlES 1,150.00 
10625 09/21110 UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 1,257.88 
10626 09/21110 VAHE GHAZARlAN 85.00 
10627 09/21110 WAREHOUSE DIRECT 37.98 
10628 09/21110 WASTE MANAGEMENT 128.12 

• 10629 09/21110 WASTE MANAGEMENT 338.06 
10630 09/21110 WEST GROUP 144.00 
50073 08/31/10 NEXTEL 945.09 
50074 08/31110 NEXTEL 1,007.18 
50075 08/31110 CALL ONE 479.42 

P53 



.q) 
'''; 
'''; 
\11 First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 

August 2010 Check Register Page 2 

• Cbeck Number Cbeck Date Pa,'ee Amount 

50076 08131110 AT&T 221.85 
50077 08131110 AT&T 98.35 
50078 08131110 AT&T 43.15 
50079 08131110 AT&T 221.85 
50080 08131110 AT&T 98.35 
50081 08131110 AT&T 43.15 
50082 08131110 McLEOD USA 298.76 
50083 08131110 VERIZON WIRELESS 126.92 
50084 08131110 COMCAST CABLE 220.97 
50085 08131110 LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS, LLC. 466.89 
50086 08131110 SPRINT 18.96 
50087 08131110 SPRINT 16.12 
50088 08131110 WOW! INTERENT CABLE 82.49 

Total checks 74 Total 128,026.29 

• 

• 
P54 



m 
~") 

to.,) 
. Des Plaines Public Library m First Midwest Bank DESPLANSLIB 

August 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 1 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

TODA Y"S BUSINESS SOLUTIONS INC 10557 09/21/10 ·24,865.00 
Account No. DescriptiDn Amount 
201·5980400 YOl)) CHECK # 10557 ·24,865.00 

ADULT READING ROUND TABLE 10575 09/21110 45.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920204 9121/10 Round Table 45.00 

LACONI·RASS 10598 09/21110 30.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920202 Dewey and Beyond 9/17/10 30.00 

ANDERSON LOCK CO L TO 10576 09/21110 896.78 
Account No. DeSCription Amount 
201·5930020 Invoice # 0623169 238.79 
201·5930020 Invoice # 7020853 614.14 
201·5970100 Invoice # 0622888 43.85 

AudioGo 10577 09/21110 67.46 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970610 Invoice # 398528 67.46 

CITY OF DES PLAINES, PUBLIC WORKS 10583 09121/10 350.84 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970500 Acct # 71-080-763-01 350.84 

MICHAEL CLOUD 10607 09/21/10 125.00 
Account No. Desuiption Amount 

• 201·5960990 Invoice # 019 125.00 

BANC OF AMERlCA LEASING 10579 09/21110 2,005.00 
Account No. DesC:ription Amount 
201·5930010 Invoice # 011612916 2,005.00 

BUSINESS MACHINE AGENTS INC 10581 09/21/10 205.56 
Account No. Desc::ription Amount 
201·5930010 Invoice # IN 12790 205.56 

COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC 10584 09/21110 8,053.00 
Account No. Desc::riptiOD Amount 
201·5930320 InVOice # 1267514 630.00 
201·5930320 Invoice # 1267877 7,423.00 

CONSUMERS CHECKBOOK 10585 09/21/10 150.00 
AccouDt No. De~ription Amount 
201·5970640 checkbook.org access 150.00 

CHICAGO TRlBUNE 10582 09/21/10 598.00 
Account No. Destription Amount 
201·5970620 ACCQunt # 30147947 598.00 

COOK MEMORlAL PUBLIC LIBRARY 10586 09/21110 7.99 
Account No. . Destription Amount 
201·5970600 IntetlibraI}' Loan Refund 7.99 

COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 10587 09/21110 9,081.62 
Account No. DestriptioD Amount 
201·5920140 Invoice # CCS 8/17/10 4,926.36 

• 201·5930010 OClC JED Profile· July 2,077.63 
201·5930010 OClC JED Profile· August 2,077.63 

SAGE PUBLICA TlONS, INC. 10619 09/21/10 542.00 
Account No. Destription Amount 

P55 





q 
',) 
',) First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB • ():) 

August 20tO Vendor Checks Report Page 3 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Cbeck Date Amount 

MARSHALL CAVENDISH CORPORATION 10603 09/21110 104.75 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Invoice # 834377 104.75 

MCQUAY SERVICE 10605 09121110 23,911.00 
Account i'r.'o. Description Amount 
201·5930020 Invoice # 24290 23,911.00 

MENARDS 10606 09/21110 35.53 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970170 Invoice # 45394 35.53 

MUNTERS MOISTURE CONTROL SERVo 10610 09/21110 1,475.15 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930020 Invoice # 43746 1,475.15 

MUSIC BOX FILMS 10611 09/21110 200.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960210 Invoice # 15104 200.00 

JACK WADDICK 10593 09/21110 250.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960210 eBay Seminar 10/27/10 250.00 

OFFICE DEPOT 10613 09/21110 270.22 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970100 Invoice # 528867091001 227.37 

• 201·5970100 Invoice # 530759375001 18.16 
201.5970100 Invoice # 529685304001 24.69 

OCLC,INC. 10612 09/21110 1,129.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970640 Invoice # 0000084103 Ll29.00 

I BAG AT A TIME 10574 09/21110 1,598.68 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970100 Invoice # 4339 1,598.68 

OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP 10614 09/21110 27,87Ll4 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920110 Invoice # 10511 507.81 
201·5920110 Invoice # 10599 27,083.33 
201·5960990 Invoice # 10659 280.00 

P CNATION 10615 09/21110 570.50 
Account No. Description Amount 
202·5980410 Invoice # P048006701018 570.50 

PITNEY BOWES 10616 09/21110 1,856.55 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930210 Invoice # 9954034-AUIO 164.00 
201·5970100 Invoice # 5501355988 100.48 
201·5970260 Customer ID 21445552868 1,592.07 

F1NDAWAY WORLD LLC 10589 09/21/10 899.82 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970100 Invoice # 37358 899.82 

• RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 10617 09121/10 771.87 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Order # 4950043 27.67 
201·5970600 Order # 4949942 120.81 

P57 



cp 
',I 
',I 
'P f'irst Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DES PLANS LIB 

August 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 4 

• Vendor Name Cbk. No. Cbeck Date Amount 

201·5970600 Order # 4958586 87.97 
201-5970600 Order # 4954555 117.88 
201-5970610 Order # 4950175 111.37 
201-5970610 Order # 4967869 161.80 
201-5970610 Order # 4951250 111.37 
201-5970630 Order # 4966527 33.00 

RUNGE PAPER COMPANY, INC. 10618 09121110 97.48 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970170 Invoice # 672748 97.48 

SOMETIIlNG FISHY INC 10620 09121110 100.94 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 0123 100.94 

SPEED-E-KLEEN 10621 09121110 415.00 
Account No. Description . Amount 
201-5930320 Invoice # 3583 120.00 
201-5930320 Invoice # 3583 175.00 
201-5930320 Invoice # 3583 120.00 

TELEVEND SERVICES INCORPORATED 10622 09121110 51.10 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 2251 51.10 

TUMBLEWEED PRESS INC. 10623 09121110 267.33 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970640 Invoice # 2550 I 267.33 • TWO J'S INDUSTRlES 10624 09121110 1,150.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoice # 201515 1,150.00 

UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 10625 09121110 1,257.88 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # 053602 I 5.78 
201-5930010 Invoice # 053603 I 12.63 
201-5930010 Invoice # 053590 I 818.66 
201-5930010 Invoice # 053589 I 145.92 
201-5930010 Invoice # 053586 I 252.41 
201-5970100 Invoice # 84968A I 11.24 
201-5970100 Invoice # 85699A I 11.24 

WAREHOUSE DIRECT 10627 09121110 37.98 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invocie # 823662-0 37.98 

WEST GROUP 10630 0912111 0 144.00 
Account No. Description· Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 821158402 144.00 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 10628 09121110 128.12 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930490 Invoice # 4173228-2008-1 128.12 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 10629 09121110 338.06 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930490 Invoice' # 2241394-2008-3 338.06 

• BANKCAIID SERVICES 10580 09121110 1,726.04 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920202 67.05 
201-5960210 433.97 

P58 



(Z) 

t'~) 
(..,) 

<p First Midwest Bank Oes Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
August 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 5 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201-5970100 178.01 
201-5970600 75.00 
201-5970630 282.11 
201-5980400 89.90 
201-5980600 600.00 

BAKER & TAYLOR 10578 09/21/10 23,133.39 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024914058 8.32 
201-5960990 . Invoice # 2024916048 5.66 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024913983 7.80 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024915906 18.09 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024916079 62.81 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024916202 12.29 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024912975 89.54 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024846538 4.16 
201-5960990 Invoice # 125679940 8.97 
201-5960990 Invoice # 126791770 2.99 
201-5960990, Invoice # 2024990919 38.58 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025000393 19.67 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024867058 5.31 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024986529 15.31 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2025000236 4.80 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024988807 2.31 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024988788 8.01 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024986562 1.29 
201-5960990 Invoice #.2024995715 0.44 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024988806 12.10 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 2024918119 1.28 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024915898 91.07 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024914857 6.72 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024930586 30.56 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024973841 7.55 
20 I -5960990 Invoice # 2024962643 1.12 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024960821 1.58 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024960798 3.83 

. 201-5960990 Invoice # 2024960774 5.69 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024960773 12.29 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024962706 4.62 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024969 I 99 1.24 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024960806 1.59 
201-5960990 Invoice # 20249691 14 1.41 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024968722 34.72 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024944553 4.91 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024944539 2.92 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024949367 50.97 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024944573 0.47 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024944520 2.31 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024934725 2.12 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024916222 20.05 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024916102 151.90 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024934018 11.36 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024934661 10.04 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024934721 2.09 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024948814 2.53 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024939282 6.47 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024944519 2.42 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024934684 4.95 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 20249445 I 3 0.94 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024825744 1.24 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024915879 5.60 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024914063 6.83 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024912585 170.85 

PSg 



(,~) 

,..) 

',y ,'" First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
August 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 6 

• Vendor Name Cbk. No. Cbeck Date Amount 

201-5960990 Invoice # 2024916237 33.51 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024773452 37.81 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024754455 5.31 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024910549 11.20 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024913298 3.55 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024915905 4.92 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024903686 4.77 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024914075 1.12 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024913270 3.98 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024916048 99.72 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024913983 90.24 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024915906 268.18 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024916079 685.08 

·201-5970600 Invoice # 2024916202 230.38 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2015970600 2,257.04 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024930585 910.61 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024990918 1,378.58 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025000392 440.73 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024867058 23.12 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024986529 194.71 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2025000236 71.74 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024988807 4.18 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024988788 104.54 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024986562 18.91 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024995715 9.57 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024988806 190.79 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024918119 11.94 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024915898 1.143.90 • 201-5970600 Invoice # 2024914856 209.30 
201-5970600 Invoice # 0000435815 111.77 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024973841 380.61 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024962643 12.80 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024960821 25.53 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024960798 39.04 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024960774 74.63 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024960773 620.31 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024962706 9.55 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024969199 15.90 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024960806 24.70 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024969114 36.73 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024968721 1,387.10 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024944553 195.22 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024944539 38.47 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024949366 1,538.71 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024944573 7.75 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024944520 4.18 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024934725 22.56 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024916222 481.25 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024916102 1,667.25 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024934018 157.71 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024934661 157.90 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024934721 22.45 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024948814 40.58 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024939282 156.81 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024944519 29.09 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024934684 72.48 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024944513 11.26 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024825744 14.20 

• 201-5970600 Invoice #'2024915879 76.03 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024914063 176.77 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024912584 4,971.71 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024916237 422.64 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024773452 153.92 

P60 



CD 
~~ 
~~ 
~":) First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 

August 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 7 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201-5970600 Invoice # 2024754455 8.96 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024910549 146.79 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024913297 43.45 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024915905 9.55 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024903686 9.55 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024914075 10.19 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024913269 136.26 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024914058 102.73 
201-5970610 Invoice # 125679940 52.30 

. 201-5970610 Invoice # 126791770 11.88 

MIDWEST TAPE 10608 09121110 4,794.80 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 610765 17.10 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6112222 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6112221 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 61J 2223 8.55 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109738 5.95 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109737 2.85· 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109736 2.85 

.201-5960990 Invoice # 6106766 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104878 46.35 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104874 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104875 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104876 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104877 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100785 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100787 3.10 • 201-5960990 Invoice # 6100786 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100454 14.50 
201-5960990 ITIvoice # 6100453 8.55 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100451 2.85. 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100450 8.55 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100452 8.55 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6115404 3.10 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109730 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109735 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109734 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6111897 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109728 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6106760 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6106758 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104859 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6106754 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6106753 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6106755 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6106756 .11.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6106761 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6106762 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104861 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104873 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6106763 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104860 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6106764 2.25 
201:5960990 Invoice # 6104872 25.15 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6115405 3.10 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6112215 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6112209 4.50 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 6J 12214 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 61J 2213 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6112218 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6112219 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6112220 4.50 

P61 



m 
',J 
~ ... ) 

First Midwest Bank ("J Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
August 2010 Vendor Checks Report PageS 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201-5960990 Invoice # 6112210 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6112217 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6112216 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6112211 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109727 2.25 
201-5960990' Invoice # 6109726 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109729 5.20 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6111896 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109724 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109725 13.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109733 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109732 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6109731 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104864 13.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104863 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104862 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104865 20.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104871 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104869 36.20 
201-5970600 Credit Memo # 92724 -15.00 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2266781 34.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2266779 114.97 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2266780 61.98 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2272711 39.99 
201-5970610 In,'oice # 2266782 39.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2266778 39.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2260598 39.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2260599 190.95 

• 201-5970610 Invoice # 2260597 29.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2260600 470.89 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2260601 39.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2279660 39.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 610765 76.89 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6112222 5.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6112221 12.74 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6112223 38.97 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6109738 23.98 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6109737 10.49 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6109736 12.74 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6106766 12.59 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6104878 216.29 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6104874 7.49 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6104875 9.74 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6104876 7.49 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6104877 10.49 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6100785 5.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6100787 11.24 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6100786 11.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6100454 79.30 

·201-5970610 Invoice # 6100453 33.42 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6100451 14.24 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6100450 62.96 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6100452 48.72 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6115404 14.24 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6115405 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6118294 44.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106752 179.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106757 44.99 

• 201-5970630 Invoice # 6112212 89.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6112208 44.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6109730 28.47 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6109735 22.49 
201-5970630 Inyoice # 6109734 22.49 

P62 



(~ 
,,) 
(~) 

-" First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
August 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 9 

• Vendor Name Chk. 1'0_ Cbeck Date Amount 

201-5970630 Invoice # 6111897 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6109728 29.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106760 41.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106758 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6104859 7.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106754 86.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106753 37.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106755 25.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106756 62.20 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106761 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106762 36.72 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6104861 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6104873 20.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106763 35.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6104860 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106764 56.23 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6104872 232.39 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6104864 74.94 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6112215 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6112209 44.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6112214 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6112213 36.72 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6112218 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6112219 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6112220 41.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6112210 25.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6112217 25.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6112216 9.74 

• 201-5970630 Invoice # 6112211 22.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6109727 7.49 
201-5970630' Invoice # 6109726 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6109729 39.73 
201-5970630 Invoice # 611 1896 44.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6109724 29.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6109725 119.94 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6109733 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6109732 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6109731 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6104863 29.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6104862 142.44 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6104865 119.91 
201-5970630. Invoice # 6104871 50.21 
201-59'70630 Invoice # 6104869 273.58 

MIDWEST TAPE 10609 09/21110 4,126.48 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6115402 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6115400 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6115401 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6115399 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6118297 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6118295 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6118286 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6118296 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6118285 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6106759 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104868 31.90 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100448 6.95 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 6100432 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104866 22.90 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6104867 43.15 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100435 11.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100447 18.00 

P63 



G:) 

'''; 
c:) 
111 First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPlJ\NSLIB 

August 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 10 

• Vendor Name Cbk. 11' •• Cbeck Oate Amount 

201-5960990 lovoice # 6100428 2.25 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100436 12.25 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100443 4.50 
201-5960990 lm'oice # 6100446 4.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100433 6.95 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100440 15,75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100439 15,95 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100441 23.40 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100437 2,25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100445 11.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100444 18.20 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100442 36,20 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100434 2.25 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100431 2.25 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100429 6.75 

.201-5960990 . Invoice # 6100438 31.50 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100430 4,50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100427 2.25 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100784 9.00 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100781 6.75 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100782 4.50 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100778 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6100779 4.50 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100777 2.25 
201-5960990 In,'oice # 6100776 11.25 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100775 2.25 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100774 4,50 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100780 2.25 • 201-5960990 lovoice # 6100783 2,25 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6100449 6,75 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6118292 4,50 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6118293 6,75 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6118291 4.50 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6118289 4.50 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6118290 4.50 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6118284 4.90 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6118287 2.25 
201-5960990 lovoice # 6115403 2.25 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6115400 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 61 15401 33.73 
201-5970630 lovoice # 61 15399 11.24 
201-5970630 lovoice # 6 I 18297 44.98 
201-5970630 lovoice # 6 I I 8295 88.47 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6 I 18286 19.48 
201-5970630 lovoice #. 61 18296 74,96 
201-5970630 lovoice # 6 I I 8285 9.74 
201-5970630 lovoice # 6 I 18288 74.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6106759 25.48 
201-5970630 lovoice # 6104868 212.86 
20 I -5970630 Invoice # 6100448 71.22 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6100432 22.48 
201-5970630 lovoice # 6 I 04866 118.40 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6104867 259.30 
20 I -5970630 . Invoice # 6100435 61.45 
201-5970630 lovoice # 610044 7 97.42 
201-5970630 lovoice # 6100428 28.73 
201-5970630 lovoice # 6100436 50.95 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6100443 69,72 

• 201-5970630 Invoice # 6100446 25.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6100433 47.22 
201-5970630 lovoice # 6100440 103.43 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6100439 123.68 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6100441 221.88 

P64 



(~ 

'" 'oJ 
en First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 

August 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 11 

• Vendorl"'ame Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201·5970630 Invoice # 6100437 14.99 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100445 52.45 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100444 253.41 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100442 277.33 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100434 20.24 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100431 5.24 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100429 33.72 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100438 177.61 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100430 22.48 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100427 22.49 
201·5970630 . Invoice # 6100784 70.46 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100781 53.22 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100782 43.48 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100778 29.98 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100779 39.98 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100777 89.22 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100776 1l0.95 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100775 20.99 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100774 40.48 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100780 18.74 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100783 22.49 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6100449 65.22 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6118292 22.48 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6118293 67.47 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6118291 22.48 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6118289 41.23 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6118290 44.98 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6118284 22.48 

• 201·5970630 Invoice # 6118287 14.99 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6115403 11.24 
201·5970630 Invoice #.6115402 9.74 

NElITEL 50073 08131/10 945.09 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 945.09 

NEJITEL 50074 08/3 III 0 1,007.18 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 1,007.18 

CALL ONE 50075 08l3I110 479.42 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120· ACH 479.42 

AT&T 50076 08l311l0 221.85 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 221.85 

AT&T 50077 08l3I110 98.35 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 98.35 

AT&T 50078 08/311l0 43.15 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 43.15 

AT&T 50079 08/3111O 221.85 
Account No. Description Amount 

• 201·5920120 ACH 221.85 

AT&T 50080 08l3I110 98.35 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 98.35 

P65 



cp 
',I 
C,:) 

First Midwest Bank Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB >J 
August 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 12 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

AT&T 50081 08/3111 0 43.15 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 43.15 

McLEOD USA 50082 08/31110 298.76 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 298.76 

VERIZON WIRELESS 50083 08/31110 126.92 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 126.92 

COMCAST CABLE 50084 08/31110 220.97 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 220.97 

LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS, LLC. 50085 08/31/10 466.89 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 466.89 

SPRINT 50086 08/31/10 18.96 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 18.96 

SPRINT 50087 0813111 0 16.12 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 16.12 

• WOW! INTERJ:."NT CABLE 50088 08/31110 82.49 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 82.49 

TOTAL 128,026.29 

• 
P66 



" en 
-.J 

• 
DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

CASH FLOW SUMMARY 
For the Year Eoded Dtcembu 31,2010 

January 
Balance Shed 

Cash & l~lvcstmcnls $ 1,546,613 . 

Revenue (M-T-D) 
Property Taxes 130,787 
Other Revenue 15,579 

146,366 

Expenses (M-T-D) 
Payroll & Benefits 306,233 
Other Expense 161,788 

468,020 

Net Incrcascl(Dccreasc) (321,654) 

February March April 

1,117,818 1,360,131 $ 3,581,316 $ 

739,239 2,641,784 
11,914 17,102 52,394 
11,914 756,341 2,694,178 

309,859 312,915 302,514 
249,673 162,718 153,112 
559,532 475,633 455,626 

(547,618) 280,708 2,238,552 

• 
May June July 

3,169,784 $ 2,722,749 ~.~,426 $ 

51,612 194,449 
14,286 20,593 12,416 
65,898 20,593 206,866 

311,663 303,578 468,072 
177p41 205,815 209,132 
488,704 509,393 677,204 

(422,806) (488,800) _ (470,338) 

August September October 

1,787,080$ $ 

20,995 
20,995 

312,944 
105,584 
418,528 0 0 

(397,532) 0 0 

November 

$ $ 

0 

0 

• 
December 

0 

0 

,"",- .~ -". '""" 
,.' , .... I J.J 
-oJ '_ " '-" 



• 

• 

------------------------------------------

LIBRARY DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

PERSONNEL 

New Employees for July/August 2010: Stephanie Spetter, Head of Youth Services, 
08116/10 . 

Resignations for July/August 2010: Sandra K. Norlin, Library Director, 08/31/10 

PATRON SERVICES 

Circulation is down 2% year to date. This can be attributed to the demise of NSLS and the 
reduction in van delivery service. The donated money for the current reduced van delivery 
service will run out October 1. The State Library has reported they have grant money that 
will be available to public libraries to continue van delivery service from October through 
the end of 201 O. A Task Force of North Suburban Library director's will meet with the 
State Library to discuss when,and if this continued van delivery service will happen. 

This year 2,203 children enrolled in our Green Days of Summer (Birth-6th grade) and 
Greenapalooza (7th_12th grade) Summer Reading Clubs 1,048 of those enrolled completed 
the program. The Adult Summer Reading Club had 863 readers'enrolled. 

We had a Librarian for a Day Guest of Honor this month at the Library. The library 
donated to District 62 Foundation's Fundraiser event last winter the opportunity for 
someone to come be Librarian for a Day. The lucky winner was 4th grader Karissa Paulsen 
who spent time in all the areas of the library to experience firsthand what it's like to work 
at the library. 

The door count increased by 10% so far this year. 396,956 people have come through our 
doors since January, 52,150 in August alone. Our meeting rooms have been used by more 
than 22,000 people to attend meetings and programs. Library staff have presented 
programs and offered service to 6,493 people outside of the building and out in the 
community. In August we had over 45,000 virtual visits from patrons using computers 
from external locations. 

PSS 



• 

• 

1\ 
Des Plaines .-
Public ~ibrary ::::-

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting 

August 17, 2010 

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, II 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

The regular meeting of the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees was held in the second 
floor conference room on Tuesday, July 20, 2010. President George Magerl called the' meeting to 
order at 5:59 p.m. 

Roll call indicated the following board members were present: Dion Kendrick, Myrtle Klebe, 
Susan Moylan Krey, George Magerl, Steven Mokry, John Robinson, Jeffery RozoviCs, Elaine 
Tejcek, Jennifer Tsalapatanis. 

Also present: Sandra Norlin, Carol Kidd, Holly Richards Sorensen, Heather Imhoff, Alderman 
Dan Wilson, Jennifer Delgado, Noreen Lake, Sue D'Hondt, Wally Meyer, Phyllis Johnson, Susan 
Farid, Debra Hendricks, Nora Paisley, Cheryl Gladfelter, Joanie Sebastian, Francine Gralak, Gary 
Valente, Stephanie Spetter, Gwen LaCosse. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

MOTION by Myrtle Klebe, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to adjourn the meeting at 7:15 and 
reconvene on September 1, 2010 at 7:00 p.m. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION 
CARRIED. 

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA. 

MOTION 'by Myrtle Klebe, seconded by Jeff Rozovics, to approve the agenda, as presented. 
VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED . 

. PUBliC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 

Noreen Lake thanked Library Director Sandra Norlin for her 16 years of service to the library and 
·congratulated Holly Sorensen for being appOinted the new library director. 

Sandra Norlin congratulated Noreen Lake on. being notified that she will receive the Illinois 
Library Association Trustee of the Year Award at the ILA Annual Conference. 

• Wally Meyer, President, Friends of the Library, thanked Sandra Norlin for her good work. 

www.dppJ.org 

'v' 
P33 

I 



• CITY COUNCIL COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

• 

• 

Alderman Wilson thanked Sandra Norlin for her many years of serv:ice to the library. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

George Magerl asked to remove B. Acceptance of Financial Reports for July 2010 from the 
Consent Agenda. 

MOTION by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by Jeff ROlOvics, to approve the Consent 
Agenda, as modified. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

President George Magerl introduced Nathan Gaskill from Lauterbach & Amen, LLP. George 
explained that Lauterbach & Amen provides accounting services to the library. Nathan Gaskill 
stated that Jeff Rozovics, Board Treasurer, had requested a cash flow summary for 2009 and 
2010. Nathan reported that he prepared the cash flow summary for 2009 with information he 

. requested and received from the City of Des Plaines Finance Department. 

Jeff Rozovics explained that projections for revenue and expenditures forlhe cash flow summary 
report for the remainder of 201 0 were extrapolated from the 2009 financial reports prepared by 
the City of Des Plaines Finance Department. Jeff also explained that property tax receipts are. 
expected in December 2010 and these projections are based on receipt of property tax in 
December of 2009. 

MOTION by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by Steve Mokry, to accept the Financial Reports for July 
2010, as modified, to include cash flow summaries for 2009 and 2010. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: 
None. MOTION CARRIED. 

LIBRARY DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

Please note: I have received no official requests for confidential patron information since my 
last report. 

PERSONNEL 

New Employees for July/August 2010: Stephanie Spetter, Head of Youth Services, 08/16/10 

Resignations for July/August 2010: Sandra K. Norlin, Library Director, 08/31/10 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Courtney O'Keefe, Preschool Liaison Librarian, has attended the second of three three-day 
sessions of Synergy, the Illinois State Library-sponsored leadership development initiative. 

P34 



• 

• 

• 

PATRON SERVICES 

Circulation has decreased, year to date, but this is compared to 2009, which was a very large 
increase over circulation in 2008. It's too early to tell if this is a leveling off of a one year spike 
or the beginning of a trend. It bears watching closely and checking with other libraries for 
comparisons. 

Only 57.2% of the residents of Des Plaines have library cards. The recent drop in numbers is the 
result of a one-time purge of cards that expired over three years ago, but carried fines of under 
$5. Attempts to increase this number have failed thus far; new approaches are called for. 

Attendance (door count) is down for the month of July, but year to date has increased by 13%. 
Thus far in 2010, 463 meetings have been h~ld in our meeting rooms by community groups. We 
will recommend a charge for meeting room use for the 2011 Budget. Estimating a decrease of 
33% because of the charges and using a two-tiered charge ($25 for room only; $50 for use of the 
projection equipment and/or pantry), the library could derive around $10,000 in revenue from 
these charges. 

22,945 people visited our website in July, using it over 54,000 times. In-house computer use is 
down from last July, but up slightly for the year. Use of our online databases is down 
Significantly (nearly 20%). 

On July 22, I attended the organizing meeting of the United Way Leadership Donor Committee 
and on August 12, I attended the meeting of the Des Plaines Chamber of Commerce Board of 
Directors. 

NEW BUSINESS 

APPROVE PAYMENT OF VENDOR CHECKS REPORT - $200,668.91. [Action Item] 

MOTION by Jeffery Rozovics, seconded by Susan Moylan Krey, to approve the payment of 
vendor checks in the amount of $200,668.91, as listed on the vendor checks report of July 2010 
and authorize the Library Director to have transferred the amount required to the library'S 
operating account. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Kendrick, Klebe, Moylan Krey, Magerl, Mokry, 
Robinson, Rozovics, Tejcek, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

OPEN MEETINGS ACT. [Action Item] 

Sandra Norlin reported that the library board was not in violation of the Open Meetings Act 
when they went into Executive Session in November and December of 2008, because final 
action was taken and reported at the Special Board Meeting on June 29,2010. 

P35 



• 

• 

• 

APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES OVER BUDGETED AMOUNT IN OPERATING BUDGET. 
[Action Item] 

Sandra Norlin explained that at the July 20, 2010 meeting she did not authorize a transfer of 
funds, but rather changed the expenditure posting from Per Capita fund to operating fund. 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

Sandra Norlin distributed copies of a proposed Intergovernmental Agreement and asked Board 
members to review the document so that they could discuss at the next board meeting. Sandra 
also asked the board to consider a line of credit amount. 

SET DATES FOR MANAGEMENT AND FINANCE COMMITIEE. 

The Management Committee will meet on September 1, 2010 at 6:00 p.m. 

The Board of Trustees meeting will reconvene on September 1, 2010 at'7:00 p.m. 

2011 BUDGET 

Elaine Tejcek asked that the Finance Committee review the revised draft of the 2011 Budget 
before it is presented to the Board for their review at the September 21,2010 meeting. 

The Finance Committee was also asked to review operating costs for Mobile Library service in 
2011. 

Motion by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, to defer to the Finance Committee 
review of the revised draft of the 2011 budget documents and then to present to the board at their 
next meeting. VOTE: AYES: All Nays: none. MOTION CARRIED. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Holly Sorensen introduced Stephanie Spetter as the new Head of Youth Services. 

President Magerl asked for a recess at 7:03 p.m. 

The board reconvened at 7:15 p.m. 

President George Magerl and Library Director Sandra Norlin thanked former trustees, Eldon Burk 
and Selma D'Souza, for serving on the library board. Sandra Norlin presented an engraved 
crystal paperweight to Eldon and Selma and expressed her appreciation for their good work. 

P36 



• 

• 

• 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to adjourn the regular meeting. 
VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Meeting adjourned 7:20 at p.m. 

Minutes prepared Carol Kidd. 

P37 



(D 
,." 

1.11 

• 

• 

• 

~~ ';\ 'fi ~ Des Plaines-
1501 Ellinwood Street 

l)" ~ Public ~ibrary ~ 
Des Plaines. Il 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Special Meeting 

August 10, 2010 

The special meeting of the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees was held in 
the second floor meeting room on Tuesday, August 10, 2010, President George 
Mager! called the meeting to order at 6:04 p,m. 

ROLL CALL. 

Roll call indicated the following board members were present: Dion Kendrick, 
Myrtle Klebe, Susan Moylan Krey, George Mager!, Steven Mokry, john Robinson, 
jeffery Rozovics, Elaine Tejcek. 

Members Absent: Jennifer Tsalapatanis. 

Also Present: Sandra Norlin, Holly Sorensen, Carol Kidd, Heather Imhoff, 
Alderman Dan Wilson, Don Sofolo, Dan Klobnak, Christina Tropea, jo Bonell, 
Gary Valente, Brenda Murphy, Dick Sayad, Debra Hendricks, Phyllis johnson, 
Francine Gralak, Roberta johnson, Susan Farid, jennifer Delgado, Nora Paisley, 
Susan Helmer, Anthony Baxter, Katerina Kuzukas. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

OATH OF OFFICE. 

John Robinson took the Oath of Office. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS. 

Mr. Dick Sayad stated' that the library board went into an Executive Session in 
November 2008 to discuss a succession plan for the library director position and at 
that time made a decision not to open the position to other librarians. Mr. Sayad 
stated that he did not believe that the library board should have entered into an 
Executive Session because this matter did not pertain to an individual, but rather 

www.dpp.l.org 
.~. 

P38 



• was a policy move. Mr. Sayad also said that the public was not notified of the 
relea?e of Executive Session minutes from November and December 2008. 

Mr. Sayad also stated that at the July 20, 2010 library board meeting that he did not 
think that the library could transfer funds from one line item to another and that the 
required funds should have been transferred from the operating account into the 
line item. Mr. Sayad stated that he thinks an attorney should review the library 
a~nda. • 

Mr. Sayad also stated that the public should be able to make comments during 
library meetings. 

President Mager! stated that the board would discuss Executive Session procedure 
at the August 17, 2010 regular board meeting. 

Nora Paisley stated that the library is one of the jewels of the community. She 
stated that she and her family use the library and are concerned that residents will 
be asked to pay more for library services when residents are already paying for 
library services through their property taxes. Ms. Paisley asked the board if they 
were willing to meet with residents in the community so that the board would 
know what residents want from their library. 

• Dion Kendrick asked the board to discuss the 2011 Budget before the 
Intergovernmental Agreement. President Mager! stated that discussion' on the 
Intergovernmental Agreement would be postponed until the August 17, 2010 board 
meeting. 

• 

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA. 

MOTION by Myrtle Klebe, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to accept agenda, as 
presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

President Mager! stated that the board was resolved into a Committee of the 
Whole. 

FINANCE - JEFF ROZOVICS, Chair. 

Jeff Rozovics stated that the Finance Committee met on August 3, but no action 
was taken, because the committee did not have a quorum. The committee did 
review the first draft of the 2011 budget. 

Sandra Norlin stated that discussion on the Intergovernmental Agreement would be 
postponed until the August 17, 2010 board meeting. 

The proposed 2011 budget document was presented to the board. Sandra Norlin 

P39 



• explained that the goals for the budget are: 

1) Request no increase in property tax payments from the 2010 extended 
amounts. 

2) Build the library's fund balance to a level that will support four month's 
operating expenses. [$2.4 millionJ 

3) Continue to build the Capital Project fund to cover anticipated building 
improvements in 2012. [$500,000J 

Sandra also explained that the following steps would accomplish the goals: 

1) Cease mobile library service, effective January 1,2011. [$191 ,OOOJ 
2) Eliminate eight library staff positions. Four are full-time positions and four 

are part-time. Five are currently filled. [$146,504J 
3) Reduce all categories of expenditures: Personnel [-3.3%1, 

Contractual Services [-5.5%1, Commodities [-9%1, Capital [-27.8%J and 
Capital Projects [-48%J. 

The board discussed the proposed 2011 budget. 

Jennifer Tsalapatanis entered the meeting at 6:52 p.m. 

• The board discussed discontinuing mobile library service in 2011. Jennifer 
Tsalapatanis stated that she is opposed to cutting mobile library service and 
suggested restructuring rather than discontinuing the service. 

• 

PUBLIC COMMENTS. 

Mr. Dick Sayad stated that he wants the library to reduce the number of hours the 
library is open and also curtail mobile library hours. He stated that residents will 
understand the challenge the library faces with a reduced budget. 

Ms. Nora Paisley stated that she does not want library hours reduced. 

Katarina Kuzukas stated that she does not want library hours cut because she wants 
children to be educated and that the library is a good place for teenagers to gather. 

Dion Kendrick asked the board to compare the library to the Des Plaines Park 
District and asked that the library charge for services proVided to residents and that 
the library employ more part-time staff than full-time staff. This would reduce the 
budget. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS . 

Mr. Sayad stated that the park district is not a good comparison for the library. 

P40 



• Dion Kendrick stated that the library should charge fees for meeting room use, 
DVDs, and computer use to generate revenue. 

President Magerl stated that Park Ridge began charging a fee for DVDs and their 
patrons ordered DVDs online and then picked them up at other libraries who did. 
not charge a fee. Park Ridge Library has discontinued this practice. President 
Magerl also stated that charging for internet service places a bigger burden on the 
poorer patrons. 

Jennifer Tsalapatanis stated that residents are already paying property taxes. Jennifer 
stated that she does not want to cut services, but wants to reduce personnel costs. 

Sandra Norlin stated the library serves three times more people than park district. 

Susan Moylan Krey stated that she would like the library to continue mobile library 
service, but eliminate capital projects expenditures and hire more part-time staff, 
reducing the number of full-time staff. 

Steven Mokry stated that he was not in favor of continuing mobile library service, 
because of the cost of operation and the limited attendance. 

• The board discussed the Teen Lounge Computer Project and the Public Restroom 
Improvements. 

• 

Elaine Tejcek left the meeting at 8:11 p.m. 

Dion Kendrick stated that he does not want the library to continue to fund IMRF 
participation for library employees. Sandra Norlin replied that the staff is required 
to be in IMRF if working more than 1,000 hours per year. 

A consensus was taken to consider continuing mobile library service in 2011 if 
costs can be reduced. Magerl, Tsalapatanis, Klebe, Robinson and Krey were in 
favor of continuing the service. Mokry, Kendrick and Rozovics were not in favor of 
continuing the service. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS. 

Francine Gralak, part-time Mobile Library Circulation Assistant, spoke in favor of 
continuing mobile library service in 2011. Francine stated that this service is 
outreach for patrons who cannot come to the library. 

President Mager! assumed the chair and declared the library board back in session. 

P41 



• ACTION RESULTING FROM COMMITIEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING. 

• 

• 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by John Robinson, to direct staff to reduce 
the budget by reducing mobile library costs (reduce staff hours, cleaning done by 
library staff), reduce expenditures in Fund 202- Capital Projects and to consider 
hiring part-time staff for all open positions. AYES: All, NAYS: None. MOTION 
CARRIED. 

MOTION by John Robinson, seconded by Myrtle Klebe, to adjourn the meeting. 

The meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 

Minutes prepared by Carol Kidd. 

P42 
I 



• 
~ "\ Ii Des Plaines -

1501 Ellinwood Street 

.... Public Library ~ 
. -c, 

Des Plaines, !t 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fal( 

Chair: 
Present: 

o Progress Report 

D Response Requested by _____ _ 

o Board Action Required 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting 

August 23, 2010 

Jeffery Rozovics. 
Jeffery Rozovics, Dion Kendrick, Susan Moylan Krey, George Magerl, Myrtle 
Klebe, John Robinson, Jennifer Tsalapatanis, Holly Sorensen, Roberta 
Johnson, Brenda Murphy, Marge Scholl, Bernie Tarte, Jennifer Delgado. 

Call to Order: 5:03 p.m. by Jeffery Rozovics 

• CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Susan Moylan Krey, to approve the agenda, as 
presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Jeff Rozivics stated that the Board will meet for a Special Board meeting on September 1, 
2010 to review and discuss the 2011 budget. 

The Committee discussed two alternative proposals for the 2011 budget. 

Alternative 1 included the following reductions in expenditures: 
1) Restored Mobile Library service with three part-time positions for operation and 

added back in expenditures in contractual services for vehicle maintenance 
($6,750) and diesel ($2,000). To offset these costs we reduced membership dues by 
$5,500 and telephone repair service by $1,000. 

2) Cut Capital Projects by $60,500. 
3) Reduced Capital Expenditures by $15,120. 

Alternative 2 included all reductions in Alternative 1 plus the following: 

4) Eliminate raises for staff $40,028. 
• 5) Increase employee contribution for medical premiums $54,624. , 

ww;.dppJ,org 

'-------------------------- -- ------~ ---

P69 



• The Committee discussed costs to operate the mobile library and whether service should 
be continued in 2011. President Mager! stated that the current contract is in effect until 
December 31, 2010. 

The Committee discussed freezing the open Assistant Director position for one year to 
save approximately $115,000 in the 2011 budget. 

Mr. Bernie Tarte asked if the library would benefit from the new casino and John Robinson 
responded that he thought the casino would bring in $2-3 million annually in revenue for 
the City of Des Plaines; Mr. Tarte also suggested reducing library hours to reduce the 
budget. 

MOTION by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to freeze the Assistant 
Director position for 2011. VOTE: AYES: Tsalapatanis, Kendrick. NAYS: Moylan Krey, 
Rozovics. MOTION FAILED. 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, to reduce the budget another $125,000. 
MOTION FAILED FOR LACK OF A SECOND. 

The Committee continued to discuss whether to freeze the Assistant Director open 
position for 2011. 

• MOTION by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to freeze the Assistant 
Director position for 2011. VOTE: AYES: Moylan Krey, Tsalapatanis, Kendrick. NAYS: 

• 

Rozovics. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, to approve the proposed 
2011 Alternative 2 budget and to include freezing the Assistant Director position for 2011. 
VOTE: AYES: Moylan Krey, Kendrick, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: Rozovics. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, to ask staff to make 
additional reductions of $300,000 in the proposed budget in addition to freezing the 
Assistant Director position for 2011. No vote was taken. 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to amend the previous 
motion to ask staff to make additional reductions to the budget in the amount of $150,000 
in addition to freezing the Assistant Director position for 2011. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: 
None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Staff was asked to reduce the personnel portion of the budget by an additional $150,000. 
The Finance Committee will present this revised budget to the Board at the Special 
meeting on August 31,2010 at 6:00 p.m. 

The Committee discussed the Intergovernmental Agreement and asked that the document 
b.e simplified. 

P70 



• 

• 

• 

The Finance Committee will meet again on August 31, 2010 at 6:00 p.m. to discuss the 
proposed revised budget for 2011. 

The Special Board meeting on September 1,2010 was cancelled. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Jeff Rozovics, to adjourn the meeting. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:16 p.m. 

Minutes prepared by Margaret Scholl. 

P71 



• 

• 

• 

/\ 1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des ~Iaines / 
Public ~ibrary ~ 

Des Plaines, tl60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

Chair: 
Present: 

Absent: 

D Progress Report 

D Response Requested by _____ _ 

~ Board Action Required 09/21/2010 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting 

August 31, 2010 

jeffery Rozovics. 
jeffery Rozovics, Dion Kendrick, Susan Moylan Krey, George Mager!, Myrtle 
Klebe, john Robinson, Steven Mokry, Elaine Tejcek, Carol Kidd, Holly 
Sorensen, Roberta johnson, Heather Imhoff, Susan Farid, jennifer Delgado, 
Brenda Murphy, Cheryl Gladfelter, Stephanie Spetter, joanie Sebastian, 
Phyllis johnson, Nora Paisley. 

jennifer Tsalapatanis. 

Call to Order: 5:00 p.m. by jeffery Rozovics 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Susan Moylan Krey, to approve the agenda, as 
presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Assistant Director Holly Sorensen distributed the revised Intergovernmental Agreement. 
The Board discussed the agreement and asked for the following changes to the agreement: 
1) "Whereas the library desires to borrow up to but not to exceed the sum of $ __ ." 
2) The library board will give three (3) business days prior notice to the City of Des 

Plaines for request of the loan amount. 
3) The library board will request the loan by December 1,2010. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Susan Moylan Krey, to accept the 
Intergovernmental Agreement with the three following changes to the agreement: 
1) "Whereas the library desires to borrow up to but not to exceed the sum of $ ___ " 
2) The Library Board of Trustees will give three business days prior notice to the City 

of Des Plaines for request of the loan amount 
3) The Library Board of Trustees will request the loan by December 1, 2010. 
VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

The Committee discussed what amount of money should be borrowed and agreed that the 
Library Board of Trustees would ask to borrow up to the amount of $1,500,000. 

www.dppLorg 
L
V 

P72 



• 

• 

• 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to ask the City of Des 
Plaines to borrow up to the amount of $1,500,000. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

Holly Sorensen reported on proposed health insurance plans for library employees for 
2011. Holly distributed information sheets outlining the three insurance plans she 
received quotes from, which were LlMRiCC, North Suburban Library System and CBIZ. 
Holly recommended LlMRiCC, both for cost savings and benefits offered to library 
employees. 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Susan Moylan Krey, to approve LlMRiCC for 
library employee health insurance for 2011. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION 
CARRIED. 

Holly Sorensen presented two budget proposals (Alternative 2.1 and Alternative 2.2) to the 
Committee for their review. 

The Committee discussed Mobile Library service in 2011 and whether this service should 
continue. The Committee will recommend review of this service in May 2011. 

The Committee discussed the two budget proposals. 

. Dion Kendrick distributed a memo he wrote outlining his proposal for budget controls for 
2011. 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Jeff Rozovics, to present the 2.2 Alternative 
Budget to the Board for their approval at the September 21, 2010 meeting. VOTE: AYES: 
Rozovics, Moylan Krey. NAYS: Kendrick. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Jeff Rozovics, to adjourn the meeting. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 

Minutes prepared by Carol Kidd 

P73 



• 

• 

.1\ 
Des Plaines ~ 

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Public ~ibrary ~ 
Des Plaines, Il60016-4553 

847·827·5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

Present: 

D Progress Report 

D Response Requested 

o Board Action Required 09121/2010 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Management Committee Meeting 

September 1, 2010 

Myrtle Klebe, Elaine Tejcek, john Robinson, George Mager!, Dion 
Kendrick, Holly Sorensen, Carol Kidd, Karen McBride, jennifer 
Delgado, Roberta johnson. 

Call to Order: 6:01 p.m. by Myrtle Klebe. 

CONSIDERATION TO POST ADDITIONAL BOARD REPORTS ON LIBRARY 
WEBSIDE. [Action Item] 

The Committee discussed whether or not to include financial reports on the library 
website. The consensus was to post only audited financial reports and approved 
library budgets. . 

MOTION by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by john Robinson, to include on the library 
website audited financial reports and approved library budget documents. VOTE: 
AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

REVIEW JOB DESCRIPTIONS. [Action Item] 

MOTION by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by john Robinson, to approve the change to 
the Reference II Librarian position, as recommended. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: 
MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by john Robinson, to adjourn the meeting . 

• 
The meeting adjourned at 6:10p.m. 

Minutes prepared by Carol Kidd . 

www.dppJ.org 

P74 



• 

• 

• 

FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY ROUNDTABLE 
Tuesday, August 24, 2009 

The meeting was called to order at 7:02 pm by President Wally Meyer. 

Minutes of the last meeting were approved as published. 

The treasurer's report was approved. The Friends have $14,000 of their funds 
committed. 

Membership stands at 520, with 5 new and 6 renewals since May. Those 
members whose membership renewal is due will be informed in their 
September letter. An application form and return envelope will be included. 

The Book Shelf sales continue to do well. Special areas will be labeled i.e. 
Romance, Western, etc. 

The Fall Book Sale will be Friday, Oct. 1 , MemberS-Only Night. Saturday, Oct. 
2, 9:30 am-4 pm. Sunday, Oct. 3, 1-5 pm. On Monday morning, not-for-profit 
organizations can come for free books. Red Carpet Books is a new source for 
picking up the leftovers. We will maintain the same pricing of books as in the 
past. The Historical Society will have a table on Saturday and Sunday. 

Iroquois Jr. High students have offered to supply boxes needed for the Book 
Sale. 

The Friends will hire 3 High School students on Friday night to handlelcarry 
boxes of books to cars. 

The Pillars of Honor will be on. Display on the first floor on Sunday, August 29 
and then it will be moved to the 3m floor for a week. 

P75 



Des Plaines Public Library - August 2010 Board Report 

. 
rAPn ,TRATION 

[THiSMUNIH . YEAR TO DATE 
I New ResTCiefit Cards AUg201() 333 YTD 2010 2,590 

~ 339 IYTD 2009 3,364 
1% --:- ·2% 1% ·23% 

D. ; Cards IAUg2010 2 IYTD 2010 26 
IAu!! 2009 

--c-
2 IYTD 2009 23 

1% . 0% 1% Lnan2e 13% 

ITotal Card Ownership IYTD 2010 32,761 
. IYTD 2009 35,849 

1% 120H 57.5% 
. 1% 1200~ &2.9% 

. 

IpA"1 KUN A I I 'A",rc 

ITHIS MVNIM . . I YEAR TO DATE 
IAug 2010 . 52, i :,u IYIU2010 396,95E 

•• I Aug2009 53,736 IY IU 2009 359,67E 
[%CflaI1ge ·3% 1% rh~no .. 10% 

. 
IMEETING I USE 

ITHISMONTH . . IYEAR TO DATE 

IDbrarv C I Pro!! 
--c 29 1,041 IYTD 12,973 

Outside 2C 594 IYTD 7,747 
.14 771 IYTD 1,736 

!TOTAL 63 2,406 ITOTAL ??4~" 

• 
P76 



CD 
,." 
<n 
();J 

SPECIAL PROJECTS & STATS: 

Voter Registration 

on Website 

Computer Use 

Average Online Reference Products 
Searches & Queries 

THIS'MONTH 
Aug 2010 
Aug 2009 

% Change 

Adult Services 
Aug 2010 . 
Aug 2009 

% Change 
Youth Services 
Aug 2010 
Aug 2009 

% Change 

. 

Aug 2010 

Aug 2009 

YEAR TO DATE 
4 YTO 2010 
3 YTD 2009 

33% % Change 

YEAR TO DATE 
9,441 YTD2010 

10,926 YTD2009 
-13.59% % Change 

1,536 YTO 2010 
1,986 YTO 2009 

-22.66% % Change 

1.1,754 YTO 2010 

9,844 YTO 2009 
% Change 

main side door patron counters were out January- May 2009 
new RFIO These fi are based on the month ch in circulation rates. 

20 
21 

-5% 

71,822 
81,459 

-11.83% 

11,644 
14,172 

-17.84% 

90,952 

108,639 
-16.28% 

P77 



CD .,' 
III 
rJ) 

• 

• / \ -

/ 

i 



• 

• 

'. 

Agenda: 

NOTICE 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

fiNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 23,2010 

5:00 PM 

Conference Room - Second Floor 

2011 Budget 
Intergovernmental Agreement 

1501 Ellinwood Slrtet 
Des Plaines,. It &001 &-455] 
B47..a2'·S5S1 phone 
847-827-797.4 W. 

The Des Plaines public library. in compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act. requests 
that pen;ons with disabilities who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe andlor 
panicipate in the meetings or have questions about the accessibility of the meetings or facilities 
contact the Library Director at 847-376-2800 to allow the library to make reasonable 
accommodations, 

www,dppl.org 



Alternativ' • • 19·<:-8 

i .. 
mMRiGEc,P.lan 39 $494,239, 

'.,." . '- - .' , 
. ' 

Tolal Cosl 
. , Total .- ' 

~, ...: , 
Employee :- , 

of 
.. I 

Insurance T olal Cosl of Library Em'ployee Cost per. Employee' No. of 
per monlh Insurance ' Coslper' Library Cost eontributlo pay Costper Employees Annual cosl . 

(5%) per year [pay:perioi! : .perYeat.- n .- .; , period, year ,. ___ 'in plan . .. 10 ~.ihrary_ , : 
. 

PPO'l - , 

'.. $i 3;0) 8,801 ~~ Single $571.00 $6,852,00 .. ,' $250.36.: · . $6,509.40. ~ ;5%
• •• !. -- $13,18, :. $3~2,60 " 2 

Emp, & Sp' $1,202.00 $14,424,00 ' $527.03 $1'3,702:80. . 5~/o _.$27.74 $721,20 , 2 $27,405.60 

Emp, & Chi $1,154,00 $13,848,00 $505,98 $13,155,60 5%,. .... $26,63 $692.40 O' $0:00· 

Family $1,785,00 $21,420,00 .' $782,65 · .$20;3,49,00' • :..5~/o. " "";.:.$41 ,,1 ~t , $1,07-1.00, . 
2 ... ' $40;698.00· .. ', -."' 

PPOI' 
.. . ' 

., .. , I :. , 
/--W Single $668,00 $8,016.00 $277.48 $7,21.4040 1.0%. . , ' . '$30,83 . $801.60 14 ' $i 01,001.60 i 

Emp. & Sp' $1,414,00 $16,968.00 $587.35 $15,271.20 _ ,10%. -, .. $65.26 $1,696.80 4 $61,084,80 . 

Emp. & Chi $1,357,00 $16,284.00 . $563.68 $.14;655.60 10% 
, 

. "$62.63' $.1 ;628.40 0 ',. $0,00 

Family $2,099.00 $25,188.00 $871.89' $22;669:20, "".110%
• . --- $96,88 . $2;518.80 6 $136,015.20 L $379,224,00: 

HMO -. 
Single $537,00 $6,444.00 ' $235.45' ·$6;-121.80 5% . ,. $12.39 $322,20 3 $18,365.40 ' 

Emp. & Sp( $1,151.00 $13,812.00 $504.67 $13,121AO 5% - . $26,56 $690.60 3 $39,364.20 : 

Emp. &Chi $1,083.00 $12,996.00 $474,85 $12,346.20 5% .. $24,99 .$649.80, o· $0,00 

Family $1,675.00 $20,100,00 ' - $734.42 · '$19,095,00 . "" 
5% , ·$38.65 $1,005,00' 3 .-$57,285,00 L $115~014,60' 

k 



• • • ...,. " . .., 
'{. :1~, 

Alternative 2 
I .. , ", lIf\.1RiCC,;Plan" 

.. 
, . .. 39 ' $:t46;987: 

I 
. ' . . . ' .. . . , ' ' . 
. ' , 

, , 
.- - . , 

" • ,* • 

. Totiii ' : 
I · ~ : 

~Employee. ,Employee" • " • e , ' · ." 
Total Cost I, , .. , '. . .. 

EmplOiiee ' .'. . ~: · " · , 

of , " ContrliJiitio Ccintrlliirtl ' , . < 'Total:" , ;t " • •• 1, .. ...:; ; 

Insurance Total Cost of ' ' ,library, n . ~' . on Cost per, , Employee' . No. of . . , 
per month Insurance , Cos!,per' librarY Cost · (single (aacl:l'" pay, 'Cost per, ' Employees Annu~l:c6st .' 

(5%) ~payperjOd .~. ,pei .y~ar : 'portion) . portion) '. period'; -: .' year' : '. in plan .• ' ' 'b' 1 per year ,toll rary:; ... .. . '. ' 
, , 

I ' , · . .. 
PP03 (" 

, .. ' , . · '" . ' , ~ :< ~. t ,~" M 
' . : 

Single $571.00 $6,852,00 ;, $237.18 $6,1.,66.80, ',' ]()~/o:., ·.,NA ... ' . , $26.3.5, $685.20, -' -. 2 '".' $12,333.60,j 

Emp. & Sp< $1,202,00 $14,424,00 " . $455,61, · $11,845:80" : .10"10'.,. ' '25~/o~~: ~- .$99"16., ,,$2,578.20 , ' 2" " : $23,69.1 ,60! 
Emp. & Chi $1,154,00 $13,848,00 t:, $438,99' $\1'A13JiO~ :. '1 O~/o:, . . :..25oio,'" ..... $93,62,: "$2,~13",20. '.,' .... 0 .. :.. , • '::' .. $0.00 i 
Family $1,785,00 $21,420,00 $657,42 '$17,092,80" . JO% ,:: ' 25% " ,$166:43 . ,$,,;327,20 2','. , '$34,',1:85:60 " 

PPO 1 I ' . 
, , . " , . . '.-. , , , '-, 

; ~$i77:48, 
, 

.' . '1>1,:\:: ~ 
, , 

" · 
Single $668.00 $8,016.00 . ,$7,214.40, ', • .:1.0% ~. $30,83' , ;$801.60 :, 14; . .$.1 01 ,001.60 .. i 
Emp, & Spc $1,414,00 $16,968.00 $535.7; · $]3,928.40 ., , :,10%, :. c' ,.; 25% .... $1,16.91' ' $3;039.60 .. ' 4 , ·~$55.713.60,~ 

Emp, &Chi $1,357,00 $16,284.00 I $515,98 ' $13,4; 5.40 . ·10% .. 25%;: ... $1)0.33 . $2,868.60., O· 
, 

$0,00', 
Family $2,099,00 $25,188,00 i· $772.82 $20,093.40 . ., 0% j . '.' '25%" ,,$195;95, $5,094;60. . 6 , $120,560.40' I. ,$347,486.<\0, 

HMO 
! ~ , , . 
I ' . , . ' . '. .. . , 

, ;.$5,7,99.6(). 
· , 1:0%:' . .:NA", . '$24.78 Single $537.00 $6,444.00 ! $223.06 .' $644'.40 .3 · $17,398,80< 

Emp, & Spc $1,151.00 $13,812.00 ! . ,$~35.60, '$1) ,325.60. · _:;1.0?/o" .. '''0' 25%·, .... .'. $95.63. :" $2,486.40' . '" 3~ ... : '", .. ':$33,976.80' 
Emp, & Chi $1,083.00 $12,996.00 ; $41'2.06 $1,0,7,13:60, ... 10%, ,,' " ,25% : "$87:78" .$2,282.40. "' o " '$0.00 ; 
Family I $1,675,00 $20,100.00 : ·$6{6,'l.[ ,,$I6;P~ L6() !.'JPYo '. " 25'l'~ .. . $156:09 " $4,058.;10. .' , '3 ':' · $48,124.80..1: "$99,500,40 



• LIMRiCC Open Enrollment Overview 

Message to ALL Employees: The annual open enrollment period has arrived for plan year 
July 1, 2010. Please note, this enrollment period occurs once a year, and changes will be made 
effective July 1, 2010. Please submit your forms by 06/11/2010 if you would like to make 
any changes for the upcoming plan year. 

If you are currently enrolled in any of the plans, you will be able to: 
Change from the HMO to PPO or the PPO to the HMO 
Add eligible dependents not currently enrolled on the plan 

If you are eligible for coverage but not currently covered, you may do the following at this 
time: 

Sign up for the HMO or PPO medical plan 
Sign up for the DHMO or PPO dental plan 
Sign up for the voluntary life plan 
Sign up for the vision plan 

What do you need to do during the OPEN ENROLLMENT period? 
• If you don't want to make any changes to your current benefit elections you will not need to do 

anything. If you want to change between plans or sign up for any voluntary benefits you will need to 
complete an enrollment form. 

LIMRiCC SUMMARY OF EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CHANGES 

MEDICAL 
• The coinSUrance will change on both PPO plans decreasing to 80-60 from 90-70. 

• • The out of pocket limit on the High Deductible PPO plan will decrease to $1,000 Ind/$3,000 family in 
network and $3,000 ind/$7,500 family out of network from $2,000 ind/$6,000 family in network and 
$4,000 ind/$12,000 family out of network. 

• There will be $100 emergency room capay on all three plans. 

The following premium rates will be effective on July 1, 2010. 

Current Year New Plan Year 
471.06 511.12 
1010.13 1096.03 
950.39 1031.21 
1470.40 1595.44 

Current Year New Plan Year 
501.05 543.66 
1055.32 1145.06 
1012.77 1098.90 
1566.91 1700.16 

Current Year New Plan Year 
586.66 636.55 
1241.12 1346.66 
1190.70 1291.96 
1842.20 1998.86 

• 



DENTAL 
• There will be no changes to the dental plan 

The following premium rates will be effective on July 1, 2010. 

Election DHMO Current Year New Plan Year 
Employee only $17.94 $17.94 
Employee & spouse $33.17 $33.17 
Employee & child(renl $38.12 $38.12 
family $53.35 $53.35 

Election PPO Current Year New Plan Year 
Emplovee only $35.53 $35.53 
Employee & spouse 71.06 $71.06 
Emplovee & child(ren) 69.57 $69.57 
family 109.10 $109.10 

LIFE 1NSURANCE (company paid group plan) 

• There will be no changes to the group life and ad&d Insurance 
• If you should leave employement the life Insurance is convertible to an Individual policy and the rate 

will be based on your age and gender 
• You must apply for conversion option within 30 days from your last day of employment 

The following premium rates will be effective on July 1, 2010. 

VOLUNTARY LIFE INSURANCE (100% employee paid) 
• If you are not enrolled you may elect an amount for yourself and your eligible dependents at this time 
• If you did not enroll at Initial offering or if you elect above the guarantee issue amount you and/or 

your dependents will need to complete an additional form called "Evidence of Insurability" 
• If you leave employment your voluntary life/ad&d plan Is portable to an Individual policy 
• You must apply for portability option within 30 days from your last day of employment 

VISION PLAN 
• There are no plan or rate changes 
• You may elect coverage for yourself and/or your eligible dependents at this time 
• If you want to enroll in the plan or add dependents, you must complete an enrollment form 

For Detailed Plan Information All Summaries are located on the UHRICC Benefits Web Site 
, 

~: After the Open Enrollment Period, you cannot make changes to your coverage during the year 
unless you experience a change in family status, such as: 

_ loss or gain of coverage through your spouse 
_ loss of eligibility of a covered dependent 

Death of your covered spouse or child 
Birth or adoption of a child 

_ Marriage, divorce, or legal separation 
Switch from part-time to full-time 

• 
,-. 

• 

• 



Umltatlon: 
money an individual pays toward covered hospital &, 

medical services during any one calendar year, 
exc.ladlng tbe deducdble. Elective MSA 
copayment. charges in exccss of Usual &: CustomaJ}' 
Allowances & items asterisked below, do not apply to 

Outpatient Emcl"Jcncy Medical and 
Accident Care: (Hospital and Physician) 

Abuse Services 

(Hospilal 

Usual 8/; Customary Allowances (PPO Benefit Only). 
PPQ providers have agreed to accept the Schedule of 
Maximum Allowances as payment in full for covered 
services., excluding your deductible &. any 
coinsurance. Non--PPO providers do not accept the 
Schedule ofMmcimum Allowances as payment in 
full. You will be liable for any differem::e between 

copayment per person per day, Allergy shots 
administered in the pbysician's office an: subject to 
the office visit copay. Surgeries, therapies and 
ccrtain diagnostic procedures performed in a 
physician's office may be smjecl to the deductible 
and/or coinsurance. 

,%e 
exams, ImmunizatiOns. Care limited 
calendar year 1.$250 deductible PPO benefit 

S500calendar yr. Max.. Benefits include office visit, 
exam. immunizations and diagnostic leSts. 
($250 deductible PPO benefit only) 

COVERAGE 

51,000 
OndividuaJ) 

5l,OOO 
(Family) 

admission 
deductible per 
admission then 

LIMRiCC 7·1·2010 

COVERAGE 

53,000 
(Tndividua\) 

$7,500 
(Fanuly) 

HMO 
COVERAGE 

Unlimited 

NlA 

deducb"ble per deductible per 
admission then 6()0~ admission then 

100'~ 

cop By , then 100''' capay: 

deductible per 
admission then 

Illness 
$20 pcp "'Pay, 

then 1000/0 
SlO Specialist 

capay. then 100%, 

Other Menial 
Illness 

50%· after 

80% 

capay, 
then 100% 

530 Specialist 
copay I then l00cAl 

copay. 
lhen lOOC'Io 

$30 Specialist 
copay. then 1000 .... 

copaY. 
then 100% 

$30 Specialist 
capay, then 10001. 

deductible per 
admission then 6()D/co 

Illness 
80% after 
deductible 

Other Mental Illness 
600/co' after 
deductible 

60% 

Waived if 
admitted 

deductible per 
admission then 

copaY. 
!:hen 100% 

530 Specialist 
capay, then 

100'10 

then 
$30 Specialist 
capay, then 

100% 

copay, then 
100% 

$30 Specialist 
then 

Page 1 ofl 

HIGH 
DEDUCTIBLE PPO 

5l,ooO (Family) 

5100 "'pay, 

$20 PCP copay, then 
100% 

$30 Specialist capay, 
then 100% 

Other Mental Illness 
60% after deductible 

80% 

$30 Specialist capay, 
then 10M4 

$7,500 (Family) 

60'~ 

80% after deductible 

Other Mental nIness 
60%' after deductible 

60% 

with a $500 maximum 
per calendar year 



BllNEFITS 

TIIenpy: 
(5:2.000· per therapy per calendar year maximum
Pro benefit only), Limited 10 60 omtmenlS per 
therapy per calendar year (HMO benefit only), High 
Deductible PPO (Sl,OOO per therapy per calendar 

Covt:rtd SeniCts: 
components; leg. arm, bade &: neck braces; 
anlbulance service; oxygen & its administration; 

. casts &: splints, durable medical 

at 100% after copayment at participating pharmacy. 
[)rugs purchased at a non-participating pharmacy are 
paid at 7l% after copayment (For HMO benefit 
only) 

" 100% after copayment Providu up to a 
supp1y of maintenance drugs used on a continuous 
basis for tIea1ment of chronic healtb conditions. 
DrUg! must be purcl1ased through mail order, 

COVERAGE COVERAGE 

copay 
$40 copay fonnulary brnnd 

S60 copay non--fonnulary brand 

capay generic 
S80 copay fonnulary brand 

$\20 topa), non-formulary brand 

520 copay 

only) 

copay 
generic 

$40 copay 
formulary 

bnmd 
$60 eopay non

fonnuJary 

capay 
generic 

SSO cop.y 
fonnulary 

bnmd 
SI20copay 

non-fannulary 
brand 

S40 copay b""d 
$60 copay noMonnulary bnmd 

capay 
$80 copuy funnuJary brand 

$110 eopay non-flll'lllulary brand 

Medical Services Advisory: (pPO Benefit Only) Notification required prior to all elective admissions. Emergency and Obstetric Admission Notification rquired within 2 
working days of admittance. lr employee elects not to notifY MSA advisory or foUow advice. gilD. hospital benefits reduced by S 1,000·. 
HMO St:rvius muJ't be rendered or referred by tbe Primary Care Physician. HMO office "lsit copay wHl not apply to preoatal visits. 
Traosplant Coverage: Cornea. kidney, bone marrow, bean valyc:~. musculaJLskeletal or parathyroid bwnan orgm OJ tissue. In addition, h:an, lung. heartflung,livu, 
pancreas IUId pancreaslkidnc:y will be co"ered under certain circumstances when performed in an approOJed facility and with Mc:dia1 Director approval. (Pro benefit onJy). 
HMO services must. be approved by your Primary Carc: Physician. 
Pre-Existing CoodidoDJ Waiting Period: 365 day waiting period (pPO benefit only). 
Oepeudent Elliibility: To age 26, 
Coordlnadob of Btllefiu: These programs coordinate benefits with o1her grolP plans. 
• I to any out-of-pocket expense limitation. 
•• 

Pagelofl 

• 



\.'1 

• 

• 

• 

Q DELTA DENTAL 

LIMRJCC 

Delta Dental PPO Plan Highlights 
IDtrodUdioD 
The Delta Dental PPO proglOlD allows you III go '" any In· 
or oDl-oI-Detwoll< 8'JlOfBI O1.speciaJIJI dentist al!be: time of 
m:atment LlMRlCC dentsJ enroJlees have ecceSJ to two 
manoged cat< networks, Delta Dental PPO and Delta 
DcntaI Pmnier lraditional fee-for-scrvicc. When you call 
your dentiSL'sofficc: to make an appomtmcnt. ask if your 
dentist participates in either Delta D."lal PPO or Pmnier 
netWork.. Your out-of-pocket costs wiD VfUy dcpendingoo 
whcdler helsbe participates in Delta DC1taI PPO. Pmnicr or 
neitneT (i.e .• "OIJt--cf-ndWDtk""). YOfl d mubDJu ytnJr . 
budll by receiving care from • Delta Dcnbl PPO 
_orll dentist There oro IIlS.OOO Delta Dental PPO and 
182,500 Delta DentaJ Premier dentist locations nationwide. 

Cboosiu. Yoar DeDtist 
Under your Dental Plan, you may go to any in- or out-<tf
ndwOrt. ,cncral or specialty dentist. However, it is to your 
advantage to choose • Del .. Dental PPO IN Premier 
network dentist Cor the (oUowing reasons: 

\) Payment to Delta Dcotal PPO dentists is based on pre· 
established, reduced fees; paymeot to Premier dentists is 
bosed on Del .. •• Maximum Plan AIIOWlIIIcos (MFAs). In 
both networks, you only have to pay your eops)'mcnt and 
deductible - you are nat nsponslble for chargu 
exceedIng th, reduced PPO feel/you rt.cdve Ireatmen/ 
from • D<lta D<nJal PPO d<nt!st or rhe MPA if yo. 
{'«ei.,e lrealmt1ltjroftl Q Premier thntist.. • 

For example, if you need a crown. 8.!SUme the Dctta Dental 
PPO fcc allowance is S500 and the MPA i. S6OO.1fyour 
plan CDvm crowns at SO% and your dentist nonnally 
charges 5100. yOUT out-<>f.pockct cost (excluding 
de<luctibJe) would be: 

Delb DcaCaI PPO Deutist· SISO 
(50% oftl1c S'oo PPO fee allowance) 

Del1a /hDbl Prcmlu De.tilt· S300 
(50% of!be: $600 MPA) 

Oat-<>f-Nelwork Dentist· 5400 
(SO% of the 5600 MPAIlIlaSIOO difference between the 
MPA and the dentist', billed charge) 

ben tit I PPD fof~ 

Group # 1 0668 
I) Because we reimburse Delta Dental PPO and Premier 
dentists directly. they agree to charge you no more than 
your copa.ymctlt and deductible;. in other words,. you do 
nol kaw to JNIY 1M whole bill up-f,.()11/ and wall/or 
rtimbafJ8lft4tz1. 

J) Out-<>r-ne<woll< dentists do not accept Del1a', MPAs as 
payment·m·MI. If IDI out..,f·network dentist', charge 
exceeds the MfA, you must pay the difference .your 
copayment and deductible. At the dentist's discretion,you 
IINJ)) DUO hD'~ 10 pa)llhe entire bJIIln ativaJ'JCI. 

4) Oalm Ibrm, will be complded and submiUcd a! no 
d1af&e, Out~J.network dentists may require you to 
comp!ete rorms yourself or to pay a sen'icc cbarge. 

• If yoru D.lla Dttrkll PPO or Pnmi~1' den.t4t 
lnadwrt .. tly clrarg .. you/or amo"nII payable by 0,110. 
p/~tU~ call our crutomu serv~ department aI J ~OO-
313·]U3. 

Noo-Cavered Senlca 
ThCf'C are some limitations on the expenses for wbich the 
LIMRlCC Dental Plan poys. Fot furlber Infomarlon. refer 
to your dental benefits booklet or c;al1 ourcu!JlOmer scrvlo: 
department 

FindiDS a Network DeatUt 
To verify yO\D' dentist's partiCipation status, simply ask 
h!mlhcr If hdshc is • Delta Dental PPO or Delta Dental 
Premier.-ork dentist, call our automated phone system. 
contact our customer service departmeat or visit our Web 
site. 

Visit Delta Dental OUlllnois' Web sl~ at 

www.deltukntalil.com 

The UMRICC Dental Plan utilizes the Delta Dental PPO 
and Delta Dental Premier networks. To locate a network 
dentist, click aD Dentist Search in the Subscriber section. 

You can scarch by: 
I) City. stat. ODd ZIP rode 
2) 5p«JallJI 
3 Ocutist ,"""e 'onal) 



De>thtl PPO ~b'f ~ 

Summary of Benents aod Covered Services ror LIMfUCC 

Delta Peppi PM NEhyprk DsIb Dental P1;em1er Nct!!prk 0u!=1lfN~ 

Annual Muimum Sl,OOOlpen01l SI,OOOIp=n Sl,OOOlperson 

ADuul D<duetible S501p=a; SI 5O/family S5O/per_ SIS011i!mi1y SSOIpcrson; SISOOimIIy 

(appU .. to buidmajor only) 

PreventinlDlqnostic 

• ... 1 cvaluatioas (two per lOO%ofreduccd fee. 100%ofMPA" 10000AofMPA'" 
calendar year) (00 deductible) (no deductible) (DO deduct!bl.) 

• X-rays (bitewings. two per 
caleDdar year; full mouth· 
once every three years) 

• propbylaxis (cleaning; two 
per calendar year) 

• Duoride _ (once per 
calendar year to age 19) 

• Spoce mainllliaers 

Basic: 

• filUngs . SO'A of reduced fee' SO'4.ofMPA" 8O%ofMPA··· 

• sealaots (dod_ble applies) (deductible applies) (deduCIJble applies) 

• oral Slll'gery 
• galem ancstbcsia (in 

conjunction with oral 
surgery) 

• Periodontics 
• endodontics 

Major 

• crowns, jackets, cast 50% of reduced .... SO%ofMPA" SO%ofMPAu. 
restorations (deduchole applies) (deductible appU.s) (deductible applies) 

• flXCdlrtmOvabl. bridges 
• partiallfull dentures 

·You wiJl not be "balance" ··You will not be "balance .··You are responsible for 
bmed" for.barges exceeding biUed" for ella"" exceeding charges exceeding MP As. 
Delia'S allow.d f!>() f .... Delta', Maximum Plan 

Allowances (MPAs). 

The preeedhlc iaformatioD is. brief summa,.,. ofI.DmlCC Dca .. 1 Plaa and 1M terYic:es It an'ens.lfyuu hi:" specific qaessioDJ reprdill& bmdit 
eov~ lhnitatiODS or txdusfcnls, contact Delta Dental at 1~1743. 

Nou: [)dID D<n1ollmposa /10 ",trial"", on tht .. <thod of tlJagnnm Of" ....... .., by olreDlingdmtirr. A buref~ delmnlnation rrlotu IJIr/y to tht level 0' 
_ thaI}'DID" ""lIP dmJaI pkur Is ntpdrd to ... 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

o DELTA DENTAL 

HIGHUGHTS OF DELTA DENTAL OF ILUNOIS 
. DELTACARE PROGRAM PLAN 275 

PROCEDURE CODE PROCEDURE PAT/WT 
PAYS 

00120 Periodic oral evaluation $0 
00140 Unrlttd 0I'Ii evablatiOll- problem fOCUS<d $0 
00150 Comprd!cnaM 0I'Ii evaJWIIlcn - new or SO 

..rablillled palicm 
00160 Detailed and extendyc onl eva1uaJion • p-oblem SO 

!=sed, by report 
00170 __ -limlttd. p11>0l= focused SO 

(establislttd pali<nt; DOl post-operati9c vint) 

ComprdIensive per\odonIal evaluoIIon - DOW or $0 
establi£hcd patient 
_ radiOJll'llllS - campi ... series SO 
fmdudinB bil<Winp) 
rn_ -periIpleal lim fJlm SO 

D0230 _ - periapical each additional film SO 
D0240 _ - OCclusallilm $0 
00270 Bitewing - single film $0 
00272 Blr.wing. - two films $0 
0027. SitcwfDss . (our film! $0 
00277 _ blleWlnp - 7 to 8 II1mr $0 
00330 Panonmic film SO 
lJ046() I'IIlpviWily ..... $0 
00470 Dlagncstlc casts $0 

PREVENTIVE 

01110 PropbJIuiJ (cleaning) - adIllt SO 
01120 Pmpbyluis (<leanIng) - child SO 
01201 Thpicalappllca1lno offluor\dc fmcludlng SO 

propbylaxb - cldld (to age (9) 
01203 Topical 'l'PlicUion of _ (prophylaxb not SO 

Included) - child (to II' 19) 
Cl330 On] hygi"'" ins<mctino. SO 
01351 SalIlll.p"IOoIh(rhrougb"", IS) 510.00 
01510 Spm:o mainlllner - ftxed - UJIIWentl $6().oo 
OlSlS Spm:o mainl>iner - fixed - biJateral $6().oo 
01520 gpe<omainl>iner-~,-WlilIUCnll 55O.00 
015lS Spe<o"";_ - removable - bilJlerll! $6().oo 
OISlO !!=melIUdon of space mainminer 510.00 

DftI.,nostk and pMlfllltnt trl"lka mtq 1M 6Mldea ,,, 
!,.q....,_ ... s.. __ forddmls. 

RESTORATIVE 

02140 AmIIpm -nne surflIoe. primaJyor ......... " 
O2ISO AmaIpm -two suafaces, primary or pennanent 
02160 Amalgam - th= _. primaJy or penu""'" 
Dl161 Amalgam - four or mote surfaces, primary or penn. 
02330 Resin-bucd composite: - one smfacc. anserior 
02331 R<sin-based composite - two maces, anterior 
02332 Resin-bascd ctImpositc - th:r= lWfaces, anterior 

511.00 
SI8.00 
522.00 
S24.00 
S27.00 
S32.00 
S39.00 

RESTORATIVE «onl.) 

02335 lIeoin-basid C<lIlIpC)Sli<, fonror .... ~ ~3.00 

or ill'OlvinB inc:isaI ql. (.-ior) 
02390 l!esin-based composJte ....... Bllo:ciar SI35.00 
02391 Resin-based camposilc - one surface, posterior Sll.OOf 
02392 l!esin-1>ascII composite·- two -.. pou.rinr $18.00t 
02393 l!esln-bas<d composite - th= sud..,.., post<riot' $22.00t 
02394 Resin-baled oamposi., - f .... or...,.. _. posa. $N·oot 
02910 __ t inlay. ODly or partial .,.,..... n:st. 125.00 
02920 Reocmoot aowo $'l5.00 
02940 Sedative Hilina 110.00 

Pia -.. - .... tooth, m odditioa to-. SIS.OO 

CROWrlSjBRIDGES 

02710 Crown -res!nf_l 11lS.00 
027lO Crown - resin wiih higb nobl, mew' 5279.00 

Crown - resin wilh pr<dominantly bac met<! 5279.00 = Crown - resin willi RObie meul $279.00 
02740 Crown - pm<:elalnlcmmlc sub""" $279.00 
027SO Crown - pora:ialn fused to hlib DObl" '- $279.00 
02751 Crown - porceWn fused to pndom. base meuI sm.oo 
D27S2 Crown - porcelain r .. ed to nob« IIIeIal 5219.00 
02780 Crown - ~ cast higb noble .... r.!. 5279.00 
02781 Crown - ~ cast predom. _ meuI 5279.00 
02782 Oown "' !4' cast noble metal 5279.00 
D2783 Cown - ~ pon:elalnIcc>mlc 1279.00 
0= Crown - full C8SI blgb nobI, metal' 1279.00 
02791 Cow. - full C8SI pr<d<>miDamJy bose m:tal 1279.00 
D2792 Crown - full cast noble meta1 5279.00 
D2794 Crown • titanium 5279.00 
02910 R=menl inlay. onlay or putW _, a<sL 525.00 
02915 R.ccermmt cast or prc-flb. post aDd ccm 125.00 
D2930 PId'ab. otaIDI ... &ted """'" - prim. tooth $7Il.OO . 
02931 Prefab. _ sled """'" - perm. tooth $10.00 
D2932 PId'ab. resin crown c- teeth only] $7(1.00 

D2933 Prefab. stainless steel crown with ruin window $7(I.oot 
O29SO C"'" boJlldup.1ncludin& my pins moo 
02951 Pm ~tioII- per tooth, ia addition to resL Sll.oo 
D29S2 Cast post and CCle in addition to crow'D* 1125.00 
02953 llacb addltiooa1 C8Si posl- same tooth' SI25.00 
029$4 Prefab. post and con: in addidon to crowD 193.00 
D29S7 llacb odditiooal prefab. post ...... tooda 193.00 
02971 Additional proced.um to CClfWnIet nC\V Q'OWD $50.00 

andC'cilitin, partIR! __ 

06210 Pontlc • cast higb noble meu1' 1279.00 
D6211 Ponalc· cast ~dy base metal 1279.00 
06240 Pondc • pnttclaln fused to hish ooble meial' S279.oo 
06241 Pondc - porccWn fused to pndom. _ mctal 5279.00 
D6242 PoaJ:I.c"' porcelain Cused to noble metal 5279.00 
D62S0 Pontic"' ~D with &ish noble ~ 5219.00 



CODE PROCEDUH \ PATJErH 
. I 'AYS 

CROWNS;BRrDGES (cool.) \ 
062S1 Poo6c - rem wilh pmIom. base _ 

062S2 Pontic - rcsiA wilh noble _ 

0050 Crown - pon:dain fUs<d 10 bl&h noble_· 
D679() eo ... - fUll cas, hip nobIc me!al* 
06930 R=neat Iil<d pa:1ioI cIeu_ 
D6971 Cas, po .... pan cIen!i"" 0 ...... " 

l'IIIp ClIp - dilm (<>d\Idini final ....... Uon) 
PIlip cop - indirect (~Iudi1l1 finaJ_) 
~ pulpolOmy (exclll<fing final~)
mnoY1I ofp>lp COI'OII>lIO _ 
jlmction and applicalknl of medic .... lCnl 

03221 1'IIIpal_~ primmy I!Id pcnnaneDI tectb 
03230 Pulpal tbcnpy ~Ie fining) - BIII<ri<r, 

priuwy tooth (=luding final rest<nIiou) 
03240 Pulpal tbcnpy (rcsorbIble fiDing)- pcmrior, 

priuwy tooth (cxcludin& final ,..1OJatioD) 
03110 [Root canal] - _ (cxcIudina BD;!) ... 1Or"atino) 

03320 [loot conal) - bicuspid (exclll<llng fmalroslOratino) 
on3O [Roo< 0IIlIIl] - m.oIu (""'Wdin& final_) 
03346 _ 01 provioUS lOOt CIII3I1hmpy - llIIZrior 
03347 _ 01 prcvIaII$ """ CIIlIIIIhCr.py -bi=pid 
03348 _of~ _ canol tbaapy - moI>t 
03410 Apicccc1omy/perir>di<uIar wrgay - amcrior 
03421 Apicccc1omylpcriradic:u1ar wrgay - bkuspid 

(fir."",,) 
03425 Apic:oodnmy/pcrira<liaJlar surpry - mobr (lint root) 
03426 Apiouccttl"l)'/perlradic:ular wrgay (ea. add'\. root) 

03430 R<Iropde IiItmc - per -

$2'79.00 
$279.00 
5279.00 

$20,00 
S2O.00 

$20,00 

$17,00 
SI09.oo 
Sl~.oo 
$215.00 
SW.oo 
$36S.oo 
$73.00 
$73.00 

S73.oo 
$73.OD 

S5O.OO 

PERrODONTICS \ 

04210 Oingi>a:tomy or sinP"'PlIS1) - rour or more 597.00 
ccotiguous _ 0: boond<d tectb.1>=' per qcad. 

04211 G1n.hootomy or ginsi""Plzs1y - one ., th= $97.00 
contlgDoos tcctIJ. pet qUadrw 

04260 o...ous stJriCI'l' fmcJudinB flap Oltry lind closure) - 5115.00 
rour OJ mere eonllgnoos Leetb or bounded teedl 
spocc. per qua<Iru< 

04261 0...00. stJriCI'l' ,mcJudinB flap eotry I!Id closure)· $115.00 

one 10 ""'" aJIltiiu"'" -. per IjIlOdnl>t 
04341 _III ~planing - 4 or ~petqaad. $39.00 
04342 PerlodonllllCalbtglroot planl", - one to th= $39.00 

tcctIJ. pet quadrant 
04355 Full nw1h dcbri_., eusble ~ $39.00 

CV1luaIion ord diagoooiS 

PROSTHODONTlCS·REMOVABLE· 
05110 CompletE _ - maJtillmy** S36S.oo 

S340.00 

PROCEDURE 

DSS 10 Repair _ compleIc den ... \we 
OSS20 Rcpbo:o mi ..... or _ ICCIh-

oomp!elc demure (each tcoIb) 

05510 Repair iosIrJ deo_ hue 

DSfi40 Rcpl .... broken teeth - per tcoIb 
DS650 Add tooth .. existing partial d'llllre 
OS6fiO Add tWp" Wstmg partill denture 
05710 Rebase coinpIctt maxillary dctJ!Urc 
05720 R<basc mui1lary panlal den .... 
~ Reline compl.., maxillary den .... (chairsidc) 

05740 Reline muiJlary partlaI den!urc (cIml!sldc) 

05750 Rclinc c:amplett nwdllary'_ (bbon!cry) 

05760 Reline muillary partlaI _IBC QabonImy) 

ORAL SURGERY 

07111 ' Ex1nction, C<Iro1II! .......",. - deciduous tcoIb 
07140 BxIrlCtion, CIllpl<d _ or ""post<I1'OOI 

(clevollon IIlIdI<l< foo:eps IClllOYII); includes 
rootI~ mnoval of ~ struc:mre. minor 
srnoothilI, of socket bono IIld closme, u n:<ClimJ' 

onlo Sqical_ of cruptod _I<qUirin, 
clCVllloo Of mucopcriosl<al flap and ICIIIO\o'II 01 

bono ...,'" section of ~ mi"", .1IlOOIbint! 
of socket bone cI"""" 

On20 Removal of imp&:fCd tooIh - soft Ii&suc 
07230 RemovaJ of impaded toolh - partially bol1)' 

D7240 Removal of impBCtCd IOOIh - complctcly bol1)' 

07241 Remowl of impaded IOOIh - eamplctcly bony. 
wIlh Illl1m1Il sutglcai """",1_,,", 

07250 Sqicol...,.,.,..J of residual tooth roots 

(cnttiog prooodurc) 

07310 AMoIDpIasty io conjunction with 
_ .... - pet quaclt>nt 

07320 Alveoloplasty not in conjooction willl 
_ - perquadnn. 

07321 Alvcoloplasly noI in conjUDdion wid!. extl"ldion.! • 
one 10 II1rcc 1CC!h or tcoIb spaas. pet qlllllruu 

D7%O Frenulcc:tomy (Cn:ncaomy or Cm:10t0my) • 
rcparaIC proc:cd ... 

OTHER (AO/UtICTrVE) SERVrCES 

SI4.00 
$25,00 

S25.oo 

$49.00 
$43.00 
575.00 
$19.00 
5140.00 
$140.00 
$75,00 

$7S.OO 
5140,00 
$140.00 

SI3.oo 
$18.00 

$27.00 

53S.00 
$53.00 
571.00 
$75.00 

527.00 

S31.oo 

S13.OO 

$53.00 

SIS.OO 

05211 Maxillary portia! cIcotur< - reshI base f_o, 
my collYCOlional clasp<. ..... au! teeth)*" 

05213 Maxillary portia! _. cast meW framcwort. 
"';1Il min donlUrc _ (includins lID)' 

$395.00 09110 PaIIaIiYo (""CIJCIICY) Il<aUnenI ofden!al plan • 512.1X), 

.... VOIIIl_ clasps. """ and 1CeIh)** 
0522S MaxilWy plrtial cIcotur< • flex!ble base 

,meluding "'1 clasps, ..... 1!Id tectb) 
05226 M»dibuIar portia! -= . flexible _ r-, ""1 claps ...... 8lld tectb) 

minor prooodurc 

D92IS LocaJ -.1bcsia $0 

5395.001 09310 Consuludon (dlqno.1lc scm.. $20.00' 
pnMdcd by dentist or physici .. odlcr 

539S.00t !han proditioncr providing tJoaImem) 

09450 cas. p<cSeI1Ialion, detaiIecl and cxraJsive .......", $0 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

COVE PROCEDURE PATIENT 
PAYS 

ORTHOOONTICS (<cnL) 

D8660 ~_visl.[lpIIfredto_ $25.0() 
ree if pIticn. procoeds with b:ealmentj 

$2,400.00 08680 0I\h0da\Iic -.Iiatt (ttIIIOVa! of applimocI, SI5O.00 
__ and ~oln:lJJineo(.>" 

• All t:harp for ctOWD md bridcc lit. per mdt. Tbete will be III additicIDIJ pI£ieDt cbarF for th: actDll aJSl tor aoldlhLgh noble meW incJudina: ., upp6: in aw.eria& 
lOCh IS pon:eIIm. 
·~ludcs my adjustmc.l1t$ for 61ZJC1Z)1hs. 

•• ~ bcndIlS an: fer active COii,pte:bullSioeanhodcmtic treatmetl.t '[bey iac!odc inItialc:umiDMion, diapasis. consWtatiou, initial balKfiul, 'l4 taantha: ofactfvc IrQtmcnt. 
I do .. bao<!ina, and Ib.c retc:nl3011 pbase. Tbe retemion phue iocludea (he initial COIIBlruC1ion. pJactR\Cllt and adJllIllnenll to rmi.ctn and office visits £IX" a maximwrt or ,WI) 
JtIrI. For trcat:meQI pbDs cx.tmclinc bcyo1ld:M CIl~ of actiw tRaanc:1lt, (be padcnt will be subjtet to III offtce visit tee, 001 to exceed m per ma'ltlI. 

tr'hr:se procedures arc spcciaIized and CODSidcm:Il.limited bendh. Far ~ proa:dun:s. lhe pItitnt pays1he li*" copaymetd. plas lhc- differeace bdwtcn the <k:Dtist'. 
uuaJ. (us ror the applicablo co~ benefit and the dcndst's U1W fees Cor Ibe speciaIizallrcllmcftl. for cwnpte., for. maalll..,. partial dtnto:rc vim • flexible b.uc 

tIIe.PUlm woald pay tbc c:opay plus the differ=\CC bet\loer:a the dcnIist~ usuatlU for tbi. p:rocedte aad the: USIW fea. fOf the. CCI'o'UCd beoefit.. tttU.i.lIay putit,t 
_(ll52I3~ 

Your Del"Calo _ HMO plan is designed to mab: _ a:e affonlable and collYtlll"" for YOll and your liunily. Under this pi.", you pay ouly 
dI. pollen! copa)'l!1<nt arnolJltt Usted In the Scht:dule of DeoIal BcndiIs. The .. are nodododlbles. no annuoJ bondi' mWmmns "'" no claim forms 
to oomplete. 

How DeItaCare"MIrb 
Tho pmel deruj51 YOII select wilen you CIIroU In till. DeltaCarc pi .. will P""'ide all JOUtine dentaJ .... for ya. and your family. If 5pCCialty care is 
requi«d, yoor paocl dentist will mo. you ., a spccialist who Is oJso • member of the IleItaCar<: net-'<. You will ..:cd. writtoh ..rem! in order to 
visit a specialist 

Ycu may Id"" a new panel dentist at any time, huoever)"Oll ..... notify the DehaCaIo administralor. a".g. '"'I ..... =oMd prior u> the 2QIh of the 
~ become dl'ecthoe on tlte fu>t day of the following month. 

Em_T_t 
If you ~um c:mtIg,tney trc3bncn1 and YOIlIIR more dJan 3S miles from. your panel dentist's office 01 yea IR unable to sc:hcdule an Ippoinbncnt with 
your pmeldentist within 24 hours. you ... y go u> any Iioenscd dentist. Upon submissioJl of the _,', stat.melt and your proof of paymcnt, Deha 
Dental wiD ..-you up u> $SO 0= any oopaymcnt II1>OUIII/ in any year for the cost of emergency treatmm. 

About ilia Pruceduns 
The prnccdures listed bel ....... pe!fmru:d as occd:d and deemed n=swy by the DeltaCaro ",,'work clentiSl and ate subject to III. limitation. and 
exclusions of lhc prosram. Please refer to those sections for further clarification of benefits. 

These prnccdur<. ate spcciaJi2l:d and considcrc<I.limitcd benefit Forthcso proccchJrea.!be patient pays the listed copAym<IIt plus the dilf= be"""" 
the dentist', usuaJ fces for the oppIicable _ benefit and the dentist', usual rees for !be specialized t=lmenL For example. I",. ItWCilhry paruaI 
den""" with af1exlble bale (DS22S). the patient would pay the copay pIns the diIf ... """ belween the dentist'. USDa! ree for till. proce<IIlte .. d!he u..al 
fee for the covmd benefit, a .... illary putlal denture ..... base (DS2I3~ 
Mlssc:d appointmc:Dts wilhoul. 24 hr. notice are subjcc;t to a SlO.OO cbuge per lS mbltlte! of appointl'Dem time. 

Any procedure IlOt listed is avallable on 11 fee.-for~scrvice basis. 

If you_questions 
Coo"", Della DeoIal of mlnoi, at 800-32J.l743 . 



J 

EXWJSlONS Of BENERTS 

1) Oenci>l_i. IV sedalion, iunt nitrous oxide and the ocrvicts 
of a spccialIDCSthcsiologist 

2) Denoal proc:ed ..... pctformed lOr pmdy cosmetic _ .... 

3) o..ra1 condlli ... arising 0IJl 0/ and clue to Bmolke', employmenl 
fwwbicb 'AArter', CcmpcmatiOll is payable. Servia:. wbicb are 
provided to tile EruoUcc by.laIc government or agcncyme=l, or 
lie provided wilhout cost to the EDroIlee by any m1ll>idpality, 
county or other subdivision. 

4) Tr<aImer1t raj1Iircd by reason of war, de<larod or 1IrIde<1ared. 

S) Charges by any Irospila! or _ .orgicsl or _ I",IDty, or any 
additional fees charged by a demisi for treatment ill any such facility. 

6) Treatment of fncbm:s, dislocatians and subluutiDns or the 
mandible Of nwdIla. This _ lOy &UrJi<:al trcatmcot to com:ct 
facial mal-alignments of TMJ abncnnaHtics. 

7) Lost ... lhdt 01 fucd and removable prtisthctks (crDWIU, bridges, 
\iJII or partial dcntun:s). 

8) DcauI exp:nses incumd in _on w!1h any dcnlaI procec!um 
SI3I1cd after tormin>licn of eligibilily for C""""B" or dental 
experues iJltUJTOd in connectioo wiIh any _ procedure SI3I1cd 
prior to Ear_'s e1\giliUty wilh 1he DebaCar< program. Examples: 
lCdh prepsred for crowns, .... Clllals in progrcs~ cnhodontic 
_Ill 

9) Any rervicc that is not specUicslly listed as • covered .. pense. 

10) CoI=ting congcniral or clevelopmental malformations, inelOOing 
teplaccmc:nt of ocmgenitaUy missmg teeth. unless rcsionWoa is 
needed In restnre _ bodily fundioo. This exelDslon doca not 
apply to newly born c:hiIdre!L 

II) Cysm wi rna]jgnancios. 

12) Proscripti .. dNgs. 

13) Aceidcnbl injlBy. Aa:UIcnlallDjuJy is defined IS damage 
to lbc fwd and salt tissues of the oral cavity raalting Crom forces 
0llIernaI ro thc mouth. Damages III me bard and soft tissues of thc 
cnI ""'ily from nonnal mastieatnty (chewing) _on wiD be 
c:ovc:red U £be normal schedule of benefits. 

14) esse. iD wllicb, in me professional judgment of thc IIIIaIding 
Denrlst, • ntis!Jctnty IWlll c ..... be obWncd or wbcrc tile 
prognosis is poor or guarded. 

15) !leola! services retdved from any dental offica _dian the 
assigned della! 0_, unJ.., ""p"'s1y authorized in wridng by 
OcltaCaR or as cited under"Emagency T~" 

16) Propby_ removal ofimpa<:liollS(as_omatlc, 
IIOJIpalhological~ 

17) "Olnsnltalio .. • fw rKJIICOV<:rCd _ 

18) Implam p1accmcnl or rorrI<>"8J, appthcsccs placed 00 Of services 
assoda!ed wiIh implants including but not limited 10 propbyJuis 
andperi_ .......... 

19) Placement of. crown where them is sufficient tooth structure 
10 reuUn a Sbmdard fiDing. 

20) Potccfain crowns and porcelain fused to metal crown. on all mollU"S. 

11) R~ plac:ed due to cosmctb::s, abrukms, attrition., erosioo. 
restcring or altering verticaJ dilMllSlon, congeoltal or developmcnbl 
malfimnatlon of __ 

22) Filed bridges used to replace missiftS posterior teeth m consX!ered 
opIioo1II wbcllme abutment r.o(b arc dentaUy sound and would be 
c:roMICd ooIy for lhn purpose of supporting • pontic. A fi<ed bridge 

j 

used 0IIdet ,11= c~ Is cOnsitlarod optlonal dcntaI 

!rCaanent. The patien' must pay tile clIff= in """ betwien!he 
Deruist', usual fe .. for thc covmd bondil and ojnJo.aI ......... 
plUi my coinsurance for the covered benefit. 

23) Appliances or restorations necessary to illClQSC ..-ctical dimension, 
rcplaoe or ... bin .. toolllstn>ClUre loss by IIlIrilion, realignment of 

teeth, periodoobl splinting, gnaIbologic """mings, equilibr>lion or 
.....,em of dlstutbaDces of the _mllJldibular join' (00). 

1.4) Exu:osive IlUtmeot plan.lnvolYing 10 or ..... crowns or unit> of 
fixed bridgework (major mouth recoostruc:tiJ>n~ 

25) !'n:dOUl molal for remo",ble "I'PUanc:e~ precision aIlutmen!i for 

poruels or bridge. (O'IUlsys, imp~ and appUances associa1ed 
!herewith), penonaIizatlon and ~on. 

26) Soft tlssoo man"ement (Uription, infusion, special toolhlirush). 

27) Treatment or appliances that Ire provi~ by I DcntiUl whose 
pnoticn speciaIiza in prosdJodouIic .crvi= 

28) Resrorati,eworkcausedbyonhodontic_. 

29) Extractions soIdy fot Ill. pmpo .. of orthodontics. 

OmtODOIITIC DCLUSIONS 

I) Lost, ""'eo '" broken orthodontic oppli...,.., functional appU""'CI, 
headgear. I!:tainen, and expansion appliancc5. 

2) Reln:atment of onhtxlontic cases. 

3) Cllanscs in lrnIIment necessitared by ac:cldl:nt of .. y kind. J><lJor 
laclc of patient coopen1lon. 

4) Surgical pmeed"",. incidenlal to orlhodOtltic tmmrterit. 

5) MyoftmClionaJ thmpy. 

6) Sutgic:aJ procedures .. !&led to cleft pals",. miaogll3lhia, CT 

mac.tOsnathia.. 

7) Treatmerlt rc1a~ 10 temporomandibwar:joinl diJturbances. 

8) Supplernenbl eppIl""'" not routinely I1liIlzcd in typlool P!tasc n 
on!toclcntIcs. 

9) Active tn:aIJDent mat c:~telJda: more !han 24 months frr?m lhc point of 
banding dentition will be subject to 1m office visit charge not to 
cx=d $75 per monlll. 

10) Rcstorati .. wotl; cansed by orthodontic trclItmeIIl 

II) Phase I· orthodonticI' is an exclusion as ,well as activator applimcc:s 
and minor tratmcDt (or tooth guidance and/or arch expansion. 

12) Extractions solely for thc parjlOSC of ortl1odontics. 

13) 1leaam:nt iD progress at incnptlon of eligibility. 

14) nansrer afler buding has bceu initiated. 

IS) Composite bands and Ii_gull adaptation ~f onbodontlc bands are 
considered opdonaltreatmcnt and woold be oubjcd 1n_1ionaI 
.churg ... 

-Phase [ is ddincd as carly treatment including inttrcepli¥c orthodontia 
prior to lhe devclr>pmml of IDlO mixed _Idon. 

" 

• 

• 



--------------------------------------------------.• ---
CD ,-' 
(1"' 
'):I ., , ,I "".,., ., •• \;'. 

'.'; YO'6 r~;'\)1 ~:i,d'A~~\y!;;::'~:!j:'/ 
.. . ·.:;i!'P~\;!8q.¥$i~:' 

: . ·i ;"'r~,'~: 

i:.~~( ~i 
".":, 

_> ::~:~~~~;~:~f :~~~j~I:~Rt:.,~r.'p;~~I~r.li~~,1#fteU ". 
. .' ,. 

afiord~bie:benefits;viiiWiliear ~Viij9' . 
_'.', ""l<;IIY,SIO;,c~rri;><:~s~Ori,Y~ur.h'eallh 

,;·l;~~I~;,tY;~fey;.wear.:9ii~c~s yo,li)lpv",,: . 

"\~~~~.~~~1f~s~d~ct~;~. ne~~~i~i~' ~e~.~I~·X: .. ~:" ~ : ... 
.:';,. , "schedules'that.WPr~·fo'You.': .. ·r /e 

. . ~i: . -. '. ~.: . ,. : ",' ""':'.: 

,: .. 

·.'::'~~;;m~~~~~~et~~L~~,;;,.; .... ". .. 
.. vsp.giQl.Qr'ca~"5 ai£OO4$Il:1195ryv~·d:IQ~ '..... . ,l . .. .. -( 

l' : 

:m d;:iH f ,!l -;;~ 
,. 1 1',,' r(!, rtf" ·k '. T'. ' ,,'" ••• ' .".lJ..,. , 

~{' ~\~ ,.!' .:'j ~.~;*. '. ,._./- .:'I-~. \ .. " ,~-..) ., ... I", ' .. : -.... ', • '.,~ , ..... 
.,' ,.. ;:I:-:,,::~' :: .• :. L"");r ·,l~2~;i~ 1,' .::"':' ':;,:~ oj '_~~n/irl;"-'~' -', 
~' ,'i':Y~ :;~' _~I '~~:rrY.J~~ ~JV~~'~ ,,~-.::~~;-;r;_':J!-~ ~, .:;::'.' 

tt~~if~~iJilJ~1i~,\~· . 

LlMRICC and VSP provide you an affotdable eyecare plan. 
Sign up leday. 

Your Coverage from a VSP Doctor 

Exam covered In full .................... _ ........... evmy 12 months 

PrescrfpUon Glasses 

Lenses cov.red In full .......................... vOl)' 12 months 
- Single vision. lined bifocal and lined trifocal lenses. 
- Polycarbonata lansas for dapendent children. 
Frame ..................................................... v.ry 24 months 
- Frama of your choice covered up to S120. 
- Plus 20% off any out-of-pocket costs. 

-OR-
Cont.ct Lens C.r ....................... , ............ evary 12 months 
$120.00 allowance for contacts and the contact lans exam 
lfittiryg and evaluaUon). This addilional exam ensures proper 
fa of contacts. If you Choose contact lenses you will be 
eligible for a frame 12 months from tha date the contact 
lenses were obtained. 

Current soft contact lens wearers may qualify for 8 spsciaJ 
program that includes a contact lens evalua60n and initial 
suPPly of replacement lenses. 

Advantages of Coverage 

Without coverage, an exam and prescription glasses can 
cost $300 or more. With VSP coverage. you'lf save, Plus 
with pre-tax payroll deductions. you'nba budgeting for your 
eyecare while reducing your taxable income. 

Glasses and Sunglasses 
-Average 30% savings on Jens options like progressives and 
scretch-resistant ana anti-re"ective coatings 
-20% off additional glasses and sunglasses, inctuding lens 
options· 
Contacts· 
-15% off cost of contact lens exam (fiffing and evaluation) 

Laser VIsion Correction 
-Average 15% off the regutar price or 5% off the promotional 
price fiOm contracled facilities. 
-After surgery, use your frame allowance (if eligible) for 
sung/asses from any VSP doctor . 

• AvaOeb_ ht.vn any VSP doctor within 12 months d your IIIst ep exam 

Out-of-Network Reimbursement Amounts: 

Exam. .. "" ... " ..... " ........ " .. " ... " .. " ..... " ... " ..................... S25,00 
Single Vision Lenses" ..... " .............. " .......................... S3O.00 
Uned Bifocal Lenses .......... " ........................ " .. " .. " ..... $35,00 

Lined Trifocal Lenses ................ "" ...... "" .................... $45.00 
Frame ....... """ ......... " ...... " ................ ".""" ..... ",, ........ $45.00 
Contacts ...... " .. " .... "" ..... " .......... """""" ................. ,, $105.00 

only. In the event 
conflk:I between this· end your organlrstlon's 

contract with VSP, the terms of the contract. wU1 pru'!'8n. 

00t7!1S21 "C5KIl!/Oa 

',,-



• 

• 

• 

i 
',-
) 

Alternative 2 0 RAFT I, 

1) R d M bOI L'b " h h . . . f )d estore 0 I e I rary service Wit tree part-time positions or operation an 
added back in expenditures in contractual services for vehicle maintenance ( 
($6,750) and diesel ($2,000). To offset these costs we reduced membership dues by 
$5,500 and telephone repair service by $1,000. \ 

2) Cut Capital Projects by $60,500. . 
3) Reduced Capital Expenditures by $15,120. 
4) Eliminate raises for staff $40,028. 
5) Increase employee contribution for·medical premiums $54,624. 

LOb F d I rary un 
2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 2011 

. Projected Proposed 
Beginning 1,044,509 1,296,756 1,533,655 1,748,944 
Balance 
Revenues 6,965,236 6,703,990 6,892,108 7,099,834 
Experiditures (6,276,090) (6,657,885) (6,376,819) (6,349,926) 
Transfers (200,000) (300,000) (300,000) (200,000) 
Ending 1,533,655 1,042,861 1,748,944 2,298,852*· 
Balance 

°b ° I LI rary Capita ° t F d Prolec s un 
2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 2011 Proposed 

Projected 
Beginning 162,659 132,802 223,383 429,783 
Balance 
Revenues 3,606 5,000 1,500 2,500 
Expenditures (142,882) (207,100) (95,100) (48,200) 
Transfers 200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
Ending Balance 223,383 230,702 429,783 584,083 

LOb St ff I rary a 
2008 2009 2010 2011 

Full Time 46 46 46 42 
Part Time 86(FTE 33.2) 76(FTE 29.8) 65(FTE 26.4) 65(FTE 26.6) 
TOTAL FTEs 79.2 75.8 72.4 68.6 

**In the budget draft overview document presented to you at the August 17, 2010 Board 
of Trustees meeting, Alternative 2 year-end fund balance showed $2,330,000. As state~ at 
this meeting, these numbers were estimates and when we ran all the budget numbers, this 
ending balance decreased to $2,298,852. ; . ! 

8/23/2010 10:21 :23 AM 



- -------

Alternative 2 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
FUND 201 Des Plaines Public Library 

--/ Rl'duct19.!1. in,Budget REVENUE - FUND 2110& 2130 

~, ®~ .. 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 Bud et 2010 Pro ected 2011 Pro osed 

TAXES 
810019 Property Taxes 2002 
810020 Property Taxes 2003 
810021 Property Taxes 2004 
810022 Property Taxes 2005 (66,433) 
810023 Property Taxes 2006 (57,055) 
810024 Property Taxes 2007 101,622 (27,290) 
810025 Property Taxes 2008 6,640,190 50,000 250,368 
810026 Property Taxes 2009 6,309,802 6,309,802 250,000 

810027 Property Taxes 2010 6499096 

TOTAL TAXES 6,618,325 6,359,802 6,532,880 6,749,096 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 
810800 Personal Prop Repl Tax 92,988 92,988 92,988 92,988 
822040 State Grant: Per Capita 68,892 57,700 57,700 56,000 .-
822095 State Grant: Library Cl.-

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 161,880 150,688 150,688 148,988 

FINES & FEES 
850101 Library Fees 114,466 125,000 4,304 4,300 
850102 Library Fines 128,431 128,000 
850103 Library Fines Credit Card 13,641 15,000 
850201 Copying Fees 29,033 25,000 
850202 Damaged Materials 464 450 
850203 Lost Materials 7,469 7,000 
850205 Bags 928 1,000 
850207 Non-Resident Cards 2,135 2,000 

TOTAL FINES 114,466 125,000 186,405 182,750 
TOTAL TAXES 

SPECIAL PROGRAMS & EVENTS 
850215 4,550 5,000 1,330 1,000 

TOTAL SPECIAL PROGRAMS & EVENTS 4,550 5,000 1,330 1,000 

0278 • Dif\FT • _. __ ._-



Alternative 2 
I Account 2009 Actual 

I 
OTHER REVENUE 

890010 Interest Income 6,204 
890050 Sale of Fixed Assets 0 

899900 Miscellaneous Revenue 24,978 

899920 Library Donations 6,144 

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 37,326 

I 
lI-JND TOTAL I 6,936,547 

('),)71 
'oJ L. ~ .... • 

8/23/2010 

2010 Bud2et 2010 Projected 

5,000 3,500 
1,000 01 , 

17,500 16,555 i 
10,000 750 

33,500 20,805 

~ 6,673,990 '---__ 6,892,108 

DVFT 

2011 ProDDsed 

3,500 
o Sale of Mobile Library 

14,000 Mobile Library Service to 
_~ _____ Rosemont ______ 

500 

18,000 

7,099,834 

DRAFT 

• 

N 
~ 



1 
Alternative 2 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
FUND 201 Des Plaines Public Ubrary 
ReductioJlinBudget - ----- -- , 

EXPENDITURES - FUND 2110 & 2130 I 

M~ Itlo.,lSltOlBuo et 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 Bud.et 2010 Prolected 2011 PrQl!Osed Details Amount 

SALARIES 
910100 Full-time Salaries 2,003,621 2,318,022 2,318,022 2,243,731 
910200 Part-time Salaries 753,696 789,113 723,353 776,206 
910400 Non-Supervisory Overtime 0 500 500 
910500 Vacation Pay 162,031 ° ° 910600 Sick Pay 62,381 ° 0 
910700 Holiday Pay 79,435 a a 
910900 Act/Out of Class/Premium 724 a a 
910950 Excess Sick Hrs Payout 1,748 3,500 3,500 3,500 
910970 Compensated Absences (10739) a 0 ° TOTAL SALARIES 3,052,897 3,110,635 3,045,375 3,023,937 

---
BENEFITS 

918010 Unemployment Compensation 1,406 4,986 26,304 31,000 
918020 Employer Contr - FICA 229,355 237,314 237,314 231,025 
918021 Employer Contr -IMRF 267,499 297,518 297,518 322,793 
918030 EAP Program 662 682 0 0 
918040 life Ins Premiums 6,545 6,576 6,576 4,536 (') 

a.. 
918050 PPO Insurance Premiums 338,038 389,041 256,039 347,486 
918051 HMO Insurance Premiums 105,472 111,979 80,942 99,500 
918055 Dental Insurance Premiums 24,643 31,505 21,710 26,473 
918070 Workers Compensation 13,793 9,500 9,500 9,500 
918085 RHS Plan Payout 18418 10000 10000 10000 

TOTAL BENEFITS 1,005,831 1,099,101 945,903 1,082,313 
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 

920100 Legal Fees 589 15,000 10,000 10,000 ~alFees 10,000 
920105 Costs of litigation 3,500 1,000 1,000 Costs of litigation 1,000 
920110 Professional Services 354,478 405,000 390,000 365,000 Staff Develop-ment 5,000 

IT Management Service 325,000 
Accounting Service 20,000 
Audit 5,000 

Payroll Service 10,000 
920120 Communication Services 31,803 28,460 31,157 33,800 Paetec 3,500 

leN/AT&T 4,400 

call One 5,400 

Broadwing/Level 3 5,600 

S~rlnt/Nextel 12,400 

Corneast 2,500 
920140 Data Processing Services 57,304 100,800 71,537 78,000 Data Processin. OeLe/eCS 78,000 

('),)7") ...., "'- ~ ..... • .FT • 



-

Alternative 2 8/23/2010 

Account 2009 Actual 2010 Budoe! 

920202 Conferences 4,144 ° 920204 Training 6,084 2,600 

920205 Tuition Reimbursements 4,229 0 
920206 Seminars ° 920210 In-Service Training 877 0 

920220 Membership Dues 7,816 6,500 

920225 L1censing!Tities 50 100 
920230 Publication of Notices 1,101 1,000 
920900 Property/llab Insurance 25,773 24,869 

, 

(.),7< • ~FT 'oJ L-, ..., 

, 
------

2010 Prolected 2011 PrQDPsed Details 

1,000 1,000 
1,500 0-

0 0 
0 0 

3,208 500 

6,500 1,000 IALA Dues for Board, Director, 
IAsst Dir 1$3,000) 
!ILA Dues for Board & Prof. Staff 
1$3,000) 
Other Membership Dues 

° ° 2,000 2,000 Publishing 81d Notices 
24,869 25,000 

DRAFl 
" .. Amount 

"--

"" 

1,000 

2,000 
25,000 

• 

"<t
o.. 



- - -- - -

Alternative 2 8/23/2010 

Account 2009 Actual 2010 Budeet 2010 Protected 2011 ProDosed 
930010 R & M Eg'!!pment 100,398 110,062 110,062 125,757 

-

027-1 • lltAFT 

-

Details 

BMA Printer SU~Dort 
UBS Co~ier Su~eort 
Wireline (repair teleptione 
Servicet 
TBS Annual Agreement 
Evanced Annual Agreement 
AWE Annual Mreement 
SARA Workstation A~reement 
Media/Website Workstation 
I Lvncsoe 
APC UPS Annual Acreemnt 

Cooperative Computer Services 

IDS Annual Agreement 
ReaderLPrinters Maintenance 

laminator Maintenance Contract 

Ael'liance Reeair 

Network Maintenance -
Nomadic/Cisco Smartnet/Juniper 

3M Equipment 
(security/checkout/workstations) 

Backflow Device Testing 

• 

DRAFT 
Amount 

6,900 
17,000 

-

4,000 

5,600 
850 

2,350 
250 
200 

23,500 
2,750 

17,000 

11,307 
1,500 

300 

1,000 

8,850 

~ 
20,900 P 

1,500 

'll 

. ~ 
J • 
~ 



Alternative 2 8/23/2010 

Account 2009 Actual 2010 Bud et 2010 Pro ected 
930020 R & M Bldgs & Structures 102,375 116,235 116,235 

930030 R & M Vehldes 7,873 14,300 8,300 I 

930195 Book Binding & Repair 538 1,000 1,000 

930210 Rental of Equipment 1,660 26,500 26,500 

930320 Cleaning: Custodial Services 112,179 "96,700 96,700 

930490 Refuse Contract 5,496 5,500 7,500 
960040 Employee Physicals 69 250 250 
960065 Epav Fees 55 500 
960070 Travel Ex enses 1,972 500 500 

8275 • .FT 

2011 Pro osed Details 
124,080 McQua 

Furniture/Carpet/Drapery 
Cleaning 
Painting 

Woodwork Re air/caq~entrY 

Fire Protection Equipment 
Testin 
Llghting,'Electrical 
HVAC Controls 
Elevator Maintenance 
Car etin 

HVAC Chilled Water Treatment 

Door Maintenance 
Plumbing Repairs & RPZ Valve 
Testin 
Meeting Room Partition 
Maintenance 

"!3liID Ubrary Van Maintenance 
Motiile liiijra Maintenance 

1,000 
BindIng Soft Cover and Hard 
Cover Books & Periodicals 

27,000 Posta e Machine 
Copier lease - United Business 
Solution 

92,500 Contract for Cleaning Library 
Additional Housekeep-ing 
Window/Glass Cleanin 

6,000 Waste Haulin 
250 
500 
500 Auto ravel 

DRAFl 
Amount 

30,630 

30,000 

8,500. 
4,000 

8,000 

9,100 
11,750 

7,500 
3,500 

1,000 

5,500 

4,000 

600 

1,500' 
, CM.lffi) 

1,000 I 

2,000, 

25,000' 

85,500 
1,800 
5,200 
6,000 

250 

sao 

• 

<0 
a.. 

, ~j 



Alternative 2 8/23/2010 

Account 2009 Actual 2010 Bu~get 2010 Prolecte~ 2011 Pro Dosed 

960210 Special Event Programming 28,007 31,000 31,000 31,000 
~.-

960990 Misc. Contractual SVCS 89,189 99,375 99,375 95,600 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES- 944,059 1,089,251 1,040,693 1,029,737 

COMMODITIES 
970100 Office Supplies 85,172 116,300 116,300 107,800 

970110 Meals (PRSNRS/WRKRS/VOLS) 2,987 2,800 2,800 2,100 

8275 • ~FT 
,-
, 

Details 

Youth Services Programming 
Adult Services Programming 
Refreshments 

Community Outreach Activities 

Baker & Taylor Title Source 
Aguarium Service 
MI~west Tape 
TemporarY. Personnel 
Baker & Tavlor ProcessinR 
Crimson Multimedia 
Van DelivelY. Service 
Plant Service 

Constant Contact (eNewsleUer) 

I"victa Services 
ePay Fees 
Back-up Disaster Recovery Off-
site Storage 
Server Monitori"!! 
Collection Ag~ Fees 
Furniture Recovering 

Building System Monitoring 

Materials Processing 
Hardware/Network Supplies 
Debit cards 
Toner 
Mice/Keyboards 
Head~hones 

librarv Cards 
Backup Tapes 
Supplies 

--

DRAFT 
Am.Jtunt 

12,500 
12,500 

1,500 
-

4,500 

5,250 
4,000 

10,000 
5,000 

20,000 
1,000 

25,000 
1,000 

1,200 

750 
1,000 

6,000 

4,200 
5,200 
5,000 
1,000 

70,000 
2,300 
1,000 
2,500 
2,500 
2,500 
4,000 
3,000 

20,000 

, 

r
c... 

library Hosted Meetings & Public 
1,600 

Programs Ali Staff 
Volunteer Partv 500 

• 



- - -- - - -

Alternative 2 8/23/2010 - DRAFT 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 BudRet 2010 Prolected 2011 Pro.osed Details Amount 

970115 Supplies: Dept'/Other 12 0 0 0 
.. 

970170 Janitorial 22,633 23,800 25,000 30,900 Housekee~ing Su~~lIes 19,200 .. -
Ug~tln 7;200' 
Restroom Rep-Iacement Parts 2,500 
Filters 2,000 

970260 Postage and Parcel 10,459 13000 18500 25,000 
Post Interlibrary loan, Outgoing 25,000 
Mall, FedEx Notices 

970270 Printing-Rep-fod-Binding 10,606 5000 2500 6,000 Printing 6,000 
970500 Purchase of Water 8000 6000 6,000 Purchase of Water 6,000 
970600 Books 463,933 489800 489800 401,805 Books 401,805 
970610 Audio Materials 71,126 84600 84600 90,200 Music and Audio Books 90,200 
970620 Subscriptions and Books 63,532 78800 78800 69,500 Periodicals 69,500 
970630 Visual Materials 91,670 96250 96250 111,000 DVDs 111,000 
970640 Automated Reference Mat" 127,900 141000 141000 128,900 Electronic Databases 128,900 
970810 Natural Gas 23,464 30000 20000 18000 
970820 ~Iectricity 0 500 500 500 
970840 Diesel 0 4000 2000 ~ 0 
970850 Gasoline 9 2000 500 500 
970900 Equipment < $5,000 14,257 5500 5500 2,000 Book carts 2,000 

TOTAL COMMODITIES 987,759 1,101,350 1,090,050 1,002,205 
OJ 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES c... 
980300 Improvements 0 8,000 0 0 - _ .. _- -------
980400 Equipment 0 

I 
33,000 41,000 I o Security System DVR ($12,0001 

980410 Computer Hardware 2,444 6,750 4,000 I 6,500 (~IRecel~t Printers ($),2001 __ 
Barcode Scanner 200 
Mac for Graphics 2,000 
Medium Pen Tablet 300 
External Harddrive ... 700 
Dell Replacement Parts 2,000 
Monitor Replacement 1,000 
Photocolor Scanner 300 
IPUbli-cSimPl~ Scan St~j~ --- ~"-.---- ----

!($19201 

0277 • .FT • .. 



~ 

Alternative 2 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 Bud,et 2010 Projected 2011 pr<1l!9sed Detafls Amount 

980420 Computer Software 13,875 32,000 32,000 33,465 Gr~_hlcs Software 4,500 
EZAudit 550 
Public Adobe Suite 1,800 
Short K~~ URf!@ge 250 
Web Classification 575 
Trend anti-virus 3,300 
Public Web Browser 125 
WebDe~ 575 
Cataloger Desk 750 
Microsoft Annual Licenses 12,000 
Jaws & Magic 800 
Novelist Select 1,000 
Fortes/Cleanslate 490 
Website Software 4,000 
Microsoft Services 2,750 

980600 Furniture & Fixtures 7,257 20,500 20,500 17,300 Zig Zag Shelving 1,600 
YSCD Unit 700 
YS Disp~ Furniture 6,000 
Public Seati~ R~lacement 3,000 
Signage 6,000 

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 23,576 100,250 97,500 57,265 
0) 

Other Funding Activities a.. 
990935 Trans to D/SD: 2002A Bond 14,852 24,598 24,598 23,469 End with 2011 Budget 23,469 
990940 Trans to lib Cap Pro] FND 400,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
990955 Trans to D/SD: 2003B Bond 10,995 0 0 o End with 2008 BU~l:!'t 
993000 Contingency Reserve 0 75000 75000 75000 

TOTAL OTHER FUNDING ACTIVITIES 425,847 399,598 399,598 298,469 

LfBRAAYTOTALS 6,439,970 6,900,185 6,619,119 6,493,926 

r:l ') 7 .R 
...., L.. r ..... • ~FT • 



Alternative 2 
Account 

Contractual Services 
920202 Conferences 
920204 Training 
920210 In-Service Training 
960070 Travel Expenses 
960210 Special Event Prog 
960990 Mise Contractual Svcs 
TOTAL CONTRACTUAL 

Commodities 
970260 Postage and Parcel 
970270 Prlntlng-Reprod-Binding 
TOTAL COMMODITIES 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

980400 Equlp-ment 
TOTAL CAPITAL 

PER CAPITA TOTALS DIVISION TOTALS 

TOTAL 2110 & 2130 

0279 • 

8/23/2010 

2009 Actual I 2010 Budoet . I 2010 Prolected I 2011 Proposed 
PER CAPITA EXPENDITURES - FUND 2130 

7,704 1,000 1,000 5,000 
4,500 3,000 3,000 0 
1,567 4,000 4,000 

234 1,000 1,000 5,000 
9,246 3,200 3,200 

15,260 20,000 20,000 30,000 
38,511 32,200 32,200 40,000 

2,000 7,500 7,500 0 
15,686 0 0 0 
17,686 7,500 7,500 0 

12,703 18,000 18,000 16,000 
12,703 18,000 18,000 16,000 

68,900 57,700 57,700 56,000 

6,508,870 6,957,885 6,676,819 6,549,926 

~FT 

Details 

Local History Olgitization 

Audlo!Visu,1 Disk Cleaning Syste 

DRAFT 

.. 

• 

Amount 

30,000 

16,000 

o 
.-
a. 



Alternative 2 
FUND 202 

Account 

OTHER REVENUE 
890010 Interest Income 
899900 Miscellaneous Revenue 
899920 Library Donations 
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE· 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
898902 Transferfrom Lib Fund 
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

FUND TOTAL 

82~8e • 

8/23/2010 

Des Plaines Public .Library 
REVENUE - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

~g!!9 Actual 
2010 2010 2011 

Bud.et Proiected ProDosed 

628 5,000 1,500 2,500 
2,978 

3,606 5,000 1,500 2,500 

200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 

203,606 30S,000 301,500 202,500 

D~FT 

DRAFT 

• 

~ 

~ 

a.. 

-1 



Alternative 2 
FUND 202 

Reduction in Budget 1-
1I\aHitionSlto"}Buaget 

Account 

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 
920110 Professional Services 
960990 Mise Contractual Svcs 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

980300 Improvements 

980400 Equipment 

980410 Computer Hardware 

980420 Computer Software 

980600 Furniture & Fixtures 
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

DIVISION TOTALS 

828'1 • ," 

8/23/2010 
Des Plaines PUbliC lil)rary 

EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

~ 2010 2010 2011 
Details 

Actual Bud~et Prolected ProDosed 

$843 15,000 0 
$560 0 0 

$1,403 15,000 0 -

43,008 92,000 0 
o ITeen c.:;~nge Computer 

Project ($23,000) I 
IPUbliC Restroom 

I Imp,oyements.($20,OOO) 
12,088 24,000 24,000 01 

Teen Lounge Project ((4) 

81,913 76,100 71,100 48,200 
Computers, (1 ) Printer, (1) 

Printer Release Station) 

IS8_800L 
1(7)Hard Drives 

(~)Computers 

1(2) Early Literacy Station 
($7,000) I 
Teen Lounge Project (PC 

4,470 0 0 0 Reservation & Pcounter) 

1$1.700) 
0 0 

141,479 192,100 95,100 48,200 

142,882 207,100 95,100 48,200 

DltFT 

Amount 

4,200 
44,000 

DRAFT 

• 

N 
.
a.. 



\ • 

• 

• 

Alternative 1 DRAFT 

1) Restored Mobile Library service with three part-time positions for operation and 
added back in expenditures in contractual services for vehicle maintenance 
($6,750) and diesel ($2,000). To offset these costs we reduced membership dues by 
$5,500 and telephone repair service by $1,000. . 

2) Cut Capital Projects by $60,500. 
3) Reduced Capital Expenditures by $15,120. 

LOb F d I rary un 
2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 2011 

Projected Proposed 
Beginning 1.,044,509 1,296,756 1,533,655 1,748,944 
Balance 
Revenues 6,965,236 6,703,990 6,892,108 7,099,834 
Expenditures (6,276,090) . (6,657,885) (6,376,819) (6,444,578) 
Transfers (200,000) (300,000) (300,000) (200,000) 
Ending 1,533,655 1,042,861 1,748,944 2,204,200** 
Balance 

LOb C °t I pOt F d I rary api a rolee s un 
2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 2011 Proposed 

Projected 
Beginning 162,659 132,802 223,383 429,783 
Balance 
Revenues 3,606 5,000 1,500 2,500 
Expenditures (142,882) (207,100) (95,100) (48,200) 
Transfers 200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
Ending Balance 223,383 230,702 429,783 584,083 

LOb S ff I rary ta 
2008 2009 2010 2011 

Full Time 46 46 46 42 
Part Time 86(FTE 33.2) 76(FTE 29.8) 65(FTE 26.4) 65(FTE 26.6) 
TOTAL FTEs 79.2 75.8 72.4 68.6 

**In the budget draft overview document presented to you at the August 1 7, 2010 Board 
of Trustees meeting, Alternative 1 year-end fund balance showed $2,270,000. As stated at 
this meeting, these numbers were estimates and when we ran all the budget numbers, this 
ending balance decreased to $2,204,200 . 

8/2312010 10:21:46 AM 



Alternative 1 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
FUND 201 Des Plaines Public Library 
Reduction in Budget I REVENUE - FUND 2110 & 2130 

~Il'l~ - - - _ ._>-l 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 Bud et 2010 Pro"ected 2011 Pro osed 

TAXES 
810019 Property Taxes 2002 
810020 Property Taxes 2003 
810021 Property Taxes 2004 
810022 Property Taxes 2005 (66,433) 
810023 Property Taxes 2006 (57,055) 
810024 Property Taxes 2007 101,622 (27,290) 
810025 Property Taxes 2008 6,640,190 50,000 250,368 
810026 Property Taxes 2009 6,309,802 6,309,802 250,000 
810027 Property Taxes 2010 6499096 

TOTAL TAXES 6,618,325 6,359,802 6,532,880 6,749,096 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 
810800 Personal Prop Repl Tax 92,988 92,988 92,988 92,988 
822040 State Grant: Per Capita 68,892 57,700 57,700 56,000 ,... 
822095 State Gran!: library a.. 

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 161,880 150,688 150,688 148,988 

FINES & FEES 
850101 library Fees 114,466 125,000 4,304 4,300 
850102 library Fines 128,431 128,000 
850103 library Fines Credit Card 13,641 15,000 
850201 Copying Fees 29,033 25,000 
850202 Damaged Materials 464 450 
850203 lost Materials 7,469 7,000 
850205 Bags 928 1,000 
850207 Non-Resident Cards 2,135 2,000 

TOTAL FINES 114,466 125,000 186,405 182,750 
TOTAL TAXES 

SPECIAL PROGRAMS & EVENTS 
850215 Special Programs & Events 4,SSO 5,000 1,330 1,000 

TOTAL SPECIAL PROGRAMS & EVENTS 4,550 5,000 1,330 1,000 

8283 • D.\FT • ,> 



Alternative 1 
Account 2009 Actual 

OTHER REVENUE 
890010 Interest Income 6,204 
890050 Sale of Fixed Assets a 
899900 Miscellaneous Revenue 24,978 

899920 library Donations 6,144 

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 37,326 

FUND TOTAL 6,936,547 

0281 • 

8/23/2010 

2010 Bud!!et 2010 Proiected 

5,000 3,500 
1,000 01 

17,500 16,5551 

10,000 750 

33,500 20,805 

6,673,990 6,892,108 

D.FT 

DRAFT 
2011 Proposed 

__ ___ ~,5J!~ _ _ _______ 
a Sale of Mobile Library 

14,000 Mobile library Service to 
_ ~05emont 

500 

18,000 

7,099,834 

, 

• 

N 
a.. 



Alternative 1 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
FUND 201 Des Plaines PUbliC ubrary 

--- -- ---
Reduction In Budget I EXPENDITURES - FUND 2110 & 2130 
'/l Itlons tOlBu e 

Account 2009 Actual 2010 Bud.et 2010 Proiected 2011 ProDosed Details Amount 

SALARIES 
910100 Full-time Salaries 2,003,621 2,318,022 2,318,022 2,273,840 
910200 Part-time Salaries 753,696 789,113 723,353 786,125 
910400 Non-Supervisory Overtime 0 500 500 
910500 Vacation Pay 162,031 0 0 
910600 Sick Pay 62,381 0 0 
910700 Holiday Pay 79,435 0 0 
910900 Act/Out of Oass/Premium 724 0 0 
910950 Excess Sick Hrs Payout 1,748 3,500 3,500 3,500 
910970 Compensated Absences {10739 0 0 0 

TOTAL SALARIES 3,052,897 3,110,635 3,045,375 3,063,965 

BENEFITS 
918010 Unemployment Compensation 1,406 4,986 26,304 31,000 
918020 Employer Contr - FICA 229,355 237,314 237,314 234,088 
918021 Employer Contr -IMRF 267,499 297,518 297,518 327,100 
918030 EAP Program 662 682 0 0 
918040 life Ins Premiums 6,545 6,576 6,576 4,536 [Ii 
918050 PPO Insurance Premiums 338,038 389,041 256,039 379,225 
918051 HMO Insurance Premiums 105,472 111,979 80,942 115,015 
918055 Dental Insurance Premiums 24,643 31,505 21,710 26,473 
918070 Workers Compensation 13,793 9,500 9,500 9,500 
918085 RH5 Plan Payout 18418 10000 10000 10000 

TOTAL BENEFITS 1,005,831 1,099,101 945,903 1,136,937 
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 

920100 Legal Fees 589 15,000 10,000 10,000 Legal Fees 10,000 
920105 Costs of Litigation 3,500 1,000 1,000 Costs of litigation 1,000 
920110 Professional Services 354,478 405,000 390,000 365,000 Staff Development 5,000 

IT Management Service 325,000 
Accounting Service 20,000 
Audit 5,000 
Payroll Service 10,000 

920120 Communication Services 31,803 28,460 31,157 33,800 Paetec 3,500 
ICN/AT&T 4,400 
call One 5,400 
Broadwing/Level 3 5,600 
5print/Nextel 12,400 
Comcast 2,500 

920140 . Data Processing Services 57,304 100,800 71,537 78,000 Data Processing OCLC/CCS 78,000 

(.I').Q.r:: 
.....,. 4. 'V' -' • ~FT • " 



Alternative 1 8/23/2010 

Account 2009 Actual 2010 Bud.et 

920202 Conferences 4,144 0 
920204 Training 6,084 2,600 

'\ 920205 Tuition Reimbursements 4,229 0 
920206 Seminars 0 
920210 In-Service Training 877 0 

920220 Membership Dues 7,816 6,500 

920225 Licensing/Titles 50 100 
920230 Publication of Notices 1,101 1,000 
920900 Property/liab Insurance 25,773 24,869 

(.)/!lh 
'V.L... V' ....... • oe\FT 

" 

2010 Prolected 2011 Proposed Details 

1,000 1,000 
1,500 0 

0 0 
0 0 

3,208 500 

6,500 1,000 lAtA Dues for Boa~d. Director, 
'Asst Dir 1$3,000) 
liLA Dues for Board & Prof. Staff 
1$3,000) 
Other Membership Dues 

0 0 
2,000 2,000 Publishing Bid Notices 

24,869 25,000 

DRAFT 
amount 

--------. 

1,000 

2,000 
25,000 

• 

"'" a.. 



1 

Alternative 1 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
Account 2009 A<tual 2010 Budget 2010 Pro e<ted 2011 ProDosed Details Amount 

930010 R & M Equipment 100,398 110,062 110,062 125,757 BMA Printer SUP-Eort 6,900 
UBS Copier Su~~ort 17,000 

" --------

Wlreline (repair telephone 4,000 
Service) 
TBS Annual ~reement 5,600 
Evanced Annual Agreement 850 
AWE Annual AR:.reement 2,350 
SARA Workstation Agreement 250 
Media/Website Workstation 200 
lyngsoe 23,500 
APC UPS Annual Agreemnt 2,750 

Cooperative Computer Services 17,000 

IDS Annual ARreement 11,307 
Reader/Printers Maintenance 1,500 

laminator Maintenance Contract 300 

Apj>lIance Re~alr 1,000 

Network Maintenance -
8,8S0 

Nomadic/Cisco Smartnet!Juniper 

3M Equipment 
20,900 

{security/checkout/workstations} 

Backflow Device Testing 1,500 

8287 • ~FT • ..•. 



Alternative 1 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 Bud et 2010 Pro ected 2011 Pro osed Details Amount 

930020 R & M Bldgs & Structures 102,375 116,235 116,235 124,080 McOua 30,630 
Furniture/Carpet/Drapery 

30,000 
Cleanln 
Palntin 8,500 
Woodwork Re air/Carpentry 4,000 
Fire Protection Equipment 8,000 
Testin 
LI htin Electrical 9,100 
HVAC Controls 11,750 
Elevator Maintenance 7,500 
carpeting 3,500 

HVAC Chilled Water Treatment 1,000 

Door Maintenance 5,500 
Plumbing Repairs & RPZ Valve 

4,000 
Testin 
Meeting Room Pa rtltion 

600 
Maintenance 

930030 R & M Vehicles 7,873 14,300 8,300 8250 Ubra Van Maintenance 1,500 
rv10liile m6ra Maintenance · .0i.lffilj 

930195 Book Binding & Repair 538 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Binding Soft Cover and Hard 

1,000 
Cover Books & Periodicals to 

"-930210 Rental of Equlement 1,660 26,500 26,500 27,000 Postage Machine 2,000 
Copier lease - United Business 

25,000 
Solution 

930320 Cleaning: Custodial Services 112,179 96,700 96,700 92,500 Contract for Cleanin Ubra 85,500 
Additional Housekee ing 1,800 
Window/Glass Cleanln 5,200 

930490 Refuse Contract 5,496 5,500 7,500 6,000 Waste Hauling 6,000 
960040 Employee Physicals 69 250 250 250 250 
960065 Epa Fees 55 500 500 
960070 Travel Ex enses 1,972 500 500 500 Auto ravel 500 

1:'1 ') X.Q. 
..... ' L. ....., .... • ,*FT • 



Alternative 1 8/23/2010 

Account 2009 Actual 2010 Bud.et 2010 Pro"ected 2011 ProDosed 
960210 Special Event Programming 28,007 31,000 31,000 31,000 

960990 Misc. Contractual SVCS 89,189 99,375 99,375 95,600 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 944,059 1,089,251 1,040,693 1,029,737 

COMMODITIES 
970100 Office Supplies 85,172 116,300 116,300 107,800 

970110 Meals (PRSNRS/WRKRS/VOLSj 2,987 2,800 2,800 2,100 

8289 • IW-\FT 

Details 
Youth Services Programming 
Adult Services Programming 
Refreshments 

Community Outreach Activities 

Baker & Taylor Title Source 
Aguarium Service 
Midwest Tape 
Tem~ Personnel 
Baker & Tavlor Processing 
Crimson Multimedia 
Van Delivery Service 
Plant Service 

Constant Contact (eNewsletter) 

Invicta Services 
ePav Fees 
Back-up Disaster Recovery Oft-
site Storage 
Server Monitoring 
Collection Agency Fees 
Furniture Recovering 
Building System Monitoring 

Materials Processing 
Hardware/Network Supplies 
Debit cards 
Toner 
Mice/Ke~boards 

Headphones 
Libra", cards 
Backup Tapes 
Supplies 
Libra", Hosted Meetings & Public 

Prowams All Staff 
Volunteer Party 

DRAFT 
Amount 

12,500 
12,500 

1,500 

4,500 

5,250 
4,000 

10,000 
5,000 

20,000 
1,000 

25,000 
1,000 

1,200 

750 
1,000 

6,000 

4,200 
5,200 
5,000 
1,000 

70,000 
2,300 
1,000. 
2,500 : 
2,500 
2,500 ! 

, 

4,000 i 

3,000 
20,000 

1,600 

SOD 

• 

t
c.. 



Alternative 1 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 BudRet 2010 Pro ected 2011 Prooosed , Details Amount 

970115 Supplies: Dept'/Other 12 0 0 0' 
970170 Janitorial 22,633 23,800 25,000 30,900 Housekeeping Supplies 19,200 

lighting 7,200 
Restroom Replacement Parts 2,500 
Filters 2,000 

970260 Postage and Parcel 10,459 13000 18500 25,000 
Post Interlibrary loan, Outgoing 25,000 
Mail FedEx Notices 

970270 Printing-Reprod-Binding 10,606 5000 2500 6,000 Printing 6,000 
970500 Purchase of Water 8000 6000 6,000 Purchase of Water 6,000 
970600 Books 463,933 489800 489800 401,805 Books 401,805 
970610 Audio Materials 71,126 84600 84600 90,200 Music and Audio Books 90,200 
970620 Subscriptions and Books 63,532 78800 78800 69,500 Periodicals 69,500 
970630 Visual Materials 91,670 96250 96250 111,000 DVDs 111,000 
970640 Automated Reference Mat" 127,900 141000 141000 128,900 Electronic Databases 128,900 
970810 Natural Gas 23,464 30000 20000 18000 
970820 Electricity 0 500 500 500 
970840 Diesel 0 4000 2000 ~OOO 0 
970850 Gasoline 9 2000 500 500 
970900 Equipment < $5,000 14,257 5500 5500 2,000 Book carts 2,000 

TOTAL COMMODITIES 987,759 1,101,350 1,090,050 1,002,205 

~ 
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

980300 Improvements 0 8,000 0 0 -
980400 Equipment 0 33,000 41,000 I o Security System DVR ($12,000) 

980410 Computer Hardware 2,444 6,750 4,000 I ___ 6,500 (~)Recei~t Printer~J$,!,~QQ) 

Barcode Scanner 200 
Mac for Gra~hlcs 2,000 
Medium Pen Tablet 300 
External Harddrlve 700 
Dell Replacement Parts 2,000 
Monitor Replacement 1,000 
Photocolor Scanner 300 
jPublicsTmPle Scan Station 

--

1~1qJnI 

r.n Q,(.) 
'-' .... ",,-....r • ~FT • " 



Alternative 1 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 Bud.et 2010 Proiected 2011 PrQI!Qsed Details Amount 

980420 . Computer Software 13,875 32,000 32,000 33,465 Graphics Software 4,500 
E2Audit 550 
Public Adobe Suite 1,800 

Short Keys U~g@ge 250 
Web Classification 575 
Trend anti-virus 3,300 

Public Web Browser 125 
Web Dewey 575 
cataloger Desk 750 
Microsoft Annual Licenses 12,000 
Jaws & Magic 800 
Novelist Select 1,000 
Fortes/Cleanslate 490 
Website software 4,000 
Microsoft Services 2,750 

980600 Furniture & Fixtures 7,257 20,500 20,500 17,300 Zig ZagShelving 1,600 

YS CD Unit 700 
YS Dls~lay Furniture 6,000 
Public Seating Re~lacement 3,000 
Signage 6,000 

TOTAl CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 23,516 100,250 91,500 51,265 
a> 
c.. 

Other Funding Activities 
990935 Trans to D/SD: 2002A Bond 14,852 24,598 24,598 23,469 End with 2011 Budget 23,469 
990940 Trans to Lib Cap Pro] FND 400,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
990955 Trans to D/SD: 2003B Bond 10,995 0 0 o End with 2008 Budget 
993000 Contingency Reserve 0 75000 75000 75000 

TOTAL OTHER FUNDING ACTIVITIES 425,841 399,598 399,598 298,469 

LIBRARY TOTALS - 6,439,910 6,900,185 6,619,119 6,588,518 

8291 • .FT • ,. 



Alternative 1 S/23/2010 DRAFT· 
Account 2009 Actual I 2010 Bud.ot I 2010 Pro octod I 2011 ProDosod Details Amount 

PER CAPITA EXPENDITURES - FUND 2130 
Contractual Services 
920202 Conferences 7,704 1t OOO 1,000 5,000 
920204 Training 4,500 3,000 3,000 ° 920210 In-Service Training 1,567 4,000 4,000 
960070 Travel Expenses 234 1,000 1,000 5,000 
960210 Special Event Prog 9,246 3,200 3,200 
960990 Mise Contractual Svcs 15,260 20,000 20,000 30,000 local History Oigitization 30,000 
TOTAL CONTRACTUAL 38,511 32,200 32,200 40,000 

Commodities . 

970260 Postage and Parcel 2/000 7,500 7,500 0 
970270 Printlng-Roprod-Blnding 15,686 a a a 
TOTAL COMMODITIES 17,686 7,500 7,500 0 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 
980400 Equipment 12,703 18,000 18,000 16,000 Audio/Visual Disk Cleaning 5yster 16,000 
TOTAL CAPITAL 12,703 lS,OOO lS,OOO 16,000 

PER CAPITA TOTALS DIVISION TOTALS 68,900 57,700 57,700 56,000 

TOTAL 2110 & 2130 6,508,870 6,957,885 6,676,819 
0 

6,644,578 ~ 

a. 

t:},Q, • 
'J&.--.J&-

D.FT • 



Alternative 1 
FUNDZOZ 

Account 

OTHER REVENUE 
890010 . Interest Income 
899900 Miscellaneous Revenue 
899920 library Donations 
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
898902 Transfer from lib Fund 
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

FUND TOTAL 

(.1:Q'< 
'V L. '01 "" • 

8/23/2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
REVENUE - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

2009 Actual 
2010 Z010 2011 

Bu<!ru!t Proiected Proposed 

628 5,000 1,500 2,500 
2,978 

3,606 5,000 1,500 2,500 

200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 

203,606. 305,000 301,500 202,500 

D,.FT 

DRAFT 

• 

.

.
c... 

'~ ,; 



Alternative 1 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
FUND 202 Des Plaines Public Library 

~ 

Reduction in Budget I EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND I 

~aaitions-LtOl!luaget i 

A~count 
2009 lli!L lli!L ~ Details Amount 

Actual Budget Projected Proposed 
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 
920110 Professional Services $843 15,000 0 
960990 Mise Contractual 5vcs $560 0 0 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES $1,403 15,000 0 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

980300 Improvements 43,008 92,000 0 
o ITeen Lounge Computer 

,Proiect ($23,000) i 
tUbliC Restroom 

I Imp!pvemen~($1Q,OJl_Q) 
980400 Equipment 12,088 24,000 24,000 01 

jTeen lounge Projec;-((4)--

980410 Computer Hardware 81,913 76,100 71,100 48 200 IComputers, (1 ) Printer, (1) 
, Jprinter Release Station) 

IS8.8001 
l(7)Hard Drives 4,200 

N 
~ 

a.. 

(44)fomp_,!!ers 44,000 

1(2) Early Literacy Station I ($7,000) 
reen Lounge Project (PC 

980420 Computer Software 4,470 0 0 o Reservation & Peounter) 

1$1.700) 
980600 Furniture & Fixtures 0 0 
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 141,479 192,100 95,100 48,200 

DIVISION TOTALS 142,882 207,100 95,100 48,200 

A-) 0;1 
'J .:.. .... • • O.FT • .-



(.)/Q~ 
.......... oJ ..J 

~. 

Alternat.ive]; 8/23/2010 
FUIII~ ~02 ." I I . uest'lalne! P~bllcLlt)ra~ _ _ __ . 
Red.uction in.B.udget l I EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUN.:.:D:_+._~_ 
:!I:lIilitionsttolBullget . ____ -___ -r---j ---- _ --- ---- . -----

Account ~ _20_10_ 2010 _20_1_1 Details Amount 
I=:====c-=:=:-:::::c::----I- _- Actual __ IDI!!Ket_ .. Projected .!!r2PJ!1e.l!..I __________ I-=== 
CONTRACTUAl SERVICES 
920110 _ _c=:=-___. ~()fessional Serviees ____ ~~2..I~!ciiio-· 0 - --
96~90 ___ -_____ lMisccontraet~a!sYE' __ $560 I 0_ 0 __ _ 

i~~lI~~_s~!=Es'::':L ___ ~.!'~_ .!2.PQQ. ___ 0 __ -._. - - _·----_1. __ _ 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES r --- ---
980300 I . . ' 43008 -g' 2 000 ---0- -'--0- TeenloungeComp~ter • -~ 

mprovements " . ($ 3 000) _1 _______ -!-____ ! ____ Pro1ect 2, -. ------- ------- I PublieRestroom ~---

--'. -'- - ---.-. ---. - , --.-- - jllrnpf.OVements.!S20,Q()Q) r----
980400 Eq!,!p',!,ent _ l2,08~ __ 2.4.000 __ 2~,000 ,_ _. . . '. _ '. "_ 0, 1'-:'_' __ 

ITee~ lounge Project ((4) , 

980410 Icomputer Hardware 81,913 76,100 71,100 48,200 Camputers. (1 ) Printer. (1) I 'Printer Release StatIon) 

~==- ~-~:..-- - <-.-' --- -'~~ ___ ., ___ ~.-jlRfE~~~;:;: -- _l-~:~~~ 
I ~(2) Early literacY Station' ' 

___ ._ . _ . ___ . _____ . ____ 1--___ ($7,000) . . ~ __ 

I Teen lounge Project (PC 
980420 . Computer Software 4,470 0 0 0 . Reservation & Peounter) 

.--- ---. - ______ ~.{SI,700) --'f' 
980600 !Furniture & Fixtures 0 0 
TO.!AlCA~lEXPENDITI,I~S ___ 1- -. __ 141,479' ..123,100 __ 9~,100_ ~8,200 ===:-
DMSION TOTALS -- i - 142,882, .207,100 95,100 48,200 I \ 

• DRAFT 
'-• 

DHAFT 

N -a.. 

• 



8295 

Altetn'afiVe 1 # • '. • • • , 8/23/2010 

Des Plaines P~blic Ubrary FUND20~ __ 1 __ _ 
REVENUE· CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND .--.-------.' 1 ---. ------- -----~I--

Account -- 2009 Actual . __ :Z010 - - 2010. I 2011 '- --.---- -

---. BudJ!!!t proi~~ed i Proposed -j I 

OTHER REVENUE I ! -
1~90010 ___ . ___ Interestlnc~~e= . ___ § 62.!1.. __ S~!JOO . 1,s.o.OJ __ 2,SOO ____ . ___ . 
1899900 I Miscellaneous Revenue 2,978 1 I 
1899920 __ -:...:.. . __ ._ ~.- -=/jjbrary Donatio.!!s -- - . _ .1

1

- I _.__ ___ -=-=_ 
TO!~L.PTHER REVEI'!',I..E___ _ ,. __ . _ 3,606 5,000. ___ 1,~! 2.500. _______ _ 

OTHERFiNANCINGSOURCES' --1-- -~~ I . 1- I . 1 
89890~ ITransferfrom Lib Fund j 200,000 300,00.01._ 300,000 r-200,000. __ 1 
,TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES I _ _ __ 1_20_,?-000 3oo,00.Q. . .....2QQ,000 1_20.0,000 _ . 

I I I 
FUND TOTAL -. - - 203,606 I 305,000 I 301,SOO I 202,500 I . 

• 'DRAFt ._ .• 

o RAFT 

• 

.

.-
a... 



~Iternative '1-
- <:> '...., - - ... 

8/23/2010 DRAFT 
___________ ---,--__ 1 amaun --- _i!009 Actu.I_1" 2010 Budge! L 2010 Projected [ 2011 Proposed _ Detail. - 1_1!!!!2!!!!! 

PER CAPITA EXPENDITURES - FUND 2130 _____ 1 
Contractu. I Services ------ - --1------1 r---------
:~~~~~- ~~~~~~s ~-=--=-_i.~I---I~~-~__=¥O~: 5,flQri---- --==---
9202l0-- -----------lln-SerVic,'Tralnlng -T- l,S67----4;OOO~--4,OOO -T --- ---
960070- -- TriWei Expenses .-----j- ----234 1,000 1,00'0 --5;000 - -------!------
96(1210 - --- -- Sped.I-EveittProg- ---- 9,246 --3;200 -----3,200 --- -- -1'-----
?6~9'!_-__ = iVllsc-Cont~.ciuil S~-_ - - ---1~,i60.=----Y,ii!JE 2_0,OOOl=-:'- 30,000 ~~ry Dig'!i.Z!tion - ==-- 30,QOO 
ITOTALCONTRACTUAL 38,5111 32,200 32,2001 40,000 .-- - - ----- -- --r-----, - --i-- - ----- ~-
COmmodities - -- .-------- -- ------ -' --I --- -~---- --1-

:;~}fo ~-. - I:~~~~~;.~~~~~d-ing--_I. ---~:~ 7,.s0~ 7.~ - ---::... -ri - --. -1--- ----I 

!OTA.L.fQ.~DiTiEs_. _____ :-~=-=-_ --:: ___ g§~I_ 7,50Q=--_7,500
r 

--::=0::'. -" 
CAPITAL EXPENDrruRES ---- ----- ----- --- --- - --j-- 1 -------

~04iio - -- - E!l'!'pment __ - ------= -_ 12,7031- 18:QOOI·_. --.!!!,Ooq __ . - }.6,oool~Udi07viSU .• i Disk q~g_sv~.enl· 16,QQQ 
T_O:rAl_~PITAl __ _______ _ __ 1_2

C
7031 ____ l_!l.9OQ. ____ 1_8,'!QQ __ _ _16,Q..o.o • 

PER~ITI\ -r:,OTALS ____ ---=-1!l--'-'{I~JONTciTALS -- ---J------68,90I! =-- 57,700· ____ 57,~ ___ 56;000 __ -- - --- :--------~ 
IroTAL ilio & 2130 ----- -[------ ----~--6.sD8.870 1----s;957,S85 - 6,676,819 -n-6,644,578 - ---Ie 

[.)/Q7 
'" 4- -.i ~ • DRAFf 

-• • 

a.. 



Alte'rr:tatiye 1 8/23/2010 DRAFT 

Jl80420 
009 Actual I 2010 Budget 2010 projected 2011 proposed 

:::!.~I\"GI':; 1 ___ 13,875 I 32.p~CJ.Q.. - 32.000· -___ ~~,46S_ ~.@phl~SOftware _1=- __ -4,500 1- ~ 

! 
' c~uu" f: 550 ,___ _ _ _ .. __ ._ --= -__ __. .. =i-=-=--":"'" _ _ -= P';-t,lI, Ado.be SUite ___ . 1"8OQ. 

_ ' ______ I ____ . '-____ ._ . ___ 5hort!S.eysU~g~ge ____ ___ ...l5.0_ 
1 IWeb Classification 575 ,-=-- ·------·---i=- ---_-=-= ~ -_ = -- -. ":1"--- -l~ ___ ._\~~~~~;:::::~je-r--·--I· -- ?~~~.~~ 

--- - T ----- -- - Wep.Dewev !- __ 575_ 
1___ _ __ . ---- - --- _ca~!og~rDesk 1.- 750_ 

Microsoft Annual licenses I 12.000 -.----. -- _ --= -- -----.. ----:.=--:I=-=- - -'- ==-=:--=ia_'Y5&M~gl;- - -+ --. 800 
_______ .. _____ ... ____________ . __ . ____ _ . _____ N!'vellst5eIect____ __. 1,Q.0Q.. 

1_ .. -- - -- -,-- -_.- - .--- -- Fort!'~ge~!at~ _1 __ ~9.tl. -- '-' -+--- --------.---- --.--- :~~~itSo=c~~·I----~:~·~~·1 
__ . Jl!!O.60-0"---· -- Furniture & £i!!'Jres ___ ==~ = --7,257 r ==.20~00 = _ ~0,500_ . .E,~ ~lg~g~hej;,I'!8 __ . ___ l=:'" -i,GOo.:: 

----1--- -- -j - - ---,--- - - -- --. -. -~ ~~~;~\umtture - -1-- 6,~~ 
1=- - _. __ .. __ ,__ --,=--=--:=j-- - ___ ._, __ -__ l~bIiC5eatiryg!~.'!~ment 3,000' 

ITOTAL'CAPITAL EXPENDITURES _ 23,576 I 100,250 1 .J'7-,500 1 57,265 
6,000. 

!lltj;.rFundingAClivitles ·------1 '- --. m--··--1- -- - -- -- ·-·r-----IQ: 
. -- - -., )9091.5_-=-~'::"~']!r'!.'!~..t.o"p!5D: 2002A~'!.~nd-"':: -. - -- '14,8.52 =. -24,~98 --. -24,598 -. -- 23,469_ End_With 2.qjl.Bujg~; == =r=-=--~~?,!6~ 

1 ____ 9.90~40 -rTran~~9!~ Proj~!l _____ ~~,OOO 300,000_ . _ 300,000 ___ 20..Q,ooo. 
__ ._!!..90955____ Tra.'!!..t~Jlj5D:}~3~ Bond __ ._~,995 __ ~_ ___ 0 0 .End with 2008_Budget 1 ______ I 

993000 ContIngency Re~erve 0 I 75,000 75,000 75,000 1_____ L ____ _ 
ITOTAL OTHER FUNDING AcnvmES I \- 425,847 I 399,598 

IIAD4DVTOTALS 6,439,970 

A/QR 
....., L.. oj...., • 

6,900,185 

DRAFT • 

6,619,119 6,588,578 

• 



.Alte~native 1 .4 ___ ~ .____ -••• _ 8/23/2010 ,:OH'AFf _ -l----~----- 2009 Actuitl_ 2010 Budget 1_2010 Projected -[-2011 Proposed.l Detaits 
970115 Supplies: Oept./Other 12 0 ! 0 0 

~O("?O ______ lai"iioria,( - - -- --- --- --- 22,63T - 23,800- - 25,000 ___ }O'!!O.I!..I _____ 

.!,!g!!t!ng 

~e.'!t.!~rts_ 

1-- - - . . _--- I -- _. Filters 

970260 ros~ge and. Parcel 10.459 13000 18500 25,000 
Post Interlibrary Loan, Outgoing 

!VtaiJ.£.e-'~E!. Nci1lc~5 
970270 Printing-Reprod-Binding 10.606 5000 2500 6,000 ~r!ntl_~g 
97050g !purchase of Water ---- - - - -F 800-0 6000 6,OOQ.. ~u.!.c~ase Q.f w~~ 
970600 I Books 1 463.933 48980-0 489800 401,~5 Books ----- Audio Materials -1-- -- 71,126 84600 970610 84600 __ 9.0,200 ~_I:'EE.. 3!W AI!.~lo 8oo~ .. -- -- -

Sub~i:.'li!tlon~,!"d Books I 63,5~ _ _ _ _ ~800 -" 970620 ___ " _.18800 69,~Q~_ 

I=--: 
970630 !Visual Materials 1 91,670 962_50 96250 111,000 IOVOS 

1 127,900 141000 ___ 1410!l_0 128,900 Electic _ _ 
tonnn 

19,200_ 

... :POO 
2,500 
2,000 

25,000 

.§Q'!O_ 
6,000 

4.0_1,805 
~.200 

_69,500 _ 
111,000 
128,900 . 970640 _ ____ __ . _I~~!"ated Reference Mat'l 

-970810 Natural Gas 23,464 30000 20000 
~70810 - \iolectrlclty 

- --0 SOO 500 
970840 IOlesel 0 4000 

_-=.=u;-:-,-~~\_" \~- ".--0-

---~---- - --- IGaSOline-- - ~ -9 -,- ~~~I--
-

970850 500

1 
500 - - --- ---- --

2,000 [Book carts 970900 -,EQuio,,)ent5.S5,OOO- -- --C---- 14,25~ 55()0 

ITOTAL 

ICAPITALDIPENii'iTiiiiES" i ---I 1 -----1·· "I I 
_____ 911°300 I'mprovements - :.-=-~_ 0 8,000 =_-.=--- 0 _ 0 ----------1-

980400 
1-----

980410 

Equipment 0 1 33,000 1 41,000 0 Security System OVR ($12,000) 

---- --~IlQIl- - ----
---

_____ 1 - -- - I -jO;;ilRe.Placementparts. ____________ " ____ _ I_~ IMonitorRep~ceme.~t. 

I Photocolor Scanner 
------------- - -;Publicsimpi. Scan Statfon 

-----1 

A, G.G 
OJ' ..... ..., ..., • 111FT 

""1-

__ 2,000 

200 
__ ~2.000 
_300_ 

...2QQ.. 
__ ~,OOO 

• 

1,goO_ 
300 

~ 



,Altef.r.uni.ve 1 
~ - ---'- . -~ -...~ .... 8/23/2010 .DR-8FT 

'1 --- Account· 2009 Actua'- 2010 Budget .2010 ProJected 2011 Proposed - - Details 1- Amount 
-- 969210 - ___ .~p .. t~nt Prog~mmini':"'_ 28,00'- __ 31,~_ - 31,000- - 31,000- y!>'!!'!!!'5ervlces P'98ca!!'!!'Ing-= - 12,500 

I-------------fl--- _ _ __ !ldult 5ervif.~ Prog~lT1.!!'g __ . ____ 1.2.~qo_ 
I Refreshments (1,500 -- -'--'--1- -- --- .-----.- -.- -------, ".----. 

. Community Outreach Activities ! 4,500 

_-"9",60,,,990 .)~iSC. ContraE!ualSVCS --: __ . _8.!J,189 __ .. ---22,~ __ .. 99,375 - 95,600 Baker & TaVlor TItle_59urce '\· ___ ~250. 
____________ 1 I\qu.<lum5eNi<" 4,000 

-- .... ---- ---r==-=--------I~ .-----. -- -~I-- ,I~~~;~;s:r:::slng 1~-1:!~-
.- ---- T --- -----I ' ---=. :..:. ==-=-=I=--~-:...-==-fr.:~~~v~!'J!t~~C,i: -=--~:I=----i~:~~~· 

.. --1-------·---- -- 1---' ---!-I'JPI-an-t-5erV~------- 1,000---;- . ---- ----I .-- . ---IConstantcontact(eNe~letter) - 1,~~-

-------T=~--=~- ---·-r-=-~··-I--· .'. ~.-.:.. . 1----- ·I~~i~j~::r~:co~e~~~·=- ::~!~: _______ ._J_ _ __ . __ -____ _____ ... _ .... _ _-_. 
----- -.. --. -1-- ---- +-- ---- -I I l~~e~io-;;~It~~ng Fee, - ---- -{~:-_. . _____ . __ .. _. ___ . _ .... ___ As._cv __ . _____ . ____ _ 

- --. ------- . .II' ------------1-----·-1 ---- -I ·I~~;~~~~:=;~~~itoring ----,. --t~~~I~ 
TOTAL CONiiiAcTUAl 5ERVlCES -j 944,0591 1,089,251 1,CJ40,693( 1.029,737 ('---'- --- --j-----.--

CoMMODITIES ._-=1=-_----1 1-,----.. . - _ -----
970100 Office Supplies (85,1721 116,300 116,300 107,800 Mate(lals Processing, 70,000 .--- --- -. - .. ' ... ---'. ..--' - 1 ----- .---. ' ----.---, --__ --- __ ._. ___ .. _____ 1__ ---- -- ~ard~a~e/NetwE!kSup.plles_L __ ....1.300 

-------'-- - -- --------j ~~:!~cardS I tfo~ .--------=_. ___ . ____ __ ~==--- -__ , _____ ~lCl!~evb~rds --,-=-:i,sop: 

1

___ . . ---- - . ----- ~a.!!~ho!!.'ts___ 2200 

----- - ---- - --1- ~:c~~-~~~s-- -1~~~ .------- -1- .-. -- -. -- ----. --- --
_ . 1 ___ - ( -- . --- ___ .~p'p'iles 2..o,~OO 

970110 Meals (PRSNRS/WRKRS/VOLS) 2,987 2,800 2,800 2,100 I library Hosted Meetings & Public 1,600 
____ __ ________ __ __ IProR~ms, All Staff I 

( Volunteer Party 500 

8--3'88 • a~FF • 



Alterrtative 1 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
____ _ __ .1 ____ Account_. __ --1 2009 Actu.1 2010BudBet ___ 2010Proleged 1.2011ProPosed.! !!m!!1 ___ . __ .J_ .Amount __ 
_ _ _ _ _ _ 93~20___ _ __ \!!.!.~I!!d~ & Struct'!. ... ...--J ___ I0~,375 ___ 11~,~~5_ 116,_2'!S!._ 124,080_ !'!Ic.!lu.y _______ ~ ______ J.01!30_ 

\ Furniture/carpet/Drapery 30,000 
_. _____ ____ ____ _ _________ ~ ___ ._ .Oean1nR ----

: -- -- -~ --1----=----- -. I· _. -----=-~t= I~~~-· y~: 
== -= = -~-==----- --- --=i- -- --I=--:. ---- ---=--1- !~~~~~~~~~~-- __ =--=-rl;~ 
_ -~-~~.- --- -_~~ _ ------ L __ --- -I -' -- l~:_---= _ ----=!::::::=l-= ~: 
__ ___ __ _ ___ _ ______ L _ __1 __________ I- _ _ _ DoorMajnten.nce ___ 5,500 

I Plumbing Rep.irs & RPZ Valve 4,000 
_ _ ____ _ _________________ 1 ___ ._,_ _ _____ ,Lest!nB___ _ __ _ 

I 
Meeting Room Partition 600 
Maintenance 

-.---930030 --- - R&MVehlcle, - - -- --:::7,"'8"73:;- ---14,300 ----a,300 Ubrary-V.nMalntenance I 1,500 -- ~ -,--. -._·_----~~=-...:..-__ --i=_-=-_i------ - MotitleJ~1 ra Mantenan 6~50 

930195 Book Binding & Re air 5381 1,000 I 1,000 1,000 Binding Soft Cover and Hard 1,000 
P Cover Books & Periodicals Ul 

- - --- 93(1210 . - - • Rental of Equipment -- 1.660· - -26.500 26,500 ----V;OOO postage Machine -. . ,-- --2,000 a.. .- - --- ----- --" ---I --------"-- ---- -.. -_. - -- -- - ~::'~-a,-e--·U-nlt-ed-8~Slness'. ----25-,0-0; 

:-_____ -9~032(.-===ia~aning:S:,!,!Odial service, __ = _ 112,179 ___ 9.§,IQ.0 96,1.~.Qj'_-__ ..91,?Oo-ifo'~l!actJ.o! Clea,!!!,g_L1bl~_rC _____ 85,500 

1---- ---- -- ---1--- ----- -- -- --- . -~~-- ---~i::~~:;;~::~!~~~~ng- . -_. - ~~~: 
~-_ -=-_-_ -. -_- ~3-04-9-0--- --T~se Cont-,~ct • ---:: :::::::::~ _-:::5-'-.-49-_6-1' 5,500 - -- -7,-500 6,ooO-!Waste Ha.;ij~g-_-_-_-_g ____ --__ -_-_-6_,0-00-

960llc40 -- .. -- ~ntP-,-~e~hy~icals -4 Ji9-' __ . ___ .250_ 250 -- 250 1_ -______ 22.0. 

-------:~~g. - ~~:;l.i.;;se,-. I --1: 9~---··-- 500!-----~~ --- -~~- iIu;;;-ffi.vel ---+--------soo 

fl381 • DRAFT 
' • • 



AJte:tD~t.ive 1- 8/23/2010 DJ~AFT 
!$2!!!!! 2m!2 Actual 2010 BudK!lt -ZOIO Pralmed 1 2011 PraDosed Details I &!!l!!!!!1_ 

930010 R & M Equipment 100,398 110,062 110,0621 125,757 ~MA Printer SU~l"'rt I 6,900 

_.- -- --- U85 Co~ier SUpport· 17,000 

I Wireline (repair telephone 
4,000 

---- .-- ._ .. _~S~"';ic~) 

--.--.- - ---- - . I~- I lTBS Annual'Agreement 5,600 

.. - . -- -- ._- rEvanc,~_ Annuii-~g~eem~t __ ._._~O_ 
.. - . -"._---. --- IAWE Annual Agreement 2,350 

ISARA Workstation Agreement ·250 •. . . . -

! 
IMeJiiamebsite wo~iatlon .- ·----·-200 .. ------ ----

--- - ----- ---- j --- - . Lyngsoe I 23,500 
---1·- -

APC UP5 Annual Agreemnt 2,750 . ---~- .. - .. _ .. 1- -_ . , .----.----

······------1-
I 
ICooperative Computer 50rvices 17,000 

.. -.. ·---1 
,IDS ~nnual Mr~emen; ! . ...-!.!,lQL ---.-.--~---.. -'-. ~--=-----··.:-l-:-.:-~·~:::L==-=---! I ReadS'!/Prlnters Maintenance ! ~,500 

- ! .___ I ltaminator Maintenance Contract 300 

-.. . ~p!!a~ Repair 1,000 

Network Maintenance· 
8,850 

Nomadic/Oseo Smartnet/Juniper -. -- -
! 

--_ .. . .. .. -- -- - ------- ------
3M Equipment 

I lsecurity/checkout/workstations) 
20,900 

--- . __ .-- i -j 1 Backflow Device Testing I 1,500 

El30·2 • ifJRAFT . 
. .• ' • 



~·1' f.l~' 
'V -.i ...., ..r 

Alte'rnatj\ie I 8/23/2010 .O.RAFT 
~ . . 2002 Actu.1 I 2010 Budget L 2010 Prolected -I- 2011 proooied-.I. ___ . Det.ns ._ Amount _._ 

1- 920.202 -/-;~,.,!'_-cnf;:.e-::rec:nc:ees =-==-==... .--4,1441'. '01 . .1,~.Q.. ___ ._!'9.9.Q_t -.- -----
920204 Training 5,084 2,500 : 1,500 0 -. . --~.-==--= -:- ... _\- .. _--- - -- ----
920205 Tuition Reimbursements 4,229 , a I a a 
92ci205-' 5e,;;;;;a;:s -- .'{ ·0- ----. 0 f ·0 

---- '--92~ijO---- -= in.s.ervle .. .:r~lni!'~ __ ·_ .. __ . .-!7rj _____ ..J!..i=· 3,20~.J 500_ 1---.. ---'- _ . 

920220 Membership Dues 7,816 5,500 5,500 1,000 !ALA Dues for Board, Director, 

.. ---- - , .. -~ --1--·-·-·-·-· ----I~:,~;~(~;~~rd&~rof.Staff 

.---- 921?2~ ___ I~ee~sl~~=~-=I ____ · 50·' _=~- .. _ ['-- ..J!..1~~e'!"~!~PDues-----=-1 1,000 

920230_ -.--l'?~~n of No!lees. .. _! ____ l,?c~ ___ .....19~. _ 2,000 ____ 2,OO.oj'?u~l~lng Bid Notices l 
920900 IProperty/Liab 'nsuranee 1 25,173 24.859 24,859 25,000 I I 

• D;Ff • 

2,poo 
25,000 

'<t 
a... 



Alt.erA~1ive l. 8/23/2010 D.RAFT 
FUN0201 L._ 1__ Des IdlY 1--·_·-: FUND 2110 & 2130 ----1----1 Reduction in' Budget 
1'iaaitlonsto sua -. 

1

_ .. _ ~_c. ___ • __ .I=-=A~'~ _=IT~.ial-I~~~12010proie~edJ~201~~.dj,_ -=-~=-_ L _~mount_ 
~~~ I I 

-!110~§.Q:-:-=-- Full-time~!a~_._ .. ____ 2,!l.Q.3,§!.!J 2,31~~~I=-2,3}8.D2~J __ 2,273,840 ___ _, _____ . 

1 ______ 9!Q.1QO _____ Non-Supervis0.r:v . .o_vertime __ . ____ II 0 1_ . __ SO_~I _____ 5Q.Q. __ . ___ ___ _ ___ . _ 
. - -- 2 10200 . - - ~art-tlme Salaries - 753,696 l_ __78~113J__ .@,3~! 786,.!?5_ - --- ._- t~-- ----
I~_---~:{~~;~ .--- _~I~::::~·a.y =-F:_ .~~:~~~~,-==-=-~~~- --.- . _ ~---- --~~ .-~ 

910500 Vacation Pay 162,031 0 .~ I 0 

----::::~.::: =-=I:''*fi'3:.;."' +-- -,~ -::::-....: -:~ __ "oo~ '~:, ______ 1_. __ _ 
910970 !compensated Absences 1 (10,739) 0 0 0 . 

l'rOTAlSALARIES -r------ '--, 3,052,897 

I~"-' :~9180:iO. ~_ ~--=iunemplovment CO~pe;'~tIO)_ :.406' 4,9~-I:::... 
1-. __ ....!!1802~ __ _ J~mp!!,'("rContr:I'!!=A __ . ___ 22~.~5. _ ~31,31~ 

- ----1-- 1- ',-' --- - --- - --.-----

918021 !EmployerContr -IMRF 267,499 297,,,;'-'.0 I ';H •• n.D I JLI..1.UU r 

I~= ----=-=-~{:~~.= ~ -=. ~~:?n~:~~iums = = . 6'~:~-I':::-' 6,~~~+-= 
--;9'"1"'80:50 PPO Insurance Premiums 338,038 389,~. , .--...... . . -- -. - . 

-+- .. ---918osi -- .. - - HMOins~ra~ce Prem~- - ---- -105.472"-' --iii.9i9r-
918055--- - - oentallnsurance p-..emiu.:ns- --- "24.643" "_." -- 3i~505j-9'iii07o-- -- - Workers Compensation--- -- --i3;793 ------9,500 T-

~OTAL BENEF~ls08S . --- _\!lHS ioJa';:r>avout- -- - - ---1,= - --1-'~~:~~~-
CONTRACTUAl SERVICES I 

-'920100 . -iLegaiFees . ---- SSE 15'O~----
92illOS -- ---ICo515 of Utigation --. - - - - - -- 3,500- -

_ __ .J!3Q.!!-O· __ ip~lesS&nal ~rvices .- -::...:-:.... _ 354,478 -- 405,OPP_ == -39.D.PE:~[ --365;~o_15!"ii D~elQPment -=--= =_ 5,00.1£ 
1_ -- ---- --.- _1

1

_ --.-- --- ___ 1 ____ -- -~-- ___ ITM~!!!Ige~Servlce ______ l~5,ooO 

-- .::.:.=.:.....:=...-:::.... - - - • =- - --- -=-- -=--- -1- --- -- j -L=_===I~:!~:::e~ce_.-=-=: =--1;: 
\- -- __ 920120_- -. - _FcommUnitatiOnservices __ r . '~I ~ -- 31,1Si--=-=-33,iiool~J::&;--- ---j-- - !:!~ - _. - --F --j-- -. ---rQ;JIO';-e- --j- 5,400 

------ L _ ==-_____ (I!roadwif!g/!-evell. -r-_ 5,600 _ 
_ Q.:100 1- i-- '-1- 2.500 

,OClC/CCS ( Services -920140 I Data 57.304 
---
71.537 78:000 1D.i;; 78,000 

£:)3-"e-1 • DIFT • 



A~' (.}~ 
-.J .... 'V ..J 

Alter.O.attve 1[ 8/23/2010 URAfT 
_____ , ______ ~ Account _2009 Actual 2010 Budget L 2010 Prolected -J 2011 Proposed _________ _ 

'OTHER REVENUE .-----.---- I =:1 .---- -----
._890qlO __ !!,.ter!,stioicqm~_=_ __ _ __ ._ 6,204 .• ____ ~OOO , 3,~0~r~=-_-'3,50e ~-.:-::-____ . 
~ __ ~'?! Fixed Asset~ ____ .. _ o. _. 1,000 0; 0 Sale of Mobile Ubrary 

899900 Miscellaneous Revenue 24,978 17,500 16,555 14,000 MobIle UbraryService to 

I --~99920 ~ibra!y Do,!~ions . --- - 6,14.4 _____ 10,OQO 7501=--=--50~I- ____ _ 

,TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 37.326 i 33,500 20,805 18,000 i ---------
1------·,--_·_-_··· 
FUND TOTAL . -----1-- 6,936.547-1 --:':3,990 1--6~ii92,1081 7,099,8341-, 

.,-
-- -_., --+-------1-----·-1--

I 1---- -
1:-

·----r- . -I [ .--__ 
I t 

----·1----
----1-------

• Q~FT • 

N 
0. 



tj"j'"ij"b 

AlternatiVe 1 8/23/2010 DRAFT 
FUND 201 i I Qes Plaines Public Ubrary ~_. _. ___________ _ 
Reduction In Budget - - 1_ REVENUE - FUND 2110 & 2130 . 

§"dJlltion 0 Bui! e I I I 
1 ________ . Account 1:-_2009 Actu-';I 2010-B;;dOet ,)010 pro1ected_,_2011 Pro e;r- - --- -- ~:-.-------

TAXES --.1- 1 i----I --
810019 Property Taxes 2002 : 

"-810020- - PrOperty Taxes 2003 - ----r------ 1- --.- --

:--:~gi~~I:~~~:~~:::: ~~~------ (66,433) ---- ---- ---ill -----------

-- 810023--Property-Taxes 2006- (57,055) - - -- - - - - -- - -- - - - -
:---sioo2li- Property Taxes 2007- - - 101,622 . ------- (27,290) -- --

810025 -PropertYTaxes -20OS--- - --- 6,640,190 50,000 -I 250,368 , - -------------, 
810026 Property'TaXeSioW-- 6,309,siizl--G,309,80zi 250,000 ! . -- .. , 
810027PropertvTaxes2010 ------ '64990%T 

TOTAL TAXES- r -- - - - I 6,618,325 \ 6,359,802 6,532,880 6,749,096 \ - ---- 1 

1===·_1 __ - I !__________ _ __________ 1 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE c':: ,---__ _ 
810800 Persona_l!.rEP ReplT~x . --- ---- 92,988 92,988 92,988 92,988 
822040 State Grant: Per Capita 68,892 57,700 57,700 56~,O~00~1 ________ _ 

--8220gs-StateGrant:Library: -- --------- 1 - 1 ----I ---
: - --' I __ _ _ ---- 1--- i ! --
TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE I 161,880 1 150,688 150,688 I 148,988 I 

FIN:~l~~ES Library Fees ·-----1- --~:~~6-1-- -1~5,:: - 4,304 ~300 I --- --
- 850102 Library Fines . - - - -' -- - - - - - 128,431 128,000 --

850103 Library Fines Credit Card - -"13,641-- 15,000-- -.---- - ----
-iisoiol- Copying Fees--- ----- 29,033 _25,000 

850202 Damaged-Materials 464 1----- 450 -------. ------:f~~:- ~aterialS --- - ------- - T --- 7':i: I --- -i~~~ ---I 
TOTilifJEs ~"--R~sident Cards --=-=-=-1' ---~~4-466 -I -- --lis.oiJO--- -ii~'~~ -I ~ -- 18H~I--- - --- - --- --I 
TOTAL TAXES 1_-----1-------1------1 _____________ _ 

-j 
SPECIAL PROGRAMS & EVENTS - ,I -- -
.:::-85(1215-:::I~p~dal-prOgramS & Events _ 4,5_5..Q...!__ 5,0001,330- 1,000 i:-___________ 1 

TOTAL SPECIAL PROGRAMS & EVENTS 4,55O-j-----5,OOO- - ---1,330, - 1,00011
------------

1 

• DRAFT' -. • 

~ 

c.. 



• 

• 

• 

Alternati.ve 1 DRAFT 

1) Restored Mobile Library service with three part-time positions for operation and 
added back in expenditures in contractual services for vehicle maintenance 
($6,750) and diesel ($2,000). To offset these costs we reduced membership dues by 
$5,500 and telephone repair service by $1,000. 

2) Cut Capital Projects by $60,500. 
3) Reduced Capital Expenditures by $15,120. 

L'b F d I rary un 
2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 2011 

Projected Proposed 
Beginning 1,044,509 1,296,756 1,533,655 1,748,944 
Balance 
Revenues 6,965,236 6,703,990 6,892,108 7,099,834 
Expenditures (6,276,090) (6,657,885) (6,376,819) (6,444,578) 
Transfers (200,000) (300,000) (300,000) (200,000) 
Ending 1 ;533,655 1,042,861 1,748,944 2,204,200·· 
Balance 

'b C ' I P . F d LI rary aplta rOlects un 
2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 2011 Proposed 

Projected 
Beginning 162,659 132,802 223,383 429,783 
Balance 
Revenues 3,606 5,000 1,500 2,500 
Expenditures (142,882) (207,100) (95,100) (48,200) 
Transfers 200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
Ending Balance 223,383 230,702 429,783 584,083 

L'b 51 ff I rary a 
2008 2009 2010 2011 

Full Time 46 46 46 42 
Part.Time 86(FTE 33.2) 76(FTE 29.8) 65(FTE 26.4) 65(FTE 26;6) 
TOTAL FTEs 79.2 75.8 72.4 68.6 

**In the budget draft overview document presented to you at the August 17, 2010 Board 
of Trustees meeting, Alternative 1 year-end fund balance showed $2,270,000. As stated at 
this meeting, these numbers were estimates and when we ran all the budget numbers, this 
ending balance decreased to $2,204,200. 

8123/2010 10:21 :46 AM 



f:j~f;;~ 
...,.." ...... 'oJ 

Alternative1·2 '4 ~. _~ •. _. __ . 8/23/2010 
FUND 202 I rarv l I 

\ - - - -- - - - - - -_.--
Redu!=yon in,Budget EXPENDITURES.:.. CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND __ I _________ ~J:-. __ 
i\C!aitions to Bu et ________ L ______ 1 ____ . _________ 1 ___ 1 

~ 2010 2010 ~ I . Account -_-. - -- . i Details Amount 
CO-NTRA-CTUAL SERVICES II - ------ __ Actual __ BuilK~ _Projected .. ProQl!sed -I --

920110 --. - ---- Professional Services - -$843 15,000 0 I j ----1--
960990 - - - - -- ji;;,isc-Contractual S;;'; - -$560 - -- 0 o-j- ---j- -------.- -- .--

:::.-:.. -=-~:-=_ ~=-=~"-I_' ~= ... --=--::-::: =:--= =-::-::-.-:: =~-_J=-=- __ i __ ~ --
!OT~LC9~CTU~SERVICES._.___ . ___ S},~03 _IS,!!.oo 01. __ I -1-__ 
CAPITALEX,?ENDITl!R!! -1.:-=-_____ .:..==-= __ .==1- -'-1 _ t-=, 
=~030_0 ________ jmpr~~men~ __ . ___ ._~~,O~8 92,000 ___ o_I ___ ~;:i:~o .. ~;~~,~~;put.er , __ 

- -- --- - - ---'--- --.. -. -. -. .. -- - -----~ __ J~:~~v:~~~:7$20'ooO) ;-' ___ I 
~_8040'p ____ .. ________ L~quJpment _____ ....B,088 __ ~,!l.QO 24,000 --c. _ , ___ 0 L __ _ 

Teen.,L"unge Project ((4) 

980410 Computer Hardware 81,913 76,100 71,100 48,200 lComp~lers,+1 ) P.rinter, (1) : 
. - 'Printer,Release Station) I '=._ -~-=-= -~I_--= =----=--= __ -~ -""__. -- ~ ==t=-:=J:~f!:.Drives -: --! ~'-~ 

___ . _ .__ _______ _ __ __ ._:"_- .. ~ ___ J_ (¥) Computers _ _ L 44,000 

_. ____ _.1 _ _I _. ____ J~~;::~UteraCYStation _--

I !Teen Lounge Project (PC 
980420 computer Software 4,470 0 0 0 jReservation & Pcounter) 

Ifo~~'f~~AL_EXPE~I?..~.IIES_~ ~urnil~~e & F~~~S - .1141,4j~L 1:2,10f- 95,~0~ 1- _4~'200J~700\ . ___ .. :-:1-- . = 
iiiViSiONTOiALS -- -----·j142,88212O'7:100 -95,100 I 48,200+- -----

• 'DRAFT' 
- •. 

f) RAFT '. _. , 

N 
~ 

"-

• 



_ ~lter.,f1ativt? 2 _ ...... ~ . '-' _.+' . 8/23/2010 

. _____ -I. _______ I __ ~De5 P~_,!,ne5 Public U_brary ___ r----___ , ___ _ 
i REVENUE - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND I ------- --- - .. - ---- -- ----- i ---.--- - ----~--- :----- 1----1----

--- - - -- -- ~I---~::U_;;;·-~ ';;;~~;:;--iOlo--t~~I- '~l----- -- ----

~;';':' ~ __ -J;=~=_i- = ~~~:I-:[:~~~~~ 
_~992.Q.. _ _______ __ Library Donations __ -! - __ 1 ____ - _________ 1 __ --'- ____ _ 

I_O!~~ 0 __ ~ER .R_EY_-E_NU_E ___ -_~-_=_-_-- _-==_--_~-_==_-~ __ t- _3'60~I_ 2,OOOI_..!,~0.Q __ 2'50~1 ____ ~ ___ - __ _ 

~=~::::=""""'_I'-'<O:'~ "-nd_-~-~,-:::::r':l-:-l-_-;-~=I_ -------!-----
______________ ___ L I 

I I 203,606 I 305,000 I 301,500 I 202,500 J I 

FUND 202 

FUND TOTAL 

r.r.'~.I.iQ 
...... ...L ...... ,...L • DRAiFT -e' 

DRAFt 

• 

~ 

~ 

a. 



Aiternative 2 , . 8/23/2010 D.R}\FT 
____________ .__ Account ____ 1 2009Ac!ual ! 2010 Budget L2010 Prolectedl-2011 proposed_I ~ I Amount_ 

PER CAPITA EXPENDITURES - FUND 2130 

~~g~§;:aJ_ Se_rvlces . ______ ~~nces -=-_ -- =-I~_ ~;;I~ l,POD ---- },(lOO _-___ 5~oo_01~=- ~--. _ --'. .-i ____ ---:-~ 
9~1!.204 _______ . Trainlng_____ __ 4,~.D.Q.I-'- _~,OOO __ --3,QOo.F 0\___ _ ___ . __ _ 
920210_____ _ _____ In-ServlceTralnlng ___ . __ . ---1~61_ • . ___ 4'0001 ____ 4.~OQ __ . _ _ __ _ 
960070 Travel Expenses 234 1,000 1,000 5,000 ----il. _____ _ 
960211i:::'=- .==--__ ~peciaIEve~tpr~g __ _:.-__ ---ii46' --..J,200i----J,2OQF- --.-=. .. ___ I' -----::: 
!J.6Q.!!90____ _ ___ _ _ _ __ Mise Contra_ctual Svcs _____ 15,.2~ ___ 2.Q.~OOi ____ 20,OI!Q. ____ 3Q,.Q!l0 LO,£~,!ory_l!igitiza!L~ ______ 3.0,qoo 
TOTAL CONTRACTUAL i 38,511 32.2001 32,200 40,000 
'~-.~-~-=- ~---~ --,-: .~-- --:1'==-'- __ L- -- --. =-:::::.=~-=~~ --i-_-=-_,~' 
Cott:'l_"!.O?iti~S_,~___ i _____ . ______ .. _ .. ________ __ ~ ___ . _ L J ___ . __ _ 
970260 IPostage and Parcel I 2,000 7,500 7,500 01 I 

~~~~~COM:rfq~ITlES' -----IPili!0g~~prod.Bi~dl:~ I _ -}~~~~, _~-_=:;2~- ~~ -- 7,;_0~ ~ -.-:~!-- ---- -. ~--=E'~' ~ -:. ~ 
CAprfAL_EXp~DlTURES~ -=-_1-- -:-::. _ __..-.-.--- -1-::::=-=.-.:..----- -- ---- 1-_. . ·--_-I=---_~= 
981l41!Q ____._~quIP~.L ___ _ _ _ I. . ___ 11ZQ.3J ___ l.!!,OOQ 1~,QQ'!! ___ }~!~OCJisual Disk Clea~g 5ysten 16,000 

::::::~~_ ~~.- . .'~:IO~~LS~-·_·-=t_~:::I= . :::: --~:~ - :::: -==- ~ -=- __ =--= 
TOTAL 2110 & 2130 - .------ --- -=l~.:..-6.508~~957,iiS1_- 6,676,819 i 6,549,926 ----- -----.-- ------. := 

a. 

83'18- • DRAFT ••••• • 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
FUND 201 Des Plaines Public library 

EXPENDITURES - FUND 2110 

Account 2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Projected 2011 Proeg~i:~ Details Amount_ 

SALARIES 
910100 Salaries 2,003,621 2,318,022 2,318,022 2,273,840 
910200 Temporary Wages 753,696 789,113 723,353 729,172 
910400 Non-Supervisory Overtime 0 500 500 
910500 Vacation Pay 162,031 ° ° 910600 Sick Pay 62,381 0 0 
910700 Holiday Pay 79,435 0 ° 910900 Act/Out of Class/Premium 724 0 0 
910950 Excess Sick Hrs Payout 1,748 3,500 3,500 3,500 
910970 Compensated Absences 110,7391 0 ° 0 

TOTAL SALARIES I 3,052,897 I 3,110,635 I 3,045,375 I 3,007,012 I 

BENEFITS 
918010 Unemployment Compensation 1,406 4,986 26,304 45,724 
918020 Employer Contr - FICA 229,355 237,314 237,314 229,731 
918021 Employer Contr -IMRF 267,499 297,518 297,518 320,123 
918030 EAP Program 662 682 0 0 
918040 Life Ins Premiums 6,545 6,576 6,576 8,400 
918050 PPO Insurance Premiums 338,038 389,041 256,039 395,772 
918051 HMO Insurance Premiums 105,472 111,979 80,942 84,673 
918055 Dental Insurance Premiums 24,643 31,505 21,710 47,258 
918070 Workers Compensation 13,793 9,500 9,500 9,500 
918085 RHS Plan Payout 18418 10000 10000 10000 

TOTAL BENEFITS I 1,005,831 I 1,099,101 I 945,903 I 1,151,181 I 
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 

920100 legal Fees 589 15,000 10,000 10,000 Legal Fees 10,000 
920105 Costs of Litigation 3,500 1,000 1,000 Costs of litigation 1,000 
920110 Professional Services 354,478 405,000 390,000 365,000 Staff Development 5,000 

IT Management Service 325,000 
Accounting Service 20,000 
Audit 5,000 
Payroll Service 10,000 

920120 Communication Services 31,803 28,460 31,157 33,800 Paetec 3,500 
ICN/AT&T 4,400 , 
call One 5,400 i 

57,3041 100,800 1 

BroadwingfLevel 3 5,600 
Sprint/Nextel 12,400 
Corneast 2,500 

920140 Data Processing Services 71,537 78,000 Data Processing OCLC/CCS 78,000 

8-3' 1" 1 • D.FT • 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 BudKet 2010 Projected 2011 Proeosed Details Amount 

920202 Conferences 4,144 0 1,000 1,000 
920204 Training 6,084 2,600 1,500 0 

920205 Tuition Reimbursements 4,229 0 0 0 
920206 Seminars 0 0 0 
920210 In-Service Training 877 0 3,208 500 

920220 Membership Dues 7,816 6,500 6,500 6,500 
ALA Dues for Board, Director, 

3,000 
Asst Ojr 

ILA Dues for Board & Prof. Staff 3,000 

Other Membership Dues 500 
920225 licensing!Tities 50 100 0 0 
920230 Publication of Notices 1,101 1,000 2,000 2,000 Publishing Bid Notices 2,000 
920900 Property/Liab Insurance 25,773 24,869 24,869 25,000 25,000 

8'3, 12 • DWT • 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Projected 2011 Proeosed Details Amount 

930010 R & M Equipment 100,398 110,062 110,062 126,757 BMA Printer Su~~ort 6,900 
UIlS Co~ier Su~port 17,000 
Wireline (repair telephone 

5,000 
Service) 
TBS Annual ~reement 5,600 
Evanced Annual ~reement 850 
AWE Annual ~reement 2,3S0 
SARA Workstation ~reement 250 
Media/Website Workstation 200 
Lyngsoe 23,500 
APC UPS Annual ~reemnt 2,750 

Cooperative Computer Services 17,000 

IDS Annual ~reement 11,307 
Reader/Printers Maintenance 1,500 

laminator Maintenance Contract 300 

Al?l?liance ReJ:l'air 1,000 

Network Maintenance -
8,850 

Nomadic/Cisco Smartnet/Juniper 

3M Equipment 
20,900 

(security/checkout/workstations) 

Backflow Device Testine: 1,500 

£.i'~ t ~ .., ~ -"- ~ • D.FT • 
-------- -------



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
Account 2009 Actual-L 2010 Budget 2010 Prolected ± 2011 Proposed Details Amount II 

930020 R & M Bldgs & Structures 102,375 116,235 116,235 124,080 McQuav 30,630 
Furniture/Carpet/Drapery 

30,000 I Cleaning 
Painting 8,500 
Woodwork Re~air/car~entry 4,000 
Fire Protection Equipment 8,000 
Testing 
Lighting/Electrical 9,100 
HVAC Controls 11,750 
Elevator Maintenance 7,500 
Caq~eting 3,500 

HVAC Chilled Water Treatment 1,000 

Door Maintenance 5,500 
Plumbing Repairs & RPZ Valve 

4,000 
Testing 
Meeting Room Partition 

600 
Maintenance 

930030 R & M Vehicles 7,873 14,300 8,300 1,500 library Van Maintenance 1,500 

930195 Book Binding & Repair 538 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Binding Soft Cover and Hard 1,000 
Cover Books & Periodicals 

930210 Rental of Equipment 1,660 26,500 26,500 27,000 Postage Machine 2,000 
Copier lease - United Business 25,000 
Solution 

930320 Cleaning: Custodial services 112,179 96,700 96,700 92,500 
Contract for Cleaning 85,500 
Library/Mobile Librarv 
Additional Housekeep~g 1,800 
Window/Glass Cleaning 5,200 

930490 Refuse Contract 5,496 5,500 7,500 6,000 Waste Hauling 6,000 
960040 Employee Physicals 69 250 250 250 250 
960065 Epay Fees 55 500 500 
960070 Travel Expenses 1,972 500 500 500 Auto{Travel 500 

e3-1:ii • D.FT • 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Projected 2011 ProeQIi~d Details Amount 

960210 Special Event Programming 28,007 31,000 31,000 31,000 Youth Services Programming 12,500 
Adult Services Programming 12,500 
Refreshments 1,500 

Community Outreach Activities 4,500 

960990 Misc. Contractual SVCS 89,189 99,375 99,375 95,600 Baker & Taylor Title Source 5,250 
A~uarium Service 4,000 
Midwest Tape 10,000 
Temporary- Personnel 5,000 
Baker & Taylor Processing 20,000 
Crimson Multimedia 1,000 
Van Delivery Service 25,000 
Plant Service 1,000 

Constant Contact (eNewsletter) 1,200 

I nvicta Services 750 
ePay Fees 1,000 
Back-up Disaster Recovery Oft-

6,000 
site Storage 
Server Monitoring 4,200 
Collection Agency Fees 5,200 
Furniture Recovering 5,000 
Building System Monitoring 1,000 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES I 944,059 I 1,089,251 I 1,040,693 I 1,029,487 I 

COMMODITIES 
970100 Office Su~plies 85,172 116,300 116,300 107,800 Materials Processing 70,000 

Hardware/Network Su~~lies 2,300 
Debit Cards 1,000 
Toner 2,500 
Mice/Keyboards 2,500 
Head~hones 2,500 
Library Cards 4,000. 
Backup Tapes 3,000 I 
Su~~lies 20,000 

I 
970110 Meals (PRSNRS/WRKRS/VOLS) 2,987 2,800 2,800 2,100 

Library Hosted Meetings & Public 
1,600 

Programs, All Staff 
Volunteer Pa~ 500 

8,3' 15 • DWT • 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
Account 2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 Projected 2011 Prge2s1i1 Details Amount_ 

970115 Su~plies: Oept'/Other 12 0 0 0 
970170 Janitorial 22,633 23,800 25,000 30,900 Housekee~ing SUp'p'lies 19,200 

Lighting 7,200 
Restroom Rep'lacement Parts 2,500 

Filters 2,000 

970260 Postage and Parcel 10,459 13000 18500 25,000 
Post Interlibrary loan, Outgoing 25,000 
Mail, Fed Ex, Notices 

970270 Printing-Reprod-Binding 10,606 5000 2500 6,000 Printing 6,000 
970500 Purchase of Water 8000 6000 6,000 Purchase of Water 6,000 
970600 Books 463,933 489800 489800 440,820 Books 440,820 
970610 Audio Materials 71,126 84600 84600 76,140 Music and Audio Books 76,140 
970620 Subscriptions and Books 63,532 78800 78800 70,920 Periodicals 70,920 
970630 Visual Materials 91,670 96250 96250 86,625 OVOs 86,625 
970640 Automated Reference Mat" 127,900 141000 141000 126,900 Electronic Databases 126,900 
970810 Natural Gas 23,464 30000 20000 18000 
970820 Electricity 0 500 500 500 
970840 Diesel ° 4000 2000 ° 0 
970850 Gasoline 9 2000 500

1 
500 

970900 Eq~pment < $5,000 14,257 5500 5500. 2,000 800k carts 2,000 

1,090,050 I TOTAl COMMODITIES 987,759 1,101,350 1,000,205 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES j I 
980300 Improvements 0 8,000 0 0 
980400 Eq~pment 0 33,000 41,000 12,000 Security2ystem DVR 12,000 
980410 Computer Hardware 2,444 6,750 4,000 9,620 (4)Receipt Printers 1,200 

Barcode Scanner 200 
Mac for Graphics 2,000 
Medium Pen Tablet 300 
External Harddrive 700 

j Dell Rep':lacement Parts 2,000 
Monitor Replacement 1,000 

L j Photocolor Scanner 300 

- I - Public Sim~le Scan Station 1,920 i 

83"15 • DWT • 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
Account 

980420 !computer Software 
2009 Actual 

13,875 
2010 Budget 

32,000 
2010 Prolected 

32,000 
2011 Proposed I Details Amount 

33,465 Graphics Software 4,500 
EZAudit 550 
Public Adobe Suite 1,800 

------------1----------1-----------_____ I _____ !5hort Keys Ups,!!ge 250 I 
Web Classification 575 
Trend anti-virus 3,300 
Public Web Browser 125 

_____ -I _______ jWeb Dewey 575 1 
_____________ -----------1-------______ Cataloger Desk 750 

Microsoft Annual licenses 12,000 
Jaws & Magic 800 I 
Novelist Select 1,000 

---------------------+-----1------ _____ -I _____ -l!,Fortes/Cleanslate 490 I 
Website Software 4,000 
Microsoft Services 2,750 

980600 IFurniture & Fixtures 7,2571 20,500 1 20,500 1 17,300 I~ig Zag Shelving 1,600 I 
1v5 CD Unit 700 

_______________________ -+ _____ -+ _____ -+ ___________ lyS Display Furniture 6,000 

_______________________ + _____ + _____ + ___________ fP:'u"b"'Ii"-c Seating Replacement 3,000 

F===:;:;=;;;;:=i====~""';;;=i=====;;;;7.;;;=j===':;:;=:;;;::=jsignage 6,000 
23,576 I 100,250 I 97,500 I 72,385 I TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

Other Funding Activities 
990935 Trans to 0/50: 2002A Bond 14,852 24,598 24,598 23,469 End with 2011 Budget 23,469 
990940 Trans to Lib cap Proj FNO 400,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
990955 Trans to 0/50: 2003B Bond 10,995 0 0 0 End with 200B Budget 
993000 Contingency Reserve 0 75,000 75,000 75,000 

TOTAL OTHER FUNDING ACTIVITIES I 425,847 i 399,598 I 399,598 I 298,469 I 

LIBRARY TOTALS 6,439,970 1 6,900,185 1 6,619,119 1 6,558,739 1 

............... -. 
t!'Sl :- • D.FT • 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
Account 2009 Actual--L 2010 Budget ~ 2010 Prolected .12011 Proposed Details Amount_ 

PER CAPITA EXPENDITURES - FUND 2130 
Contractual Services 
920202 Conferences 7,704 1,000 1,000 5,000 
920204 Training 4,500 3,000 3,000 0 
920210 In-Service Training 1,567 4,000 4,000 
960070 Travel Expenses 234 1,000 1,000 5,000 
960210 Special Event Prog 9,246 3,200 3,200 
960990 Mise Contractual Svcs 15,260 20,000 20,000 30,000 local History Oigitization 30,000 
TOTAL CONTRACTUAL 38,511 32,200 32,200 40,000 

Commodities 
970260 Postage and Parcel 2,000 7,500 7,500 0 
970270 Printing-Reprod-Binding 15,686 0 0 0 
TOTAL COMMODITIES 17,686 7,500 7,500 0 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 
980400 Eq~pment 12,703 18,000 18,000 16,000 ," .. "",~",,, '~"'"'1 16,000 
TOTAL CAPITAL 12,703 18,000 18,000 16,000 

PER CAPITA TOTALS DIVISION TOTALS 68,900 57,700 57,700 56,000 

TOTAL 2110 & 2130 6,508,870 6,957,885 6,676,819 6,614,739 

8-3'1 g • DWT • 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
FUND 201 Des Plaines Public Library 
2130 EXPENDITURES - IL LIBRARY PER CAPITA GRANT 

Account 
2009 2010 2010 2011 

Details Amgunt 
Actual Budget Proie~ed Prol!osed 

Contractual Services 
920202 Conferences 7,704 1,000 1,000 5,000 
920204 Training 4,500 3,000 3,000 0 I 

920210 In-Service Training 1,567 4,000 4,000 
960070 Travel Expenses 234 1,000 1,000 5,000 
960210 Special Event Prog 9,246 3,200 3,200 
960990 Misc Contractual Svcs 15,260 20,000 20,000 30,000 Local History Digitization 30,000 
TOTAL CONTRACTUAL 38,511 32,200 32,200 40,000 

Commodities 
970260 Postage and Parcel 2,000 7,500 7,500 0 
970270 Printing-Reprod-Binding 15,686 0 0 0 
TOTAL COMMODITIES 17,686 7,SOO 7,500 0 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

~ 
980400 Equipment 12,703 18,000 18,000 16,000 Audio/Visual Disk Cleaning System 
TOTAL CAPITAL 12,703 18,000 18,000 16,000 

PER CAPITA TOTALS DIVISION TOTALS 68,900 57,700 57,700 56,000 

83'19 • DWT • 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
FUND 202 

I 

Des Plaines PubliC Library 
EXPENDITURES - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

Account 
2009 2010 2010 2011 

Details Amount 
Actual Budllet Prolected ProDosed 

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 
920110 Professional Services $843 15,000 0 
960990 Mise Contractual svcs $560 0 0 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES $1,403 15,000 0 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

980300 Improvements 43,008 92,000 0 43,000 
Teen Lounge Computer 

23,000 
Project 
Public Restroom 

Improvements 
20,000 

980400 Equipment 12,088 24,000 24,000 0 

Teen Lounge Project ((4) 

980410 Computer Hardware 81,913 76,100 71,100 64,000 Computers, (1 ) Printer, (1) 8,800 

Printer Release Station) 

(7) Hard Drives 4,200 

(44) Com~uters 44,000 

W Early Literacy Station 7,000 

980420 Computer Software 4,470 0 a 1,700 
Teen Lounge Project (PC 

1,700 
Reservation & Pcounter) 

980600 Furniture & Fixtures 0 0 
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 141,479 192,100 95,100 108,700 

DIVISION TOTALS 142,882 207,100 95,100 108,700 

8'3'2-H • DWFT • 



• 

• 

• 
L 

ADDENDUM 
.DRAFT 
~. ." .' 

Background Information. / Points of Reference to Oth~r ~ibra,~ies 

AREA LIBRARY HE COMPARISON 

Librarv. FTE PODlilation 
Des Plaines 67 57,000 
Arlington Heights 148 78,000 
Skokie 

. 
111 63,000 

Niles 77.3 . . 58;000 
Mount Prospect 98 56,000 
Park Ridge 60 38,000 

PERCENT OF BUDGET SPENT ON PERSONNEL: 

City of Des Plairies 2010 
Des Plaines Library 2011 ,proposed 
Recommended standard for Illinois Public Libraries 

78% 
63Wo 

70% 

FUND BALANCE OF AREA LIBRARIES THAT ARE COMPONENT UNITS OF 
VILLAGE/CITY MUNICIPALITIES (end of year 2009) 

Elk Grove Village 
Park Ridge 
SKokie . 
Mount Prospect 

$1,678,468 
$2,794,613 
.$5,694,934 (6 hjonths of operating) 
.$2,085,690 (working cash fund) 



• 

• 

• 

DR-AFT 
IN ADDITION, WE HAVE TWO ALTERNATIVES TO THE PROPOSED 
BUDGET FOR YOUR CONSIDERATION 

ALTERNATIVE 1 

Restore mobile library service. with fuli-timeposition eliminated and three part-time 
positions for operations. The cost is $75,750. To offset these costs· we will: 

• cut capital projects by $60,500 
• make additional cuts from contractual services ($6,5PO) 
• make additional cuts to Capital expenditures ($15,120). 

RESULTS OVERVIEW I ALTERNATIVE 1 

Extended Property Tax Year End Capital Project fund Year End fund Balance 
Percentage: Balance 
No increase over 2010 585,000 2,270,000 

ALTERNATIVE 2 

Everything in Alternatiye Budget 1, plus: 

• Eliminate raises for staff ($~9, 110) 
• Increase employee paid portion of medical premium ($49,109) 

RESULTS OVERVIEW I ALTERNATIVE 2 

Extended Property Tax Year End Capital Project fund Year End fund Balance 
Percentage: Balance 
No increase over 2010 585,000 2,330,000 



• 
D.RAfT 

Oes Plaines Public Library 2011 Budget 
OVERALL BUDGET GOALS 

1. Request no increase in property tax payments from the 2010 extended amounts. 

2. Build the library's fund balance to a level that will support four month's operatjng 
~xRenses. (2010 level was $1,748,944) 

3. Continue io build the Capital Project fund to cover anticipated building improvements in 
2012 ($SOO,OOO) . 

ADDITIONAL CRITERIA FOR DRAFT 2 REVISIONS 

The board directed staff at the August 10th
, 2010 special board meeting to adjust the 2011 budget 

using the following Criteria: 

1. Keep the Mobile library at <1 reduced cost 

2. Reduce the Capital Projects fund 

• 3. Consider changing Full Time positions to Part Time positions 

4. Explore ways to further increase fund balance. 

2011 PROPOSED BUDGET 

1. Reduce all categories of expenditures: 
Personnel: ~3.3°/o ($S6Kreduction from 2010 budget) 
Contractual Services: -S.S%, ($60K) 
Commodities: -9%, ($101 K) 
Capital: -27.8%, ($27K) 
Capital Projects: -48%, ($98AK) 

2. Cease mobile library service, effective January 1, 2011. 

3. Eliminate eight library staff positions. Four are full-time positions and f(Jur are part-time. 
Five are currently filled. 

RESULTS OVERVIEW FOR PROPOSED 2011 BUDGET 

• Extended Property Tax Year End Capital Project Fund Year End Fund Balance 
Percentage: Balance 
No increase over 2010 523.583 2.240.501 



• 

• 

• 

Des Plaines 
Public Library 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Finance Committee 
August 23, 2010 

5:00 PM 

I. Call to order. 

II. Roll Call. 

III. Consideration of the Agenda. 

IV. 2011 Budget [Action Item] 

V. Intergovernmental Agreement. [Action Item] 

VI. Adjournment. 

www.dppl.org 

1501 EHinwood Street 

0c5 PJaillC5.ll60016-4SS3 
847..aZ7-SSS1 phone 
847.a2i'-797Jj t,,. 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
FUND 202 Des Plaines Public Library 

REVENUE - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

Account 2009 Actual 
2010 2010 2011 

Budget Prolected ProDosed 

OTHER REVENUE 
890010 Interest Income 628 5,000 1,500 2,500 
899900 Miscellaneous Revenue 2,978 
899920 Library Donations 
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 3,606 5,000 1,500 2,500 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
898902 Transfer from Lib Fund 200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 

FUND TOTAL I 203,606 I 305,000 301,500 I 202,500 I I 

f.)~"').~ 
'>J"" .... ,J • DWT e 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 
,---- - -I- Des Plaines Public library FUND 201 

REVENUE - FUND 2110 & 2130 

Account 2009 Actual 2010 Budget - 2010 Prole'l~!! 2011 Proeos~!! -

TAXES 
810019 Property Taxes 2002 
810020 Property Taxes 2003 
810021 Property Taxes 2004 
810022 Property Taxes 2005 (66,433) 
810023 Property Taxes 2006 (57,055) 
810024 Property Taxes 2007 101,622 (27,290) 
810025 Property Taxes 2008 6,640,190 50,000 250,368 
810026 Property Taxes 2009 6,309,802 6,309,802 250,000 
810027 Property Taxes 2010 6499096 

TOTAL TAXES I 6,618,325 I 6,359,802 I 6,532,880 I 6,749,096 I 
I I INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 

810800 Personal Prop Repl Tax 92,988 92,988 92,988 92,988 
822040 State Grant: Per Capita 68,892 57,700 57,700 56,000 
822095 State Grant: Library 

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 161,880 150,688 150,688 148,988 I 

FINES & FEES 
850101 Library Fees 114,466 125,000 4,304 4,300 
850102 Library Fines 128,431 128,000 i 

850103 Library Fines Credit Card 13,641 15,000 
850201 Copying Fees 29,033 25,000 
850202 Damaged Materials 464 450 
850203 Lost Materials 7,469 7,000 
850205 Bags 928 1,000 
850207 Non-Resident Cards 2,135 2,000 

TOTAL FINES I I 114,466 125,000 186,405 182,750 

TOTAL TAXES 

SPECIAL PROGRAMS & EVENTS 
850215 ISpecial Programs & Events 4,550 5,000 1,330 1,000 

I 
TOTAL SPECIAL PROGRAMS & EVENTS 4,550 5,000 1,330 1,000 

8"3'25 • DWT • 



DRAFT 8/24/2010 DRAFT 

I 
Account 2009 AS!y~1 2010 Budget 2010 Prolected 2011 ProQ0!i!ld 

OTHER REVENUE 
890010 Interest Income 6,204 5,000 3,500 3,500 
890050 Sale of Fixed Assets 0 1,000 0 15,000 Sale of Mobile Library 
899900 Miscellaneous Revenue 24,978 17,500 16,555 1,000 Isale of Mobile Library 
899920 Library Donations 6,144 10,000 750 500 

20,000 I 
-

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 37,326 33,500 20,805 

FUND TOTAL 1 1 6,936,5471 6,673,990 1 6,892,108 7,101,834 

I I I I I I 

DWT • • ~-~<1'7 -...J..., -<--, 



• 

• 

• 

1) Restored Mobile Library service with three part-time positions for operation and 
added back in expenditures in contractual services for vehiCle maintenance 
($6,750) and diesel ($2,000), To offset these costs we reduced membership dues by 
$5,500 and telephone repair service by $ 1,000, 

2) Cut Capital. Projects by $60,500, 
3) Reduced Capital Expenditure~ by $15, 120, 
4) Eliminate raises for staff $40,028, 
5) Increase employee contril>ution for medical premiums $54,624, 

L'b - F d I rary un 
·2009'Actual. 2010 Budget 2010 2011 

Proiected Proposed 
Beginning 1,044,509 1,296,756 1,533,655 1,748,944 
Balance 
Revenues 6,965,236 6,703,990 6,892,108 7,099,834 
Expenditures (6,276,090) (6,657,885) (6,376,8 19) (6,349,926) 
Transfers (200,000) (300,000) (300,000) (200,000) 
Ending 1,533,655 1,042,861 1,748,944 2,298,852*· 
Balance 

L'b C 't I P , F d I rary api a rolecfs un 
2009 Actual 2010 Budget 2010 2011 Proposed 

Projected 
Beginning 162,659 132,802 223,383 429,783 
Balance 
Revenues 3,606 5,000 1,500 2,500 
Expenditures (142,882) (207,100) (95,100) (48,200) 
Transfers 200,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 
Ending Balance 223,383 230,702 429,783 584,083 

L'b Sf ff I rary_ a 
2008 2009 2010 2011 

Full Time 46 46 46 42 
Part Time 86(FTE 33,2) 76(FTE 29,8) 65(FTE 26.4) 65(FTE 26,6) 

TOTAL FTEs 79,2 75,8 72.4 68:6 

**In the budget draft overview document presented to you at the August 17, 2010 Board 
of Trustees meeting, Alternative 2 year-end fund balance showed $2,330,000, As stated at 
this meeting, these numbers were estimates and when we ran all the budget numbers, this 
ending balance decreased to $2,298,852, 

8/23/2010 10:21:23 AM 



8329 

Alt~JA'qtive: :2 8/23/2010 ,QRAFT 
FUND 201 I Des Plaines Public Ubrary _ ! 
Reduction in Budget REVENUE - FUND 2110 & 2130 1------------1 

M_oulonS}toIBuij/fet ~- -_-=-=-=-- ______ J_ _ r __ __I~ _ ~=-
_______ !_ Account_ _ __ 2009 Actual 2010Budget POloproiected_i_2011ProPOSed 1____ __ ------ 1- -- ------------ -- _____ J __ -,-- -----
TAX::0019 --lpropertYTa;;es-2002 ---- -I ------i - 1--
--rimr]~~~~:i-~:;:~ ~= ~---~~I~ -~ ~(~:~~ ~-~ ---=-~----=-~~~=l-- - ~=~I~---=~= -- --
-- -_._'--- --- -- ------ ----_. - . ---_._---_.--.-------- -.---- . ---_._------

810023 Iproperty Taxes 2006 (57,055) 1 1 I 
: _i}oOi4._~ ~~per!Y Taxes 2007 101,622 ------ _ =--,27,290) i-__ 1-- _. - --

~:-_:~~~~ __ :~~~:~_~:::~~; ______ - i ~ -__ 6!~Qc19.2..=--:'~_6'3~~:~~II= ~_ 6,~~~~ J
1

, _____ 2.5()!QQQ..11__ _ ___ __ -_.---- -
810027 property Taxes 2010 I 6499 096 

TOTAL TAXES - --- - - I 6,618,325 I 6,359,802 I 6,532,880 ) 6,749,096 I - -

____ ----.1 _______ 1_ ---- --.-1--- 1-
::1~~~o~ERN;:~~~~~:1 Ta~=: -L __ ~_!!.2,988: = -__ 92;98~ =:-:=-- 92,98~J__ _ 92,988 --.--.-- _ 

--:~~~:~ _ ~:::~ ~::~~ ~i~r.~ita- -- 1 . ___ 68,8~ -- __ --.3ZOQ.I_ _ 57,70Q_i__ 56,000-' __ ---------1 
- -.1.... - -- - ,---.--- '--1- -- r- - I ------

TOrALINTERGOvERNMENrAlREVeNU-E----i-- - 161,8BO ---i506881----150688T --'148,988 1----------
I I 1 I I 

-FIN-ES-&-FE-ES-I ·--------1-- - I -I - --j---- -- --.--
-:.....85010f~ Ubr"ryFees-' ---- -.- - -114,~i;_ - . --li5,Ooii-~ 4,3041" 4,300 !_____ ---= 

850102 Library Fines I 128,431 I 128'-',OO::--=.0-!-' _____________ 1 
. 85Q~03 _ Ubrary Fines C~ditCard - ----1-----i3,641j 15,OO~_'_ . ___________ _ 

850201 Copying Fees ! 29,033 25,000 
-850202-- Damaged Materials---- ---T . - 464- - '---450 
=--~850~())-\Lo-st-M_at.!'riajs-_-_. ___ -_--_=__- _'-~_-_~-- -- i -- -7,-469 7,000_---

850205 I Bags 928 1,000 ----------, 
850i07 - Non-:-R';sidentCar~ -- -- -- j--'- - 2,135 - --2;000 

TOTALFI~T--- - -.--- 114,4661 --12s.ooo·- ---186-;405- 182,7=S"'0-!------------·-

r.o:r~LT~~_!____ -----. _L_ I -.--. ------ ----1-_ . I .__ _ ___ _ 
SPECI~_PROGRAMS&EVENTS __ : ________ 1. ----- .- -- ---.----------- -----
_850215 'Special Programs & Events I 4,550 ! 5,000 1,330.1__ __1,000 !. .__ _ ___ . _-_-_-_-_-_1 

TOTALSPECIA~OGRAMS-&EVENTS ---j-.-- 4,550 --'5;000 -- - 1330'1-- 1,000/------------

• 
DR'A'Fl 

• 

-~ .. -

• 

.-
0.. 



~~.<.r:t. 
'" oJ -.i 'J 

'Alte(native i . ,. . . .. - - . - --- 8/23/2010 PHA.Fl 
OTHER~-~k. _.~~ount~--.. ==-='=-J=:OO_9_A_ct:a~ i. :01~.~~d~=1-2010~iect:~1_2_01_1_ProP:.dr '_' -___ .-..:._-_~_ 

890010 Interest Inc£,'!!.e ________ I 6,2041 ____ 5,0,!0 _____ ]!_500J. . __ 3,500 Ie 
. __ ~_0_050 __ S~eof Fixed A~~ets ; ________ ,.<! _ ~,Ooo _________ .<>~ o Sale of'Mobile Library 

899900 Miscell,meousRev'enue 'I 24,978 II '17,500 16,555 14,000 Mo~ile Library Service to 
--=-==:-::-_1 Rosemont 

__ 899920 jl,!bra.!V-DOn;'tio~s~ .- 6,144J":-__ ---- 10,900 - -~~=_:_ 7501 __ 5q01 _ __ _ _ _ _ 

TOTALOTli'ERREVENUE 37.3261 33,500 I 20,805 I ·-18.000-1---------

1---- -- -._- -1- 6,936,5471 6,673,9901- - 6;sg2;1081 7,099,834 t-
-.I I ~--!-- - _1_- _.II __ ~I==--=--=I~~=.-----____ _ I _ __ ,_ ___, _______ _ --~~Ii- ----.- ------ ----------=_C-=--__ L_____ . -t---------

----- ----. '- '- I ! _______ , __ 
.. - - -~ - ----j I 

I -!-----------, -- -- I , ______ _ --- -- -(-- ----1 J_ _ ___ _ 
-----. ---- --I - I __ J

1 

___ -. I 
--- -------- ------I ____ ___ _ ______ , ___ . __ , --I' - - ------1 - I 1 ____ .I 

I ,-~-=-=----' ----=-!::....=:----- -. _ _ I _______ _ 
~~l-~-_=__=__= __ ~_:j~~=-=-~~ - -1-- -- - --

___ L ----- .. _.---
_-_____ --1_· _J_-_- ___ ~-I J- ]------_-__ _ 

----1---------
---- -,-~------ --- -- 1--

--- .. ---1-------'----- I -I. I 
-----=--=1'" ---1:-'--- - 1----.-----1----,- -i I ----

• 
;\ ' 

'DRAFT • • 

"" Cl. 



es31 

Altern'a~ive 2 8/23/2010 DRAFT .. 
FUND 20I .. _ I ! Des Plaines Public Ubrary _ _ _ _ ._ . ___ _ 
Reduction in Budget 1 EXPENDITURES - FUND 2110 & 2130 _. 
~ldOOSl.tOlBU . et -- -- . . ---. - _. -.--.--. - . . -- . -. - -- -- -. 

_. ________________ .-------Account. ~=-~~·_I_ 2009 Adual 20iOB-;dget _2010i";'ieqed.:_2011proPDsed. __ . __ ~~~~_~_~ ___ _ 
1 1 

SALARI.ES -==-~==-_-=-:L_._ -. -'1- - - ---- -.. - -.-.-' __ -.--.. -.---_··_-___ 1 
910100 Full-time Salaries 2,003.621 2.318.022 2,318.022 2.243,731 
910200 ------Part-tlmesalarle'- 7S3.696·1··- 789,113 - - i23.353- .-- 776,206=·1------·----- .. · '---

· - -----9-104-00· - -~ -- Non~Supe-rvisory Overtime -j- - o' - ----500 -------500 ---- --- - - - ---

-:- -=.-_ ~~11!.5<!Q ___ :_lJac'-~ci';.Pay-~--· ____ ·~62;Q31J_· _. __ ._ 0 _" -- -'-L-_._':O:=--==_ ~_-____ =- ___ . ~ 
_._ 910600. SlckPay _ _ ___ 62.381.1 0 : ___ 0_1 _______ _ 

910700 Holiday~ay ., _____ ?9,~.~5 __ ... _ 0 'I . -'.. _ 0 L -. I ____ _ 
910900 Act/Out of Oass/Premium I 724 I 0 I 0 1 --- -.- ~~~:~~ . ~~::s':':~~::-l ---I:~:~r=~~--3.5~l-=-3,50fF-=--~~r--- ---- --'- 1- .-~ 

TOTAL SAlARIES .-. I 3,052,897 1 3.1l0.635 I 3,045,375 1 3,023,937 i j-- - - - .-

BENEFITS -. I·· -- . +--------1 ! -- .- .. ---1- ---
918010 lunemPloyment COmpensationI' 1,406 4:9861 -. "26:304 31,000 - -- - --------

. '---918020 .' .- Empioyera,illr:Ficil----' 229,3SS 1 237:314' 237,314 231,02S-' -- -1------=-= __ ----:--9!~1l,2..!.-. -_---j~"iplov~rCO!'t'--~~ _.' __ ..l~,4991 __ .. 292,~18 297.518 -: 322,793 _-: ~:--+I-----I 
918030 EAP Program 662 1 682 0 0 

1--.-_-_-. --giS040 - -~ _ Ufe~ ~remiu!".s _ _'_-:-.-'6;'54'5-1 .. -- 6,S?§_ . 6.576 ___ 4,S3~ -=~-:-: ____ -~ 
918050 PPO Insurance Premiums 338,038 1 389,041 256,039 347,486 

---. Y,!!!051 -. . HMOlns~ran.!:ePie.j1iu,!1S--. ---1'05,412. 1 }i1,979_ =-SO,94T =-=.99;500 -- .. - __ ----
918055" Dental Insurance Premiums 24,643 J 31,505 21.710 26,473 

.- --- .. 9-18070-------wo'kersCOmpensation 13,793 i 9,500 9.500 r- --9,500:.1.----- --. . ---
91801is---- - RHSpTa';-Payo;:;t' -.-- lS418-i 100'00- 100001 10000 -----------.- ---

I:T=O=T:::A:-L-=-B=EN"E=F=ITS=-' - -----.-- -. - _ .. -- .- 1,005,831 I 1,099,101 I 945,9031 1,082,313 ,.-. - -- -- --

CO_N_TRA_CTU_A_L::~~~ ____ tegal.F_ees - --. 589 j- ----is:OQo:i 10,000 /- 1.0,OOOtegaL~"'s - - I ~q.1l,0IJ. 
-- ---. ~}~~~_ .. ____ )~~i;~~:~~t~~~c!,!,,_- :.----3S4,4~ .4P;:~~~ i . 39_~:g: 36!:~:. ~:~;~~:~:!~~t ~:I-. --.--:t~~ 
· ___ ._ . __ ._ . . ______ . ! ____ 1__ _ _ ________ IL"1~nagementServlce _ 325,9_1X1. 

__________ 1' _________ -. -_ - --- !.- _ -- - ~ ___ ~"!kIg~ry!ce._____ _ ~g.OOO 

· . - -- '.' -~2!i.!2.Q.:.-: - ~o_"!mu_"i~a.!iO~2i~es_:-III. 31.803! - 28'4~~I-:- _ j1,15?_I'=-~';I~::~~Se[ViC!' _ _ __ . 1~:~. ~: 
I ICN/AT&T 4,400 

· -- . - -: '\ ,- - '--'CaIiOne ·---.. ·----5;400-

_ ___ ___ \!. : _ Bro"dwlng/LeveL 3 - - 5,600 
_. _ _ _ L __ . __ _ _ _ _ Sprlnt/Nextel 12,400. 

• 
i I I COmeast 2,500 

. 920140 ----oataProcessing-Servlces . ----- 57.304--'100,800 71;537 - - 78,000 IDataProcessineOCLClCCS- --I 78,000 

DRAFT • • 



(.'r<'7\,t 
'-.i ...., ...., 4-

AI~eJI1~tbf:~_;2 . 8/23/2010 o RAFT 
__ j~_ACCOU!)t I 2009 ActUal 2010 Budset _2010 Projec!ed_ ]011 Proposed_ Details !-AmOU!)t= 

__ ~2.Q202 l~n.f!~~!S I 4,1441 0 _ .. ___ ~,O..QQ.. ___ ._l,OE.O. ____ _ _ __ __ I 

___ .~202Q4 -=-=--=Jra!nin~===-_-= 6'0B41 ____ 2~:. __ . ___ l:~OO ______ 0. ______ . ______ _ 

---=.-!~~~!~~- ' .. ~:~i~ra;;~-!S=-+=~~!'-' .-~- ~-=- 3~iOi- 5~- ------------=F=--=-..-:-· 
--- --. _._--- .. - -.- .-,~~ --_._---.- . 

I MemberShl 0 I 7816: 6500 6500 1000 !~LApuesf~r.~oard,,~,irector. 920220 
I----P ues __ ._ _ _:--i_ .. __ :"'_ ' ';~st.DI(,'S3,POO) I IlrA'Dueslfor,Board>& Prof. Staff 

--- --r· I -., -- )'S3,OOoL - .. 
~cens~g/i1tieS--- ~--~~-.~'---- --s(d- 100 -:~'=~-=-O_ ----_- q 9.t~ef!lbe~~.9I!e~s __ J~~=-~=:~OO--- - - . --920225---------_._--

920230 ---;920900-----·-- -

• 

.~'!.bllcatlon_of Noti!=es 1 ____ ...2,101 i 1,000 ~'.OOO ___ .. 2,000_ ~ubllshl~g.!!.ldl!~tices .L _.2,090_ 
ProcertV/Uab Insurance 25,773 i 24,869 24,869 25,000 I 25,000 

DRiXFT ... - -.' . • • 

"d
o.. 



AlterRative':2 . ~ ... . ,," 8/23/20.10 QHAFI 
• . Account ! 2O!!9 AC!Ual _I 20l0Budle' !.2010P!o'ected_I_2011Propose!LI __ ' De.all. ~_ =-__ --.-."-9~"'O"O"I"-O-_---I .. M """",,, __ . _\_. 100'~9~f'-____ ~10,061·=~~lO,06~_. __ ~5!.757 'I~~~f[;~;.rphon~ ~ =-=_1:::: 

___ -_-_. -=---=-\=-_--=-~ ______ . ~_=;TBs-j\'!!'."_al..Ag~e~e~. =._-___ 5,600-
.. -1-___ __ . ______ . _ _ _______ I EV;!!1_ced .A,!,,~~g~ee,!!!,,!!,- _1 __ . __ "SiQ 

__ .I -'-- __ 1 _______ ---.-.--.- IAWE Annu,al Agr:.eemen. -I 2.35Q. 

---- -1------ ---.- ----- -- ,- .. -- -'--1--- ,- ~~a:~'}~~~~~:oennL -I ~~ ___ ~_:--.-- = ___ i __ ,__ . _-.::...-:-=[=-~=_-__ . ___ ,~ __ ---:= l~~g;o;- .---==-=_ =-_i3;'52E~ 
--'-- ------,·-1-· - .... --1------------- -1-- -.-----~;~~~:n~::::~lces -- --1::~:~-

___ -=---:= ·--:-_-...::...---:::I-_---::..~_::_=_-_-- --I _~-:::l- ~ ___ -.-- -L-- ,-. -:-=: IDSAnnual~r:!'.'!! .. ~t ~ -- l1,~07, 

.-~ --- -----l ----------1 -I------L
. --- --::;;:~:~~~:t~:~~::::~~- 1.::: 

------- --. -r---- - __ h_l_ '-j- -. i ----I -- Ap--pllanceRepair------- - 1,000 ---- -' ----. --1--- -I .--,--- 1- - ---,------- ~:=I~~~:~~~~~~tiJUnIPer . ---~.~~-o-

'-1--'------I' ,. ';M ;~ulpment ----~ 
.. ___ .. _1 ____ .. ____ ! ~ ___ . ___ . _____ . __ I~::~~:::::~~:~kstati-o-n·-'I--.--2:::: 

8-J 3' 3- • ORAFT 'e' • 



(.')~~A 
-..; ......... 

Alternative :2 . ~- --- .-- - 8/23/2010 DRAFT . .... -- . 

.-:-__ .. ___ ' Account 2009 Actual I 2919 Budget '2910 Projected I 2911 Proposed Detail, J Amount ==--=.:..-_. ~3.ooi_o. __ . __ I~&.riiildg~!!,_C!U!,,_, ____ . __ 1!l.P75 116!.~ ___ l16,~C 124,080 ~~gu..!'.y_ _._ . __ ... -'_: ___ 39!_6~Q. 
Furniture/carpet/Drapery I 30 000 

_ - - -._._. '_-_'-::'-::'- --- j ------- ----·--I~a-;.~~:·- .-- -- -.-1- ___ 8:~D _ 
__ _ • __ . _______ ~ ______________________________ , _ ~oqdY"Q~kRepair'-carpe~J.!V _____ . _ 4,000 

Fire Protection Equipment 8 000 
.... _ _. _. __ _ ____ ._ t Testi!:lR ______ . ___ ~_~ __ . 

_____ j' '" Ughtlng,lElectrlcal 9,100 
~ .. -=~~--. --- -. -- -.- '---1-- -''-' ---r - --"1 __ '_' -. -' ~y~,-c,c;ntro!,"':"""_ 1I,~O~ 
-- _ _ _ _ ~- --, _ ~ ---~. --. 1_ - - - ~ . iElevator Maintenance . 7,500. 

~. . -~ .. _ -.~-- -·-~-:t ___ -~-=I_=_- .. --·- --.,. ----'- -·---_--:--I!:~~~J1edWaterTreatment : ::::: 

I __ _ ______ 1- _. ______ jQ.~~!!D!I!!f~ _____ I_ 5,,s00 

__ .____ _ I ._ I j ; _" ... _. ____ I'~::g Repairs & RPZ Valve 4,000 

~ __ . _____ _ _ _ ______ ". ~ __ . _____ I ~::;~!lR:m Partition ! 600 . 

. ___ 9.3..0030 _____ R_&.M ve.!>icles. .. _ 7,873 11,3l!!!. _ _ .. 8,300.. 8t~~raryvan Maintenance ' 1,500 
~ijJle UtmiiY:Malntenance 6~750 

... - - 930195· Book Blnding·&·Repair--· ... 5381;000 1,00; - 1,000 !Binding Soft Cover.and Hard 1,000 
. . . COver Books & Periodicals c 

=----===93q210_-::-::-=·_-: !l!.e~!aT.of~.qulpE'en~_· ~_ - .. !,669J 26,500 - ... - 26,500 .... 2,?,O!l.Q.. Po_stageM·a.chlne ... ---' =-::- 2,QDO:' 
. I I I COpier Lease· United Business 25000 

-;--::---:c-;-:c-,---I---c=-=:I I Solution ' 
_ .... ___ .~3..o3_20 __ "_~ ~ . !=~~~~$: Cust~dia~ Services __ T __ 1.1~,.~~9 C.' -96;7001 _ .. ~-96,f09J __ ~.~.Q.. q>.rrtioci.l9I.Cl;,;'!!!>gLLb_rary= : ~:~ 8~,~oi 

______ ._. ___ , , . . Additional Housekee~ing 1,800 

=---.- 930490 - -. ~fuse Contract -- .!==-~~:~~ =-- -. ~.:~ -. ---- j :5001-. --·~:~o~ :~:~;~1:i~:~;;i~g--~-::.-r------~'=f~~~: 

:-=----::~~ Il~~~l~;~----I~~-~~i = ~ =::~". }~-F~~~-~~r-::t~~~a~:~'-' -- . ---'F---:::~ 

• Q'RAf.T" • • 



8315 

Alternative 2 8/23/2010 'DRAFT 

1 
Account 2009 Actual L 2010 Budget I 2010 Prolected 12011 Proposed I Details Amount 

______ 920ill,.0 _ ~_ _5p~ _~vent_prog,a!!!!!!I~g-= ~8,OC!.7_i -}},!LClO-l 31,000- - 3].,000 - :~~:~ :Z~:: ::;:::::~: H:~~-

------::::::::----- --------I --------i~~------+i------ _~~_i ----- -1- -===::::::I:~:::~:u~~a~:~~lvlt;es ~I----:::::-
960990_- -- _--_ M~CoCO;,trictualsvC5 ___ E9,18~ -~ ___ 99~3~~ - -__ -9j,375 -- - 95c60t!: 8ak;;r&TaylQ(TitleSo~,ce-=_-.I°-:::- -S,~.!L 

Aquarium service 4,000 ------- 0 ---0 -- - --------- ------ --- -- ---0--- --1--- ---MidwestTape ------ -1- iii,iieo 
--- - - ------ - -- - --- ------- -- ------1-- Temporary Personnel 15,000 

------ j= - --=- ~I----- - i- -~r--- -- ~ -~~r£~f:~!!S~g-1~~~:l 
I -- ---i- --- -I --- ~-,-.,--, I ~'OO 

' __ --==_~_~=_~--=_~1 l I ---~~~-=--_:::_-.~~ _____ ~:~~rvlces-- - _o~-_ - ;'fo~ 
jBaCk-UP Disaster Recovery Off- I 6,000 

___ o:::::::::_---~-=----J ---- -__ : :~::: - J--==--t~--- =l-i-~-------IE~:ZE~~;~~Fees--- ::~~~ 
I 1 I Furnirure Recovering 5,000 I ...... 

~; - - - - -- ,- I i Building System Monitoring I -~O a.. 
TOTALCONTRAcruALSERV1(is --i ---- 944,OS9 I l.os9,2511 1.D4D,693 I 1,029.7371- -. - -- - ---1-- - ---

1 ______ J -I I I ___ 1 ___ _ 

~~:~~~~ES 970100 lo~ce_s~pPlies_ -1-----ss;i7il- - 116,300 I -- -1-i6.300T-- -- lCI7;SOO IMateriaiSProce~l~g 70cOQO_1 
________________________ .1__ 1 !. _____ L _____ !t:!ardware/Networ!!_~upplies ____ _.b~OO 

_______ ! ___________ l __ ._ ____ ! _____ ) _____ I_oebitCards 1,000 
_________________ 1__________ 1--- __________ 1 I IToner ___________ 2,500 

_ _ __ _ ! _ _ _,0_ ___ _-----lM1~e/~~Vboard'--____ _ ____ __ 2,5.90_ 
___ _ _____ 1 _________ 1___ ___ _ __ I:!eac!p_hones 2,500 

_ _ _ _ J 'Ubra~ Cards 4,<!.~ _ 

970110 

• 

_ 1 ___ ---------1- I 'l!.ackul'.I;lp~_______ 3,000 

Meals ~PR~NR~R~RSN~L5~II-- -~S7 ____ ;~ ~=-;~~0_1- 2,100 i~::;::s:~~~~etlng;&pUbIiC ___ l~:: 

'DRAFT • 

!Volunteer Party sao 

• 



Alternative 2 8/23/2010 DRAFT .' . 

_ _. _. . 2009 Actuai I 2010 Bud""l !.2010Prolected.!-2011ProP05elL! I!!!!!il1 I--!>!!W!I!> '. _ 
_ ._~Zfl1~5._. __ . __ 15!!~p~eS:DePt./Ot~e,- ___ I_ 12 r 0 • • 

1 ____ --'97o17o !Ianllorlal _ . ! . --22,~~3 r--~!!QO-__ .. 25,QO~ 'I'-=-: 30,9~= I:!.Ou~eJ(~~pi~g 5uppll~ __ '~I- '--19,200_ 

1

__ .-- .' -'- --- . --II . "1- --_. . --. l,ig~t!!,g __ . - \. 7,200 
=~ _. __ \_ -:: ,___ _ ______ \ ___ .. __ ~~mR~PJa.£~~~t)~a~ _, =_ ~:~¥ 

970260' 'postage and parcel. I 10,459 .13000 18500 25,000 Post Interlibrary Loan, Outgoing 1 25,000' 

1

- -. 97~270 prlnting.Reprod.8Indi;;8- - - .• 10.606 - 5000" - 2500 -. 6,000 ~:~~i~~§<'.Not'c~s.. ------- -6,-0-00-' 

=-:.. ... =itosoo .. -.--- Purchase of Wa.ter - . __ -=-i- =_= ... _. _. ._.Booo =-=-6000 ____ ~,ggg: Purcha ..... otWater_. ____ . L ___ li,p.oo· 
970600 Books 1 463.9331 489800 489800 401,805 IBooks ,'01.805 

1 __ .. __ 920610 ·.----I~rO.Materials . -- . L ~-- 7i.~26·1 B4,69q ~ -__ s46ilQ __ ._ ...9.D.,20o.:iMUslcan_d.Audl".Books .. __ i 90,~0.!l. . 
... 920620. __ ... __ -,Sul"cription.~ and 80.!'.ks .• __ '-- .. _~.531 ____ ]8.~~.!l. __ ... _788.QQ ___ 6.9,50'!.ljPerlodlcals ____ . __ J __ ......!!l,50.o... 

___ 9706~_ . ___ '!!!'!!'! Materials __ . _! ____ ~1,~Z!! ____ 96250 . ___ 9.§.~q . __ l.1.1,,Q,OP • .oVQs _____ I ___ 1.l,!,QgO ~I 
___ -"91.0~L_ •• __ ~uto!"ateEJ!e!e-",nce~~_I_!_ ......!22.~~~1. 1'10001_. _......!.1000. _ . 128,9.0'1 !E!<>..ct~onl~.Databases J ___ 128 •. 900. 

9]0810_ __ Na.wraIG~ L __ ~!~ __ ._ 30000j 2QP.QP._. ____ 18000_1 ___ . _ . 1_ .. 

970820 _____ IElectricity .. _ _ ___ L_. . __ 0,' .. __ 5°~i 50~ 5001.. ~'I 
_.9.1.QB40_____ _. ~~!.. _ __ I 0 ____ 4000 200q 0001 _ __ ______ ___ __ 0 

____ .:;ci:~~ . ...:.:.. ·_-'~:~~~~ni<S~ooo .. _=-J--=--. ~~i - ~~~1-'--"-5~~~'- - 2.~~i~ookCa~_ ~~~~j=~'OOOI 
·I~ ,..;.. .. ~;;.-- ----I ----1---987.759 1 .... -n1 ::tcn-;-- ----==-=-=:.-::- --~-~=;- -r-----.-

::l'<'<-h 
'" "OJ oJ -...; 

I~· .. ~-· .. ·-.. -.. ~ I -_.--- -1--- 1 I~ ----I' ... ~-- -I" ~-'--I-- --I~ :..-:.=...-...:..... 980300 =-- .. _-: improve_",.;'t; --"-:-..:::j-_ -.-== pJ-__ 8.000 i- -_ -_-_-~ -:.- . ci .. ..-~---O i. -- - . -.. -
980400 o 33,000 I 41.000 

6.750 j---- 4.000 

o Security System DVR 1$12.000) 

--'-----, 
-------.- --1-" ... ~.-- -!- ----1__ _ _ 980410 CE~p.E_~~r_HardY'are ____ !. __ 2~~ M.OO IM!!.ecelp't~!J!l!"~ 1$1;200). ~. ., .1 

_ -- I. _ --------.+-,--.---.--.---=!-- ..... ~ t---··--J~:~~~~i~T ~-=l:' =_ ~2.~~ 1-----. 1--_____ .---__ -__ 1 __ .. ExtemalHarddrtve I.. .?O.Q.i 

-- -_. --1--· .---.. 

1--

• 

, Dell Replacement Parts. 1 2,000 

---.!--- ------- --------- ---1--.------, _~ - . j~h::~~I~~:a~:~nt .. --·-[-- _1.~~~ 
--------,.-. 

I DRAFT . 
- •. 

IPubllc Simple Scan Station 
11<:", G"ln\ 

• 



83"3'7' 

Alt~rnat.ive ~ 8/23/2010 uRA'in 
9.!l°i2L __ 

2OO9e.s!!!.i!_1 2010 Budoet 1,2010 Projected __ !!!!!J _ _ __ " __ ~" 
q.8~5 _____ 3_2.00~!~~-.J3.000 33,465 !~f"P!,.i:cs_s.o_~a!e! ____ 4.~00 1--' Details 

I 
"1 ,.~uu,,' ,;0 

I_~~~ ______ ---- i ---1- ____ I .. -.- ___ ~_jP.!Jbllc_Mobe5uite. -'--. -.-.i !.BOO_ 
1 __________ 1 __ . ---·-1 -.. 1 __ I?h~r:t.K~y'..ypg!]lge II 250 
._--.-- .---.- --.--. --'---'. .1. . . ___ ~. __ Lwe~s~~~i.!!cEtlo!' __ . _______ ._~ __ 515_ 

I 'Trend anti-virus 3,300 
. "--'" -.--. --~--- --;" -. I I . ','-- PubllcWebBro;;''-, - -~---I'---i"i5-. ---'r - . " .-.-.... - .---. -.-_ . 

.. -- ____ 1 ____ ---1-"·---- -~- ." -"- WebOewec. ---.------ - ...57.5.. 
. -.--- .---- , ---"-._--- 1 ____ " __ ._ '1'. --- - .. -.- - " . ___ 9JaIOge,o.esk. ____ .7511.: 

I=~~ ~ -_-. -=-.---=C. ------- _~ __ . ----_.-- ~'.-- ~ l=~- ra::O~O:a1~~ua~~1:n~e_~ ___ !=--=~ ~_~2~~: _ 
___ -- =-~-=- __ t ___ --! ___ ~_I __ ' ____ '=-~-=::-=It~~ias.~~~ate--------:~ __ ~!~~~~ 

1--·---- . --- .. - - -

-'-:-':=--:-._ I t -- __ 1___ 1____ _ ~~~So~::. __ _ . - ~::_ 
I'_~ ~~:...:...:." _- 9!.0~~0 ~.==_!~~~'-e & F!xtU'~5 ~ ___ + ___ ._ 2,2~?_ _ ...... ~0~5~J_._ .~~! ___ ......!!.~qo_ ~~;~gu~~~~g _ _ ..... j ____ l.~} 

"".-_. -. --.-~--~--'---. -~-. -l - I u----I·-----·~~~~:!*~;~~;ceme~t·--. ---- !::: 
,m.;.;Ir;;;;M~o_.:;;n,.;:;;;~~ - ·-1------- j 23,576 I 100.250 I 97,500! 57,265 L •. -

1~-":~'!n~lng_~l;I;~:~=-=-:: !~~sto.o;~: 200~~.;0~J .. ~:_~i~~;i:1 =- =-=_:::i=--_ -- 2.4~598 23,~69. ~".!!!'.?Q!!.~u,!lg~_." __ i~: _~. _ 23:4691~ 
990940 Trans to Lib Cap P,ojFNO . , 400.000 I 300.000 300.000 200.000 I 

"'--·990955 .{ransto 0/50: 2003B-sO~d - j- ---lO.99ST - --- -0---~--o '-0- E~dwlth200i Budget . - - ~-." 
- .- . 993000 . 1 Contingency Reserve i 0 I ,75,000 . -7S:OOO- - - - . 75,000 I - -, .1 

lioTAliiTiIiRFUt,iiiING-ACTMnES -:--- .- •. ----- I ·425,8471 399.598 I 399.5981 298.4691----- .. -.;--. 

'TOTAlS 

• 

, 
--'-

6,439.970 6,900,185 6.619.~19 6,493.926 

DRAFT -.- ~ 



• 

DATE: 

PLACE: 

:. TIME: 

RSVP: 

'. , , 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Board of Trustees 

Semi-Annual Dinner 

August 1 7, 2010 

Giuseppe's LaCantina 
1 062 Lee Street 
Des Plaines 
847-824-4230 

7:30 PM· 

Carol Kidd - 847-376-2803 



(!) 
(,1:) 

,.y ~----:::o-Ir;\'! 
'0 

• 

• 

TO: 

. (\./ 
IneS~v G' 

. r:y~ 

Library Board 

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, IL 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 iax 

FROM: Sandra K. Norl 

SUBJECT: Background on;;; gust Agenda Items 

DATE: August 12, 2010 

To help you prepare for the discussion at our meeting on August 17, please refer to 
information provided below. If you would like more information or explanation, please 
contact me (847-376-2800) or Carol Kidd (2803) before July 20. 

VIII. New Business 

A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $200,668.91. [Action Item] 

B. Open Meetings Act. 
As stated in the Guide to the Illinois Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120 
"Discussion in a closed meeting under an exception to the Act must be limited in 
scope to the cited exception authorizing the closed meeting. SILCS 120/2, 2a; 1969 
III. Att'y Gen. Op. 131. The taking of final action at any closed meeting is 
prohibited. 5 ILCS 120/2(e). A public body must disclose to the public the 
substance of any final action- which is being taken, whether that substance has 
been discussed in an open or a closed meeting." 
"Employment/Appointment Matters: Public bodies may hold closed meetings to 
consider the following employment or appointment-related topics: 
(1) "The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or 
dismissal of specific employees of the public body or legal counsel for the public 
body." 
-Final action taken and reported at the Special Board Meeting on June 29, 2010. 

C. Approval of Expenditures over Budget Amount in Operating Budget. 
Board action at the July 20, 2010 meeting did not authorize a transfer of funds, but 
rather changing the expenditure posting from Per Capita fund to operating fund. I 
did not request that funds be transferred; what I did request was permission to pay 
for staff inservice and registration from contractual services in the operating fund. 

D. Intergovernmental Agreement. [Action Item] 
I will have a draft agreement for your review at the August 17, 2010 meeting. 

__ /President Magerl may refer this to the Finance Committee. 
www.~ 



(D 

(~) 
.". 
(~ 

• 

• 

• 

E. 

F. 

Set Dates for Management and Finance Committee. 
Please bring your calendars. 

2011 Budget. [Action Item] 
President Magerl has asked me to prepare three general options for you to consider 
and to use to give further direction. They will be available at the meeting. 

2 



• 

• 

if: I!;"]IP.,.\ .... "" .•. ~ines-VC 
C····.[j brar:y~ </. -

NOTICE 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 17, 2010 

6:00 PM* 

Conference Room - Second Floor 

Agenda: 

- 2011 Budget 
- Intergovernmental Agreement 

*Note: Special time 

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, IL 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 
847-827-7974 fax 

The Des Plaines Public Library, in compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, requests 
that persons with disabilities who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in the meetings or have questions about the accessibility of the meetings or facilities 
contact the Library Director at 847-376-2800 to allow the Library to make reasonable 
accommodations . 

_/'2 
www'~~~A // 
~~ 



• 

• 

• 

~~~ 

,~ 1i Des Plaines -
., ~ Public Library :::. 

I. 

II. 

III. 

IV. 

V. 

VI. 

VII. 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting 
August 17, 2010 

6:00 PM 

Call to Order. (6:00 PM) 

Roll Call. 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Consideration of the Agenda. 

Public Comments and Questions. 

City Council Community Services Committee - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

Consent Agenda. [Action Item] (6:30 PM) 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting

July 20, 2010. 
B. Acceptance of Financial Reports for July 2010. 
C. Acceptance of Reports. 

1. Director's Report - Sandra Norlin. 

, 501 Ellinwood SIr! 
2 

Des Plaines, 1l60016-4553 

847-827·5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

2. Finance Committee Report, August 3, 2010 - Jeffery Rozovics. 

VIII. Unfinished Business 

IX. New Business. (8:00 PM) 
A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $200,668.91. [Action 

Item] 
B. Open Meetings Act. 
C. Approval of Expenditures over Budgeted Amount in Operating 

Budget. [Action Item] 
D. Intergovernmental Agreement. [Action Item] 
E. Set Dates for Management and Finance Committee. 

www.dpp).org 



P3 

• F. 2011 Budget. [Action Item] 

X. Announcements. 
A. Stephanie Spetter, Head of Youth Services. 

XI. Correspondence. 

XII. Presentation to Retiring Trustees - Eldon Burk and Selma D'Souza. 

XIII. Adjournment. (7:15 PM) 

This meeting will be recorded for television broadcast. 

• 

• 



• 
Des Plaines -
Public Library ::::. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting 

July 20, 2010 

1501 Ellinwood Stref 4 
Des Plaines, Il 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

The regular meeting of the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees was held in the second 
floor conference room on Tuesday, July 20, 2010. Vice President George Magerl called the 
meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

George Magerl stated that President Noreen Lake submitted her resignation effective July 31, 
2010, and Mayor Moylan accepted her resignation effective July 19, 2010. 
ROLL CALL. 

Roll call indicated the following board members were present: Myrtle Klebe, George Magerl, 
Jeffery Rozovics, Elaine Tejcek, Jennifer Tsalapatanis. 

• Absent: Susan Moylan Krey. 

• 

Also present: Sandra Norlin, Carol Kidd, Holly Richards Sorensen, Heather Imhoff, Alderman 
Dan Wilson, Alderman John Robinson, Dan Klobnak, Brenda Murphy, Phyllis Johnson, Roberta 
Johnson, Susan Farid, Dick Sayad, Steven Mokry, Dion Kendrick. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

MOTION by George Magerl, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to swear in Mokry and Kendrick before 
considering the agenda. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

OATH OF OFFICE. 

Steven Mokry and Dion Kendrick took the Oath of Office. 

Susan Moylan Krey entered the meeting at 7:01 p.m. 

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA. 

MOTION by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by Myrtle Klebe, to approve the agenda, as presented. 
VOTE: AYES: Klebe, Moylan Krey, Magerl, Rozovics, Tejcek. NAYS: Kendrick. MOTION 
CARRIED. 

www.dppl:org 

--
-------' 



• 

• 

• 

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 

Alderman Robinson stated that he was being appointed by Mayor Moylan to fill the vacant 
trustee position and would like to be sworn in at the Special Board meeting scheduled for August 
10,2010. 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

Alderman Wilson congratulated Dion Kendrick and Steven Mokry on their appointment to the 
Board of Trustees. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MOTION by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by Susan Moylan Krey, to approve the Consent 
Agenda, as written. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

LIBRARY DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

Please note: I have received no official requests for confidential patron information since my 
last report. 

PERSONNEL 

New Employees for June/July 2010: Maria Jimenez, Page, 06/21/2010, Page, Circulation Services 
Department. 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Eleven staff members attended the American Library Association's Virtual Conference via 
computer on July 7 and 8. We gathered in the Conference Room to hear Keynote Addresses by 
Joan Frye Williams, George Needham, and Karen Hyman. Their remarks were challenging they 
addressed the new reality for libraries in the United States. Presentations like this are very useful 
to start conversations and ideacgenerating sessions among our staff so that we can creatively 
solve the problems we face at this time, i.e. cuts in funding, competition for scarce public 
resources, and, the lower esteem that libraries and librarians are held in by vocal members of our 
communities. This was a cost effective way of experiencing the advantages of professional 
continuing education without the expense of travel. The entire cost for this service was $300. 

PATRON SERVICES 
As predicted, our Interlibrary Loan, Van Delivery, and overall circulation decreased from last 
June. Interlibrary Loan decreased by 72%, van delivery by 27%, and overall circulation by 
7.35%. Van delivery options are being studied by a Task Force of North Suburban Libraries and 
by the library systems that are planning to merge in 2011. The current, but temporary van 
delivery service will end sometime in October. 

P5 



• 

• 

• 

Sixty-seven percent of the items that circulated from the children's collection were print 
materials, whereas 44% of the items circulated from the adult collection were print. Of the total 
circulation, 54% was print, and 47% audio-visual items, including books on disc. 

For June, there were 191 checkouts from My Media Mall. This represented 67 unique patrons 
and 31 new patrons. As of June 30,1580 children have enrolled in our summer reading 
program. Two of our children's programs attracted of 200 attendees, and one over 100. The 
average attendance for the other ten programs was 46, with 16 the lowest and 88 the highest. In 
addition, Sara Mclaughlin and Cheryl Gladfelter visited four elementary schools and presented 
programs to invite children to participate in the summer reading program at the library. They 
spoke to a total of 690 children. 

Computer use within the library has decreased this year, 11 % on the adult floor, and 15% in 
youth. 

Patron attendance increased by 16%, year to date, over 2009. Our meeting rooms have been 
used by more than 19,000 people to attend meetings and programs in 2010 thus far. The library 
also visits local schools, preschools, congregant residential facilities in Des Plaines. Thus far in 
2010, we have presented programs to 6,070 people in Des Plaines. We have also had nearly 30, 
000' virtual visits from patrons using computers from external locations. 
Our Bookcart Drill Team, the CartWheels performed at Des Plaines' 4th of July parade, to the 
delight, amusement, and wonder of the parade watchers. It is a gratifying experience to walk 
with the library contingent and to hear people shout their appreciation for their library. 

OTHER PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES 

I attended the appreciation luncheon for the Northwest Suburban United Way on June 17, a 
meeting of the Friends of the Library Roundtable on June 22, and a Chamber of Commerce 
Afterhours Event for Not-for-Profit agencies on July 13. 

NEW BUSINESS 

APPROVE PAYMENT OF VENDOR CHECKS REPORT - $204,196.86. [Action Item] 

MOTION by Jeffery Rozovics, seconded by Susan Moylan Krey, to approve the payment of 
vendor checks in the amount of $204,196.86, as listed on the vendor checks report of June 2010 
and authorize the Library Director to have transferred the amount required to the library's 
operating account. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Kendrick, Klebe, Moylan Krey, Magerl, Mokry, 
Rozovics, Tejcek, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOBILE LIBRARY SERVICE TO ROSEMONT. 

The Board discussed mobile library service to Rosemont and the expense and revenue generated 
by this service. 

P6 



• 

• 

• 

MOTION by Dion Kendrick, to defer discussion of agenda item B. Mobile Library Service to 
Rosemont until the August 17, 2010 board meeting. Motion failed for lack of a second. 

MOTION by Steve Mokry, seconded by jennifer Tsalapatanis, to offer Rosemont residents Mobile 
Library service for the period of September 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010 at a cost of 
$1,100/month for a total of $4,400. ROLL CALL VOTE: Klebe Moylan Krey, Magerl, Mokry, 
Rozovics, Tejcek, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: Kendrick. MOTION CARRIED. 

APPROVE EXPENDITURES. 

Sandra Norlin explained that the library was awarded the Per Capita Grant in the amount of 
$59,948.78, but that funds have not been received from the State of Illinois. Sandra also 
explained that expenses for In-Service Day training ($4,000.00) and conference 
registration($500.00) have been spent and she asked for board approval to use budgeted, (but 
unexpended) funds designated for CDL Training ($2,000.00) and a portion of the OCLC Tech Pro 
($22,125.00) to cover the costs for In-Service Day training and conference registrations. She 
asked approval of the expenditure of approximately $5,000.00, which includes registration for 5 . 
staff members and 3 trustees to attend the Illinois Library Association.Annual Conference being 
held at Navy Pier in Chicago from the 201 Fund (Operations). 

MOTION by jennifer Tsalapatanis, seconded by Dion Kendrick, to allow expenditures from the 
line item Miscellaneous Contractual Services to the Training line item in the amount of $4,500 to 
cover costs for In-Service training and conference registration and up to $1,000 for conference 
registration for 5 staff members and 3 trustees to attend Illinois Library Association Annual 
Conference. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 

MOTION by Committee, to approve library policies A-9 through A-14 and C-1 through C-12, as 
reviewed and revised. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

APPROVAL TO PROCEED WITH PREPARATION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF A LINE OF CREDIT OR BRIDGE LOAN. [Action Item] 

Sandra Norlin explained that due to a proposed delay in the collection of Cook County property 
taxes for the second installment of the taxes for 2009, the library may need to borrow funds to 
cover a gap caused by the late collection of property taxes. Sandra stated that at the direction of 
the Board she had contacted Attorney jerry Dempsey who suggested an intergovernmental 
agreement with the City of Des Plaines to authorize the library'S borrowing, either through a 
"bridge loan" or tax anticipation warrant or a line of credit. Sandra also stated that the library has 
a cash balance of over $1,500,000, which in a normal year would cover 2.5 months of operating 
expenditures. The board discussed how this gap in funds would affect the library and if reducing 
current spending would lessen the need for a bridge loan. . 

P7 



• 

• 

• 

MOTION by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to direct Library Director Sandra 
Norlin to contact Attorney Jerry Dempsey to proceed with the preparation of an 
intergovernmental agreement for the purpose of a line of credit or bridge loan. ROLL CALL 
VOTE: AYES: Kendrick, Klebe, Moylan Krey, Magerl, Mokry, Rozovics, Tejcek, Tsalapatanis. 
NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Sandra Norlin asked for board approval to post the August 10, 2010 meeting as a Special 
Meeting rather than a Committee of the Whole meeting so that action can be taken on the 
approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement and Alderman John Robinson can be sworn in as a 
new trustee. 

Assistant Library Director Holly Sorensen gave a brief presentation on the Open Meetings Act. 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE 

MOTION by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by Myrtle Klebe, to remove Noreen Lake's name from the 
ballot for Vice President. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Myrtle Klebe, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to nominate Susan Moylan Krey for Vice 
President. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Myrtle Klebe, seconded by Jeff Rozovics, to close nominations for the slate of 
officers for the Library Board of Trustees for 201012011. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

George Magerl took the oath of office for President, Susan Moylan Krey took the oath of office for 
Vice President, Jeffery Rozovics took the oath of office for Treasurer and Carol Kidd took the oath 
of office for Secretary. 

Mr. Dick Sayad stated that residents of Des Plaines should have a chance to speak after each item 
of business on the agenda. 

MOTION by Steven Mokry, seconded by Jeff Rozovics, to adjourn the regular meeting. VOTE: 
AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 

Minutes prepared Carol Kidd . 

P8 



• 

• 

• 

27W457 Warrenville Road. WarrenviUe. a 6055,5..3902 Lauterbach & Amen, LLP __________________________________ J/ /r--------------------------------
Certified Public Accountants 

August 11,2010 

Members of the Board of Trustees 
Des Plaines Public Library 
Des Plaines, IL 60016 

(847) 562-9252 

We have compiled the accompanying balance sheet of the Des Plaines Public Library as of July 31, 2010 
and the related statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the one month and 
the seven months then ended in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review 
Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements, infonnation that is the 
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements 
and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them. 

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures required by generally accepted 
accounting principles. If the omitted disclosures were included in the financial statements, they might 
influence the user's conclusions about the Library's assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and expenses. 
Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed about such 
matters. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 

P9 

~ --- -~--------------~---



• 

• 

• 

Institution 

Des Plaines Public Library 

Treasurer's Report as of July 31, 2010 

201-1101000 - Petty Cash 

201-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 
202-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 

201-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 
202-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 
707-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 

201-1102009 - Cash Payroll #8100292278 

201-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 
202-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

201-1102028 - Cash Library Donations 

201-1102073-Cash IL- Epay #151600222104 

201-1102076 -IL Funds - Library # 151600221288 
202-1102076 -IL Funds - Library 

201-1102078 - Cash IL - Epay Library 

201-1102079 - IL Funds - 151600222591 

201-1104006 - Investments - Certificates of Deposit 

Total Invested 

Invested 

500.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

1,959.67 
0.00 
0.00 

1 ,959.67 

1 ,560.19 
1,560.19 

109,100,98 
(48,248,24) 
60,852,74 

15,774,26 
15,774.26 

4,115.03 

102,815.69 
223,386,09 
326,201.78 

10,077.22 

1,732,303.83 

102,081.40 

2,255,426,12 

P10 



m 
(..,) 

\11 
f,> 

• 

• 

• 

Auguslll,2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of July 31,2010 

Library Fund 

Alli!! 

1101000 - Petty Cash 

1102007 - Cash Payroll #1944652940 

1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 

1102009 - Cash Payroll #8100292278 

1102012 - Cash IL Fund #007139119668 

1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

1102028 - Cash Library Donations 

1102073 - Cash IL - Epay 151600008073 

1102076 -IL Funds - Library 

1102078 - Cash IL - Epay Library 

1102079 -IL Funds-

1104006 -Investments - Certificates of Deposit 
1118000 - Receivable - Property Taxes 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2401000 - Accounts Payable 
2401001 - Audit Accounts Payable 
2401010 - Federal W/H Payable 
2401020 - F.lCA WIH Payable 
2401030 - State W/H Payable 
2410020 - Escrow Deposits 

2430010 - Due To - Corporate General 
2430080 - Due To - Employee Retirement Trust 
2430099 - Due To Other Funds 
2430707 - Due to Library Camp Abs 
2450030 - Accrued Liability -Comp Absence 
2450035 - Accrued ST-L T Comp Absence 

2450040 - Accrued Payroll 
2450070 - Accrued FICA Withholding 
2450080 - Accrued IMRF Pension 
2450082 - RHS IMRF 
2470000 - Deferred Revenue - Property Tax 
2470100 - Library Deferred Revenue 
2471000 - Deferred Revenue - Other 
2490010 - Compensated Absences Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Beginning 

Balance 

500,00 

(311,663,05) 

(342,922.29) 

156,347.75 

12.96 

92,097.81 

15,770.44 

2,425.83 

369,897.95 

9,368.79 

2,247,440.73 

101,998.07 

6,599.703.00 

8,940,977.99 

194,401.75 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

25,438.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

6,442,163.00 
8,058.00 

0.00 
0.00 

6,670.060.75 

1.484.291.17 

8,154,351.92 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
1 

P11 

M,T,D, Ending 

Changes Balance 

0,00 500,00 

311,663,05 0.00 

344,881.96 1,959.67 

(154,787.56) 1,560,19 

(12.96) 0.00 

17,003.17 109,100.98 

3.82 15,774.26 

1,689.20 4,115.03 

(267,082.26) 102,815.69 

708.43 10,077.22 

(515,136.90) 1,732,303.83 

83.33 102,081.40 

0.00 6,599,703.00 

(260,986.72) 8,679,991.27 

3,014.93 197,416.68 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

206,336.33 206,336.33 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 25,438.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 6,442,163.00 
0.00 8,058.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

209.351.26 6.879.412.01 

0.00 1.484.291.17 

209,351.26 8,363,703.18 



<D 
<'" e" ,-' 

• 

• 

• 

August 11, 2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of July 31, 2010 

Library Fund 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

Capital Projects Fund 

Assets 

1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

1102076 -IL Funds - Library 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2401001 - Audit Accounts Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

Compensated Absences Fund 

Assets 

1102012 - Cash IL Fund #007139119668 

1120201 - Due From Library 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2450035 - Accrued ST -L T Camp Absence 
2490010 - Compensated Absences Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

Beginning 

Balance 

786,626.07 

(48,248.24) 

223,386.09 

175,137.85 

16,531.10 
16,531.10 

206.851.74 

, 
223,382.84 

(48,244.99) 

206,336.00 

0.00 

206,336.00 

124,380.00 
81,956.00 

206,336.00 

0.00 

206,336.00 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
2 

0.00 

P12 

M.T.D. Ending 

Changes Balance 

(470,337.98l 316,288.09 

0.00 (48,248.24) 

0.00 223,386.09 

0.00 175,137.85 

0.00 16,531.10 
0.00 16,531.10 

0.00 206,851.74 

0.00 223,382.84 

0.00 (48,244.99) 

(206,336.00) 0.00 
206,336.00 206,336.00 

0.00 206.336.00 

0.00 124,380.00 
0.00 81,956.00 
0.00 206,336.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 206,336.00 

0.00 0.00 



CD 
(,;J 

In 
(,;J 

• 

• 

• 

Augusl II, 2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of July 31,2010 

Beginning 
Balance 

Fixed Assets Fund 

Assets 

1203000 - Fixed Assets - Improvements 235,874.00 

1204201 - Fixed Assets - Library ~Quipment 869,440.00 

1204300 - Fixed Assets - Vehicles 161,448.00 

1209900 - Fixed Assets - Accumulated Depreciation (372,709.001 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Net Capital Assets 

Excess Revenues OVer Expenses 

894,053.00 

0.00 

894,053.00 
894,053.00 

894,053.00 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
3 

0.00 

P13 

M.T.D. Ending 
Changes Balance 

0.00 235,874.00 

0.00 869,440.00 
0.00 161,448.00 

0.00 (372,709.001 
0.00 894.053.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 894,053.00 
0.00 894,053.00 

0.00 894,053.00 

0.00 0.00 



(D 
,,J 

<n August 11, 2010 P14 .,. 
Des Plaines Public Library 

Revenue Report as of July 31, 2010 

• Received Received Budgeted Uncollected Percentage 
this Month this Vea, Receipts Receipts Collected 

Library Fund 

!ill! 

4810019· property Taxes 2002 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810020· property Taxes 2003 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810021 • Property Taxes 2004 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810022· property Taxes 2005 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810023· property Taxes 2006 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4810024· property Taxes 2007 (34,382.30) (61,671.93) 0.00 61,671.93 0.00 
4810025· Property Taxes 2008 20,943.11 271,310.84 50,000.00 (221,310.64) 542.62 

4810026· property Taxes 2009 207,888.48 3,548,232.15 6,309,802.00 2,761,569.85 56.23 
194,449.29 3,757,871.06 6,359,802.00 2,601,930.94 59.09 

Interoovemmental 

4810800· Personal Property Replacement Tax 0.00 23,247.00 92,988.00 69,741.00 25.00 

4822040 • State Grant· Pe, Capita 0.00 0.00 57,700.00 57,700.00 0.00 

4822095 • State Grant· Librai)' 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 23,247.00 150,688.00 127,441.00 15.43 

.Flnes & Fees 

4850101 • Librai)' Fees 731.10 2,882.88 0.00 (2,882.88) 0.00 

4850102 • Librai)' Fines 6,070.79 70,286.08 125,000.00 54,713.92 56.23 

4850103· Librai)' Fines I Credit Can:! 1,462.78 8,283.02 0.00 (8,283.02) 0.00 

4850201 • Copying Fee 2,041.10 16,557.80 30,000.00 13,442.20 55.19 
4850202 • Damaged Materials 63.93 295.75 0.00 (295.75) 0.00 

4850203· Lost Materials 502.98 4,237.72 0.00 (4,237.72) 0.00 

4850205 • Bags 74.00 538.00 0.00 (538.00) 0.00 

4850207 • Non·Res Can:!s 72.50 1,140.00 0.00 (t,140.00l 0.00 
11,019.18 104,221.25 155,000.00 50,778.75 67.24 

Special Programs & Events 

4850215· Special Programs & Events 0.00 664.93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 

0.00 664.93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 

Other Revenue 

4890010· interest income 490.94 2,904.31 5,000.00 2,095.69 58.09 

4890050 • Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 

4899900 • Miscellaneous Revenue 906.34 13,061.25 17,500.00 4,438.75 74.64 

4899920 • Librai)' Donations 0.00 182.59 10,000.00 9,817.41 1.83 

1,397.28 16,148.15 33,500.00 17,351.85 48.20 

Total Library Fund 206,865.75 3,902,152.39 6,703,990.00 2,801,837.61 58.21 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 



August 11, 2010 

• 
Capital Projects Fund 

Other Revenue 

4890010- Interest Ineome 

Total Capital Projects Fund 

Total of All Funds 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Revenue Report as of July 31,2010 

Received 

this Month 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

206,865.75 

Received 

this Year 

3.25 

3.25 

3.25 

3,902,155.64 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 

2 

P15 

Budgeted Uncollected Percentage 

Receipts Receipts Collected 

5,000.00 4,996.75 0.07 
5,000.00 4,996.75 0.07 

305,000.00 304,996.75 0.00 

7,008,990.00 3,106,834.36 55.67 



(;:) 
(,N ,,, 

August II, 2010 P16 
(1) 

Des Plaines Public Library 

• Expense Report as of July 31, 2010 

M.T.D. V.T.D Budgeted Budgeted Prcl 
Expended Expended Amount Remain. Expend. 

Library Fund 

Salaries 
5910100 - Salaries 404,366.97 1,426,067.30 2,316,022.00 691,934.70 61.52 
5910200 - Temporary Wages 0.00 264,401.61 769,113.00 504,711.19 36.04 
5910400 - Non - Supervisory Overtime 0.00 216.35 0.00 (216.35) 0.00 
5910500 - Vacation Pay 0.00 56,647.46 0.00 (56,647.46) 0.00 
5910600 - Sick Pay 2,774.22 24,091.50 0.00 (24,091.50) 0.00 
5910700 - Holiday Pay 0.00 21,303.39 0.00 (21,303.39) 0.00 
5910900 - Act/Out of Class/Premium (2,774.22) 2,692.30 0.00 (2,692.30) 0.00 
5910950 - Excess Sick Hours Pay Out 0.00 2,698.73 3,500.00 601.27 62.82 
5910970 - Compensated Absences 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

404,366.97 1.620,538.64 3.110,635.00 1 ,290.096.16 56.53 

Benefits 
5918010 - Unemployment Compensation 2,493.00 2,493.00 4,966.00 2,493.00 50.00 
5916020 - Employer Contribution - FICA 27,757.62 132,734.69 237,314.00 104,579.31 55.93 
5916021 - Employer Contribution -IMRF 33,129.71 166,331.51 297,614.00 131,462.49 55.65 
5916030 - EAP Program 0.00 0.00 662.00 662.00 0.00 
5918040 - Ufe tnsurance Premiums 0.00 2,607.80 6,576.00 3,966.20 39.66 
5916050 - PPO Insurance Premiums 0.00 126,019.43 389,041.00 261,021.57 32.91 
5918051 - HMO Insurance Premiums 0.00 40,470.96 111,979.00 71,506.04 36.14 
5918055 - Dental Insurance Premiums 304.00 11,159.05 31,505.00 20,345.95 35.42 

• 5918070 - Workers Compensation 0.00 5,264.32 9,500.00 4,235.66 55.41 
5916065 - RHS Plan Payout 0.00 5.214.26 10,000.00 4,765.74 52.14 

63684 53 494 295 02 1 099397 DO 605101 98 44 96 

Contractual Services 
5920100 - Legal Fees 190.40 2,213.69 15,000.00 12,766.11 14.76 
5920105 - Costs of Litigation 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 
5920110 - Professional Services 27,647.63 190,816.97 405,000.00 214,183.03 47.12 
5920120 - Communication Services 3,252.23 18,830.81 28,460.00 9,629.19 66.17 
5920140 - Data Processing Services 4,334.91 40,103.25 100,800.00 60,696.75 39.76 
5920202 - Conferences 0.00 579.25 0.00 (579.25) 0.00 
5920204 - Training 445.00 1,387.00 2,600.00 1,213.00 53.35 
5920205 - Tuition Reimbursements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920206 - Seminars 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920210 -In Service Training 0.00 3,208.31 0.00 (3,208.31) 0.00 
5920220 - Membership Dues 385.00 2,864.00 6,500.00 3,616.00 44.37 
5920225 - Ucensingmtles 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 
5920230 - Publication of Notices 0.00 971.20 1,000.00 28.80 97.12 
5920850 - Subsidy - 1994 E.R.P Trans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920900 - Property/Liability Contributions 12,434.50 12,434.50 24,869.00 12,434.50 50.00 
5930010 - R&M Equipment 4,829.75 74,443.80 110,062.00 35.618.20 67.64 
5930020 • R&M Buildings & Structures 2,255.00 38,902.32 116,235.00 77,332.68 33.47 
5930030 - R&M Vehicles 61.65 3.182.70 14,300.00 10,517.30 26.45 
5930195 - Book Binding & Repair 0.00 215.10 1,000.00 784.90 21.51 
5930210· Rental of Equipment 164.00 1,148.00 26,500.00 25,352.00 4.33 
5930320 - Cleaning/Custodial Services 8,053.00 74,189.00 96,700.00 22,511.00 76.72 
5930490 - Refuse Contract 465.38 4.273.72 5,500.00 1,226.28 77.70 
5960040 . Employee Physicals 0.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 
5960065 . Bank Fees 55.90 297.36 0.00 (297.36) 0.00 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 
1 



• 
August tl, 2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Expense Report as of July 31,2010 

M.T.D. 

Expended 

5960070 - Travel Expense 303.93 
5960210 - Special Event Programming t,983.05 
5960990 - Misc. Contractual Services 6,112.70 

73,174.03 

Commodities 
5970100 - Office Supplies 3,614.51 
5970110 - Meals 72.00 
5970115 - Supplies - OepUOther 0.00 
5970170 - Janitorial 1,156.32 
5970260 - Postage & Parcet 1,061.02 
5970270 - Prinitng -Reproduction-Binding 0.00 
5970330 - Supplies - Vehicles RIM 0.00 
5970500 - Purchase of Water 0.00 
5970600 - Books 52,257.93 
5970610 - Audio Materials 5,952.11 
5970620 - Subscriptions & Books 9,998.66 
5970630 - Visual Materials 12,584.69 
5970640 - Automated Reference Materials 17,856.00 
5970810 - Natural Gas 0.00 
5970820 - Electricity 0.00 
5970840 - Diesel 163.90 

V.T.D 

Expended 

551.93 
17,686.89 
59,639.59 

548,559.59 

67,483.33 
819.34 

0.00 
13,694.79 
11,707.06 

1,271.50 
0.00 

2,761.49 
279,233.13 
42,387.74 
19,955.37 
66,011.39 
95,778.09 
21,535.98 

0.00 
1,194.21 

Budgeted 

Amount 

500.00 
31,000.00 
99,375.00 

1,089.251.00 

116,300.00 
2,800.00 

0.00 
20,600.00 
13,300.00 
5,000.00 

0.00 
8,000.00 

489,800.00 
84,600.00 
78,800.00 
96,250.00 

141,000.00 
30,000.00 

500.00 
4,000.00 

• 5970850 - Gasoline 35.49 242.36 2,000.00 
5970900 - Equipment < $5,000 0.00 2,688.87 5,500.00 

104.752.63 626,764.65 1 ,098,450.00 

Capital Expenditures 
5980300 - Improvements 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 
5980400 - Equipment 24,865.00 66,365.64 33,000.00 
5980410 - Computer Hardware 76.21 1,092.69 6,750.00 
5980420 - Computer Software 10,029.18 16,480.71 32,000.00 
5980600 - Furniture & Fixtures 43.76 5,617.41 20,500.00 

35,014.15 89,556.45 100,250.00 

Other Funding Activities 
5990935 - Trans to DIS - 2002A Bond 6,149.75 6,149.75 24,598.00 
5990940 - Trans to Ubrary Capilal Proj. Fund 0.00 0.00 300,000.00 
5990955 - Trans to DIS - 2003B Bond 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5993000 - Contingency Reserve (9,958.33) 0.00 75,000.00 

(3,808.58) 6,149.75 399,598.00 

Budgeted 

Remain. 

(51.93) 
13,313.11 
39,735.41 

540,691.41 

48,816.67 
1,980.66 

0.00 
6,905.21 
t,592.94 
3,728.50 

0.00 
5,238.51 

210,566.87 
42,212.26 
58,844.63 
30,238.61 
45,221.91 

8,464.02 
500.00 

2,805.79 
1,757.84 
2,811.13 

471,685.35 

8,000.00 
(33,365.64) 

5,657.31 
15,519.29 
t4,882.59 
10,693.55 

18,448.25 
300,000.00 

0.00 
75000.00 

393,44B.25 

Total Library Fund Expenditures 677,203.73 3,585,864.30 6,897,581.00 3,311,716.70 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 
2 

Prcl 

Expend. 

110.39 
57.05 
60.01 
50.36 

58.03 
29.26 
0.00 

66.48 
88.02 
25.43 
0.00 

34.52 
57.01 
50.10 
25.32 
68.58 
67.93 
71.79 

0.00 
29.86 
12.12 
48.89 
57.06 

0.00 
201.11 

16.19 
51.50 
27.40 
89.33 

25.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
1.54 

51.99 

P17 



• 

• 

• 

August II, 2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Expense Report as of July 31, 2010 

Capital Projects Fund 

Contractual Services 
5920110 - Professional Servioes 

Capital Expenditures 
5980300 - Improvements 
5980400 - Equipment 
59804 I 0 - Computer Hardware 

Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures 

Total of All Fund. 

M.T.D. 

Expended 

0.00 
000 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
opp 

0.00 

677,203.73 

V.T.D 

Expended 

0.00 
000 

0.00 
16,719.25 
31,528.99 
4824824 

48,248.24 

3,634,112.54 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
3 

Budgeted 

Amount 

15,000.00 
15 OOp 00 

92,000.00 
24,000.00 
76,100.00 

192100 pp 

207,100.00 

7,104,681.00 

Budgeted 

Remain. 

15.000.00 
15 pOO 00 

92,000.00 
7,280.75 

44,571.01 
143851 76 

158,851.76 

3,470,568.46 

Prct 

Expend. 

0.00 
ppp 

0.00 
69.66 
41.43 
2512 

23.30 

51.15 

P18 



(!) 
,<> 
", All checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P19 ,0 

July 2010 Check Register Page 1 

• Check Number Check Date Pane Amount 

Checks 
10500 08/17/10 3M 1,075.00 
10501 08117110 A & ) SEWER SERVICE 185.00 
10502 08/17110 ACCUITY INC 437.00 
10503 08117/10 ALEXIAN BROTIlERS CORP HEALTH SERV 189.00 
10504 08/17/10 ANDERSON LOCK CO L m 34.93 
10505 08117110 AudioGo 292.21 
10506 08/17/10 BAKER & TAYLOR 24,946.34 
10507 08117110 BAKER & TAYLOR 13,046.93 
10508 08/17110 BANC OF AMERICA LEASING 2,005.00 
10509 08117110 BANKCARD SERVICES 4,384.11 
10510 08117/10 BERNAN 60.00 
10511 08/17110 BILL'S AUTO & TRUCK REPAIR 61.65 
10512 08117110 BLR 720.08 
10513 08117110 BUSINESS MACHINE AGENTS INC 230.48 
10514 08/17/10 C D W GOVERNMENT INCORPORATED 10,029.18 
10515 08117/10 CITY OF DES PLAINES, PUBLIC WORKS 199.39 
10516 08/17110 COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC 10,123.00 
10517 08117/10 COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 4,334.91 
10518 08/17/10 COURTNEY O'KEEFE 303.93 
10519 08/17110 D&B 3,298.00 
10520 08/17/10 D & Z HOUSE OF BOOKS INCORPORATED 28.46 
10521 08117110 EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SVC 1,977.00 
10522 08/17110 FILM IDEAS, INC. 540.00 
10523 08117/10 GALE 1,681.97 
10524 08/17110 GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUTS 94.25 
10525 08117110 GLENSIDE PUBLIC LIBRARY DIST. 22.50 

• 10526 08117/10 GRAINGER 604.32 
10527 08117/10 INFO USA MARKETING, INC. 14,760.00 
10528 08/17110 ISLMA 20.00 
10529 08117/10 Jll.L CATALDO 300.00 
10530 08/17110 KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, L m. 190.40 
10531 08/17/10 MARSHALL CAVENDISH CORPORATION 224.55 
10532 08/17/10 MERGENT INCORPORATED 1,275.00 
10533 08117110 MICHAEL CLOUD 250.00 
10534 08/17/10 MIDWEST TAPE 6,395.06 
10535 08117/10 MIDWEST TAPE 6,573.68 
10536 08/17/10 MIDWEST TAPE 4,950.46 
10537 08/17110 MISSOURI LIBRARY NETWORK CORP 681.00 
10538 08/17/10 MORNINGSTAR INCORPORATED 900.00 
10539 08117110 MOVIE LICENSING USA 100.00 
10540 08117110 NATIONAL REGISTER PUBLISHING CO. 370.70 
10541 08117110 NORMAN ELECTIUCAL CONSTRUCTION CO 720.00 
10542 08/17110 OFFICE DEPOT 978.19 
10543 08117/10 OUTSOURCESOLUTIONSGROUP 27,446.60 
10544 08117/10 P.J. KENEDY & SONS 357.60 
10545 08/17/10 PITNEY BOWES 1,216.02 
10546 08/17/10 PRESIDENTS & THEIR FIRST LADIES 325.00 
10547 08117110 RANDOM HOUSE INCORPORATED 3,125.20 
10548 08117110 RCYRBA 10.00 
10549 08/17/10 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 5,681.99 
10550 08/17110 ROTARY CLUB OF DES PLAINES 240.00 
10551 08117/10 RUNGE PAPER COMPANY, INC. 552.00 
10552 08/17/10 RUSSIAN PUBLISHING HOUSE L TO 105.72 
10553 08/17/10 SAGE PUBLICA TIONS,INC. 169.82 
10554 08/17/10 SOMETHING FISHY INC 97.97 
10555 08117110 TELEVEND SERVICES INCORPORATED 243.35 
10556 08117/10 THOMAS BULGRIN 400.00 • 10557 08117110 TODA Y'S BUSINESS SOLUTIONS INC 24,865.00 
10558 08117110 UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 810.56 
10559 08117/10 V AHE GHAZARlAN 85.00 
10560 08/17/10 WAREHOUSE DIRECT 1,135.57 



(~) 
~J.) 

(Yl 
All ctleckbooks Des Plaines Public I.ibrary DESPLANSUB P20 

(!) 

July 2010 Check Register Page 2 

• Cbeck Number Check Date Pavee Amount 

10561 08117/10 WEST GROUP 50.00 
10562 08/17/10 WORLD TRADE PRESS 420.00 
10563 08117/10 DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP 76.13 
10564 08117/10 IMAGING OFFlCE SYSTEMS, INC. 450.00 
10565 08117110 INSIGHT MARKETING 525.00 
10566 08117110 OFFICEMAX INC. 1,040.00 
10567 08117110 PCNATION 76.21 
10568 08117110 PADDOCK PUBLICATIONS,INC. 127.00 
10569 08117/10 PROQUEST LLC 6,801.66 
10570 08/17/10 UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 26.22 
10571 08117110 VALUE LINE PUBLISHING INCORPORATED 898.00 
10572 08117/10 WASTE MANAGEMENT 127.89 
10573 08117110 WASTE MANAGEMENT 337.49 
50056 07/31110 NEXTEL 941.72 
50057 07/31110 CALL ONE 455.15 
50058 07/31110 AT&T 221.85 
50059 07/31110 AT&T 98.35 
50060 07/31110 AT&T 43.15 
50061 07/31110 McLEOD USA 299.39 
50062 07/31110 VERIZON WIRELESS 127.02 
50063 07/31110 . COMCAST CABLE 220.97 
50064 07/31110 LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS, LLC. 505.60 
50065 07/31110 COMCAST CABLE 220.97 
50066 07/31110 SPRINT 19.21 
50067 07/31/10 SPRINT 16.36 
50068 07/31110 WOW! lNTERENT CABLE 82.49 
50069 07/31110 PRO DATA 214.50 

• 50070 07/31110 PRO DATA 203.25 
50071 07/31110 PRO DATA 346.55 
50072 07/31110 IMRF 46,645.93 

Total checks 91 Total 248,079.14 

• 



(!) 

(Ai 

(1) 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P21 ,., 
July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 1 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

AT&T 50058 07/31110 221.85 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 221.85 

AT&T 50059 07/31110 98.35 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 98.35 

AT&T 50060 07/31110 43.15 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 43.15 

CALL ONE 50057 07/31110 455.15 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 455.15 

COMCAST CABLE 50063 07/31110 220.97 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 220.97 

COMCAST CABLE 50065 07/31110 220.97 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 220.97 

[MRF 50072 07/31110 46,645.93 
AttonntNo. Description Amount 
201·59[0100 07/2010 EE [MRF Contrib 13,516.22 
201·5918021 07/20 I 0 ER IMRF Contrib 33,129.71 

• LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS, LLC. 50064 07/31/10 505.60 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 505.60 

McLEOD USA 50061 07/31110 299.39 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 299.39 

NEXTEL 50056 07131110 941.72 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 941.72 

PRO DATA 50069 07131110 214.50 
Account No. Description Amount 
20[·5920110 7/2 Payroll Process Fee 214.50 

PRO DATA 50070 07/31110 203.25 
Account No. Description Amount 
20[·5920110 7/16 Pa)TOII Process Fee 203.25 

PRO DATA 50071 07/31110 346.55 
Account No. Description Amount 
20[·5920110 7/30 Payroll Process Fee 346.55 

SPRlNT 50066 07/31110 19.21 
Account No. Description Amount 
20[·5920120 ACH 19.21 

SPRlNT 50067 07/31/10 16.36 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920120 ACH 16.36 

VERIZON W[RELESS 50062 07/31110 127.02 
Account No. Description Amount 



(P 
~/,) 

(j) All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P22 
~") 

July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 2 

• Vendor Name Cbk. No. CbeckDate Amount 

201-5920120 ACH 127.02 

WOW! lNTERENT CABLE 50068 07/31110 82.49 
Account No. Destription Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 82.49 

Subtotal 50,662.46 

3M 10500 08/17/10 1,075.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # XB 14053 1,075.00 

A & J SEWER SERVICE 10501 08/17/10 185.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoice # ] 6959 185.00 

ACCUITY INC 10502 08/17/10 437.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2328395 437.00 

ALEXIAN BROTHERS CORP HEALTH SER' 10503 081l71l0 189.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 invoice # 371032 189.00 

ANDERSON LOCK CO L TO 10504 08117/10 34.93 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 invoice # 0619700 34.93 

• AudioGo 10505 08l171l0 292.21 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970610 invoice # 396556 69.12 
201-5970610 invoice # 396293 178.13 
201-5970610 invoice # 395073 44.96 

BAKER & TAYLOR 10506 08117/10 24,946.34 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 invoice #2024759908 26.14 
201-5960990 invoice #2024688732 28.75 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024763712 11.l4 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024758790 0.47 
201-5960990 invoice #2024772654 42.93 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024777892 8.93 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024775779 5.82 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024785364 4.85 
201-5960990 invoice #2024785075 7.04 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024788878 2.43 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024789046 1.41 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024796960 4.32 
201-5960990 invoice #2024802533 3.29 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024800737 8.55 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024800764 1.91 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024800729 2.38 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024808092 1.41 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024812765 6.93 
201-5960990 invoice #2024812025 21.39 
201-5960990 invoice #2024802964 61.02 
201-5960990 Invoice #20248J2792 7.66 

• 201-5960990 invoice #202481188 5.47 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024813699 68.46 
201-5960990 invoice #2024820362 7.84 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024841859 0.00 
201-5960990 invoice #2024821342 27.16 



(~ 

", 
(y) All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P23 
c.~<) 

July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 3 

• Vendor Name Cbk. No. Cbeck Date Amount 

201-5960990 Invoice #2024829640 3.94 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024825706 1.58 
201-5960990 Invoice #5010679476 7.36 
201-5960990 Invoice #5010736245 11.22 
201-5960990 Invoice #5010764418 6.72 
201-5960990 Invoice #5010791780 8.00 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024706126 11.46 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024706090 1.41 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024706259 3.68 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024706121 6.07 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024704413 4.31 
201-5960990 Invoice #20247 I 0080 9.87 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024820540 8.96 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024823896 7.64 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024829632 1.24 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024823796 4.96 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024823972 1.91 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024829622 1.12 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024829651 0.64 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024829635 4.57 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024830104 18.34 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024830922 22.57 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024836782 17.22 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024846686 2.24 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024849622 25.04 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024846710 4.96 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024838755 30.21 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024841659 0.96 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 2024837747 46.61 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024706189 12.80 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024704373 23.01 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024704627 6.45 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024722791 3.50 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024733953 3.85 
201-5960990 Invoice #20247 I 842 I 4.41 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024728305 13.55 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024726233 32.27 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024718432 75.10 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024728584 0.94 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024728546 26.60 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024734230 4.70 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024734182 2.39 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024738213 63.65 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024738218 2.82 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024742063 45.16 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024747079 0.97 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024585309 19.97 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024752267 2.23 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024739090 18.34 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024750219 12.78 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024750243 52.87 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024758881 0.94 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024758913 2.38 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024758814 6.34 
201-5960990 Invoice #2024758597 8.47 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024763712 118.51 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024758790 4.18 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024772654 636.12 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024777892 99.61 • 201-5970600 Invoice #2024775779 74.62 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024785364 44.97 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024785075 127.81 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024788878 27.97 



m 
~ .. ) 
(y> All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P24 
-"- July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 4 

• Vendor Name ChI<. No_ Check Date Amount 

201-5970600 Invoice #2024789046 45.19 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024796960 68.11 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024802533 51.20 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024800737 229.21 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024800764 30.61 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024800729 28.78 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024808092 45.19 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024812765 22.66 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024812025 197.23 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024802963 1,454.86 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024812792 147.60 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024821187 115.62 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024813698 2,614.22 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024820362 102.68 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024841859 14.76 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024821342 409.58 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024829640 172.33 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024825706 55.24 
201-5970600 Invoice #5010679476 383.37 
201-5970600 Invoice #5010736245 1,129.09 
201-5970600 Invoice #5010764418 1,173.03 
201-5970600 Invoice #5010791780 774.94 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024706126 176.28 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024706090 9.54 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024706259 59.12 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024706121 64.62 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024704413 149.53 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024710080 176.97 

• 201-5970600 Invoice #2024706189 135.91 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024820540 103.94 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024823896 64.46 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024829632 16.44 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024823796 59.01 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024823972 28.20 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024829622 9.65 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024829651 21.95 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024829635 117.88 
201-5970600 Invoice #5010921749 2,163.10 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024830103 1,031.62 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024836782 46.21 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024846686 30.08 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024838754 1,064.24 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024846710 59.01 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024830921 679.63 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024841659 12.54 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024837747 540.81 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024704373 194.15 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024704627 101.29 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024722791 71.51 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024733953 57.81 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024718421 46.81 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024728305 146.70 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024726233 379.93 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024718432 749.27 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024728584 4.76 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024728546 340.34 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024734230 57.91 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024734182 86.24 

• 201-5970600 Invoice #2024738213 909.47 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024738218 58.73 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024742063 567.81 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024747079 12.05 
201-5970600 Invoice #2024770419 640.79 



---

(2) 
<,I 
(1) 

All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P25 v' 
July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 5 

• Vendor Name Cbk.No. Check Date Amount 

201·5970600 Invoice #2024752267 21.53 
201·5970600 Invoice #2024739090 228.67 
201·5970600 Invoice #2024750219 112.80 
201·5970600 Invoice #2024750243 755.85 
201·5970600 Invoice #2024758881 20.88 
201·5970600 Invoice #2024758913 70.83 
201·5970600 Invoice #2024758814 74.13 
201·5970600 Invoice #2024758597 112.94 
201·5970600 Invoice #2024759907 814.11 

BAKER & TAYLOR 10507 08117110 13,046.93 
Account 1\'0. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024852200 0.32 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024856734 4.48 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024844585 10.56 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024844572 11.88 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024847861 2.88 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024853392 29.65 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024865724 1.41 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024856712 5.55 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024852339 4.92 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024716221 10.62 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024856207 17.09 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024868699 0.47 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024865994 14.09 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024867064 22.87 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024870194 2.24 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024870413 10.40 

• 201·5960990 Invoice # 2024866081 4.48 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024870321 5.69 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024861932 30.36 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024876117 2.48 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024880598 0.79 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2021876648 4.48 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024868642 3.76 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024884628 4.49 
201·5960990 Invoice # 5010944356 16.00 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024880582 0.64 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024870404 55.83 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024880078 16.23 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024884267 27.81 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024737132 26.55 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024730422 5.31 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024884866 2.48 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024888665 7.95 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024888677 6.73 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024887771 17.92 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024891361 3.72 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024893103 10.08 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024888701 0.96 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024889973 8.70 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024888664 9.69 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024899533 '2.33 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024903698 1.09 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024899473 0.94 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024893277 8.00 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024899530 13.26 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024899496 4.48 

• 201·5960990 Invoice # 2024903704 0.47 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024899231 5.60 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024906723 4.96 
201·5960990 Invoice # 201·5960990 27.99 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024852276 1.12 



CD ,,,I 
(1) 

All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPIJ'INSLIB P26 (11 
July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 6 

• Vendor Name Cbk. No. Cbeck Date Amount 

201-5960990 Invoice # 2024852126 1.12 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024861041 1.59 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024857593 31.93 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024844610 69.90 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024907447 785.79 
201-5970600 Invoice # 0000135739 111.77 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024846538 66.74 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024852200 5.97 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024856734 54.23 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024844585 112.80 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024844572 228.45 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024849621 948.24 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024865724 31.33 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024856712 66.28 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024852339 19.10 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024716221 42.60 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024856207 224.68 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024868699 4.18 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024865994 331.49 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024867063 701.63 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024870194 30.04 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024870413 568.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024866081 61.22 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024870321 77.96 
201-5910600 Invoice # 2024861931 609.03 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024876117 30.10 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024880598 10.53 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2021876648 50.46 

• 201-5970600 Invoice # 2024868642 54.97 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024884627 106.60 
201-5970600 Invoice # 5010944356 1,230.65 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024880582 30.13 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024870404 105.94 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024880078 172.97 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024884266 822.63 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024737132 80.29 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024730422 14.32 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024884866 29.51 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024888665 160.20 
201-5910600 Invoice # 2024888677 71.56 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024887771 243.21 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024891361 39.15 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024893103 132.75 
201-5910600 Invoice # 2024888701 31.33 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024889972 246.13 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024888664 27.49 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024899533 28.36 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024903698 14.19 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024899473 8.96 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024893277 108.48 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024899530 117.74 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024899496 51.97 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024903704 13.05 
201-5970600 Invoice # 202489923 I 57.11 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024906723 59.01 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024853391 873.74 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024852276 9.65 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024852126 11.30 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024861041 25.24 • 201-5970600 Invoice # 2024847860 93.18 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024844610 887.70 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024857592 894.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # VI8167640 11.01 



m 
~J) 

<1> All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P27 
',J 

July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 7 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Che<k Date Amount 
201·5970630 Invoice # 125143510 11.02 
201·5970630 Invoice # 124971720 13.22 
201-5970630 Invoice # 124580900 219.53 
201·5970630 Invoice # 124580910 11.01 
201·5970630 Invoice # 115149280 91.95 
201·5970630 Invoice # 2024846538 4.16 

BANC OF AMERICA LEASING 10508 08117110 2,005.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930010 Invoice # 011583197 2,005.00 

BANKCARD SERVICES 10509 08117/10 4,384.11 
Account No. Destriptioo Amount 
201·5920204 445.00 
201·5920220 115.00 
201·5960210 858.05 
201·5960990 227.88 
201·5970100 1,014.58 
201·5970110 72.00 
201·5970260 9.00 
201·5970600 181.95 
201·5970620 1,290.00 
201·5970630 126.89 
201·5980600 43.76 

BERNAN 10510 08117110 60.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Invoice # 110620991 60.00 

• BILL'S AUTO & TRUCK REPAIR 10511 08117/10 61.65 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930030 Invoice # 46241 61.65 

BLR 10512 08117110 720.08 
Account No. Desc:ription Amount 
201·5970600 Invoice # 1·992919 720.08 

BUSINESS MACHINE AGENTS INC 10513 08117/10 23Q.48 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930010 Invoice # IN 11651 230.48 

C D W GOVERNMENT INCORPORATED 10514 08/17/10 10,029.18 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5980420 Invoice # TIIK 1846 305.00 
201·5980420 Invoice # TDTl361 9,724.18 

CITY OF DES PLAINES, PUBLIC WORKS 10515 08/17/10 199.39 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970840 Diesel Fuel 163.90 
201·5970850 Unleaded Fuel 35.49 

COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC 10516 08117/10 10,123.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930020 Invoice # 1267269 2,070.00 
201·5930320 Invoice # 1266673 630.00 
201·5930320 Invoice # 1266949 7,423.00 

COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 10517 08/17/10 4,334.91 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920140 Invoice # CCS 712110 4,334.91 

COURTNEY O'KEEFE 10518 08/17/10 303.93 
Account No. Description Amount 

~----------------------------------------------------------------------------.------ ------~-



-----

(P 
(,.1;) 

(71 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P28 (» 

July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 8 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201·5960070 Mileage Reimbursement 303.93 

D&B 10519 08/17/10 3,298.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 invoice # 10003050-01 2,293.50 
201·5970600 invoice # 10003925-0 I 1,004.50 

D & Z HOUSE OF BOOKS INCORPORATED 10520 08117/10 28.46 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 invoice # 2010-1017402 28.46 

DEMCOEDUCATIONALCORP 10563 08117/10 76.13 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970100 invoice # 3930039 76.13 

EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SVC 10521 08117/10 1,977.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970620 invoice # 1298776 32.00 
201-5970620 Credit Memo # 1293148 ·50.00 
201-5970640 invoice # 1300841 1,995.00 

FILM IDEAS, INC. 10522 08/17/10 540.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970630 invoice # 50686 540.00 

GALE 10523 08117/10 1,681.97 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 invoice # 16856388 211.40 

• 201-5970600 invoice # 16861010 585.00 
201·5970600 invoice # 16852887 35.99 
201·5970600 invoice # 16874890 274.08 
201·5970600 Invoice # 16864856 575.50 

GARVEYSOFFICEPRODUTS 10524 08/17/10 94.25 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # PINV 150287 94.25 

GLENSIDE PUBLIC LIBRARY mST. 10525 08/17/10 22.50 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Book replacement cost 22.50 

GRAINGER 10526 08117/10 604.32 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970170 invoice # 9297726284 604.32 

IMAGING OFFICE SYSTEMS, INC. 10564 08117/10 450.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 invoice # SVCOOl198 450.00 

INFO USA MARKETING, INC. 10527 08117/10 14,760.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970640 Invoice # 10-90-038597 14,760.00 

INSIGHT MARKETING 10565 08/17110 525.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 IilYoice # 1752 525.00 

ISLMA 10528 08/17/10 20.00 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920220 20.00 

JILL CATALDO 10529 08/17/10 300.00 , 
Account No. Description Amount 

.1 



(;) 

t,).,> 
(Y) 

All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library w 
July 2010 Vendor Checks Report 

DES PLANS LIB P 2 9 
Page 9 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date 

201-5960210 Super-Couponig Worl<shop 300.00 

Amount 

KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LTD. 10530 08117/10 190.40 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920100 Matter ID 1657-001 190.40 

MARSHALL CAVENDISH CORPORA nON 1053l 08/17/10 224.55 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 839307 119.80 
201-5970600 Invoice # 834377 104.75 

MERGENT INCORPORATED 10532 08117/10 1,275.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 61062 1,275.00 

MICHAEL CLOUD 10533 08117110 250.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Special Board Meeting 125.00 
201-5960990 Board Meeting 125.00 

MIDWEST TAPE 10534 08117/10 6,395.06 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075273 11.45 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075269 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075268 10.20 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077657 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077659 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075267 9.20 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 6075271 14.40 
201-5960990 . Invoice # 6075276 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075275 38.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075272 13.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077653 13.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6081926 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6081919 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6081924 9.20 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075270 18.20 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077661 5.20 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077656 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077660 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077655 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077651 22.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077650 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075282 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075281 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075280 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075277 5.20 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075278 24.95 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075274 14.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075279 20.65 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095396 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095397 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095384 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 9095400 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095393 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095404 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095403 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095402 11.40 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6096255 2.25 • 201-5960990 Invoice # 6096254 IUS 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6096251 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6096252 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6096253 6.75 



(D 
~,I,} .. ~ 

All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P30 <p 
July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 10 

• Vendor NJlme Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201-5960990 Invoice # 6096250 9.40 
201-,960990 Invoice # 6085334 22.49 
201-,960990 Invoice # 6096249 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6096260 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6096259 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6096261 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6096262 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6096263 6.75 
201-,960990 Invoice # 6096258 11.25 
201-,960990 Invoice # 6096257 15.95 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6096256 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6085339 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6085338 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6085336 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6085335 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6085331 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6085330 6.95 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6085332 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6085337 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6085340 11.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6085329 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6085333 4.50 
201-;960990 Invoice # 6081929 11.45 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077654 20.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077658 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075266 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077652 4.50 
201-5960990 In,'oice # 6081928 2.25 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 6081930 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6081933 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6081927 15.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6081922 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095386 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095387 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095394 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095395 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095398 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095401 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095385 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095388 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095389 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095391 13.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6095392 11.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6081923 6.95 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6081925 2.25 
201·5970610 Invoice # 2254912 58.97 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6075273 194.92 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6075269 22.49 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6075268 67.46 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6077657 20.99 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6077659 22.49 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6075267 106.46 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6075271 128.19 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6075276 22.49 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6075275 317.08 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6075272 142.44 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6077653 76.44 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6081926 17.24 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6081919 18.74 • 201·5970630 Invoice # 6081924 52.46 
201·5970630 Credit Memo # 92134 ·7.00 
201·5970630 Credit Memo # 92136 ·98.96 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6048113 17.24 



(~) 

", 
<J All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P31 , ... 

July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 11 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Cbeck Date Amount 

201-5970630 Invoice # 6075270 333.65 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6077661 26.23 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6077656 60.72 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6077660 52.47 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6077655 .14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6077651 217.40 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6077650 83.97 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6075282 20.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6075281 108.71 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6075280 21.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6075277 56.22 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6075278 266.11 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6075274 158.92 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6075279 514.80 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095396 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095397 67.47 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6077649 37.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095399 22.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095384 59.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # 9095400 39.73 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095386 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095404 13.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095403 12.59 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095402 50.66 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095390 29.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096255 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096254 56.20 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096251 14.24 

• 201-5970630 Invoice # 6096252 19.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096253 33.72 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096250 59.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096248 74.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096249 7.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096260 7.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096259 33.73 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096261 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096262 54.72 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096263 40.47 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096258 140.18 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096257 134.17 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6096256 85.46 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6085339 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6085338 37.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6085336 86.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6085335 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6085331 44.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6085330 63.72 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6085332 22.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6085337 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6085340 78.69 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6085329 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6085333 37.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6081929 107.20 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6077654 105.66 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6077658 25.48 
201-5970630 In"oice # 6075266 19.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6077652 43.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6081928 26.99 

• 201-5970630 Invoice # 6081930 17.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6081933 20.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6081927 130A3 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6081922 40.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6081923 42.72 



(") 
f..J:) 

P32 ',.1 All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB ,,) 
Vendor Checks Report July 2010 Page 12 

• Vendor Name Cbk. No. Check Date Amount 

201-5970630 Invoice # 6095387 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095394 61.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095395 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095398 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 609540 I 20.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095385 20.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095388 86.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095389 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095391 124.44 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095392 40.45 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6095393 29.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6081925 14.99 

MIDWEST TAPE 10535 08117110 6,573.68 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice #6081932 11.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6081931 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice #6081920 5.20 
201-5960990 Invoice #6081921 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092270 41.80 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092274 18.50 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092263 13.50 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092261 11.85 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092267 30.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6089856 22.49 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092273 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092272 11.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092269 25.15 

• 201-5960990 Invoice #6086441 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086446 36.70 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086445 30.15 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086443 2.25 
201-5960990 Inyoice #6086442 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086448 20.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086449 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086462 77.70 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086454 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086455 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086453 13.70 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086447 18.70 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086444 4.70 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086456 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092264 20.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092266 14.00 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092262 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092257 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092268 11.95 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092256 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092265 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092260 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092259 13.15 
201-5960990 Invoice #6092258 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6080099 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice #6080 106 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice #6080107 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice #6080 I 08 9.20 
201-5960990 Invoice #608009, 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6080098 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6080105 18.74 • 201-5960990 Invoice #6080101 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6080095 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6080104 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6080096 11.25 



C!~ 
(,).) 

',.J All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P33 
(,1,) 

July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 13 

• VendorNllme Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201·5960990 Invoice #6080 102 11.25 
201·5960990 Invoice #6080103 32.60 
201·5960990 Invoice #6086439 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice #6086438 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice #6086440 2.45 
201·5960990 Invoice #6086452 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086451 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6086450 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice #6089864 11.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6089865 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6089868 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6089858 6.75 
201·;960990 Invoice #6089855 2.25 
201-;960990 Invoice #6089859 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice #6089860 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice #6089869 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6089863 11.25 
201-,960990 Invoice #6089870 11.25 
201-;960990 Invoice #6089862 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice #6089866 22.50 
201-;960990 Invoice #6089857 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice #6089861 4.50 
201-,960990 Invoice #6089867 11.25 
201·;970630 Invoice #6081932 57.70 
201·5970630 Invoice #6081931 20.24 
201-,970630 Invoice#6081920 48.73 
201-,970630 Invoice #6081921 74.21 
201-,970630 Invoice #6092270 279.56 

• 201-5970630 Invoice #6092274 101.17 
201-,970630 Invoice #6092263 72.69 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092261 73.45 
201-,970630 Invoice #6092267 183.62 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092271 44.99 
201-,970630 Invoice #6092273 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092272 74.20 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092269 382.33 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086441 31.48 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086446 253.32 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086445 161.1 I 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086443 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086442 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086448 142.40 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086449 41.22 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086462 405.91 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086454 20.99 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086455 73.47 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086453 90.69 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086447 173.92 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086444 129.70 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086456 55.46 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092264 163.41 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092266 50.19 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092262 41.22 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092257 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092268 92.94 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092256 7.49 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092265 89.96 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092260 52.49 
201-5970630 Invoice #6092259 83.95 • 201-5970630 Invoice #6092258 4.49 
201-5970630 Invoice #6080099 71.96 
201-5970630 Invoice #6080106 26.23 
201-5970630 Invoice #6080107 16.48 



q.) 
(...,) 

•• J All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P34 
~~ 

July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 14 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Ch«kDBte Amount 

201·5970630 Invoice #6080108 49.46 
201·5970630 Invoice #6080097 44.98 
201·5970630 Invoice #6080098 11.24 
201·5970630 Invoice #6080 I 00 82.48 
201-5970630 Invoice #6080101 20.99 
201-5970630 Invoice #6080095 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice #6080104 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice #6080096 118.45 
201-5970630 Invoice #6080102 242.91 
201-5970630 Invoice #6080103 212.10 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086439 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086438 22.49 
20[-5970630 Invoice #6086440 14.99 
201·5970630 Invoice #6086452 5.24 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086451 12.74 
201-5970630 Invoice #6086450 35.22 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089864 161.19 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089865 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089868 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089858 60.72 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089855 20.99 
201·5970630 Invoice #6089859 220.44 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089860 89.96 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089869 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089863 62.20 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089870 112.45 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089862 25.48 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089866 161.90 

• 201-5970630 Invoice #6089857 25.48 
201-5970630 Invoice #6089861 22.48 
201·5970630 Invoice #6089867 108.70 

MIDWEST TAPE 10536 08117/10 4,950.46 
Account No. Destription Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075284 40.15 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075283 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2238942 59.98 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6085343 5.70 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6085344 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6085342 2.85 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6085341 2.85 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6096267 11.40 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6096268 68.65 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6096266 8.55 
20[-5960990 Invoice # 6096265 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6096264 2.85 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6089872 8.55 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6089874 8.55 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2249435 39.99 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6089873 5.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6089871 8.55 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6086458 2.85 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6086457 3.10 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6086460 45.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6086459 2.85 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6086461 45.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6080 I 10 19.95 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6080109 19.95 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6080114 2.85 • 201·5960990 Invoice # 6080113 8.55 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6080112 5.70 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6080 III 22.80 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6092278 3.10 



G;) 
c./) 
-,J 

All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSUB P35 en 
July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 15 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201-5960990 Invoice # 6092282 17.10 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6092281 11.40 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6092276 8.55 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6092275 5.70 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6092280 74.35 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6092277 5.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6092279 32.35 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6081935 5.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6081936 8.55 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075285 58.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6075286 66.05 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077662 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6081934 2.85 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6077663 5.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6077664 22.80 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6075284 240.30 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6075283 17.24 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2238941 224.94 
201-5910610 Invoice # 2238940 76.98 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2249436 183.95 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6085343 20.98 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6085344 13.49 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6085342 12.59 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6085341 13.49 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2244117 59.98 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2244118 19.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2244116 89.98 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2254911 284.91 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6096267 41.21 • 201-5970610 Invoice # 6096268 313.26 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6096266 36.72 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6096265 10.49 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6096264 7.49 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6089872 39.42 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6089874 39.87 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2249437 114.97 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6089873 23.08 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6089871 36.72 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6086458 9.74 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6086457 17.24 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6086460 215.23 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6086459 11.24 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6086461 181.64 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6080110 54.68 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6080109 89.18 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6080114 10.49 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6080113 29.97 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6080112 20.98 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6080 III 72.67 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6092278 14.24 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6092282 65.93 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6092281 55.31 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6092276 46.47 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6092275 28.48 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6092280 388.53 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6092277 20.98 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6092279 148.54 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6081935 24.\3 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6081936 42.27 • 201-5970610 Invoice # 6075285 258.10 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6075286 275.47 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6077662 14.24 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6081934 14.24 



q) 
(1;) 

',J All CheckbooKs. Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P36 
(Y) 

July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 16 

• Ven(1orName Chk. No. Cb«kDat. Amount 

201-5970610 Invoice # 6077663 15.73 
201-5970610 Invoice # 6077664 10852 

MISSOURI LIJlRARY NETWORK CORP 10537 08/17/10 681.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970640 Invoice No 45134 681.00 

MORh'INGST AR INCORPORATED 10538 0\\117110 900.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970620 Subscription ID 4024224 900.00 

MOVIE LICENSING USA 10539 08/17/10 100.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960210 Invoice # 1463804 100.00 

NATIONAL REGISTER PUBLISIllNG CO. 10540 0\\117/10 370.70 
Account No. Description Amount 
20 I -5970600 Invoice # 10 1687 I 370.70 

NORMANEL~CTRICALCONSTRUCTION( 10541 0\\117/10 720.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # 2 \30 I 720.00 

OFFICE DEPOT 10542 0\\117110 978.19 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 526 I 5 1061 00 I 19432 
201-5970100 Invoice # 525106202001 668.40 
201-5970100 Invoice # 525974358001 19.08 
201-5970100 Invoice # 525974215001 3832 • 201-5970100 Invoice # 525848382001 58.07 

OFFICEMAX INC 10566 0\\117/10 1,040.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 836840 1,040.00 

OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP 10543 08/17/10 27,446.60 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920110 Invoice # 10525 27,08333 
201-5960990 Invoice # 10446 363.27 

PCNATION 10567 08/17/10 76.21 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5980410 Invoice # P04 789 I 90 I 0 14 76.21 

P.). KENEDY ill SONS 10544 08/17/10 357.60 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 1014181 357.60 

PADDOCK puBLICATIONS, INC 10568 08/17/10 127.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970620 Account # 898489 127.00 

PITNEY BowES 10545 08/17/10 1,216.02 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930210 Invoice # 9954034-JYIO 164.00 
201-5970260 Customer ID 21445552868 1,052.02 

PRESIDENTS $l THEIR FIRST LADIES 10546 08/17/10 325.00 
Account No. Description Amount • 201-5960210 Program on 9/22110 325.00 

PROQUEST LLC 10569 08/17/10 6,801.66 
Account No. Description Amount 



(~) 

~~) 

-" All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P37 
~,:..J 

July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 17 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Cbeck Date Amount 

201·5970620 Renewal # 900006740 6,801.66 

RANDOM HOUSE INCORPORATED 10547 08117/10 3,125.20 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Invoice # 1089222525 44.00 
201·5970600 Invoice # 1389195491 1,142.00 
201·5970600 Invoice # 1089195491 395.00 
201·5970600 Invoice # 1289195491 210.00 
201·5970600 Invoice # 1189195491 1,216.00 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1089217231 43.20 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1089299102 75.00 

RCYRBA 10548 08117110 10.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920220 Registration 10.00 

RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 10549 08117110 5,681.99 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Order # 4944199 1,251.07 
201·5970600 Order # 4944170 1,467.42 
201·5970600 Order # 4945637 56.68 
201·5970600 Order # 4945627 909.57 
201·5970600 Order # 4945632 637.81 
201·5970610 Order # 4921096 315.21 
201·5970610 Order # 4950168 510.23 
201·5970610 Order # 4946029 63.00 
201·5970610 Order # 4947632 438.00 
201·5970630 Order # 4936447 33.00 

• ROTARY CLUB OF DES PLAINES 10550 08117110 240.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920220 Quarterly Dues 240.00 

RUNGE PAPER COMPANY, INC. 10551 08117110 552.00 
Account No. Description Amouot 
201·5970170 Invoice # 668922 461.96 
201·5970170 Invoice # 668670 90.04 

RUSSIAN PUBLISHING HOUSE LTD 10552 0811711 0 105.72 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Invoice # 146170 105.72 

SAGE PUBLICATIONS, INC. 10553 08/17/10 169.82 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Invoice # 197333143 169.82 

SOMETHING FISHY INC 10554 08117/10 97.97 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 0121 97.97 

TELEVEND SERVICES INCORPORATED 10555 08117110 243.35 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970100 Invoice # 2223 243.35 

THOMAS BULGRIN 10556 08117/10 400.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960210 Special Program 400.00 

TODA Y'S BUSINESS SOLUTIONS INC 10557 08117110 24,865.00 • Account No. Description Amount 
201·5980400 Invoice # 061410·4 24,865.00 

UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 10558 08/17/10 810.56 



(V 

'''' --,J All ChecKbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB P38 
(~) 

July 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 1 B 

• Vendor Name Cbk. No. Cbeck Date Amount 

Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930010 Invoice # 053136 168.71 
201·5930010 Invoice # 053133 128.05 
201·5930010 Invoice # 053137 489.49 
201·5930010 Invoice # 053142 6.24 
201·5930010 Invoice # 053141 6.78 
201·5970100 Invoice # 85456A 11.29 

UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTlDNS 10570 08117/10 26.22 
Account No. Description Amount 
201.5970ioo Invoice # 85580A 14.93 
201·5970100 Invoice # 85551A 11.29 

V AHE GHAZAR.IAN 10559 08117/10 85.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 459566 85.00 

VALUE LINE PUBLISHING INCORPORATE 10m 08117/10 898.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970620 Invoice # 3993187 898.00 

WAREHOUSE DIRECT 10560 08117/10 1,135.57 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970100 Invoice # 798508·0 528.75 
201·5970100 Invoice # 794459·0 137.43 
201·5970100 Invoice # 784496·0 469.39 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 10572 08117/10 127.89 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930490 Inv # 4154132·2008·8 127.89 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 10573 08/17/10 337.49 
Account No. DesrriptioD Amount 
201·5930490 Inv # 2235192·2008·9 337.49 

WEST GROUP 10561 08/17/10 .50.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970600 Invoice # 820969927 50.00 

WORLD TRADE PRESS 10562 08/17/10 420.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970640 Invoice # INV53680 420.00 

Subtotal 197,416.68 

TOTAL 248,079.14 

• 



• 

• 

DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
August 17, 2010 

Please note: I have received no official requests for confidential patron information 
since my last report. 

PERSONNEL 

New Employees for July/August 2010: Stephanie Spetter, Head of Youth Services, 
08/16/10 

Resignations for July/August 2010: Sandra K. Norlin, Library Director, 08/31/10 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Courtney O'Keefe, Preschool Liaison Librarian, has attended the second of three three-day 
sessions of Synergy, the Illinois State Library-sponsored leadership development initiative. 

PATRON SERVICES 

Circulation has decreased, year to date, but this is compared to 2009, which was a very 
large increase over circulation in 2008. It's too early to tell if this is a leveling off of a one 
year spike or the beginning of a trend. It bears watching closely and checking with other 
libraries for comparisons. 

Only 57.2% of the residents of Des Plaines have library cards. The recent drop in 
numbers is the result of a one-time purge of cards that expired over three years ago, but 
carried fines of under $5. Attempts to increase this number have failed thus far; new 
approaches are called for. 

Attendance (door count) is down for the month of July, but year to date has increased by 
13%. Thus far in 2010,463 meetings have been held in our meeting rooms by 
community groups. We will recommend a charge for meeting room use for the 2011 
Budget. Estimating a decrease of 33% because of the charges and using a two-tiered 
charge ($25 for room only; $50 for use of the projection equipment and/or pantry), the 
library could derive around $10,000 in revenue from these charges. 

22,945 people visited our website in July, using it over 54,000 times. In-house computer 
use is down from last July, but up slightly for the year. Use of our online databases is 
down significantly (nearly 20%). 

On July 22, I attended the organizing meeting of the United Way Leadership Donor 
Committee and on August 12, I attended the meeting of the Des Plaines Chamber of 
Commerce Board of Directors . 

P39 



Des Plaines Public Library - July 2010 Board Report P40 

~JJUN 
ITHISMON1H IYEAR TO DATE 

New Resident Cards iJul2010 374 IVTD 2010 2,257 
Ilul 2009 352 IYTD 2009 3,025 

~Q 
1% 6% 1% ·25% 

; Cards lui 2010 3 IVTD 2010 24 
lui 2009 3 IVTD 2009 21 
,% 0% 1% 14% 

:Total Card C- 'liD VTD 2010 32680 
. IVTD 2009 35,739 

1% Pnn, 1201U ~'7 ?Ol.. 

1% Pnn"bt:n'1 2009 62.7% 

IPATRON ATTENn .... lrE 

ITHISMONTH IYEAR TO DATE 
lui 2010 A IY J U 2010 'AA AM 

•• lui 2009 50,87C IVTD 2009 305,94C 
1% Change . . . ·4% 1% 13% 

IMEETING , USE 
ITHIS MUNIM 1 YEAR TO DATE 

i"i"h.,n,C IPr()Q 29 1,041 IVTD 12,97:0 

~roUDs 21 463 IVTD 7,153 

Irliernal 8 82 IVTD 765 
ITOTAl 58 1,586 I JurAL 20,891 

• 



SPECIAL PROJECTS & STATS: 

THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
Voter Registration lui 2010 2 YTD 2010 

lui 2009 1 YTD 2009 
% Change 100% % Change 

on Website 

Computer Use Adult Services YEAR TO DATE 

lui 2010 8,911 YTD2010 
lui 2009 .. 10,209 YTD2009 

% Change -12.71% % Chanl!.e 
Youth Services 
lui 2010. 1,617 YTD 2010 
lui 2009 1,983 YTD 2009 

% Change -18.46% % Change 

Average Online Reference Products 
Searches & Queries lui 2010 12,935 YTD 2010 

lui 2009 11,876 YTD 2009 
% Change 

•
e main & side door patron counters were out of order lanuary- May 2009 due to the installation 
e new RFID system. These figures are based on the monthly changes in circulation rates. 

P41 

16 
18 

-11% 

62,381 
60,126 
3.75% 

10,108 
9,983 

1.25% 

79,198 

98,795 
-19.84% 



~p 
(1;) 

CO') 

f.,) 

• 

• 

• 

(', 
-" ~ '-c:I!!!!!! 1 [J 

Chair: 
Present: 

1501 mnwood see! 2 
Des Plaines - Des Plaines, Il 60016-4553 

Public Library ./ 847-827·5551 phone -- 847-827-7974 fax 

QJ Progress Report 

D Response Requested by _____ _ 

D Board Action Required 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting 

August 3, 2010 

Jeffery Rozovics. 
Jeffery Rozovics, Dion Kendrick, Steven Mokry, George Magerl, Alderman 
John Robinson, Sandra Norlin, Carol Kidd, Holly Richards Sorensen, 
Roberta Johnson, Susan Farid, Gary Valente, Brenda Murphy, Jennifer 
Delgado, Tim O'Connor. 

Call to Order: 4:02 p.m. by Jeffery Rozovics 

Jeff Rozovics stated that only two committee members were in attendance and asked 
Sandra Norlin if the committee could take any action. Sandra Norlin responded that the 
committee did not have a quorum and could take no action on agenda items. 

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA 

Jeff Rozovics reported that the Board will hold a Special Meeting on August 10, 2010 to 
discuss the 2011 budget. 

Sandra Norlin gave an overview of the proposed 2011 budget. Sandra stated that seven 
positions were eliminated from the 2011 budget and that five employees would be laid 
off, one full-time and four part-time employees. Mobile library service would be 
eliminated, which would account for three of the five eliminated pOSitions. Sandra also 
stated that contractual services would be reduced by 5.5%, commodities reduced by 9%, 
capital projects reduced by 27.7%, with total budget reductions of 3.5% and no increase 
to property taxes. 

The Committee discussed the proposed budget and proposed cash shortfall for 2010. The 
Committee asked Sandra Norlin to prepare a summary of the proposed 2011 budget for 
the August 10, 2010 Special Board meeting. 



'. 

P43 

• MOTION by Dion Kendrick, seconded by Jeff Rozovics, to adjourn the meeting. 

The meeting adjourned at 6:43 p.m. 

Minutes prepared by Carol Kidd 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

~ 
" " 

LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF DES PLAINES, ILLINOIS 

AND THE DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

DRAFT 

THIS LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENT is entered into this __ day of 
::::-:---:----:-__ -,--' 2010, by and between the City of Des Plaines, Illinois (the "City"), an 
Illinois home rule municipal corporation, and the Des Plaines Public Library (the "Library"), an 
Illinois municipal library. 

WI TNE S SE T H: 

WHEREAS, the Library desires to obtain a line of financial credit in order to fund 
certain expenditures for the Library's operating and other expenses (the "Library Expenditures"), 
at an approximate cost of $ , as more specifically 
detailed in a "Funding Request" Memorandum letter dated , 2010, 
addressed to {AldermanlMayor/City Manager} , attached hereto as Exhibit 
"A" and made a part hereof. The Library has requested that the City assist the Library by 
securing adequate financing to pay the costs of the Library Expenditures and the associated 
expenses and fees relative to issuing debt that will be used to pay for all of the City's costs, 
expenses and fees in connection therewith. The Library agrees to repay the City such costs, fees 
and expenses over a ten (10) year period; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Aldermen of the City have reviewed the Library's request 
and find that the Library Expenditures are necessary and reasonable, and that the City has the 
statutory authority, pursuant to Section 8-1-3.1 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-1-
3.1), to borrow money from any bank or other financial institution, provided such money is 
repaid within ten (10) years from the time it is borrowed. The City has also determined that the 
borrowing of such money to assist the Library in this manner is a proper public purpose, is 
authorized by 65 ILCS 5/8-1-3.1 and will not negatively impact the City's ability to operate or 
borrow additional funds in the future; and 

WHEREAS, in order to finance the costs of the Library Expenditures, the Mayor and 
Aldermen of the City agreed to issue a $ General Obligation 
Promissory Note (the "Note") and have assed Ordinance Number (An 
Ordinance Providing For The Issuance Of A $ General Obligation 
Promissory Note, Series 2010, Of The City Of Des Plaines, Cook County, Illinois, To Pay The 
Costs Of Library Expenditures At The Des Plaines Public Library Within The City, And 
Providing For The Security For And Payment Of Said Note) on ,2010, 
to authorize the issuance of the Note. A copy of the Ordinance is attached hereto as Exhibit "B" 
and made a part hereof; and 



" 

• 

• 

• 

DRAFT 

WHEREAS, the City and the Library desire to enter into this Line of Credit Agreement 
(the "Agreement") in order to memorialize the conditions of the loan, repayment obligations, and 
their respective duties and responsibilities concerning the same; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Library are authorized, under the intergovernmental 
cooperation powers set forth at Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution and the 
Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.), to approve and enter into this 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Library find that the Agreement is necessary, in the best 
interests of the City and the Library, and it serves the public health, safety, welfare and 
convenience to provide for the payment of the Library Expenditures, to pay all related costs and 
expenses incidental thereto, and to borrow money for such purposes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. Incorporation. Each of the Whereas paragraphs is incorporated by reference into 
Section 1 of this Agreement. 

2. Loan Amount. The City agrees to secure an amount not to exceed 
$ (the "Loan Amount"), to be used exclusively to pay for the 
costs of the Library Expenditures as set forth in the Funding Request Memorandum letter 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A", as well as to pay the fees and expenses associated with the 
issuance of the Note to finance the Library Expenditures. The actual amount of dollars paid to 
the Library shall be decreased by the amount of any grant funds or other funds .obtained by the 
Library that the Library uses to pay the costs of the Library Expenditures. 

A. Note. In order to finance the Loan Amount, the City shall arrange for the 
issuance and sale of the Note in the aggregate principal amount of 
$ within ninety (90) days of the effective date of this Agreement in 
accordance with the terms of the attached Ordinance. The Note shall be designated "General 
Obligation Promissory Note, Series 2010"; be dated the date of actual delivery thereof (the 
"Dated Date "); and shall also bear the date of authentication thereof. The Note shall be in fully 
registered form and shall become due and payable on , 2020, with annual 
installments of principal and interest repayments as follows: 

June 15,2011 

June 15, 2012 

June 15,2013 

June 15,2014 

June 15,2015 



m 
· Cy 
• () . .J" 

(Y) 

• 

• 

• 

June 15,2016 

June 15,2017 

June 15,2018 

June 15,2019 

June 15,2020 

DRAFT 

The outstanding principal amount of the Note shall bear interest from time to time from 
the later of its Dated Date as provided in the Ordinance or from the most recent interest payment 
date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, until the full principal amount of such 
Note is paid or duly provided for, such interest (computed upon the basis of a 365 or 366 day 
year based on actual days elapsed) being payable on June 15 and December 15 of each year, 
commencing December IS, 2010, at an annual interest rate to be determined at the time of 
issuance of the Note, but not to exceed 9% per annum, or this Agreement may be terminated by 
the Library, subject to reimbursement of all reasonable costs, fees and expenses incurred by the 
City related to this transaction, including but not limited to the preparation of this Agreement and 
the Ordinance authorizing issuance of the Note. The successful bid for the Promissory Note was 
submitted by Bank of , Illinois on __ _ 
2010 at a net interest rate of % per annum . 

B. Debt Service Fund and Librarv Fund. The following Funds shall be 
established and maintained by the City a nd the Note proceeds and the annual interest and 
principaljJayments of the Library shall be allocated as follows: 

(a). Any amounts designated from time to time to pay the Note shall be 
deposited into the "General Obligation Promissory Note, Series 2010, Debt Service 
Fund" (the "Debt Service Fund"), which shall be the Fund for the payment of principal 
of and interest on the Note. 

(b). The principal proceeds of the Note shall be deposited into the 
General Obligation Promissory Note, Series 2010, Library Fund (the "Library 
Expenditures Fund"). Moneys in this Fund shall be withdrawn from time to time as 
needed for the payment of costs of the Library Expenditures and paying the fees and 
expenses incidental thereto and to the preparation of and issuance of the Note. 

(c). Funds on deposit in the Debt Service Fund or Library 
Improvement Fund may be invested at the direction of the City Treasurer of the City in 
any lawful manner. 

3. Payment for the Library Improvements. The Loan Amount shall be disbursed 
by the City on behalf of the Library as follows: 



• 

• 

• 

DRAFT 

A. From time to time, the Library, on its own behalf, may submit to the 
Library, or the City, on its behalf, may submit to the Library, for reimbursement of costs, fees 
and expenses the City incurred as part of this transaction, a written statement in the form 
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit "c" ("Request for Payment") setting forth the amount of 
payment requested and the specific supplies or work for which payment is sought. Each Request 
for Payment shall be accompanied by such bills, contracts, invoices, completed, fully executed 
partial or full waivers of lien, contractor's affidavit and other evidence as the City shall 
reasonably require to establish that the payment of funds under this Agreement is warranted 
because the supplies have been delivered or the work has been completed pursuant to the Work 
Proposal (Group Exhibit "A") and in accordance with the applicable State laws and City Code 
provisions. A copy of any Request for Payment filed by the City shall be promptly delivered to 
the Library. To the extent that the Library or the City incurs any costs, fees or expenses relative 
to any matters covered by this Agreement, including but not limited to the costs and fees 
associated with the preparation of this Agreement and the Ordinance, such costs, fees and 
expenses are eligible for payment for the moneys in the Library Improvement Fund, provided 
that a completed Request for Payment is submitted by the Library or the City and approved in 
accordance with the process set forth in this Section 3. In the event that the Library terminates 
this Agreement prior to the funding of the Library Improvement Fund, the Library agrees to pay 
the City all of its incurred out-of-pocket expenses and fees of any kind, including but not limited 
to the costs and fees associated with the preparation of this Agreement and the Ordinance or any 
other documents relating to this transaction. 

B. The City Engineer shall have ten (10) days after receipt of any Request for 
Payment to inspect the 800 West Chestnut Street Building and confirm that the supplies have 
been delivered to the property or that the work has been performed in accordance with the Work 
Proposal (Group Exhibit "A") and in accordance with the applicable State laws and City Code 
provisions, and the City Engineer shall recommend to the City Manager approval or denial of 
some or all of the expenditures for which reimbursement is sought in such request and, if denied 
in whole or in part, shall provide to the Library and the City in writing an explanation of the 
denial. In the event of a denial, the Library shall be obligated to provide additional 
documentation to substantiate the reimbursement request or that payment shall not be approved 
by the City. 

C. The City Manager will forward each Request for Payment that receives 
the City Engineer's approval to the City Board at the next available Regular City Board Meeting 
for approval. Payment shall be made by the City directly to the payee (e.g., supplier or 
contractor) in exchange for the delivery of the original, completed, fully executed partial or full 
waiver of lien, invoice marked "paid in full" and a completed, fully executed contractor's 
affidavit to the City. The City shall retain the originals of the partial or full waiver of lien and 
marked invoices and provide the copies to the Library. 

D. Once the Library Improvements are completed and all costs, fees and 
expenses associated with those Improvements are paid in full, to the extent there is a balance of 
moneys in the Library Improvement Fund, those moneys shall be used to prepay any outstanding 
255723_1 



cp 
. (,y 
, (" 

(>, 

• 

• 

• 

~. 

DRAFT 

principal and interest owed on the Note. To the extent that the overall costs of the Library 
Improvements and related transactions costs, fees and expenses exceed the Loan Amount, the 
Library agrees to promptly pay those additional costs, fees and expenses using its own funds 
upon demand. The Library shall promptly defend and be responsible for the payment and release 
of any mechanics or material liens filed against the 800 West Chestnut Street premises arising 
out any work covered by this Agreement. 

4. Repayment Obligation of Library. The Library agrees to pay back the Loan 
Amount as follows: in accordance with the Note repayment schedule set forth in the Ordinance, 
the Library shall pay to the City an amount equal to the semi-annual interest and annual principal 
payments due for that payment year not less than fifteen (I5) days prior to the due dates of the 
semi-annual interest payments and annual principal payments. The Library's payments will be 
promptly deposited into the Debt Service Fund and used by the City to pay the annual debt 
service payments. The Library may prepay some or all of the outstanding balance of the Note at 
any time. If such prepayments are received by the City, the payments will be promptly deposited' 
into the Debt Service Fund and used by the City to pay the annual debt service payment, make 
one or more additional principal payments or payoff the outstanding balance of the Note, 
depending on the amount of prepayments and the direction of the Library relative to the 
prepayments. 

A. Non-Payment by Library. In the event that a semi-annual interest 
payment and/or annual principal payment is not paid by the Library to the City in a timely 
manner, the Library agrees, upon written demand by the City, to pay such payments from its 
Library Operating Fund, and further agrees to pay any penalties, fines, costs and fees of any 
kind, including but not limited to costs, fees, legal fees and expenses incurred by the City or 
imposed on the City by the lender or any other third party as a consequence of a non-payment or 
late payment. In the event of a non-payment of an interest payment or principal payment where 
the Library refuses or fails to or is unable to make such payment in a timely manner, the Library 
further agrees that the City may deduct the amount of the payment from the general property tax 
levy or any other available funds received by the City for the benefit of the Library. In a 
non-payment situation, the Library agrees to waive all legal objections of any kind to any legal 
action brought by the City to compel payment of a delinquent semi-annual interest and annual 
principal payments. 

B. Annual Budget and Appropriation. Each year that there is an 
outstanding balance on the Note, the Library shall approve the semi-annual interest and annual 
principal payments on the Loan Amount to be paid to the City as part of its annual Budget and 
Appropriation process. 

5. Additional Provisions. 

A. Notice. Any notice, request, demand or other corrimunication, provided 
for by this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly received upon: 



• 

• 

• 

" 

DRAFT 

(a) actual receipt if personally delivered and the sender received written 
confirmation of personal delivery; 

(b) receipt as indicated by the written or electronic verification of delivery 
when delivered by overnight courier; 

(c) receipt as indicated by the electronic transmission confirmation when 
sent via telecopy or facsimile transmission; or 

(d) three (3) calendar days after the sender deposits the notice with the 
U.S. Post Office when sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested. 
Notice shall be sent to the addresses set forth below, or to such other address as either 
Party may specify in writing. 

To the CITY: To the LIBRARY: 

City Manager 
740 Hillgrove Avenue 
City of Des Plaines 
Des Plaines, Illinois ___ _ 

(P) (847)_-__ 
(f)(847) _-__ 

Sandra Norlin 
Library Director 
Des Plaines Public Library 
800 West Chestnut Street 
Des Plaines, Illinois ___ _ 

(P)(847) _-__ 
(f)(847)_-__ 

B. Term. Unless terminated by the Parties as a consequence of a mutually 
agreed upon decision to not issue the Note or not to incur any or any future Library 
Expenditures, this Agreement will remain in effect until the Note is paid in fulL 
Notwithstanding any expiration or termination, the Parties remain obligated to pay any costs due 
to the other Party under this Agreement. 

C. Termination; Breach. This Agreement may be terminated upon written 
notice prior to the expiration of said term by mutual agreement of the Parties or by the Library in 
the event that it decides not to incur any or any future Library Expenditures. This Agreement 
may also be terminated by either Party upon thirty (30) days' written notice if the other Party 
should fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and then fails 
to cure such non-performance within the thirty (30) day notice period. In the event that either 
Party breaches this Agreement and the breach is litigated before a court of law or an 
administrative agency, the non-prevailing Party shall be liable to the prevailing Party for the 
prevailing Party's reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of suit incurred by the prevailing Party. 
Each Party shall be entitled to any and all remedies at law and in equity under this Agreement. 

255723_1 



(~) 

- (,.1;) 

. '() 
q;) 

• 

• 

• 

.. 

DRAFT 

D. Mutual Indemnification. To the fullest extent pennitted by law, the 
Parties shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless each other and its and their past and 
present appointed and elected officials, directors, agents, officers, representatives, attorneys, 
engineers, volunteers, successors or predecessors, and each Party's respective interest in any 
property, from and against any and all claims, obligations, liens, encumbrances, demands, 
liabilities, penalties, causes of action, and costs and expenses of any kind, including, without 
limitation, orders, damages, judgments, fmes, forfeitures, amounts paid in settlement, and 
attorneys' fees and litigation costs relating to, arising out of or alleged to have occurred in whole 
or in part in connection with any matters covered by this Agreement or sought by or brought by 
persons or other third parties against the Parties relative to any matters covered by this 
Agreement. 

E. Waiver; No Warranty. As a material inducement for the City to enter 
into this Agreement, the Library agrees to waive any claims or causes of action of any kind, 
including but not limited to breach of contract or breach of warranty, that could be brought 
against the City and its representatives, officers, appointed and elected officials, Mayor and 
aldermen, agents, engineers, attorneys, volunteers and employees (the "City Affiliates") for any 
acts conducted or perfonned by the City or the City Affiliates under this Agreement. Failure of 
any Party to this Agreement to insist upon the strict and prompt performance of the terms, 
covenants, agreements and/or conditions set forth herein, or any of them, by the other Party, shall 
not constitute or otherwise be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of the Party's right 
thereafter to enforce any such term, covenant, agreement and/or condition, but the same shall 
continue in full force and effect. 

F. Authority to Approve Agreement. The respective City and Library 
officers who have executed this Agreement warrant that they have been lawfully authorized by 
the governing Boards of the City and the Library to execute this Agreement on behalf of the City 
and the Library. The City and the Library shall, upon request, deliver to each other copies of any 
and all documents reasonably required to legally evidence the authority to so execute this 
Agreement on behalf of the respective Parties. 

G. Entire Agreement; Severance. This Agreement contains the entire 
agreement and understanding by and between the Parties. No representations, promises, 
agreements or understandings, written or oral, not herein contained shall be of any force or 
effect. No change or modification hereof shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing 
and signed by authorized representatives of each Party. If any provision of this Agreement is 
held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or in the event such a court shall determine that 
the City or Library does not have the power to perform any such provision, such provision shall 
be deemed to be excised here from and the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the other 
provisions contained herein, and such judgment or decree shall relieve the City or Library from 
performance under such invalid provision of this Agreement. 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 



" 

• 

• 

• 

DRAFT 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Line of Credit Agreement shall be effective as of the 

date and year that the last signatory signs and dates the Agreement below. 

CITY OF DES PLAINES 

By: _=-:---:-:-_______ _ 

City Mayor 

Date: _________ " 2010 

ATTEST: 

By: ___ ~-=_~-----
City Clerk 

Date: _________ ,2010 

255723_' 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

By: --:--:-------::--:---=----:---=-::------,::--_ 
President of the Board of Library Trustees 

Date: _________ " 2010 

ATTEST: 

By: __ ~~-_:__~~~-----,
Secretary of the Board of Library Trustees 

Date: _________ ,2010 



1.. ... :/' ~ 
~o 
!/.) 

t : ~ 

•' '\'l ' 

. ,-1 



e· 

TO: Library Board of Trustees 

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, IL 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

FROM: Sandra K. Norlin, Library Direct~ 
Background on July Agenda Items SUBJECT: 

DATE: July 15, 2010 

To help you prepare for the discussion at our meeting on July 20, please refer to 
information provided below. If you would like more information or explanation, please 
contact me (847-376-2800) or Carol Kidd (2803) before July 20. 

VIII. New Business 

A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $204,196.86. [Action Item] 

B. Mobile Library Service to Rosemont. 
The mobile library makes 24 stops per year to Rosemont. Last year we did not 
increase the cost for this service and Rosemont paid $12,900.00. The most current 
CPI information released Thursday, June 17, 2010, indicates that the index has 
increased 2.0 percent over the past year. Therefore, I am recommending an 
increase to the contract of $13,200.00. 

C. Reallocate Training Funds from COL Training to Staff Training. [Action Item] 
In response to the City Council's request, we reduced support for travel and 
training by 78%. We chose to use Per Capita Grant funds for nearly all training 
expenses ($9,000.00). To date we have not received Per Capita Grant funding for 
2010, which in years past has been received by January. We have incurred 
$4,000.00 of expense for our annual Staff Inservice Day and about $500.00 for 
conference registrations. We would also like to pay the conference registration for 
at least the five staff members who will present programs at the annual Illinois 
Library Association and up to three Trustees. At this point in the fiscal year, I feel it 
is unwise to depend on Per Capita Grant funding. With Board approval, I would 
like to use budgeted funds for COL training ($2,000.00), which at this time we do 
not expect to use, and a portion of Miscellaneious Contractual Services (960990) 
intended for OCLS Tech Pro ($22,125.00) which, at this time we do not expect to 
use up. These funds will be used to fund approximately $5,000.00 in expenses for 
travel, training, and conference registration. Of course, if the Per Capita Grant 
funds are received in this fiscal year, we will transfer these expenditures to that 

--.... /fund. 
www'~~~A // 
~~ 

-' -" 



.::. .. 

• 

• 

• 

D. Management Committee Report. [Action Item] 
You will be asked to vote on revisions to library policies A-9 through A-14 and C-1 
through C-12. 

E. Approval to Proceed with Preparation of an Intergovernmental Agreement for the 
Purpose of a Line of Credit or Bridge Loan. [Action Item} 
Attached is information from the Financial Manual for Illinois Public Libraries 
regarding limitations for library boards borrowing funds. At the Board's direction, I 
contacted Attorney Jerry Dempsey regarding this issue of the librarylcity authority 
to borrow funds to maintain the library during the gap caused by late collection of 
property tax in 2010. He has suggested an intergovernmental agreement with the 
City to authorize the library'S borrowing, either through a "bridge loan" or tax 
anticipation warrant or a line of credit. I have broached the topic with City Finance 
Director Dorothy Wisniewski, who has suggested that the library obtain quotes 
from area banks to present to the City Council for authorization. As required by 
Board policy, the library has a cash balance of over $1,500,000, which in a normal 
year would support 2.5 months of operating expenditures. However, 2010 is not a 
normal year, because of the delay in receiving Cook County tax receipts. 

2 



------~-------::--~_~__====~!!!!!!!!!l!I!!!!!!!!!! ____ _ 

I 
I, 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
~ 
I' 
I 

I 

• 

• 

!. 
I 

I 
I 

granted great autonomy in Illinois. There are only 

two instances in which library boards are obligated 

to coordinate their activities with the government 

that created them. Both of these have financial 

implications. 

The first limitation involves borrowing funds. Library 

boards which wish to borrow funds must seek the 

approval of their creating government Although 

Illinois municipalities and townships are no longer 

subject to a constitutional debt limitation, they do 

exist under a statutory maximum debt limit. Section 

8-5-1 provides that any municipality having a 

population ofless than 500,000 shall not become 

indebted "in any manner or for any purpose," to 

an amount, including existing indebtedness in the 

aggregate exceeding 8.625 percent on the value ofits 

taxable property, 65 ILCS 5/8-5-1. Accordingly, when 

computing the statutory debt limit, governments 

which have created associated library boards are 

required to count the debt of those boards along 

with their own debt in computing a total. Thus, if a 

municipality has substantial plans for borrOwing funds 

for certain capital improvements, it has the complete 

authority to deny a request from its library board, 

despite the fact that the library itself has sought and 

received voter approval in a referendum. 

The second instance 'where a library board is affected 

by the government that created it is with regard 

to the appropriation and budget ofits funds. A 

library board is obligated to follow the cycle and 

form utilized by its creating government as it moves 

through the appropriation and tax levy process. For 

example, in the case of a municipality, if the creating 

government utilizes the municipal budget system, 

65 ILCS 5/8-2-9.1, rather than the more traditional 

appropriation system, 65 ILCS 5/8-2-9, its library 

board must follow that same form. Under the budget 

system, a municipality must approve its budget 

ordinance prior to the commencement of its fiscal 

year. A library board must utilize the same fiscal 

I U@) 
year as its creating government and it must prOvide 

to that government, which uses the budget system, 

,~ Financial Manual for Illinois Puhlic Libraries 

its anticipated budget for the following year so that 

the data can be incorporated within the reported 

and adopted municipal budget. A more detailed 

description of the two forms ofbudget cycles is 

discussed below. Finally, it should be noted that all 

municipalities and townships operate under the same 

tax levy process, and the library board must also 

follow that process. 

Municipal Library Budgets 

The Budget Process: Overview of Appropriation 

and Budget Systems 

As discussed above, there are two budget cycles that 

can be followed: the appropriation system and the 

budget system. The appropriation system is first 

explained. 

1 Appropriation System. In municipalities 

with less than 500,000 inhabitants, an 

appropriation ordinance must be passed and 

approved (or become effective without the 

mayor's signature) during the first quarter of 

the fiscal year. The fiscal year begins with the 

date of the last regular municipal election 

unless otherwise provided by ordinance, 65 

ILCS 5/1-1-2(5). 

The appropriation ordinance, passed by the 

unit oflocal government of which the library 

is part of, provides the legal authority for 

the corporate authorities to allocate sums of 

money to specific spending activities of the 

municipality, suq, as the mUnicipal library. It 

also establishes a municipality's legal spending 

limit for the fiscal year and is a basis for the 

property tax levy filed in December. 

Because of the relative difficulty of revising 

the appropriation ordinance after its passage 

or passing a supplemental appropriation 

ordinance, most municipalities in Illinois 

enact an appropriation somewhat higher 

than the amount actually intended for 

expenditure. While this practice helps 

ensure that all spending requirements will 



• 

• 

NOTICE 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY, JULY 20, 2010 

7:00 PM 

Conference Room - Second Floor 

Agenda: 

Mobile Library Service to Rosemont 
Election of Officers for 2010 - 2011 
Installation of Trustees 

! " 1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, [L 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

The Des Plaines Public Library, in compliance with the Americans With 
DisabilitiesAct, requests that persons with disabilities who require certain 
accommodations to allow them to observe and/or participate in the meetings or 
have questions about the accessibility of the meetings or facilities contact the 
Library Director at 847-376-2800 to allow the Library to make reasonable 
accommodations . 

----'- - ----



m 
(,,1 
(0 '-\"':'---::-#' " '-,J 

• 

• 

I. 

II. 

III. 

IV. 

V. 

VI. 

VII. 

VIII. 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting 
July 20, 2010 

7:00 PM 

Call to Order. (7:00 PM) 

Roll Call. 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Consideration of the Agenda. 

Public Comments and Questions. 

Oath of Office. (Kendrick and Mokry) 

City Council Community Services Committee - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

Consent Agenda. [Action Item] (7:30 PM) 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting

june 15, 2010. 
B. Approval of the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting

june 29,2010. 
C. Acceptance of Financial Reports for june 2010. 
D. Acceptance of Reports. 

1. Director's Report - Sandra Norlin. 
2. Management Committee Report. 
3. Friends of the Library Report - Myrtle Klebe . 

---<";r 
www'~~~A // - "+=--

\ 1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, IL 60016·4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 



• 

• 

• 

IX. New Business. (8:00 PM) 
A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report - $204,196.86. [Action 

Item) 
B. Mobile Library Service to Rosemont. [Action Item) 
C. Approve Expenditures Transfers. [Action Item) 
D. Management Committee Report. [Action Item) 
E. Approval to Proceed with Preparation of an Intergovernmental 

Agreement for the Purpose of a Line of Credit or Bridge Loan. 
[Action Item) 

X. Announcements. 
A. New Head of Youth Services. 

XI. Correspondence. 

XII. Other 

XIII. Nominating Committee. [Action Item) 
A. Election of Officers. 
B. Oath of Office. 

XIV. Adjournment. (9:00 PM) 

This meeting will be recorded for television broadcast. 



• 

• 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting 

june 15, 2010 

\ 

1501 Ellinwood StrC(>t 

Des Plaines, Il60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

The regular meeting of the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees was held in the 
second floor conference room on Tuesday, June 15, 2010. President Noreen Lake called 
the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. 

ROLL CALL. 

Roll call indicated the following board members were present: Eldon Burk, Selma 
D'Souza, Myrtle Klebe, Susan Moylan Krey, Noreen Lake, George Magerl, Elaine Tejcek, 
jennifer Tsalapatanis. 

Absent: jeffery Rozovics . 

Also present: Sandra Norlin, Carol Kidd, Holly Richards Sorensen, Heather Imhoff, Brenda 
Murphy, Don Sofolo, Dan Klobnak, Alderman Dan Wilson, Adam Bartnik, Dick Sayad, 
joanne Griffin; Steven Mokry, Dion Kendrick, Andrew Beharelle. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA. 

MOTION by George Magerl, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to approve the agenda, as 
written. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 

Dick Sayad, 290 Shannon Court, thanked Director Sandra Norlin for serving the City for 
so many years. Mr. Sayad suggested that the library board recruit a new director so that 
the best qualified person is chosen for the position. Mr. Sayad stated that in 2004 he 
recommended that the library become a district and the library board responded that it 
was too costly and was not in the taxpayers best interest. He asked why the board has this 
item on the agenda, since he does not think the residents of Des Plaines are in favor of the 
library becoming a district. 

--../2 
www.~ 



• 

• 

• 

Dion Kendrick, 943 Webster, stated that he is opposed to the immediate appointment of a 
new Executive Director and requests that the board wait to make that decision until after 
new board members are sworn into office. He stated that the Board should go through a 
recruiting process to fill the library director position. 

Steven Mokry, 656 Pearson St, stated that he is in agreement with Mr. Kendrick and that 
any decision concerning the library director appointment be postponed for 30 days when 
new board members will be sworn into office. 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE - Alderman Dan Wilson. 

Alderman Wilson stated that he had received a number of emails from residents 
concerned that the library was not participating in the van delivery service through North 
Suburban Library System and that for a few pennies the library could participate. He 
responded to the residents by stating that the van service would be costly and is a non
budgetedd expense. He reassured residents that 90% of the materials requested are in the 
library'S collection. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MOTION by Eldon Burk, seconded by George Magerl, to approve the Consent 
Agenda,as written. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Sandra Norlin introduced joanne Griffin, Reference Services Librarian II. joanne is the 
library'S business liaison librarian. joanne meets with local business owners and 
encourages them to apply for a library card. She gives them information about the benefits 
of using the library'S resources for their business needs. Currently, Joanne is working with 
Web Services Librarian Karen McBride, preparing video presentations for local business to 
promote their business on YouTube. 

LIBRARY DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

Please note: I have received no official requests for confidential patron information 
since my last report. 

PERSONNEL 

One new employee for May/June 2010: Ju Kyoung Seo, Page, Circulation Services. 
Holly Sorensen and I have completed the interview process for the Head of Youth 
Services. We are now checking references and will make a decision and an offer by june 
15. 



• 

• 

• 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Karen McBride is conducting workshops in Springfield at the Illinois State Library the 
week of june 14-18 as part of the ISL's grant project ILEADU, in which Illinois librarians 
with expertise in technology applications teach other library employees. Karen's areas of 
expertise are the use of video, website design, and social networking applications. 

Our annual Staff Inservice Day was held on May 14. It was planned by a staff committee 
under the leadership of Holly Sorensen. The theme of the day was the practical side of 
becoming "green." The featured speaker of the day was from The Green Mama, a 
Chicago-based educational service that explores and teaches the everyday issues of 
sustainability and ecological living practices. Staff members also taught mini-sessions on 
making safe household cleaning products, skin care products, pet foods, and discovering 
one's carbon footprint. 

PATRON SERVICES 

The number of items checked out during May was 3% less than in May of 2009. There 
was a 23% drop in items checked out from the Mobile Library. Libraries throughout this 
region are reporting both increases and circulation patterns/trends similar to ours. The use 
of our services other than check outs is also an interesting mix. We have a reduction of 
over 3,000 in card ownership, attributable to the one-time purge of expired cards that had 
less than $5 in outstanding fines. We have an increase of 19% in patron attendance at the 
library, year to date, over the same period in 2009. Visits to PlainTalk, the Blog posted by 
Karen McBride have increased by 61 %, perhaps because of the announcement of the 
changes in van delivery service. Use of our public computers and use of our online 
reference products have all declined since last year at this time. 

All in all, the public reaction to the new limits on placing holds has been accepting. We 
have had a number of questions and comments, but there have been no drastic reductions 
in service to date. The number of items that come through the van delivery service has 
dropped significantly, but the demand for Interlibrary Loan is increasing. We will report 
the developments as they occur. 

OTHER PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES 

I attended the Annual Meeting of the Friends of the Library on May 25. Karen McBride 
prepared a video tribute thanking the Friends for their contributions to the Library 
throughout their history. As Chair of the Scholarship Committee, I attended the Chamber 
of Commerce Scholarship Luncheon on May 27. Also as part of my duties as a member of 
the Board of Directors of the DP Chamber, I helped staff the Expo booth at Des Plaines' 
Taste of Des Plaines on Sunday, june 6, and I will attend the monthly board meeting on 
june 10. 



• UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

APPROVE ANNUAL RENEWAL FOR MICROSOFT SCHOOL AGREEMENT LICENSING 
PROGRAM - $9,800.00. 

Dan Klobnak, Outsource Solutions Group, stated that the annual renewal for Microsoft 
School Agreement Licensing Program is a budgeted expense and that his recommendation 
is CDW-G, which was the lowest proposal at a cost of $9,724.18. 

MOTION by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by Eldon Burk, to approve the annual renewal for 
Microsoft School Agreement Licensing Program in the amount of $9,724.18, which is the 
lowest proposal and in the best interest of the Des Plaines Public Library. VOTE: AYES: 
All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

NEW BUSINESS 

APPROVE PAYMENT OF VENDOR CHECKS REPORT - $166,997.86. [Action Item] 

MOTION by Selma D'Souza, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to approve the payment of 
vendor checks in the amount of $166,997.86 as listed on the vendor checks report of May 
2010 and authorize the Library Director to have transferred the amount required to the 
library's operating account. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Burk, D'Souza, Klebe, Moylan Krey, 

• Lake, Mager!, Tejcek, Tsalapatanis. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

• 

REQUEST APPROVAL FOR REPLACEMENT OF OVERHEAD PROJECTORS. 

Dan Klobnak asked for Board approval to purchase publiC meeting room projectors from 
Frostline in the amount of $21,951.50, the lowest proposal. Jennifer Tsalapatanis asked 
what is done with the old overhead projectors and Dan Klobnak responded that the City 
of Des Plaines has first refusal rights and if they do not want the projectors they are 
donated to Computers for Schools. 

MOTION by Eldon Burk, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to call for the question. VOTE: AYES: 
All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Eldon Burk, seconded by Selma D'Souza to approve the purchase of Meeting 
Room Projectors from Frostline in the amount of $21,951.50, which is the lowest proposal 
and is in the best interest of the Des Plaines Public Library. ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: 
Burk, D'Souza, Klebe, Moylan Krey, Mager! Tejcek, Tsalapatanis, Lake. NAYS: None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

REVIEW DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY IT SUPPORT MODEL. 

Sandra Norlin introduced Don Sofolo, President of Outsource Solutions Group, who gave 
an overview of the services they provide to the library. Mr. Sofolo prepared a model 



• 

• 

• 

Request for Proposal for IT services. 

President Lake asked if the model would restrict other companies from bidding on the 
proposals and Mr. Sofolo stated that there should be other companies who could fulfill the 
services currently being provided by Outsource Solutions Group. Mr. Sofolo also stated 
that they did not invent the model, they defined it. 

MOTION by Eldon Burk, seconded by George Magerl, to approve the IT Support Model 
for the purpose of going out for proposal. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION 
CARRIED. 

AUTHORIZATION TO ~EQUEST BIDS/PROPOSALS FOR IT SERVICES. 

MOTION by George Magerl, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to authorize staff to go out for 
proposals for IT Support and use the IT Support Model without the average cost per hour 
stated in the model. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

DISCUSS NORTH SUBURBAN LIBRARY SYSTEM VAN DELIVERY SERVICE PROPOSAL. 

President Lake stated that Des Plaines, Evanston and North Chicago Public Libraries were 
not participating in the van delivery service through North Suburban Library System. NSLS 
will deliver to all libraries, even those not participating in their van delivery, twice a week. 
Library Director Sandra Norlin stated that the library has 92% of the materials that patrons 
request. 

MOTION by George Magerl, seconded by Selma D'Souza, not participate in the North 
Suburban Library System van delivery service and not give a donation for van delivery 
service. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

APPROVE PAYMENT TO REFERENCE USA - $14,760.00. 

MOTION by Eldon Burk, seconded by Myrtle Klebe, to approve payment to Reference 
USA in the amount of $14,760, which is a budgeted expense and in the best interest of the 
Des Plaines Public Library. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

APPROVAL OF LIBRARY BOARD MEETING DATE. 

MOTION by Elaine Tejcek, seconded by George Mager!, to approve the board meeting 
dates, as presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. 

APPROVAL OF NON-RESIDENT FEE. 

MOTION by George Mager!, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to approve the non-resident fee 
in the amount of $290.00. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 



• 

• 

• 

METHODS, BENEFITS AND COSTS OF CONVERSION TO LIBRARY DISTRICT. 

The board discussed the information provided in their packets about conversion to a 
library district, but will take no action. 

APPROVAL OF LIBRARY CLOSING FOR CEILING REPAIR. 

George Magerl asked the board to approve closing the library on Saturday, July 3 so that 
the library ceiling could be repaired. 

MOTION by George Magerl, seconded by Eldon Burk, to close the library on July 3, 2010 
for the purpose of repairing the damaged ceiling. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. Motion 
carried. 

SET DATES FOR COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE TO DISCUSS FYll LIBRARY BUDGET. 

The Board will meet as a Committee of the Whole on Tuesday, August 10, 2010 at 7:00 
p.m. to discuss the 2011 library budget. 

George Magerl asked for board approval to change the July 20,2010 Board of Trustees 
meeting time from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. and to change the August 17, 2010 Board of 
Trustees meeting time from 7:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m., with the board dinner immediately 
following the meeting. 

MOTION by George Magerl, seconded by Myrtle Klebe, to approve the change in Board 
of Trustees meeting time July 20, 2010 from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. and the August 17, 
2010 Board of Trustees meeting from 7:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m., with the board dinner 
immediately following the meeting. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE 

Susan Moylan Krey reported that the Nominating Committee voted to approve the slate of 
officers, George Magerl, President, Noreen Lake, Vice President, Treasurer, Jeffery 
Rozovics and Carol Kidd, Secretary, for 2010 -2011. 

MOTION by Committee, to approve the slate of officers, George Magerl, President, 
Noreen Lake, Vice President, Jeffery ROZQvics, Treasurer, and Carol Kidd, Secretary, for 
2010- 2011. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 



• 

• 

• 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

MOTION by George Magerl, seconded by Myrtle Klebe, to enter into an Executive 
Session at 9:05 p.m. to discuss the Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance 
or Dismissal of the Library Director and Semi-Annual Review of Executive Session 
Minutes. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

The regular session reconvened at 10:36 p.m. and was called to order by President 
Noreen Lake. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION ACTION 

MOTION by George Magerl, seconded by Eldon Burk, to direct President Lake to carry 
out the decision made in Executive Session and to set another Executive Session meeting 
date to concur with the recommendation made in Executive Session for the AppOintment, 
Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance or Dismissal of the Library Director. 
VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

The Board will meet on Tuesday, June 29, 2010 at 5:00 p.m. to discuss the AppOintment, 
Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance or Dismissal of the Library Director 
and Semi-Annual Review of Executive Session Minutes. 

MOTION by Eldon Burk, seconded by Myrtle Klebe, to adjourn the regular meeting. 
VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

Meeting adjourned at 10:43 p.m. 

Minutes prepared Carol Kidd. 



m 
.::. 
(~) -,-,---::
(7) 

•• 

• 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Special Meeting 

JunE; 29, 2010 

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, Il 60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

The special meeting of the Des Plaines Public Library Board of Trustees was held in 
the second floor meeting room on Tuesday, June 29, 2010. President Noreen Lake 
called the meeting to order at 5:05 PM. 

ROLLCALL 

Roll call indicated the following board members were present: Eldon Burk, Selma 
D'Souza, Myrtle Klebe, Susan Moylan Krey, Noreen Lake, George Magerl, Jennifer 
Tsalapatanis . 

Members Absent: Jeffery Rozovics, Elaine Tejcek. 

Also Present: Sandra Norlin, Carol Kidd, Heather Imhoff, Brenda Murphy, Jennifer 
Delgado. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA. 

MOTION by Eldon Burk, seconded by Susan Moylan Krey, to accept agenda, as 
presented. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Eldon Burk, to enter into an 
Executive Session at 5:10p.m. to discuss Semi-Annual Review of Executive Session 
Minutes and the Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, 
Performance or Dismissal of the Library Director. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

The regular session reconvened at 6:03 p.m. and was called to order by President 
Noreen Lake. 

--I·:J 
www·P!.~~A // 
-~ 



• ROLL CALL. 

• 

• 

Roll call indicated the following board members were present: Eldon Burk, Selma 
D'Souza, Myrtle Klebe, Susan Moylan Krey, Noreen Lake, George Mager!, Elaine 
Tejcek, Jennifer Tsalapatanis. 

Members Absent: Jeffery Rozovics. 

Also Present: Sandra Norlin, Carol Kidd, Heather Imhoff, Brenda Murphy, Jennifer 
Delgado. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION ACTION 

MOTION by Eldon Burk, seconded by George Mager!, to concur with the decision 
made in Executive Session to release Executive Session minutes from the meetings 
of November 18, 2008 and December 23, 2008 and to retain all remaining 
Executive Session Minutes on file. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION 
CARRIED. 

MOTION by George Magerl, seconded by Elaine Tejcek, to hire Holly Sorensen as 
the Library Director at the salary discussed in Executive Session. ROLL CALL VOTE: 
AYES: Burk, D'Souza, Klebe, Moylan Krey, Lake, Mager!, Tejcek, Tsalapatanis. 
NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Jennifer Tsalapatanis, to adjourn the 
regular meeting. VOTE: A YES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

The meeting adjourned at 6:06 p.m. 

Minutes prepared by Carol Kidd. 



(Z) 

.>. 
cp Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 
()o 

21W457 Warrenville Road. Warrenville. IL 60555·3902 
________________________________ -J/ /r------------------~--~-------

• 
Certified Public Accountants 

July 20, 20 \0 

Members of the Board of Trustees 
Des Plaines Public Library 
Des Plaines, IL 60016 

(847) 562·9252 

We have compiled the accompanying balance sheet of the Des Plaines Public Library as of June 30, 
2010 and the related statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the one month 
and the six months then ended in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review 
Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements, information that is the 
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements 
and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them. 

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures required by generally accepted 
accounting principles. If the omitted disclosures were included in the financial statements, they might 
influence the user's conclusions about the Library's assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and expenses. 

• Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed about such 
matters. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 

• 



(~) 

<,;) 

• 

• 

._---------------------------

Institution 

Des Plaines Public Library 

Treasurer's Report as of June 30, 2010 

201-1101000 - Petty Cash 

201-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 
202-1102005 - Cash Payable #1944119043 

201-1102007 - Cash Payroll #1944652940 

201-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 
202-1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 

201-1102012 - Cash IL Fund #007139119668 
707-1102012 - Cash IL Fund #007139119668 

201-1102009 - Cash Payroll #8100292278 

201-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 
202-1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

201-1102028 - Cash Library Donations 

201-1102073 - Cash IL - Epay #151600222104 

201-1102076 -IL Funds - Library # 151600221288 
202-1102076 - IL Funds - Library 

201-1102078 - Cash IL - Epay Library 

201-1102079 -IL Funds -151600222591 

201-1104006 -Investments - Certificates of Deposit 

Total Invested 

Invested 

500.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

(311,663.05) 

(342,922.29) 
0.00 

(342,922.29) 

12.96 
206,336.00 
206,348.96 

156,347.75 
156,347.75 

92,097.81 
(48,248.24) 
43,849.57 

15,770.44 
15,770.44 

2,425.83 

369,897.95 
223,386.09 
593,284.04 

9,368.79 

2,247,440.73 

101,998.07 

2,722,748.84 



_~. July 14,2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2010 

• 
____ Library Fund ___ _ 

1101000 - Petty Cash 

1102007 - Cash Payroll #1944652940 

1102008 - Cash Deposit #1944650243 

1102009 - Cash Payroll #6100292278 

1102012-Cash1LFund #007139119668 

1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

1102028 - Cash Library Donations 

1102073 - Cash IL - Epay 151600008073 

1102076 -IL Funds - Library 

1102078 - Cash IL - Epay Library 

1102079 -IL Funds-

1104006 • Investments· Certificates of Deposit 
1118000 - Receivable - Property Taxes 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

•

2401000 - Accounts Payable 

2401001 - Audit Accounts Payable 
2401010 - Federal W/H Payable 
2401020 - F.IC.A. W/H Payable 

2401030 - State W/H Payable 

2410020 - Escrow Deposits 
2430010 - Due To - Corporate General 
2430080 - Due To· Employee Retirement Trust 
2430099 - Due To Other Funds 
2450030 . Accrued Liability· Comp Absence 
2450035 - Accrued ST -L T Comp Absence 

2450040 - Accrued Payroll 
2450070 - Accrued FICA Withholding 
2450080 - Accrued IMRF Pension 

2450082 - RHS IMRF 
2470000 - Deferred Revenue - Property Tax 
2470100· Library Deferred Revenue 
2471000· Deferred Revenue - Other 
2490010· Compensated Absences Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000· Fund Balance· Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

• 

Beginning 

Balance 

500.00 

(311,663.05) 

(342,922,29) 

0.00 

12.96 

57,914.14 

11,632.89 

1,428.51 

369,818.87 

8,614.55 

2,874,427.04 

101,826.83 

6,599,703.00 

937t 293.45 

135,916.80 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

25,438.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

6,442,163.00 
8,058.00 

0.00 
0.00 

6,611,575.80 

1 .484 291.17 

8,095,866.97 

1,275,426.48 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
1 

M.T.D. 
Changes 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

156,347.75 

0.00 

34,183.67 

4,137.55 

997.32 

79.08 

754.24 

(626,986.31 ) 

171.24 

0.00 

(430,315.46) 

58,494.95 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

58,494.95 

0.00 

58,494.95 

Ending 

Balance 

500.00 

(311.663.05) 

(342.922.29) 

156,347.75 

12.96 

92,097.81 

15,770.44 

2,425.63 

369,897.95 

9,368.79 

2,247,440.73 

101,998.07 

6,599,703.00 

8,940,977.99 

194,401.75 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
25,438.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
6,442,163.00 

8,058.00 

0.00 
0.00 

6,670,060.75 

1 .494,291.17 

8,154,351.92 

(488,800.41) ==~7~8~6,;:,6;:;;26::;.~07:. 



(4) 
.:::" July 14, 2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2010 

• 
____ .Capltal Projects Fund, ___ _ 

1102015 - First Midwest Operating #8100292260 

1102076 -IL Funds - Library 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2401000 - Accounts Payable 
2401001 - Audit Accounts Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

- ____ compensated Absences Fund, ___ _ 

1102012-Cash1LFund #007139119668 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

2450035 - Accrued ST -L T Camp Absence 
2490010 - Compensated Absences Payable 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

• 

Beginning 

Balance 

(31.528.99) 
223,386.09 
191.857.10 

M.T.D. 
Changes 

Ending 

Balance 

(16,719.25) (48,248.24) 

0.00 223,386.09 
(16719.25) __ -,1",75"".1",3",7",.8 ... 5 

16,719.25 (16.719.25) 0.00 
16.531.10 ____ "'0'-!l.0!L0 __ ......!.16"'."'53,...1"'.1"'-0 
33.250.35 __ --'(,!J16!4.7!..1u;9"'.2""5) __ ---'1"'6"',5"'3"'1."'10"-

206851.74 ____ --10!.!.0!!L0 __ ~2.,0"'6"'.8"'5"'1.""74:!. 

240,102.09 = __ (~1g,6,:..71~9;:;.2~5) =_.:2~23;:;,;:;38~2~.84:;;. 

(48,244.99) ====.:O:;:.O~O ==d(~48:;,,2;;;44=-.9~9) 

206,336.00 0.00 206,336.00 
206.336.00 0.00 206,336.00 

124,380.00 0.00 124,380.00 
81,956.00 ____ -"0"'.0"-0 __ --"'81 .... ,9"'56=.0"'-0 

206,336.00 ____ .l!0.l!.0!L0 __ ..<2",06",.",33",6"".0",-0 

____ -'0"'.0"'-0 ____ -'0"'.0"'-0 ____ -"O"'.0!L0 

206,336.00 ====~O~.OO~ ==~2~06:;,,3~3~6..:.0~0 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
2 



m 
.;,. July 14, 2010 ,., 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2010 

____ Fixed Assets Fund, ___ _ 

1203000 - Fix~ Assets - Improvements 

1204201 • Fixed Assets· Ubrary Equipment 

1204300 • Fixed Assets· Vehicles 

Beginning 
Balance 

235,874.00 

869.440.00 

161,448.00 

1209900· FixtKt Assets - Accumulated Depreciation (372,709.00) 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

Fund Balance 

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 

Total liabilities and Net Capital Assets 

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 

• 

• 

894.053.00 

0.00 

894.053.00 
894,053.00 

894,053.00 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
3 

0.00 

M.T.D. 
Changes 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Ending 

Balance 

235,874.00 

869,440.00 

161,448.00 

(372.709.00) 

894,053.00 

0.00 

894,053.00 
894,053.00 

894,053.00 

0.00 



<,> 
_" July 14, 2010 
~ .. ,~ Des Plaines Public Library 
u~ Revenue Report as of June 30, 2010 

• Received Received Budgeted Uncollected Percentage 

this Month this Year Receipts Receipts Collected 

Library Fund 

Taxes 

4810019 - Property Taxes 2002 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810020 - Property Taxes 2003 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810021 - Property Taxes 2004 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810022 - Property Taxes 2005 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810023 - Property Taxes 2006 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4810024 - Property Taxes 2007 0.00 (27,289.63) 0.00 27,289.63 0.00 

4810025 - Property Taxes 2008 0.00 250,367.73 50,000.00 (200,367.73) 500.74 

4810026 - Property Taxes 2009 0.00 3,340,343.67 6,309,802.00 2,969,458.33 52.94 
0.00 3,563,421.77 6,359,802.00 2,796,380.23 56.03 

Intergovernmental 

4810800 - Personal Property Replacement Tax 0.00 23,247.00 92,988.00 69,741.00 25.00 

4822040 - Stata Grant - Per Capita 0.00 0.00 57,700.00 57,700.00 0.00 

4822095 - Stata Grant - Library 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 23,247.00 150,688.00 127,441.00 15.43 

.eS&FeeS 

850101 - Library Fees 477.89 2,151.78 0.00 (2,151.78) 0.00 

4850102 - Library Fines 8,509.38 64,215.29 125,000.00 60,764.71 51.37 

4850103 - Library Fines I Credit Card 2,911.40 6,820.24 0.00 (6,820.24) 0.00 

4850201 - Copying Fee 1,004.15 14,516.70 30,000.00 15,483.30 48.39 

4850202 - Damaged Materials 8.00 231.82 0.00 (231.82) 0.00 

4850203 - Lost Materials 737.85 3,734.74 0.00 (3,734.74) 0.00 

4850205 - Bags 83.00 464.00 0.00 (464.00) 0.00 

4850207 - Non-Res Cards 0.00 1 067.50 0.00 (1 067.50) 0.00 
13,731.67 93,202.07 155,000.00 61,797.93 60.13 

Special PrQgrams & Eyents 

4850215 - Special Programs & Events 0.00 664.93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 

0.00 664.93 5,000.00 4,335.07 13.30 

Other Revenue 

4890010 • Interest Income 599.45 2,413.37 5,000.00 2,586.63 48.27 

4890050 - Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 

4899900 • Miscellaneous Revenue 5,803.46 12,154.91 17,500.00 5,345.09 69.46 

4899920 - Library Donations 458.00 182.59 10,000.00 9,817.41 1.83 

6,860.91 14,750.87 33,500.00 18,749.13 44.03 

Total Library Fund 20,592.58 3,695,286.64 6,703,990.00 3,008,703.36 55.12 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 

1 



m 
_'" July 14, 2010 

Capital Projects Fund 

Other Revenue 

4890010 -Interest Income 

Total Capital Projects Fund 

Total 01 All Funds 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Revenue Report as of June 30, 2010 

Received 

this Month 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

20,592.58 

Received 

this Vear 

3.25 

3.25 

3.25 

3,695,289.89 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 

2 

Budgeted Uncollected Percentage 

Receipts Receipts Collected 

5,000.00 4,996.75 0.07 
5,000.00 4,996.75 0.07 

305,000.00 304,996.75 0.00 

7,008,990.00 3,313,700.11 52.72 



(!) 
.S. July 14, 2010 
,,' Des Plaines Public Library ", 

Expense Report as of June 30, 2010 

• M.T.D. V.T.D Budgeted Budgeted Pre!. 

Expended Expended Amount Remain. Expend. 

Library Fund 

Salaries 

5910100· Salaries 263,170.75 1,021,700.33 2,318,022.00 1,296,321.67 44.08 
5910200· Temporary Wages 0.00 284,401.81 789,113.00 504,711.19 36.04 
5910400 - Non - Supervisory Overtime 0.00 216.35 0.00 (216.35) 0.00 
5910500'· Vacation Pay 0.00 58,847.46 0.00 (58,847.46) 0.00 
5910600· Sick Pay 0.00 21,317.28 0.00 (21,317.28) 0.00 
5910700· Holiday Pay 0.00 21,303.39 0.00 (21,303.39) 0.00 
5910900· AcVOut of Class/Premium 0.00 5,466.52 0.00 (5,466.52) 0.00 
5910950· Excess Sick Hours Pay Out 0.00 2,898.73 3,500.00 601.27 82.82 
5910970· Compensated Absences 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

263.170.75 1,416,151.87 3.110,635.00 1.694,483.13 45.53 

Benefits 
5918010 - Unemployment Compensation 0.00 0.00 4,986.00 4,986.00 0.00 
5918020 • Employer Contribution· FICA 18,589.09 104,976.87 237,314.00 132,337.13 44.24 
5918021 • Employer Contribution ·IMRF 21,818.08 133,201.80 297,814.00 184,612.20 44.73 
5918030· EAP Program 0.00 0.00 682.00 682.00 0.00 
5918040 - Life Insurance Premiums 0.00 2,607.80 6,576.00 3,968.20 39.66 
5918050 - PPO Insurance Premiums 0.00 128,019.43 389,041.00 261,021.57 32.91 
5918051 - HMO Insurance Premiums 0.00 40,470.96 111,979.00 71,508.04 36.14 
5918055 - Oentallnsurance Premiums 0.00 10,855.05 31,505.00 20,849.95 34.46 
5918070· Workers Compensation 0.00 5,284.32 9,500.00 4,235.68 55.41 

.18085. RHS Plan Payout 0.00 5214.26 10,000.00 4,785.74 52.14 
4040717 43061049 1 09939700 66878651 3917 

Contraclui!1 Servic!! 
5920100 • Legal Fees 228.00 2,023.49 15,000.00 12,976.51 13.49 
5920105 - Costs of Litigation 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 
5920110 - Professional Services 27,552.69 162,969.34 405,000.00 242,030.66 40.24 
5920120 - Communication Services 3,565.34 15,578.56 28,460.00 12,881.42 54.74 
5920140 - Data Processing Services 4,378.41 35,768.34 100,800.00 65,031.66 35.48 
5920202 - Conferences 535.00 579.25 0.00 (579.25) 0.00 
5920204 - Training 0.00 942.00 2,600.00 1,658.00 36.23 
5920205 - Tuition Reimbursements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920206 • Seminars 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920210 -In Service Training 0.00 3,208.31 0.00 (3,208.31) 0.00 
5920220 • Membership Dues 375.00 2,499.00 6,500.00 4,001.00 38.45 
5920225 - UcensingfTitles 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 
5920230 • Publication of Notices 0.00 971.20 1,000.00 28.80 97.12 
5920850· Subsidy· 1994 E.R.P Trans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5920900 • PropertylLiability Contributions 0.00 0.00 24,869.00 24,869.00 0.00 
5930010 • R&M Equipment 5,683.86 69,614.05 110,062.00 40,447.95 63.25 
5930020· R&M Buildings & Structures 8,766.25 36,847.32 116,235.00 79,587.68 31.53 
5930030 • R&M Vehicles 727.04 3,721.05 14,300.00 10,578.95 26.02 
5930195· Book Binding & Repair 0.00 215.10 1,000.00 784.90 21.51 
5930210· Rental of Equipment 184.00 984.00 26,500.00 25,516.00 3.71 
5930320 • Cleaning/Custodial Services 8,173.00 66,136.00 96,700.00 30,584.00 68.39 
5930490· Refuse Contract 1,091.08 3:808.34 5,500.00 1,691.66 69.24 
5960040 • Employee Physicals 0.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 
5960065 - Bank Fees 58.13 241.46 0.00 (241.46) 0.00 

• See Accountants' Compilation Report 
1 



(!) 
.::. July 14, 2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Expense Report as of June 30, 2010 

• 
5960070 - Travel Expense 
5960210 - Special Evenl Programming 
5960990 - Misc. Contractual SerVices 

Commodities 
5970100 - Office Supplies 
5970110 - Meals 
5970115 - Supplies - DepUOthel 
5970170 - Janitorial 
5970260 - Postage & Parcel 
5970270 - Prinitng -Reproduction-Binding 
5970330 - Supplies - Vehicles RIM 
5970500 - Purchase of Water 
5970600 - Books 
5970610 - Audio Materials 
5970620 - Subscriptions & BookS 
5970630 - Visual Materials 
5970640 - Automated Reference Materials 
5970810 - Naturel Gas 
5970820 - Electricity 
5970840 - Diesel 
5970850 - Gasoline 

.70900 - Equipment < $5,000 

Capjtal Expenditures 
5980300 - Improvements 
5980400 - Equipment 
5980410 - Computer Hardware 
5980420 - Computer Software 
5980600 - Furniture & Fixtures 

Other Funding Activities 
5990935 - Trans to DIS - 2002A Bond 
5990940 - Trans to Library Capital Proj. Fund 
5990955 - Trans to DIS - 2003B Bond 
5993000 - Contingency Reserve 

Total Library Fund Expenditures 

• 

M.T.D. V,T,D Budge1ed Budgeted Prct . 

Expended Expended Amount Remain, Expend. 

0.00 248.00 500.00 252.00 49.60 
1,980.27 15,703.84 31,000.00 15,296.16 '. 50.66 

19,104.95 53,526.89 99375.00 45,848.11 53.86 
82,383.02 475,385.56 1 ,089,251.00 613,865.44 43.64 

5,683.51 63,868.82 116,300.00 52,431.18 54.92 
0.00 747.34 2,800.00 2,052.66 26.69 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,363.25 12,538.47 20,600.00 8,061.53 60.87 
928.10 10,646.04 13,300.00 2,653.96 80.05 

0.00 1,271.50 5,000.00 3,728.50 25.43 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

912.18 2,761.49 8,000.00 5,238.51 34.52 
53,838.87 226,975.20 489,800.00 262,824.80 46.34 
12,201.39 36,435.63 84,600.00 48,164.37 43.07 

1,086.76 9,956.71 78,800.00 68,843.29 12.64 
10,015.59 53,426.70 96,250.00 42,823.30 55.51 
4,004.00 77,922.09 141,000.00 63,077.91 55.26 
4,882.40 21,535.98 30,000.00 8,464.02 71.79 

0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 
0.00 1,030.31 4,000.00 2,969.69 25.76 
0.00 206.87 2,000.00 1,793.13 10.34 
0.00 2,688.87 5500.00 2,811.13 48.89 

94916.05 522,012.02 1 ,098 450.00 576.437.98 47.52 

0.00 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 0.00 
24,865.00 41,500.64 33,000.00 (8,500.64) 125.76 

0.00 1,016.48 6,750.00 5,733.52 15.06 
2,620.00 6,451.53 32,000.00 25,548.47 20.16 
1,031.00 5,573.65 20,500.00 14,926.35 27.19 

28,516.00 54,542.30 100,250.00 45,707.70 54.41 

0.00 0.00 24,598.00 24,598.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 9,958.33 75000.00 65,041.67 13.28 
0.00 9,958.33 399598.00 389639.67 2.49 

509,392.99 2,908,660.57 6,897,581.00 3,988,920.43 42.17 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
2 



(') 
,; July 14, 2010 .. ' 
~,,;J 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Expense Report as of June 30,2010 

• 
Capital Projects Fund 

Contractual Services 
5920110 - professional Services 

Capital Expenditures 
5980300 ' Improvements 
5980400 ' Equipment 
5980410, Computer Hardware 

Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures 

Total of All Funds 

• 

• 

M.T.D . 

Expended 

g.OO 
000 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
Q 00 

0.00 

509.392.99 

V.T.D 

Expended 

0.00 
000 

0.00 
16.719.25 
31,528.99 
4624824 

48.248.24 

2.956,908.81 

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
3 

Budgeted 

Amount 

15000.00 
1500000 

92.000.00 
24.000.00 
76,100,00 

lS2 HlQ DO 

207.100.00 

7,104.681.00 

Budgeted 

Remain. 

15,000.00 
15 ngo PO 

92.000.00 
7.280.75 

44,571.01 
143851 76 

158.851.76 

4.147.772.19 

Prct. 

Expend. 

0.00 
pop 

0.00 
69.66 
41.43 
2512 

23.30 

41.62 



(") 
.~ All checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
.,' June 2010 Check Register Page 1 (» 

07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Check Number Cbeck Date Payee Amount 

Checks 
10415 07/20/10 10,000 VILLAGES 72.00 
10416 07120110 ABC·CLIO, INC. 799.00 
10417 07120/10 ACCUITY INC 1,299.00 
10418 07/20/10 ALEXIAN BROTHERS CORP HEALTH SERV 174.00 
10419 07/20/10 ANDERSON LOCK CO LTD 145.00 
10420 07/20/10 APPLE BOOKS 103.84 
10421 07120/10 AUTOMATED LOGIC 2,441.25 
10422 07/20/10 BAKER & TAYLOR 15,017.31 
10423 07/20/10 BAKER & TAYLOR 26,697.25 
10424 07120/10 BANC OF AMERICA LEASING 2,005.00 
10425 07/20/10 BANKCARD SERVICES 3,615.86 
10426 07/20/10 BBC AUDIOBOOKS AMERICA 202.38 
10427 07/20/10 BERNAN 332.40 
10428 07/20/10 BILL'S AUTO & TRUCK REPAIR 727.04 
10429 07/20/10 BLACKSTONE AUDIO INC 111.50 
10430 07/20/10 BRODARTCOMPANY 10.63 
10431 07/20/10 CITY OF DES PLAINES FIRE DEPARTMENT 400.00 
10432 07/20/10 CITY OF DES PLAINES, PUBLIC WORKS 912.18 
10433 07/20/10 CLEARWEA VE CORPORATION 16.70 
10434 07/20/10 COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC 12,333.00 
10435 07/20/10 COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 6.196.60 
10436 07/20/10 DEBBIE HILLMAN 150.00 
10437 07/20/10 DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP 3.184.89 
10438 07/20/10 EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SVC 69.62 
10439 07120110 EDC EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 152.88 
10440 07/20/10 ENVIROMENTAL GROUP SERVICES, LTD. • 1,525.00 

• 10441 07/20/10 EVOLUTION MARKETING GROUP INC 1.410.34 
10442 07/20/10 FINDA WA Y WORLD LLC 739.88 
10443 07/20/10 GALE 6.180.53 
10444 07120/10 GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUTS 163.17 
10445 07/20/10 GREY HOUSE PUBLISHING 609.25 
10446 07/20/10 GUSTANO J. GONZALEZ 25.25 
10447 07/20/10 INFORMATION TODAY. INC. 553.10 
10448 07120/10 INNOVATION EXPERTS 7.260.00 
10449 07120/10 INTERIOR TROPICAL GARDENS INC 170.00 
10450 07120/10 JOSEPH STEF ANTIS 175.00 
10451 07/20/10 KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LTD. 228.00 
10452 07/20/10 LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP. 10.500.00 
10453 07/20/10 LIBRARY FURNITURE INTERNTL 395.00 
10454 07/20/10 LINCOLN TRAIL LIBRARIES SYSTEM 900.00 
10455 07/20/10 MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION OF ILLINOIS 160.00 
10456 07/20/10 MARQUIS WHO'S WHO 355.70 
10457 07/20/10 MATTHEW BENDER & COMPANY INC 2,663.57 
10458 07/20/10 MICHAEL CLOUD 250.00 
10459 07/20/10 MIDWEST SWISS EMBROIDERIES CO. 182.09 
10460 07/20/10 MIDWEST TAPE 6.879.19 
10461 07/20/10 MIDWEST TAPE 6,298.22 
10462 07/20/10 MISSOURI LIBRARY NETWORK CORP 125.00 
10463 07120/10 MORNINGSTAR INCORPORATED 170.00 
10464 07/20/10 NEWSBANK 840.00 
10465 07/20/10 NORMAN ELECTRICAL CONSTRUCTION CO 1.105.00 
10466 07/20/10 OFFICE DEPOT 107.63 
10467 07/20/10 OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP 29,578.33 
10468 07/20/10 PADDOCK PUBLICATIONS, INC. 127.00 
10469 07/20/10 PITNEY BOWES 1.070.84 
10470 07/20/10 PROQUEST LLC 1,465.00 • 10471 07120/10 RANDOM HOUSE INCORPORATED 95.10 
10472 07/20/10 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 1,490.30 
10473 07120/10 REED CONSTRUCTION DATA 43.15 
10474 07/20/10 REGENT BOOK COMPANY 13.62 



(::) 
All checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB .». 

h'~ June 2010 Check Register Page 2 
<I) 07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Check Number Check Date Payee Amount 

10475 07120/10 ROOM & BOARD BUSINESS INTERIORS LLC 636.00 
10476 07/20110 RUNGE PAPER COMPANY,INC. 1.331.45 
10477 07/20/10 SALEM PRESS 752.00 
10478 07/20110 SCHINDLER ELEVATOR CORPORATION 795.00 
10479 07/20110 SOMETHING FISHY INC 31.97 
10480 07/20110 SPEED-E-KLEEN 120.00 
10481 07/20110 STANDARD & POOR'S 810.48 
10482 07120110 TODA Y'S BUSINESS SOL\JTIONS INC 24,865.00 
10483 07/20110 UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 1.928.35 
10484 07120110 VALUE LINE PUBLlSIHNG , INC. 598.00 
10485 07/20110 WAREHOUSE DIRECT 345.83 
10486 07/20110 WASTE MANAGEMENT 131.89 
10487 07/20110 WASTE MANAGEMENT 338.06 
10488 07120110 WASTE MANAGEMENT 621.13 
10489 07120110 WEST GROUP 73.00 
50038 06/30110 NICORGAS 4,882.40 
50039 06/30110 NEXTEL 920.53 
50040 06/30110 NEXTEL 1.056.78 
50041 06/30110 CALL ONE 456.23 
50042 06/30110 AT&T 221.85 
50043 06/30110 AT&T 98.35 
50044 06/30110 AT&T 43.15 
50045 06/30110 McLEOD USA 299.39 
50046 06/30110 VERIZON WIRELESS 127.02 
50047 06/30110 COMCAST CABLE 220.96 
50048 06/30110 LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS. LLC. 476.65 
50049 06/30110 LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS, LLC. 469.38 

• 50050 06/30110 SPRINT 19.21 
50051 06/30110 SPRINT 16.36 
50052 06/30110 WOW! INTERENT CABLE 82.49 
50053 06/30110 PRO DATA 199.86 
50054 06/30/10 PRO DATA 204.50 

Total checks 92 Total 204.196.86 

• 



All Checkbooks 
June 2010 

• AT&T 

Vendor Name 

Account No. Description 
201-5920120 ACH 

AT&T 
Account No. Description 
201-5920120 ACH 

AT&T 
Account No. Description 
201-5920120 ACH 

CALL ONE 
Account No. Description 
201-5920120 ACH 

COMCAST CABLE 
Account No. Description 
201-5920120 ACH 

LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS, LLC. 
Account No. Description 
201-5920120 ACH 

LEVEL(3) COMMUNICATIONS, LLC. 
Account No. Description 
201-5920120 ACH 

McLEOD USA 

• 
Account No. Description 
201-5920120 ACH 

NEXTEL 
Account No. Description 
201-5920120 ACH 

NEXTEL 
Account No. Description 
201-5920120 ACH 

NICORGAS 
Account No. Description 
201-5970810 ACH 

PRO DATA 
Account No. Description 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Vendor Checks Report 

Cbk.No. 

50042 

50043 

50044 

50041 

50047 

50048 

50049 

50045 

50039 

50040 

50038 

50053 

Cbeck Date 

06/30/10 
Amount 

221.85 

06/30/10 
Amount 

98.35 

06/30/10 
Amount 

43.15 

06/30/10 
Amount 

456.23 

06/30/10 
Amount 

220.96 

06/30110 
Amount 

476.65 

06/30110 
Amount 

469.38 

06/30110 
Amount 

299.39 

06/30/10 
Amount 

920.53 

06/30/10 
Amount 

1.056.78 

06/30/10 
Amount 

4,882.40 

201-5920110 6/4 Payroll Processing 

06/30/10 
Amount 

199.86 

PRO DATA 
Account No. Description 
201-5920110 6/18 Payroll Processing 

SPRINT 
Account No. Description 
201-5920120 ACH 

SPRINT 
Account No. 

• 

201-5920120 
Description 
ACH 

VERIZON WIRELESS 
Account No. Description 

50054 

50050 

50051 

50046 

06/30/10 
Amount 

204.50 

06/30/10 
Amount 

19.21 

06/30/10 
Amount 

16.36 

06/30/10 
Amount 

Amount 

221.85 

98.35 

43.15 

456.23 

220.96 

476.65 

469.38 

299.39 

920.53 

1,056.78 

4,882.40 

199.86 

204.50 

19.21 

16.36 

127.02 

DESPLANSLIB 

Page 1 
07/14/1005:56 PM 



~;) All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
~::~ 

',) June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 2 
~.,I' 07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201-5920120 ACH 127.02 

WOW! INTERENT CABLE 50052 06/30/10 82.49 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920120 ACH 82.49 

Subtotal 9,795.11 

10,000 VILLAGES 10415 07/20110 72.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 13386 RX 72.00 

ABC-CLlO, INC. 10416 07/20110 799.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970640 Invoice # C8920 799.00 

ACCUITY INC 10417 07/20110 1,299.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2328748 927.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2330235 372.00 

ALEXIAN BROTHERS CORP HEALTH SER' 10418 07/20110 174.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 369690 55.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 366885 119.00 

ANDERSON LOCK CO LTD 10419 07120110 145.00 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoicd 7020100 145.00 

APPLE BOOKS 10420 07/20110 103.84 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 88750 103.84 

AUTOMATED LOGIC 10421 07120110 2,441.25 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoice # 008995 2,441.25 

BAKER & TAYLOR 10422 07120110 15,017.31 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024576027 3.36 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024576347 23.36 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024583924 5.54 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024588803 1.12 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024588809 0.64 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024598158 2.82 
201-5960990 Invoie< # 2024598244 2.71 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024598274 3.53 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024597870 18.68 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024598340 74.36 
201-5960990 Invoie< # 2024597854 0.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024610589 0.47 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024610611 0.47 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024601059 6.68 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024610595 7.66 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024610420 4.62 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024623922 11.62 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 2024628770 10.19 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024626846 1.59 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024626822 2.56 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024636008 1.11 



m All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB .:,. 
~.,J June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 3 
~"!) 

07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name ChI<. No. CheckD.te Amount 

201·5960990 Invoice # 2024635839 6.23 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024635576 14.31 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024628772 11.34 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024700764 3.36 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024704632 1.24 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024706034 12.32 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024696080 3.36 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024700726 73.65 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024700859 25.43 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024708594 5.12 
201·5960990 Invoice # 121038700 2.99 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024742979 0.64 
201·5960990 Invoice # 5010873390 13.30 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024770449 36.78 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024775868 13.59 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024785398 4.62 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024777824 15.52 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024789022 1.68 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024789688 4.64 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024557716 7.91 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024562221 0.47 
20 l-5960990 Invoice # 2024557720 2.05 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024557734 2.41 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024562201 0.79 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024574137 3.18 
20 l-5960990 Invoice # 2024574253 96.54 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024576154 3.29 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024576337 7.01 

• 201·5960990 Invoice # 2024574347 14.85 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024649515 4.30 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024654350 0.94 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024652209 1.92 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024660757 2.24 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024665823 4.48 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024660786 5.73 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024675663 4.48 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024675799 7.08 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024680746 38.16 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024678840 0.47 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024678788 0.47 
20 l-5960990 Invoice # 2024680745 l.ll 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024680605 10.49 
20 l-5960990 Invoice # 2024680863 2.24 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024680846 17.41 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024680888 6.72 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024687704 3.76 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024687719 1.41 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024687754 0.96 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024678811 5.19 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024678798 4.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024678617 8.96 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024687770 2.31 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024698238 23.80 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024693882 51.27 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024576347 251.24 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024583924 78.33 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024588803 9.65 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024588809 19.07 • 201-5970600 Invoice # 2024598158 62.95 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024598244 27.43 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024598274 45.80 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024597870 192.85 



m All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB "::~ 
h' June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 4 
'''> 07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201-5970600 Invoice # 2024598340 816.38 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024597854 0.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024610589 9.50 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024610611 5.27 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024601059 145.22 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024610595 97.76 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024610420 50.62 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024623922 139.10 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024628770 86.34 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024626846 24.69 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024626822 28.88 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024636008 23.27 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024635839 100.41 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024635576 168.87 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024628772 145.20 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024700764 38.97 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024704632 14.19 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024706034 151.25 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024696080 45.41 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024700726 237.99 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024700859 315.88 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024708594 63.26 
201-5970600 Invoice # 5010844356 4.62 
201-5970600 Credit Memo # 0002016241 -13.68 
201-5970600 Credit Memo # 0002018960 -47.77 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024789470 179.49 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024770419 640.79 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024748077 603.51 

• 201-5970600 Invoice # 2024727380 32.16 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024737112 81.13 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024742979 13.35 
201-5970600 Invoice # 50 I 0873390 1,064.48 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024770448 1.187.42 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024775868 371.16 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024785398 20.32 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024777824 242.65 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024789022 23.74 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024789688 73.41 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024557716 177.29 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024562221 12.05 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024557720 31.57 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024557734 37.77 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024562201 11.26 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024574137 40.70 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024574253 1,148.25 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024576154 76.31 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024576337 59.69 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024574347 123.49 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024576027 35.82 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024649515 70.01 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024654350 11.51 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024652209 0.25 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024660757 19.30 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024665823 51.36 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024660786 43.24 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024675663 60.74 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024675799 16.71 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024680746 567.61 • 201-5970600 Invoice # 2024678840 5.97 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024678788 18.08 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024680745 7.75 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024680605 162.78 



m 
Des Plaines Public Library -::. All Checkbooks DESPlANSLIB 

',! June 2010 Vendor Checks Report PageS .:""l. 
07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name ChI<. No. Check Date Amount 

201·5970600 Invoice # 2024680863 22.69 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024680846 238.40 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024680888 91.11 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024687704 88.76 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024687719 14.23 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024687754 42.89 
201-5970600 Invoice # 202467881 I 63.25 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024678798 78.19 
201-5970600 Invoice # 20246786 I 7 121.48 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024687770 4.77 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024693881 1.901.83 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024698237 665.83 
201-5970610 Invoice # 117705030 30.69 
201-5970610 Invoice # 121038700 6.78 
201-5970630 Invoice # 123893150 33.06 
201-5970630 Invoice # 123647130 36.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 123146980 33.02 
201-5970630 Invoice # 123146970 88.15 
201-5970630 Invoice # 123753630 11.01 

BAKER & TAYLOR 10423 07/20/10 26,697.25 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024771515 6.79 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024772641 7.34 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024775999 1.94 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024778040 10.60 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024477784 25.22 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024784272 1.92 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 2024780961 157.86 
201-5960990 Invoice # 5010898940 9.28 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024810286 14.40 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024808074 3.21 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024808141 4.96 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024800918 28.62 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024800918 2.18 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024796767 2.91 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024800559 0.97 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024802397 5.82 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024797036 4.54 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024800805 16.66 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024805296 26.32 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024714987 6.10 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024724447 18.31 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024716268 17.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024718359 3.36 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024726525 6.61 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024712029 228.86 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024731354 43.24 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024728554 11.84 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024728297 5.82 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024728259 7.76 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024726245 4.62 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024737148 24.08 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024750838 3.06 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024758800 4.92 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024758796 2.18 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024759908 26.14 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024752244 5.54 • 201-5960990 Invoice # 2024754996 29.90 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024765008 29.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024762807 16.97 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024762798 19.38 



a> 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB .~ 

hi June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 6 ,,, 
07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Dale Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024763726 12.40 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024761029 24.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024700856 0.44 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024703373 36.71 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024706378 13.29 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024710069 9.27 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024700857 16.08 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024706051 17.92 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024714442 1.68 
201·5960990 Invoice # 2024720682 26.08 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024721148 1.29 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024714443 2.46 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024721414 5.77 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024739006 25.38 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024728639 15.26 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024739102 52.62 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024744804 20.58 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024744675 52.28 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024741957 4.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024747352 4.85 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024748078 20.68 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024752044 5.82 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024750224 28.06 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024752028 19.40 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024778575 0.32 
201-5960990 Invoice # 2024773466 29.50 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024771515 107.27 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024772641 124.42 

• 201-5970600 Invoice # 2024775999 30.61 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024778040 150.24 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024477784 400.53 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024784271 68.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024780960 3.396.11 
201-5970600 Invoice # 5010898940 681.23 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024816800 324.90 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024808074 55.37 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024808141 58.39 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024800339 67.44 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024800918 28.38 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024796767 43.13 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024800559 14.75 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024802397 87.74 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024797036 57.48 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024800805 454.93 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024805923 734.82 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024716267 720.87 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024724446 462.03 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024718359 43.70 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024726525 130.05 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024712028 3.110.38 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024731353 1,161.02 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024728554 166.64 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024728297 87.74 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024728259 121.56 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024726245 17.94 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024737147 739.49 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024739006 557.79 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024750837 88.48 • 201-5970600 Invoice # 2024758800 13.12 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024758796 30.67 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024759907 814.11 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2024752244 88.10 



(n 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB ." ',) June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 7 

(1l 07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201·5970600 Invoice # 2024754995 834.56 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024765007 862.24 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024762807 222.72 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024762798 36.39 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024763726 266.44 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024761028 439.34 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024778575 3.58 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024700856 6.80 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024703372 1,101.94 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024706378 484.74 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024710069 108.29 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024700857 227.11 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024706051 247.31 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024714442 23.69 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024720681 750.70 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024721147 25.97 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024714443 8.36 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024721413 93.11 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024714986 110.81 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024728639 220.48 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024739102 158.83 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024744803 527.14 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024744674 1.447.04 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024741957 78.31 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024747352 76.66 
20 I· 5970600 Invoice # 0000135610 Ill. 77 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024752044 87.80 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024750224 582.48 

• 201·5970600 Invoice # 2024752028 297.52 
201·5970600 Invoice # 2024773465 721.27 

BANC OF AMERICA LEASING 10424 07/20/10 2,005.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # 011547967 2,005.00 

BANKCARD SERVICES 10425 07120/10 3,615.86 
Account No. DesCription Amount 
201-5920202 535.00 
201-5920220 250.00 
201-5960210 1.473.18 
201-5960990 2.01 
201-5970100 393.34 
201-5970170 31.80 
201·5970260 21.26 
201-5970600 386.32 
201-5970610 37.66 
201-5970620 122.14 
201-5970630 238.15 
201-5980420 125.00 

BBC AUDIOBOOKS AMERICA 10426 07120/10 202.38 
Account No. DesCription Amount 
201-5970610 Invoice # 392650 202.38 

BERNAN 10427 07120/10 332.40 
Account No. DesCription Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 110619621 127.20 
201-5970600 Invoice # 110619291 78.00 

• 201-5970600 Invoice # 110618268 127.20 

10428 07/20/10 727.04 BILL'S AUTO & TRUCK REPAIR 
Account No. DesCription Amount 

------------'---_._------



(!) All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
~~, 

'''> June 2010 Vendor Checks Report PageS 
',J 07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201·5930030 Invoice # 45831 727.Q4 

BLACKSTONE AUDIO INC 10429 07/20/10 111.50 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970610 Invoice ID 536956 52.50 
201-5970610 [nvoice ID 535506' 59.00 

BRODART COMPANY 10430 07/20/10 10.63 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 126884 10.63 

CITY OF DES PLAINES FIRE DEPARTMEN 10431 07/20110 400.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 March CPR Training 400.00 

CITY OF DES PLAINES. PUBLIC WORKS 10432 07/20/10 912.18 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970500 Bill date 6/15/2010 912.18 

CLEARWEA VE CORPORATION 10433 07/20/10 16.70 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 00001727 16.70 

COMPLETE CLEANING COMPANY INC \0434 07120110 12,333.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoice # 1266461 2,070.00 
201-5930020 Invoice # 1266460 2.210.00 
201-5930320 Invoice # 1266041 7,423.00 

• 201-5930320 Invoice # 1265918 630.00 

COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 10435 07/20/10 6.196.60 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920140 Invoice # CCS 617110 4.378.41 
201-5930010 OCLC JED JUNE 2010 1,818.19 

DEBBIE HILLMAN 10436 07120110 150.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960210 Film Program 7/28110 150.00 

DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP 10437 07/20/10 3,184.89 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 3904471 612.14 
201-5970100 Invoice # 3900812 2,572.75 

EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SVC 10438 07/20/10 69.62 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970620 Invoice # 1297145 18.00 
201-5970620 Invoice # 1294136 19.95 
201-5970620 Invoice # 1293148 50.00 
201-5970620 Credit Memo # 0027334 -18.33 

EDC EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 10439 07/20/10 152.88 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 2390045 152.88 

ENVIROMENTAL GROUP SERVICES, LTD. 10440 07/20/10 1.525.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 27459 1,525.00 

• EVOLUTION MARKETING GROUP INC 10441 07120110 1,410.34 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # 613585 1,410.34 



cp 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB .~ 

,.,J June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 9 
()) 07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

FINDA WAY WORLD LLC 10442 07120110 739.88 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970610 Invoice # 30889 89.98 
201-5970610 Invoice # 30888 579.91 
201-5970610 Invoice # 31319 69.99 

GALE 10443 07120110 6.180.53 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16840996 196.60 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16819815 224.70 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16822238 295.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16822847 117.35 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16824020 190.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16821964 182.90 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16823810 190.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16814304 1,457.70 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16813396 1.347.50 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16813787 406.15 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16814037 949.80 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16814933 586.90 
201-5970600 Invoice # 16809445 35.93 

GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUTS 10444 07120110 163.17 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970100 Invoice # PINVI44346 163.17 

GREY HOUSE PUBLISHING 10445 07120110 609.25 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 761947 609.25 

GUSTANO J. GONZALEZ 10446 07120/10 25.25 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Refund of Late Fees 25.25 

INFORMATION TODAY. INC. 10447 07120/10 553.10 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 1291827-8 I 328.05 
201-5970600 Invoice # 1304281-81 225.05 

INNOVATION EXPERTS 10448 07/20/10 7,260.00 
Account No, Description Amount 
201-5970610 Annual Membership Fee 7,260.00 

INTERIOR TROPICAL GARDENS INC 10449 07/20/10 170.00 
Ac.:ount No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 47667 85.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 47401 85.00 

JOSEPH STEFANTIS 10450 07/20/10 175.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960210 Piano Concert 7/25/10 175.00 

KLEIN, THORPE $I. JENKINS, LTD. 10451 07/20/10 228.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920100 Statement # 147443 228.00 

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP. 10452 07/20/10 10,500.00 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice No. 15780 7,800.00 
201-5960990 Invoice No. 15943 1.350.00 
201-5960990 Invoice No. 16237 1,350.00 



• 
All Checkbooks 
June 2010 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Vendor Checks Report 

Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date 

LIBRARY FURNITURE INTERNTL 10453 07120110 
Account No. Description Amount 
20 I -5980600 New end panels Deposit 395.00 

LINCOLN TRAIL LIBRARIES SYSTEM 10454 07120110 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970640 Invoice # 28097 900.00 

MANAGEMENT ASSOCIA nON OF ILLINO 10455 07/20110 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5920110 Invoice # 44402 65.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 44362 95.00 

MARQUIS WHO'S WHO 10456 07120110 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 1015663 355.70 

MATTHEW BENDER & COMP ANY INC \0457 07120110 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 04127854 2,445.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 038752 JO 143.06 
201-5970600 Invoice # 996 I 8664 75.51 

MICHAEL CLOUD 10458 07/20/10 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 015 125.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 016 125.00 

• MIDWEST SWISS EMBROIDERIES CO. 10459 07/20110 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960210 Invoice # 65389 182.09 

MIDWEST TAPE 10460 07/20110 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice #6042549 8.80 
201-5960990 Invoice #6042551 5.70 
201-5960990 Invoice #6052463 5.70 
201-5960990 Invoice #6042550 11.40 
201-5960990 Invoice #6048118 8.55 
201-5960990 Invoice #6053798 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice #6053799 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice #6062074 11.40 
201-5960990 Invoice #6062073 22.80 
201-5960990 Invoice #6059077 25.65 
201-5960990 Invoice #6059076 11.40 
201-5960990 Invoice #6072054 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice #6072056 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice #6072057 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice #6072045 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6072046 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice #6072048 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6072049 11.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6072051 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice #6072047 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice #6067491 6.95 
201-5960990 Invoice #6067482 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice #6067486 15.75 • 201-5960990 Invoice #6067487 32.00 
201-5960990 Invoice #6067488 4.70 
201-5960990 Invoice #6074587 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6074587 9.00 

Amount 

395.00 

900.00 

160.00 

355.70 

2.663.57 

250.00 

182.09 

6,879.19 

DESPLANSLIB 

Page 10 
07/14/1005:56 PM 



G:) All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB .:';). 
June 2010 Vendor Checks Report <,) Page 11 

C,) 07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Cbk.No. Cbeck Date Amount 

201-5960990 Invoice # 6067495 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6067489 28.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067490 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067483 23.10 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067496 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067484 51.95 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067485 33.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067494 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067493 11.45 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6072053 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6072052 2.45 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067498 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067492 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067499 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067497 2.25 
20 I -5960990 Invoice # 6067871 4.90 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067870 9.00 
20 I -5960990 Invoice # 6067879 4.50 
20 I -5960990 Invoice # 606788 I 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067876 13.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067875 6.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067874 18.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067873 13.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6059062 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067869 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6035126 29.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 5973526 34.45 
201-5960990 Invoice # 5983955 37.05 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 6072058 8.55 
201-5960990 Invoice #6072059 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice #6067500 5.95 
201-5960990 Invoice #6067503 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice #606750 I 2.85 

I' 
201-5960990 Invoice #6067502 8.80 
201-5960990 Invoice #6067888 5.70 
201-5960990 Invoice #6067889 11.40 
201-5960990 Invoice #6067890 3.10 
201-5960990 Invoice #6067887 25.65 
20 I -5960990 Invoice #6059074 2.85 
201-5960990 Invoice #6059075 8.55 
201-5970610 Invoice #2222409 34.99 
201-5970610 Invoice #6042549 43.17 
201-5970610 Invoice #6042551 26.98 
201-59706 I 0 Invoice #6052463 26.23 
201-5970610 Invoice #6042550 43.01 
201-5970610 Invoice #2206845 161.96 
201-5970610 Invoice #2206847 44.99 
201-5970610 Invoice #6048118 38.67 
201-5970610 Invoice #6053798 11.99 
201-5970610 Invoice #6053799 12.74 
201-5970610 Invoice #6062074 56.96 
201-5970610 Invoice #6062073 108.52 
201-5970610 Invoice #6059077 116.16 
201-5970610 Invoice #6059076 50.21 
201-5970610 Invoice #2206846 39.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2216222 109.97 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2216225 19.99 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2216223 29.99 

• 201-5970610 Invoice # 2216224 78.98 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2234274 344.92 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2234272 99.97 
201-5970610 Invoice # 2234273 34.99 



q) 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB ."'. 

'''' June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 12 .. ~-~ 
07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

201·5970610 Invoice # 2228839 34.99 
201·5970610 Invoice # 2228841 106.97 
201·5970610 Invoice # 2228840 29.99 
201·5970610 Invoice # 6072058 36.72 
201·5970610 Invoice #6072059 13.49 
201·5970610 Invoice #6067500 37.48 
201·5970610 Invoice #6067503 10.49 
201·5970610 Invoice #606750 I 11.99 
201·5970610 Invoice #6067502 33.72 
201·5970610 Invoice #6067888 29.68 
201·5970610 Invoice #6067889 51.44 
201·5970610 Invoice #6067890 16.49 
201·5970610 Invoice #6067887 122.76 
201·5970610 Invoice #2222410 134.96 
201·5970610 Invoice #2222411 39.99 
201·5970610 Invoice #6059074 IL24 
201·5970610 Invoice #6059075 35.22 
201·5970610 Invoice #2188591 0.10 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067865 29.99 
201·5970630 Invoice #6072054 22.49 
201·5970630 Invoice #6072056 15.74 
201·5970630 Invoice #6072057 22.49 
201·5970630 Invoice #6072045 18.74 
201·5970630 Invoice #6072046 89.96 
201·5970630 Invoice #6072048 18.74 
201·5970630 Invoice #6072049 106.45 
201·5970630 Invoice #6072051 29.22 
201·5970630 Invoice #6072047 22.48 

• 201·5970630 Invoice #6067491 37.47 
201·5970630 Invoice #6067482 13.49 
201·5970630 Invoice #6067486 134.18 
201·5970630 Invoice #6067487 218.85 
201·5970630 Invoice #6067488 35.23 
201·5970630 Invoice #6074587 89.96 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6074587 89.96 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067495 27.74 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067489 206.12 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067490 74.97 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067483 278.15 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067496 106.95 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067484 693.52 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067485 281.10 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067494 18.74 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067493 76.45 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6072053 14.99 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6072052 22.49 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067498 22.49 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067492 44.98 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067499 56.22 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067497 11.24 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067871 29.98 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067870 44.96 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067879 37.48 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067881 32.23 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067876 131.94 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067875 48.72 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067874 179.16 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067873 127.44 • 201·5970630 Invoice # 6059062 7.49 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067869 20.99 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067866 29.99 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6072055 67.48 



(Z) 
All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB .'" 

(,1;) June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 13 ,." 
07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Chk.No. Check Date Amount 

201·5970630 Invoice # 6072050 37.49 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6048113 14.99 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6053793 33.74 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6048109 74.99 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6048108 41.23 

MIDWEST TAPE 10461 07/20110 6,298.22 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057850 6.75 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057844 6.75 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057848 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057841 13.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057842 9.00 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057847 2.45 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6067885 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6059063 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6059064 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6067886 4.70 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6067872 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6059066 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6067878 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6067880 29.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6042540 15.95 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6042539 38.95 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6042538 22.90 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6042537 6.75 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6042533 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 970630 9.00 

• 201·5960990 Invoice # 6042548 9.00 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6042543 25.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6042542 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6042532 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6042531 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6048115 6.75 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6048114 11.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6048117 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6048116 11.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6048110 6.75 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6048107 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6048112 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057846 6.75 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057845 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 605785 I 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057843 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057854 8.55 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057852 5.70 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057853 22.80 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057849 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6057840 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6059061 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6053796 11.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6053788 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6053784 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6053797 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6053786 7.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6053787 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6053785 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6053791 2.25 • 201·5960990 Invoice # 6053794 4.50 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6053792 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6053795 2.25 
201·5960990 Invoice # 6053790 2.25 



q) All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB 
-~ .. 

June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 14 ~J:1 

''-' 07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Cbk. No. Check Date Amount 

201-5960990 Invoice # 6042546 15.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6052461 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067867 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6059060 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067868 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067877 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6059065 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067884 11.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6052462 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6042545 13.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6042536 9.60 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6042547 18.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6042534 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6042535 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6062068 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6062072 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6062067 18.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6062066 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6062065 31.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6062071 4.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6062069 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6062070 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6062064 4.50 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6042541 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6057839 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6057838 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6059072 11.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6059067 2.25 

• 201-5960990 Invoice # 6059068 20.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6059070 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6059069 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6059073 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6059071 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6042544 24.75 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067882 9.00 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6067883 2.25 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6048111 4.70 
201-5960990 Invoice # 6053789 2.25 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057850 41.22 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057844 35.22 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057848 114.71 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057841 130.44 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057842 86.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057847 29.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057846 56.22 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6067885 37.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059063 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059064 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6067886 67.47 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6067872 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059066 33.73 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6067878 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6067880 243.62 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042540 171.67 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042539 183.58 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042538 170.14 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042537 69.72 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042533 25.49 

• 201-5970630 Invoice # 970630 89.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042548 71.21 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042543 175.39 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042542 14.99 



m All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB .::" 
(,.1) June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 15 
.. ,? 07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Cbk. No. Cbeck Date Amount 

201·5970630 Invoice # 6042532 349.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042531 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6048115 53.22 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6048114 48.70 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6048117 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6048116 79.45 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6048110 56.22 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6048107 34.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6048112 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057845 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057851 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057843 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057854 36.72 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057852 26.83 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057853 104.02 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057849 23.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057840 21.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059061 44.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6053788 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6053784 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6053797 42.73 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6053786 41.22 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6053787 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6053785 24.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6053791 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6053794 32.23 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6053792 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6053795 48.73 

• 201-5970630 Invoice # 6053790 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042546 113.17 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6052461 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6067867 89.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059060 11.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6067868 22.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6067877 89.92 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059065 9.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6067884 112.45 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6052462 43.46 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042545 98.93 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042536 77.21 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042547 87.67 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042534 44.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042535 41.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6062068 50.98 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6062072 14.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6062067 177.67 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6062066 20.99 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6062065 368.84 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6062071 28.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6062069 20.24 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6062070 22.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6062064 22.48 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6042541 71.23 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057839 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6057838 89.96 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059072 89.95 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059067 18.74 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059068 134.90 • 201-5970630 Invoice # 6059070 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059069 7.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059073 22.49 
201-5970630 Invoice # 6059071 89.96 



q.> All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB .::::~ 

'o' June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 16 ,n 07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Cbk. No. Cbeck Date Amount 

201·5970630 Invoice # 6042544 97.39 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067882 47.96 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6067883 22.49 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6048111 26.23 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6053789 11.24 
201·5970630 Invoice # 6053796 96.70 

MISSOURI LIBRARY NETWORK CORP 10462 07120/10 125.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920220 Invoice # 44414 125.00 

MORNINGSTAR INCORPORATED 10463 07/20110 170.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970620 Subscription 10: 1603178 170.00 

NEWSBANK 10464 07120/10 840.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970640 Invoice # RN587818 840.00 

NORMAN ELECTRICAL CONSTRUCTION ( 10465 07120/10 1,105.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930020 Invoice # 21309 510.00 
201·5930020 Invoice # 21310 595.00 

OFFICE DEPOT 10466 07/20/10 107.63 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970100 Invoice # 524381472001 54.82 
201·5970100 Invoice # 524050675001 39.19 

• 201·5970100 Invoice # 523212035001 13.62 

10467 07120/10 29,578.33 OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5920110 Invoice # 10292 27,083.33 
201·5980420 Invoice # 10149 2,495.00 

PADDOCK PUBLICATIONS, INC. 10468 07120110 127.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970620 Account # 898489 127.00 

PITNEY BOWES 10469 07/20/10 1,070.84 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5930210 Invoice # 9954034·JN I 0 164.00 
201·5970260 Acct: 8000 9090 OS I 0 7839 906.84 

PROQUEST LLC 10470 07120/10 1,465.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970640 Renewal # USI677302 1,465.00 

RANDOM HOUSE INCORPORATED 10471 07/20/10 95.10 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1089086568 69.90 
201·5970610 Invoice # 1089003249 25.20 

RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 10472 07/20/10 1,490.30 
Account No. Description Amount 
201·5970610 Order # 4888281 111.37 
201·5970610 Order # 4869628 1.077.53 
201·5970610 Order # 4913631 235.40 • 201·5970630 Order # 4903647 33.00 
201·5970630 Order # 4876301 33.00 

REED CONSTRUCTION DATA 10473 07/20/10 43.15 



CD All Checkbooks Des Plaines Public Library DESPLANSLIB os. 
~i;) June 2010 Vendor Checks Report Page 17 
m 07/14/1005:56 PM 

• Vendor Name Chk. No. Check Date Amount 

Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Order # 296902 I 43.15 

REGENT BOOK COMPANY 10474 07120/10 13.62 
Account No. Description Amount 
20 I -5970600 Invoice # 40799 13.62 

ROOM & BOARD BUSINESS INTERIORS LI 10475 07120/10 636.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5980600 Invoice 1263953/1272603 636.00 

RUNGE PAPER COMPANY. INC. 10476 07120/10 1,331.45 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970170 Invoice # 667233 396.50 
20 I -5970 I 70 Invoice # 666263 49.31 
201-5970170 Invoice # 664898 841.93 
201-5970170 Invoice # 651344 43.71 

SALEM PRESS 10477 07120/10 752.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 0385327-IN 632.00 
201-5970600 Invoice # 0386277-IN 120.00 

SCHINDLER ELEVATOR CORPORATION 10478 07120110 795.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930020 Invoice # 7151299527 795.00 

SOMETHING FISHY INC 10479 07120/10 31.97 

• Account No. Description Amount 
201-5960990 Invoice # 0120 31.97 

SPEED-E-KLEEN 10480 07120/10 120.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930320 Invoice # 3576 120.00 

STANDARD & POOR'S 10481 07120/10 810.48 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970600 Invoice # 30453512 810.48 

TODA Y'S BUSINESS SOLUTIONS INC 10482 07120/10 24,865.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5980400 Invoice # 061410-4 24,865.00 

UNITED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 10483 07120110 1,928.35 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5930010 Invoice # 052692 4.39 
201-5930010 Invoice # 052683 113.65 
201-5930010 Invoice # 052693 9.63 
201-5930010 Invoice # 052688 722.80 
201-5930010 Invoice # 052704 578.00 
201-5930010 Invoice # 052687 432.20 
201-5970100 Invoice # 85065A 11.24 
201-5970100 Invoice # 85041 A 11.29 
201-5970100 Invoice # 85186A 11.24 
201-5970100 Invoice # 83871A 11.43 
201-5970100 Invoice # 84987 A 11.24 
201-5970100 Invoice # 84946A 11.24 

• V AWE LINE PUBLlSIHNG • INC. 10484 07120110 598.00 
Account No. Description Amount 
201-5970620 598.00 



All Checkbooks 
June 2010 

• Vendor Name 
WAREHOUSE DIRECT 

Account No. 
201-5970100 
20 I -5970 100 
20 I -5970 100 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 
Account No. 
20 I -5930490 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 
Account No. 
201-5930490 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 
Account No. 
201-5930490 

WEST GROUP 
Account No. 
201-5970600 

• 

• 

Des Plaines Public Library 
Vendor Checks Report 

Chk. No. Check Date 

10485 07120110 
Description Amou.nt 
Invoice # 776304-0 6.76 
Invoice # 785024-0 172.00 
Invoice # 755631-0 167.07 

10486 07120/10 
Description Amount 
Invoice # 4135330-2008-2 131.89 

10487 07/20/10 
Description Amount 
Invoice # 2229342-2008-8 338.06 

10488 07/20/10 
Description Amount 
Invoice # 2229261-2008-0 621.13 

10489 07/20110 
Description Amount 
Invoice # 820792158 73.00 

Subtotal 

TOTAL 

Amount 

345.83 

131.89 

338.06 

621.13 

73.00 

194,401.75 

204,196.86 

DESPlANSLIB 

Page 18 
07/14/1005:56 PM 



'''' () 

• 

• 

• 

DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
July, 2010 

Please note: I have received no official requests for confidential patron information 
since my last report. 

I. PERSONNEL 

New Employees for june/july 2010: Maria jimenez, Page, 06/21/2010, Page, 

Circulation Services Department. 
/ 

II. STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Eleven staff members attended the American Library Association's Virtual 

Conference via computer on july 7 and 8. We gathered in the Conference 

Room to hear Keynote Addresses by joan Frye Williams, George Needham, and 

Karen Hyman. Their remarks were challenging they addressed the new reality 

for libraries in the United States. Presentations like this are very useful to start 

conversations and idea-generating sessions among our staff so that we can 

creatively solve the problems we face at this time, i.e. cuts in funding, 

competition for scarce public resources, and, the lower esteem that libraries 

and librarians are held in by vocal members of our communities. This was a 

cost effective way of experiencing the advantages of professional continuing 

education without the expense of travel. The entire cost for this service was 

$300. 

III. PATRON SERVICES 

( As predicted, our Interlibrary Loan, Van Delivery, and overall circulation 

decreased from last june. Interlibrary Loan decreased by 72%, van delivery by 

27%, and overall circulation by 7.35%. Van delivery options are being studied 

by a Task Force of North Suburban Libraries and by the library systems that are 
planning to merge in 2011. The current, but temporary van delivery service 

will end sometime in October. 

Sixty-seven percent of the items that circulated from the children's collection 
were print materials, whereas 44% of the items circulated from the adult 

collection were print. Of the total circulation, 54% was print, and 47% audio

visual items, including books on disc. 

For June, there were 191 checkouts from My Media Mall. This represented 67 
unique patrons and 31 new patrons. As of june 30,1580 children have enrolled 



• 

• 

• 

in our summer reading program. Two of our children's programs attracted of 

200 attendees, and one over 100. The average attendance for the other ten 

programs was 46, with 16 the lowest and BB the highest. In addition, Sara 

McLaughlin and Cheryl Gladfelter visited four elementary schools and presented 

programs to invite children to participate in the summer reading program at the 

library. They spoke to a total of 690 children. 

Computer use within the library has decreased this year, 11 % on the adult floor, 

and 15% in youth. 

Patron attendance increased by 16%, year to date, over 2009. Our meeting 

rooms have been used by more than 19,000 people to attend meeti ngs and 

programs in 2010 thus far. The library also visits local schools, preschools, 

congregant residential facilities in Des Plaines. Thus far in 2010, we have 
presented programs to 6,070 people in Des Plaines. We have also had nearly 

30, 000 virtual visits from patrons using computers from external locations. 

Our Bookcart Drill Team, the CartWheels performed at Des Plaines' 4'h of July 

parade, to the delight, amusement, and wonder of the parade watchers. It is a 

gratifying experience to walk with the library contingent and to hear people 

shout their appreciation for their library. 

IV. OTHER PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES 

I attended the appreciation luncheon for the Northwest Suburban U~ited Way 

on June 17, a meeting of the Friends of the Library Roundtable on June 22, and 

a Chamber of Commerce Afterhours Event for Not-for-Profit agencies on July 

13. 



Des Plaines Public Library - June 2010 Board Report 

leARn ,I KATION 
ITHIS MUI'O I n ~TE 

INew : Cards lJun 2010 373 IYTi520iQ 1,883 
Jun 2009 433 YTD2009 2,673 
%l. -14% % -30% 

riness Cards jun 2010 7 YTD 2010 24 
jun 2009 1 YTD 2009 18 
% 133% % Chanl!e 33% 

ITotal Card n. YTD 2010 32,584 
YTD 2009 35,739 
% 120H 57.2% 
% 12009 -62.7% 

~AIKUNAll 'A~r~ 

ITHIS MUNIH IYEAR TOOATE 
lJun 2010 53.121 IYTD 2010 ~o<. nn<. 

•• lJun 2009 50,870 ~ 
255,070 

1% Change 4% 16% 

WTlNG USE 
ITHISMONIH IYEAR TODATE 

ILibrary C I Prog 31 1.242 IYTD 11 ,932 
Outside ~"nc 24 67U IYILJ 6,690 

InternaJ 13 124 IYfi:) 683 

IIUTAl 68 2,036 I TOTAL 19,305 

• 



SPECIAL PROJECTS & STATS: 

THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
Voter Registration Jun 2010 5 YTD 2010 14 

Jun 2009 1 YTD 2009 18 
% Change 400% % Change -22% 

Hits on Website 

Computer Use Adult Services YEAR TO DATE 

Jun 2010 8,756 YTD2010 53,470 
Jun 2009 10,209 YTD2009 60,126 

% Change -14.23% % Change -11.07% 
Youth Services 
Jun 2010 1,725 YTD 2010 8,491 
Jun 2009 1,983 YTO 2009 9,983 

% Change -13.01% % Change -14.95% 

Average Online Reference Products 
Searches & Queries Jun 2010 11,585 YTO 2010 66,263 

Jun 2009 11,280 YTO 2009 86,919 
% Change -23.76% 

patron counters were out nuary- May 2009 
These are based on the month cha in circulation rates. 



• 

D Progress Report 

D Response Requested 

1501 Ellinwood Street 

Des Plaines, Il60016-4553 

847-827-5551 phone 

847-827-7974 fax 

QJ Board Action Required 05/1512010 

Present: 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Management Committee Meeting 

May 24,2010 

Eldon Burk, Jeffery Rozovics, Susan Moylan Krey, George Mager!, 
Noreen Lake, Sandra Norlin, Holly Richards Sorensen, Carol Kidd. 

Call to Order: 3:30 p.m. by Eldon Burk. 

The Committee reviewed and revised policies A-9 through A-14 and policies C-1 
through C-12 and will ask for board approval at the May 15, 2010 board meeting. 

The Committee discussed the discontinuation of van delivery service and the effect 
on the Des Plaines library. North Suburban Library System is mandated by state law 
to continue van delivery to all libraries two days a week 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Jeffery Rozovics, to adjourn the 
meeting. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

The meeting adjourned at 4:38 p.m. 

Minutes prepared by Carol Kidd . 

-"""'i';r 
www·~~~A // 
~~ 



(:::) 
.i. 

.' 

• 

• 

FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY 
Tuesday, June 22, 2010 

The meeting was called to order by President Wally Meyer at 7:00 pm. 

Membership Committee: Sue Casson created a new membership flyer that will be 
mailed to all Friends. Some changes were recommended and will be made. 
Return envelopes will be included in the mailing of those whose membership will 
expire. 

Book Shelf Sales: So far in June the book sales are $397.78, 

Book Sale: The hours for the fall book sale will remain the same. Mary informed 
the Friends that the 5th annual "Friends of the Library Week" is October 17-22, 
2010 

Director's Report: The library will be closed July 3 while the ceiling repairs are 
being made. It will also be closed July 4th and will reopen on the 5th

• The Library 
Drill Cart team will be in the 4th of July parade. "Pillars of Freedom", an off-shoot 
of the Honor Flights to DC will make it's debut at the Des Plaines library on 
Sunday, August 29th Many veterans are not able to make the trip to DC and this is 
an 8 foot model of the WWII memorial. The library will partner with the Park 
District, Historical Society and other organizations in sponsoring this premier 
viewing which is funded by private donations. Gov. Quinn may be the guest 
speaker. The Friends of the Library will donate up to $1000.00 for the 
refreshments . 



. , 

,::. 
.::. 

• 

• 

Present: 

D Progress Report 

D Response Requested 

QJ Board Action Required 05/15/2010 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Minutes of the Management Committee Meeting 

May 24, 2010 

Eldon Burk, Jeffery Rozovics, Susan Moylan Krey, George Mager!, 
Noreen Lake, Sandra Norlin, Holly Richards Sorensen, Carol Kidd. 

Call to Order: 3:30 p.m. by Eldon Burk. 

The Committee reviewed and revised policies A·9 through A·14 and policies C·1 
through C-12 and will ask for board approval at the May 15, 2010 board meeting. 

The Committee discussed the discontinuation of van delivery service and the effect 
on the Des Plaines library. North Suburban Library System is mandated by state law 
to continue van delivery to all libraries two days a week 

MOTION by Susan Moylan Krey, seconded by Jeffery Rozovics, to adjourn the 
meeting. VOTE: AYES: All. NAYS: None. MOTION CARRIED. 

The meeting adjourned at 4:38 p.m. 

Minutes prepared by Carol Kidd . 


	Cover Sheet
	December 2010
	November 2010
	October 2010
	September 2010
	August 2010
	July 2010

